DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 312 071 PS 018 349

TITLE Hearings on H.R. 24, Child Nutration and WIC
Amendments of 1989. Hearings before the Subcommittee
on Elementary, Secondary, and Vocational Education of
the Committee on Education and Labor. House of
Representatives, One Hundred First Congress, First
Session (February 8 and 28; March 2 and 23, 1989).

INSTITUTION Congress of the U.S., Washington, D.C. House
Committee on Education and Labor.

PUB DATE 89

NOTE 319p.; Serial No. 101-28.

AVAILABLE FROM Superantendent of Documents, Congressaonal Sales
Office, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington,
DC 20402 (Stock No. 552-070-06594-6, $10.00).

PUB TYPE Legal/Legislative/Regulatory Materaials (090)
EDRS PRICE MFO1/PC13 Plus Postage.
DESCRIPTORS Federal Government; =*Federal Legislation; =*Federal

Programs; =*Government Role; Hearings; =xNutraitaion:
Program Administration; Program Costs; Program
Effectiveness; *Program Improvement

IDENTIFIERS Congress 101st; P.ogram Characteristics; =School

Lunch Program; =Women Infants Children Supplemental
Food Program

ABSTRACT

Hearings were held on the reauthorization of the
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children
(WIC) and the extension of the Child Nutrition and National School
Lunch Acts. Testimony on WIC concerns: the importance of and need for
the WIC program; state and federal funding of the program; program
effectiveness; experiences of WIC consumers; ways to improve and
expand the program; infant formula cost containment systems; progranm
regulations; and other related concerns. Testimony on the child
nutrition and school lunch legislation focuses on administrative
reform of che program; the effects of cuts in funding for the
nutrition programs; problematic aspects of program implementation;
legislative recommendations; and a variety of child nutrition
programs, including WIC and the Nutrition and Fducation Training,
Summer Food, Child Food Care, CASH, and CLOC programs. (RH)

LEEREEEE RS SRR E R R R R R R R R S R 2 R R R R R R Lt ]

* Reproductions supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made *
* from the original document. *
xxxxxxxx*xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx*xxx*xxxx*xxxxxxxaxxxxxxxxxxxx




-

>
HEARINGS ON H.R. 24, CHILD NUTRITION AND WIC
AMENDMENTS OF 1989

GHtice of Educationyl Research and Improvement

EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATI
CENTER (ERIC) ° on

X‘lms documenl has been reproduced as
receved from the person or organization

onginating it

O Minor changes nave been made to mprove
teproduction Quahty

HEARINGS ® Points ot view or opiniONs stated in thiS docu-

ment do not necessarily represent othcial
BEFORE THE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND
VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

OF THE

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

ONE HUNDRED FIRST CONGRESS
FIRST SESSION

ED312071

HEARINGS oD IN WASHINGTON, DC, FEBRUARY 8 AND 28; AND
MARCH 2 AND 23, 1989

Serial No. 101-28

Printed Jor the use of the Committee on Education and Labor

&3

BEST COPY AVAILABLE

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
99-666 =3 WASHINGTON : 1989

For sale by the Super dent of Dy Congr al Sales Office

US Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402




COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR

AUGUSTUS F. HAWKINS, California, Chairman

WILLIAM D. FORD, Michigan WILLIAM F. GOODLING, Pennsylvama
JOSEPH M GAYDOS, Pennsylvania E THOMAS COLEMAN, Missouri
WILLIAM (BILL) CLAY, Missoun THOMAS E. PETRI, Wisconsin
GEORGE MILLER, Califorma MARGE ROUKEMA, New Jersey
AUSTIN J. MURPHY, Pennsylvania STEVE GUNDERSON, Wisconsin
DALE E KILDEE, Michigan STEVE BARTLETT, Texas

PAT WILLIAMS, Montana THOMAS J. TAUKE, lowa
MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, Cahfornia RICHARD K. ARMEY, Texas
MAJOR R. OWENS, New York HARRIS W FAWELL, illinois
CHARLES A. HAYES, Illinois PAUL B. HENRY, Michigan
CARL C. PERKINS, Kentucky FRED GRANDY, lowa

THOMAS C. SAWYER, Ohio CASS BALLENGER, North Carohna
DONALD M. PAYNE, New Jersey PETER SMITH, Vermont

NITA M. LOWEY, New York

GLENN POSHARD, Illinois

JOLENE UNSOELD, Washington

NICK JOE RAHALL I, West Virginia

JAIME B. FUSTER, Puerto Rico

PETER J. VISCLOSKY, Indiana

JIM JONTZ, indiana

KWEISI MFUME, Maryland

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND VocarioNaL EpucaTioN

AUGUSTUS F. HAWKINS, Calforma, Chairman

WILLIAM D FORD, Michigan WILLIAM F. GOODLING, Pennsylvania
GEORGE MILLER, California HARRIS W. FAWELL, Ilhnois
DALE E. KILDEE, Michigan FRED GRANDY, lowa

PAT WILLIAMS, Montana PETER SMITH, Vermont
MATTHEW G MARTINEZ, Califorma STEVE BARTLETT, Texas

CARL C. PERKINS, Kentucky STEVE GUNDERSON, Wisconsin
CHARLES A. HAYES, Illinois THOMAS E PETRI, Wisconsin
THOMAS C. SAWYER, Ohio MARGE ROUKEMA, New Jersey
MAJOR R. OWENS, New York E THOMAS COLEMAN, Missouri
DONALD M. PAYNE, New Jersey

NITA M. LOWEY, New York

GLENN POSHARD, ithnois

JOLENE UNSOELD, Washington

NICK JOE RAHALL 1I, West Virgima

JI8AJIAVA Y900 1238

ERI

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




CONTENTS

Hearings held in Washington, DC, on-
February 8, 1989.. ...
February 28, 1989..
March 2, 1989..... e e
March 23, 1989 ... s+ sene 4+ ernenne raeees seene

Statement of:

Bode, John, Assistant Secretary for Food and Consumer Services, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, accompanied by Scott Dunn, Acting Admin-
istrator, FNS, USDA, and George Braley, Deputy Administrator for
Specia! Nutrition Programs, FNS, USDA ....... .ccviiis wr cocesinessnesesonne o

Chiles, Senator Lawton, (retired), Chairman, National Commission to Pre-
vent Infant Mortality. ... i v coee sesvesesesssesenes on avees

Gardner, Rebecca, Legislative Coordinator, National Association of NET
Program Coordinators; Edward Cooney, Deputy Director, Food Re-
search and Action Center, accompanied by Linda Locke, Advocacy Di-
rector, Community Coordinated Child Care, Kentuckr; Dorothy Pan-
nell, Director of Focd Services, Fairfax County Schools, Virginia; and
Robert Greenstein, Director, Center on Budget and Policy Priorities.......

Schiff, Dr. Donald W., President of the American Academg of Pediatrics;
Ms Djamillah Samad, WIC Association of New York State; and Mr.
Loren Bell, President of the National Association of WIC Directors. ......

Watkins, Shirley, President, American School Food Service Association;
Dr. Robert 5. McCord, Director of Government Relations, Clark County,
Nevada Public Schools; and Charles Hughes, President, Local 372, New
York City Board of Education EmpPloYees .......cc. woeceveerecsecveens vrn. veversersens

Prepared statements, letters, supplemental materials, et cetera:

American Assoc’ation of Retired Persons, statement of........ .. . cooveve s o .. ..

Be'l, Loren, President of the National Association of WIC Directors,
Prepared Statement OFf ... coivciveerieenenneseereeens serveseessnes o oree o eve sren

Bode, John, Assistant Secretary for Food and Consumer Services, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, prepared statement of...... ... .. coovvevvrers « oo,

Bread for the World, statement of ........ccoocees « eote weeverneenee. e e e

California State Department of Education, statement of

Chiles, Senator Lawton, (retired), Chairman, National Commission to Pre-
vent Infant Mortality, prepared statement of .. .. . ... ... woeeee e+ errcerrenne o

Commodity Distribution Coalition, statement of .. ...ccce . oo\ weveeees ceesrvvvrvieenn

Cooney, Edward, Deputy Director, Food Research and Action Center,
Prepared statement OF ... oo et vies veeveereees sevverseressses sreesessessenen o

Gardner, Rebecca, Legislative Coordinator, National Association of NET
Program Cocrdinators, prepared statement of ...... ... . .. .. coourre coereree cones .

Greenstein, Robert, Director, Center on Budget and Policy Priorities,
prepared Statement Of ...........ccccee oimiieiis voivvernsrenniisessons sensereos soesenee eseeees

Hawkins, Hon. Augustus F., a Representative in Congress from the State
of California, prepared statement of............... cecveeres cevevereeces corvverreens oo

Hughes, Charles, President, Local 372 York City Board of Educaticn
Employees, prepared statement of .......c.cccceut coue vovevoseereeresessesserss ovvesessseens .

Locke, Linda, Advocacy Director, Community Coordinated Child Care,
Kentucky, prepared statement of ... ...ce o vee evee ot ceveree e even e soreresrens

McCord, Dr. Robert S., Director of Government Relations, Clark County,
Nevada Public Schools, prepared statement of ..........cc..ceurs vvvee cereeeneereens o

National Association of State Boards of Education, statement of . ....... ..

Nutrition, Education & Training, fact sheet......... .cceceereeceee eee cerres + sreveeressens

Pannell, Dorothy, Director of Food Services, Fairfax County Schools,
Virginia, prepared statement of ........ v i veivvriiene cereeneeene srvesres .

(1)

Q vy A

ERIC :

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

168

19




v

Page

Prepared statements, letters, supplemental materials, et cetera—Continued

Rahall, Hon. Nick J., II, a Representative in Congress from the State of
West Virginia, statement of vt eese b seveereressessesess fon sresberss srer beseeses sire 148

Samad, ijamillah, WIC Association of New York State, prepared state- 0

MENE Of coveriiiriecras o s cresrneein s 9

Schiff, Dr. Donald W., President of the American Academy of Pediatrics,
prepared statement of .... ... e 22

“The NET Program: A Ten Year Perspective,” article entitled .. ... . 289
Watkins, Shirley, President, American Schoo! Food Service Association,
prepared Statement Of .. ...« v it 4o i s 90

<

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




HEARING ON THE SPECIAL SUPPLEMENTAL
FOOD PROGRAM FOR WOMEN, INFANTS AND
CHILDREN

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 1989

HoUSE oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND
VocaTtioNAL EpUcATION,
CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:06 a.m., in
Room 2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hou. Augustus F.
Hawkins [Chairman] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Hawkins, Perkins, Hayes,
Sawyer, Miller, Owens, Payne, Lowey, Poshard, Unsoeld, Rahall,
Goodling, Fawell, Grandy, Smith, Bartlett, Gunderson, and Petri.

Staff present: John F. Jennings, counsel; Diane Stark, legislative
specialist; Beverly Griffin, research assistant; and Mary Jane
Fiske, senior legislative associate.

Chairman Hawkins. This hearing on H.R. 24, the Subcommittee
on Elementary, Secondary, and Vocational Education, is formally
called to order.

I will not say all of che things that I had planned to say about
the WIC program. It is obviously unnecessary to thiz group.

We are delighted to celebrate the sixteenth anniversary, and to
do so by getting down to business in the job of reauthorizing the
program,

We have introduced legislation, H.R. 24, in the House which is
co-authored by the ranking Republican member of the Committee
and myself.

At this time I would like to yield for a brief statement from the
ranking minority member, because he must leave for a very impor-
tant Budget Committee hearing which concerns WIC, as well, so we
certainly want to accommodate him.

At this time I yield to Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoopLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will just say, happy
birthday to everybody again.

School lunch, child nuirition and all nutrition issues have been
very much part of my interest since I have been in Congress for
fourteen years, and will continue to be very much a part of my in-
terests, because of course without geod nutrition we cannot expect
to accomplish any of the other goals that we may have.

(1)
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I am anxious to hear what they have to report. I do have a
Budget Committee hearing and I also have a funeral back in my
district, so it is a tight schedule. Thank you.

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. Without objection, the full
statement of the Chair and of any of the other members of the
Committee who wish to have formal statements entered into the
record will be granted that privilege. |

[The prepared statement of Hon. Augustus F. Hawkins follows:]




Chairman Augustus F. Hawkins February 8, 1989
OPENING STATEMENT

VWOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM

This morning, the Subcommittee on Elementary,
Secondary, and Vocational Education will hear testimony
regarding the Womzn, Infants, and Children Supplemental

Food Program, wiich is more commonly known as WIC.

WIC is one of the most successful national health and
nutrition programs. Through WIC, low income pregnant and
postpartum women, infants and children who are at
nutritional risk are given access to health care and food
to supplement their diets. WIC participants also receive

nutrition education and drug abuse education.

WIC is a very cost effective program. According *o
the Harvard University School of public Health, every one
dollar spent on WIC potentially saves three dollars in
later health care costs. The WIC program has aiso been
credited with reducing the number of low birth weight
babies and decreasing the rate of premature births.
Although WIC has received steadily increasing

approp~iations, the program currently serves only less than

ERIC -9
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half of those who are eligible.

The authorization for WIC expires on September 30,
1989. Mr. Goodling and I have introduced legislation,
H.R. 24, which contains a simple extension of the current
WIC authorization through 1995. Any modifications to the
WIC program that are deemed necessary will be incorporated
into H.R. 24. Today, we will hear testimony from a
distinguisned panel of experts who will share with us their
suggestions for ways in which we might improve this very

important program.

| ERIC
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Chairman Hawkins. At this time, because of a time constraint of
the first witness, I would like to call on the Honorable Lawton
Chiles. May I acknowledge and recognize the fact that for a long
time Senator Chiles has been in the forefront in supporting this
program which we are going to hear more about today.

It is a privilege and a pleasure, Senator Chiles, to recognize you
at this time as Chairman of the National Commission to Prevent
Infant Mortality.

STATEMENT OF US. SENATOR LAWTON CHILES (RETIRED),
CHAIRMAN, NATIONAL COMMISSION TO PREVENT INFANT
MORTALITY

Mr. Cuiies. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and to the distinguished
members of the Committee.

I am delighted to have a chance to participate in your hearing
and to participate in this birthday celebration today. {am delight-
ed to hear that you all have already reintroduced the legislation to
reauthorize the WIC program.

I would like to share a few of my thoughts and recommendations
for improving the health and wellbeing of pregaant women and
children in this country, and these are recommendations from the
Commission to Prevent Infant Mo.tality.

Without a healthy birth, the future of a child is at risk and the
potential of a child to grow both physically and mentally is at jeop-
ardy. Without a healthy birth, infants have the cards stacked
against them from the start.

A major cause of infant mortality is low birth weight. Too many
babies are born too soon and too many are born too small. Many
women never get the prenatal care and guidance and nutrition
during their pregnancy. Too many babies never receive proper pe-
diatric care.

We know that prenatal care works. We know that well baby care
works. It is important to the health of the mother and it insures
the health of the baby. We know that prenatal care is cost effec-
tive, costing as little as $400, compared to perhaps $400 thousand
that is sometimes necessary to keep alive a low birth weight baby
in a neonatal intensive care unit.

We know that comprehensive prenatal care and early pediatric
cai. are cost effective. We certainly know that proper nutrition
and nutritional educativn are key components to comprehensive
prenatal care.

That is the major reason why I have come here today, to speak
to you about the importance of the WIC program meeting the Com-
mission’s goal of providing preventive health care services for preg-
nant women and children.

Studies have shown that inadequate nutrition of pregnant
women may account for as much as fifty-five to sixty-five percent
of the low birth weight babies. Studies also show that participation
in WIC for more than six months is associated with increases in
birth weight and a full term pregnancy.

We know that WIC participation tends to encourage earlier and
more adequate prenatal care. WIC also helps avert medical care
costs. A study conducted at the Harvard School of Public Health

~U
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found that each dollar spent in the prenatal component of WIC
averted three dollars in hospital costs.

In August the Commission released its report entitled “Death
Before Life: The Tragedy of Infant Mortality.” The major recom-
mendation of that report was to provide universal access to com-
prehensive prenatal and pediatric care for all mothers and infants.

The government must assume the responsibility for those who
lack insurance or are unable to pay. Employers must make avail-
able health insurance coverage that includes maternity and well
baby care.

Since we know that WIC is an effective nutrition program for
low income preinant women and children who are at nutritional
risk, we also ask for full funding of WIC for all eligible pregnant
women and children.

Currently we know that the program remains limited. Only
about half of the low income pregnant women, infants and children
at nutritional risk who are eligible for WIC are now reached by the
program. The other half are left out.

In my own state more than sixty percent of the eligivle are not
funded. Currently we also know that states are not info:med about
their ~llocations for the fiscal year until some three to four months
into the year.

States cannot spend more than they will receive in funding; thus,
they often make changes several times a year concerning which
categories of eligible pregnant women, infants and children can be
served and which are placed on waiting lists.

We need to maintain ongoing WIC benefits for pregnant women
and children who are nutritional risk. We must not allow pregnant
women and children to go on and off WIC and to be adversely af-
fected by funding practices which can be corrected.

States need to know on a timely basis their annual appropriation
levels so they can maintain a consistent level of services through-
out the year.

Right now, due to fluctuations in funding, states have to freeze
or redv-e their programs for the first several months of the fiscal
year, then allow expansion, then cut off again at the end of the
year.

We also must work toward integrating WIC, Medicaid and ma-
ternal and child health services at the local level for pregnant
women and children. For example, we should begin this coordina-
tion process at the Federal and state levels, as well. We must make
coordinated and comprehensive services accessible for pregnant
women and children.

As a first step, the Commission has called for mandatory referral
and education between WIC and Medicaid programs.

In closing, I want to say that it is not inevitable that for .orty
thousand American infants the grave and the cradle be one and
the same.

We must provide universal access to comprehensive prenatal and
pediatric care for all pregnant women, infants and children. We
must make the health and wellbeing of mothers and children a
front row national priority.

Proper nutrition for all pregnant women and children is a key
component of reaching our goal. For every day we allow pregnant

KA
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women or young children to go without adequate nutrition this
country pays a tragically high price, not only in added health costs
but in loss of lives.

It has been demonstrated over and over again that the WIC pro-
gram is one of the most effective of all Federal programs in reduc-
ing infant low birth weight and premature birth. We have to find
the political will and the societal commitment to provide those
WIC benefits to all who are etigible.

1 thank you again for allowing me to testify today. I applaud the
Chairman and members of this Committee who have been champi-
ons of the WIC program. I am delighted to see that you are work-
ing forward to its reauthorization.

[Th]e prepared statement of former Senator Lawton Chiles fol-
lows:




National Commission to Prebent Infant Mortality
Switzet Building * Room 2N0¢
330 C Streer SW o Waduneton DC 2000
202472 1364

STATEMENT BY U.S. STNATOR LAWTCN CHILES (RETIRED)
CHAIRMAN
NATIONAL COMMISSION TO PREVENT INFANT MORTALITY

TO THE

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEZ
ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY AND VOCATIUNAL EDUCATION SUBCOMMITTEE

FEBRUARY 8, 1989

MR. CHATRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE, I WOULD LIKE TO THANK
YOU FOR ALLOWING ME TO SHARE WITH YOU TODAY SOME OF MY THOUGHTS
AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVING THE HEALTH AND WELL-BEING OF
PREGNANT WOMEN AND CHILDRCN IN THIS COUNTRY.

WITHOUT A HEALTHY BIRTH, THE FUTURE OF A CHILD IS AT RISK. ThE
POTENTIAL OF THE CHILD TO GROW BOTH PHYSICALLY AND MENTALLY IS AT
JEOPARDY. WITHOUT A HEALTHY BIRTH, INFANTS HAVE THE CARDS
STACKED AGAINST THEM RIGHT FROM THE START.

DURING THE LAST YEAR AND A HALF, AS CHAIRMAN OF THE NATIONAL
COMMISSION TO PREVENT INFANT MORTALITY, I SPENT A LOT OF TIME
LISTENING TO EXPERTS AND PARENTS, TRYING TO FIND OUT WHY 40,000
INFANTS IN THE U.S. DIE >EFORE THEIR FIRST BIRTHDAY.

AND WHAT WE, IN OUR COMMUNITIES, OUR STATES, AND OUR NATION, CAN
DO TO REDUCE THE RATE OF INFANT MORTALITY AND IMPROVE THE CARE
RECEIVED BY MOTHERS, INFANTS AND CHILDREN.

THE MAJOR CAUSE OF INFANT MORTALITY IS LOW BIRTHWEIGHT. TOO MAMN.
BABIES ARE BORN TOO SUON. TOO MANY ARE BORN TOO SMALL. TOO
MANY WOMEN NEVER GET PRENATAL CARE AND GUIDANCE DURING THEIR
PREGNANCY. TOO MANY SMALL BABIES NEVER RECEIVE PROPER PEDIATRIC
CARE.

WE KNOW THAT PRENATAL CARE WORKS. WE KNOW THAT WELL-BABY CARE
WORKS. IT IS IMPORTANT TO THE HEALTH OF THE MOTHER AND INSUR.S
THE HEALTH OF THE BABY.

WE KNOW THAT PRENATAL CARE IS COST EFFECTIVE, COSTING AS LITTLE
AS $400 COMPARED TO THE $400C,000 SOMETIMES NECESSArY TO KEEP
ALIVE A LOW BIRTHWEIGHT BABY IN A NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT.

O
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WE KNOW THAT COMPREHENSIVE PRENATAL CARE AND EARLY PEDIATRIC CARE
WORK AND ARE COST EFFECTIVE.

WE ALSO I'NOW THAT PROPER NUTRITION AND NUTRITION EDUCATION ARE
KEY COMPONENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE PRENATAL CARE.

AND THAT IS THE MAIMN REASON WHY I AM HERE TODAY -- TO TALK TC YOU
ABOUT THE IMPORTANCE OF THE WIC PROGRAM FOR MEETING THE
COMMISSION'S GOAL OF PROVIDING PREVENTIVE HEALTH C>RE SERVICES
FOR PREGNANT WOMEN AND CHILDREN.

I AM A LONG TIME SUPPORTER OF THE WIC PROGRAM AND WELCOME THIS
OPPORTUNITY TO EXTOL ITS VIRTUES AND RECOMMEND CHANGES TO
INCREASE ITS EFFECTIVENESS AND ITS ABILITY TO SERVE EVERYONE THAT
IS ELIGIBLE.

STUDIES HAVE SHOWN THAT INADEQUATE NUTRITION OF PREGNANT WOMEN
MAY ACCOUNT FOR AS MUCH AS 55-65 PERCENT OF LOW BIRTHWEIGHT
BABIES.

STUDIES ALSO SHOW THAT PARTICIPATION IN WIC FOR MORE THAN SIX
MUNTHS IS ASSOCIATED WITH INCREASES IN BIRTHWEIGHT AND A FULL -
TERM PREGNANTY. WE KNOW THAT WIC PARTICIPATION TENDS TO
ENCOURAGE EARLIER AND MORE ADEQUATE PRENATAL CARE.

WIC ALSO HELPS AVERT MEDICAL CARE COSTS. A STUDY CONDUCTED AT
THE HARVARD SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH FOUND THAT EACH DOLLAR SPENT
IN THE PRENATAL COMPONENT OF WIC AVERTED THREE DOLLARS IN
HOSPITAL COSTS.

IN AUGUST, THE COMMISSION RELEASED ITS REPORT, ENTITLED DEATH

: DY O N TO THE PRESIDENT
AND THE CONGRESS. ONE OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN THAT REPORT WAS
TO PROVIDE UNIVERSAL ACCESS TO COMPREHENSIV. ERENATAL AND
PEDIATRIC CARE FOR ALL MOTHERS AND INFANTS. GOVERNMENT MUST
ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THOSE WHO LACK SRIVATE INSURANCE OR ARE
UNABLE TO PAY. EMPLOYERS MUST MAKE AVAI1ABLE HEALTH INSURANCE
COVERAGE THAT INCLUDES MATERNITY AND WELL-BABY CARE.

SINCE WE KNOW THAT WIC IS AN EFFECTIVE NUTRITION PROGRAM FOR LOW
INCOME PREGNANT WOMEN AND CHILOREN WHO ARE AT NUTRITIONAL RISK,

WE ALSO ASKED FOR FULL FUNDING OF WIC FOR ALL ELIGIBLE PREGNANT

WOMEN AND CHILDREN.

CURRENTLY, THE WIC PROGRAM REMAINS LIMITED. ONLY ABOUT HALF OF
THE LOW INCOME PREGNANT WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN WHO ARE AT
NUTRITIONAL RISK AND ARE ELIGIBLE FOR WIC ARE NOW REACHED BY THE

PROGRAM. THE OTHER HALF *®E LEFT OQUT,

IN MY OWN STATE OR FLORIDA MORE THAN 6Q PERCENT OF ELIGIBLE W]C
PARTICIPANTS ARE NOT SERVED.

-~
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I APPLAUD CURRENT STATE EFFORTS TO REDUCE INFANT FORMULA COSTS
AND STRETCH WIC DOLLARS TO SERVE MORE CLIENTS. BUT THESE EFFORTS
CAN ONLY ADD ABOUT 300,000 - 400,000 MORE PEOPLE TO THE PROGRAM
== LESS THAN 10 PERCENT OF THE UNSERVED ELIGISBLES.

WHILE FEDERAL FUNDING FOR THE PROGRAM HAS INCREASED -~ FROM $725
MILLION IN 1980 TO $1.9 BILLION IN 1989 -~ MORE NEEDS TO BE DONE
TO REACH THOSE WHO ARE STILL IN NEED BUT REMAIN OUTSIDE THE
PROGRAM. WE RECOMMEND THAT YOU SET A GOAL OF FULL FUNDING FOR
WIC AND MOVE TOWARD THAT GOAL ON A SET TIMETABLE.

EVERY DAY THAT WE ALLOW PREGNANT WOMEN AND CHILDREN TO GO WITHOUT
PROPER NUTRITION, THIS COUNTRY PAYS A TRAGICALLY HIGH PRICE, NOT
ONLY IN ADDED HEALTH COSTS BUT IN LOST LIVES.

CURRENT FEDERAL FUNDING PRACTICES HAVE ALSO ADVERSELY AFFECTED
PREGNANT WOMEN AND CHILDREN SERVED BY THE WIC PROGRAM.

CURRENTLY STATES GENERALLY ARE NOT INFORMED OF THEIR ALLOCATIONS
FOR A FISCAL YEAR UNTIL 3 TO 4 MONTHS INTO THE YEAR. STATES
CANNOT SPEND MORE THAN THEY WILL RECEIVE IN FUNDING; THUS, THEY
OFTEN MAKE CHANGES SEVERAL TIMES A YEAR CONCERNING WHICH .
CATEGORIES OF ELIGIBLE PREGNANT WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN CAN
BE SERVED AND WHICH MUST BE PLACED ON WAITING LISTS.

WE MUST MAINTAIN ONGOING WIC BENEFITS FOR PREGNANT WOMEN AND
CHILDREN WHO APE AT NUTRITIONAL RISK. WE MUST NOT ALLOW PREGNANT
WOMEN AND CHILDREN TO GO ON AND OFF WIC AND TO BE ADVERSELY
AFFECTED BY FUNDING PRACTICES WHICH CAN BE CORRECTED.

STATES NEED TO KNOW, ON A TIMELY BASIS, THEIR ANNUAL
APPROPRIATIONS LEVELS SO THEY CAN MAINTAIN A CONSISTENT LEVEL OF
SERVICES THROUGHOUT THE YEAR. RIGHT NOW, DUE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
FUNDING, STATES MUST FREEZE OR REDUCE THEIR PROGRAMS FOR THE
FIRST SEVERAL MONTHS OF A FISCAL YEAR, THEN ALLOW EXPANSION, AND
THEN CUT OFF AGAIN AT THE END OF THE YEAR.

WE ALSO MUST WORK TOWARD INTEGRATING WIC, MEDICAID AND MATERNAL
AND CHILD HEALTH SERVICES AT THE LOCAL LEVEL FOR PREGNANT WOMEN
AND CHILDREN. BY EXAMPLE, WE SHOULD BEGIN THIS COORDINATION
PROCESS AT THE FEDERAL AND STATE LEVELS AS WELL. WE MUST MAKE
COORDINATED AND COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES ACCESSIBLE FOR PREGNANT
WOMEN AND CHILDREN. AS A FIRST STEP, THE COMMISSION HAS CALLED
FOR MANDATORY REFERRAL AND EDUCAT1ON BETWEEN THE WIC AND MEDICAID
PROGRAMS.

IN CLOSING I WANT TO SAY THAT IT IS NOT INEVITABLE THAT -- FOR
40,000 AMERICAN INFANTS -~ THE GRAVE AND THE CRADLE BE ONE AND
THE SAME. WE MUST PROVIDE UNIVERSAL ACCESS TO COMPREHENSIVE
PRENATAL AND PEDTATRIC CARE FOR ALL PREGNANT WOMEN, INFANTS AND
CHILDREN.

ERIC
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WE MUST MAKE THE HEALTH AND WELL-BEING OF MOTHER AND CHILDREN A
FRONT ROW NATIONAL PRIORITY. PROPER NUTRITION FOR ALL PREGNANT
WOMEN AND CHILDREN IS A KEY COMPONENT OF REACHING OUR GOAL.
EVERYDAY THAT WE ALLOW PREGNANT WOMEN OR YOUNG CHILDREN TO GO
WITHOUT ADEQUATE NUTRITION, THIS COUNTRY PAYS A TRAGICALLY HIGH
PRICE, NOT ONLY IN ADDFD HEALTH COSTS BUT LOST LIVES. 1IT HAS
BEEN DEMONSTRATED TO ME OVER AND OVER AGAIN THAT THE WIC PROGRAM
IS ONE OF THE MOST EFFECTIVE OF ALL FEDERAL PROGRAMS IN REDUCING
INFANT LOW BIRTHWEIGHT AND PREMATURE BIRTHS. WE MUST FIND THE
POLITICAL WILL AND SOCIETAL COMMITMENT TO PROVIDE WIC BENEFITS TO
ALL WHO ARE ELIGIBLE.

ERIC Y

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Chairman HawxkiNs. Thank you, Senator.

Mr. Perkins. I will not ask any questions.

Chairman HawkiNs. The ranking member declines the opportu-
nity to ask questions at this time. We will proceed, then, in terms
of seniority. Mr. Hayes?

Mr. Haves. I do not have any questions. I think the statement
goes a long way regarding putting our money where our mouth is
in funding this kind of program. That is my chief concern.

Chairman HawxkiNs. Thank you for your statement.

It is my understanding that at the conclusion of the hearing ad-
ditional slices of cake will be made avcilable. The Chair puts in his
request for a slice, and Mr. Hayes says that if any is left over it
belongs to him. [Laughter]

Mr. Hayes. As it gets close to lunch time, Mr. Chairman, you
may rest agsured that I will get my share.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Grandy?

Mr. GraNDY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me say at the outset
that I will yield you such cake as you may consume of my share.

Senator Chiles, I have in front of me some figures regarding ap-
propriated funds by states for the WIC program. If my math is
right, we put in at the Federal level £1.9 billion, and the total state
participation is only about five percent of that.

Is there any way we can encourage the states to get more in-
volved in this kind of program, to expand the universe? Have you
got any thoughts on that from the Commission?

Mr. CuiLes. We have been pretty good for the last eight years or
so in encouraging the states to get more involved in all programs. I
think we did that somewhat in WIC because—maybe it is not in
jlml]St this program, but the states are having to pick up a large
share.

As you know, basically, over the last period of time we sort of
kept even with WIC, not being able to sort of increase it, to just try
to keep it up with inflation. So I think you will find the states and
counties are picking up the burden, whether it is through their
state health services—a lot of the other monies that they are
having to pick up, because we do not adequately furid this program.

As you reauthorize the program, if you think that the mix
should be changed, that perhaps is an opportunity to look at tlat.

Mr. Granpy. You obviously are aware that in the Reagan
budget, although my figures indicate that WIC is not reduced, the
child nutrition programs are looking at the annual budget cut of
$935 million.

What would that do to the program, as you see it?

Mr. CuiLEs. When we are only serving half now in WIC, certain-
ly that would be a major, major cut. The good news is that those
cuts have been there in every budget and the Congress has resisted
them in every budget, so I do not—I havz faith that that is going to
happen again.

Also, the new president hopefully will speak somewhat to that
tomorrow night.

Mr. GRaNDy. I do not know that my colleagues on this side have
heard from the president. I have just had some very preliminary
discussions with some of the budget people downtown.

17
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Although there is no firm commitment to maintain this money,
they did acknowledge that this was hardly in the spirit of a
“kinder and gentler administration,” to delete $935 million. So I
await that decision, too.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That is all I have,

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. Ms. Lowey? I yield to you next
in terms of seniority.

Mrs. Lowgy. Thank you.

Senator, throughout my campaign for Congress I constantly
spoke about investing in programs that are more cost effective, and
if we invest in them now we will save money in the long run.

You mentioned this in your statement. You also closed by saying
that we must find the political will and societal commitment.

Now, you and I are commitied, and I imagine everyone in this
audience is committed, and we know the cost that society will have
to bear if we do not invest in WIC now and in other prenatal pro-
grams.

How do we convince society? How do we develop that political

will? Do you have any numbers as to the total political cost, as to
the total financial cost if we do not invest in WIC now, over ten
y}elaars, over twenty years? I would be interested in your advice on
this.
Mr. Caies. Well, I might tell you that we are spending $2.5 bil-
lion a year now in the neonatal emergency costs and all of the re-
lated costs that way, so it is a bargain—and we are paying now—
the country is paying now.

What we are trying to do is to shift some of the payment. That,
again, is why maybe in the Congress we have to muster up a little
more, those of us who are committed, more will—because this just
makes sense, as stewards of the people’s money, to sort of reverse
part of this and make this investment on the front side.

Here we are dealing with a program where everybody who has
looked at this program from the General Accounting Office to all of
the studies—you do not hear anyone saying that this is a program
that is full of fraud, full of waste.

We all know it is effective. Yet, we are funding it at about fifty
percent.

Each year the Budget Committee has put more money in, to see
that money kind of dribble out through the process. I think, when
we look at that $2.5 billion—now, that does not include—the other
thing I think we need to look at, if we deliver that healthy baby to
start with, then we are home free.

When they go to the neonatal care—and thank goodness we are
saving a lot of babies now, but many of those are very severely
mentally and physically handicapped—that is additional cost to so-
ciety during their lifetime that we are going to pay for. So this is a
bargain.

Mrs. Lowky. I hope that we all will be able to convince the presi-
dent and the Congress that this is a good investment.

Mr. ChiLes. It is interesting, I think. We were breakfasting this
morning and talking about this.

For a long time it was like some of us were just sort of hollering
in the dark. Children we saw in this last campaign—they were
talked about a lot more—I sense that there is some kind of momen-
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tum where we are no longer at a dead stop now. It is the time to
build on that.

This hearing—each of us going home to your constituencies—we
have a caring country. If our people are informed, they will make
this decision. They do care about children.

Mrs. Lowgy. Thank you.

Chairman HAwkins. Mr. Fawell?

Mr. FAweLL. Senct s, a portion of your comments struck as par-
ticularly interesting. You state that the Commission has called for
mandatory referral and education between the WIC and Medicaid
programs.

I am not as knowledgeable about practical workings of the pro-
grams but that strikes me as something we should not have to
mandate.

Aren’t the Medicaid people talking to the WIC people, and don’t
they know about each other?

Mr. CHiLES. In some places, yes. Across the country we cannot
say that. In many places a pregnant woman, maybe a teenager,
many times not very sophisticated, has to go make four stops at
four different piaces, complete four different sets of forms which
are entirely different and which are literally almost designed to
frustrate you, to see that you quit before you go through thecse
forms.

What we are saying—and there are some studies that are going
on—if you answer the questions for one of these, you should be an-
swering the questions for all of these. Some years ago in the Con-
gress we decided that if you were trying to get a loan, VA or FHA,
we put their forms together and we said, “Quit running people
around all of this.”

We have not done that about our children yet. It is like we kind
of think about them after the fact. We should be talking about one-
stop service and we ought to be talking about the most simple kind
of ferms that we can have.

After a mother answers one set of questions, a pregnant woman,
that ought to give the information to see whether she qualifies for
food stamps, for maternal and child care, for WIC, for all of the
services that she might be eligible for, without running her around
this maze.

Mr. FaweLL. I would agree and I think everyone would agree
with that.

Especially in instances of a Medicaid referral, it would seem to
me that, out of basic humanness and kindness people would say,
“Oh, by the way, there is the WIC program, I want to tell you
about it.”

I am not sure about mandating that coordination. We probably
are not going to have just the one stop, which would be nice——

Mr. CuiLes. We could start in that direction. Again, the Congress
was responsible for creating these sort of as separate programs.

WIC is done in the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The other is
under Labor and Human Resources, so they come out of different
pots. The bureaucracy builds up. Each one wants their own turf.
We sort of created it that way.

I think it could be changed.

9
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Mr. FAweLL. We should do everything we can do to see that such
a mandate is made very, very clear. Thank you for your testimony.

Chairman HawkiNs. Thank you. The Chair would like to say
that generally it is our intention in this session to try to follow the
recognition of members in the order in which they appear in the
hearing.

Sometimes we skip over more senior members as a result there-
of, so I just want you to know what system we seem to be follow-
ing.

I think that if there is no grave objection we will continue to do
s0.

On that basis, the next person to be recognized is Mr. Rahall.
Mr. Rahall?

Mr. RanaLL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no specific ques-
tions, just general observations to Senator Chiles.

First, your testimony has hit the point very precisely and very
expertly today in demonstrating the problems that states have in
the administration of the WIC program, not having the certainty of
funding levels, et cetera.

You are to be commended for your work as a private citizen.
This follows your public career in which, as former Chairman of
the Senate Budget Committee, you worked very effectively in help-
ing to make sure the WIC program was properly funded under dif-
ficult conditions.

I can also recall your first run for the United States Senate. You
walked across the state of Florida—“Walking Lawton,” I believe,
was your campaign slogan.

You are to be commended for continuing in your life after retir-
ing from the Senate with your work on behalf of pregnant women
and child nutrition programs in order to insure that many others,
who perhaps are less fortunate, can have that healthy start in life
that you obviously have had throughout your career. So I join in
commending you for your excellent testimony today.

Mr. CHices. Thank you.

Chairman HawkiNs. Thank you. Mr. Bartlett?

Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chiles, I am most complimentary of your concept of a single
eligibility.

It would be my hope, both in your body and in this Committee,
that we could set as our goal a single eligibility form so that a
mother who is eligible for a means tested program in any other
program automatically becomes eligible for WIC.

It seems to me to be a rather basic step that we could take.

It seems to me that it is an achievable goal in your body as well
as this one,

My second question is, do you detect a difficulty in some states
with the ability of working mothers to access the system in terms
of office hours or hours in which the WIC programs are open?

Lixe you, I typically dislike Federal mandates on the state and
local governments. However, in terms of the availability of open
hours during nontraditional working days, is that an improvement
tgat? could be made in this bill, and does your body plan to look at
this?

oL
127 '\)




16

Mr. Cuiigs. { know that is a problem in states. I do no’, know
that I am the most qualified person to speak to that; he wever, I
know that that is a problem.

Mr. BartLETT. 1 think that that is an area that this Committee
will explore.

My last question is, on the House side we will be considering the
reauthorization of other programs simultaneously with WIC.

WIC is well recognized as the premier nutrition program for low
income families with children. Sometimes we take other programs
that are less premier and put them into the same legislation.

I am wondering if you would have a comment in terms of rela-
tive priorities compared to WIC of the other programs in this bill—
the Summer Feeding Program, the Nutrition, Education and Train-
ing Program, the Commodity Distribution and State Administra-
tive Expense Authorities. Will the Senate be marking those up si-
multaneously with WIC?

Mr. CHiLes. I cannot tell you what the Senate will be doing. I
was not on the Authorizing Committee. I am now not in the
Senate, so I do not know exactly how they will be handling that.

I think that a number of those other programs are also very im-
portant—the Nutrition, Education and Summer Feeding and some
of those supplemental programs.

I think it is kind of interesting, when you really think about it—
if you look at WIC, which does enjoy broad support—I cannot re-
member anybody in our body standing up and sort of attacking the
WIC program on the basis that there is a lot of fraud or slack or
anything in that program. Everybody always speaks very strongly.

Yet, at the same time, when you really looﬁeat it, it is not an
entitlement program. It is not exempt from Gramm-Rudman-Hol-
lings. It is not exempt from sort of appropriation across-the-board
cuts that in the bodies we periodically had to make.

So here is a program that stands cut as so very effective, and yet
somehow as compared to a lot of other programs—low income pro-
grams—that we had exempted from Gramm-Rudman-Hollings and
we have exempted from these across-the-board cuts, that we made
mandatory entitlements—here is a program that just—each time
the Senate Budget Committee and I think the House Budget Com-
mittes, too—I wish Mr. Goodling were here, he could probably say.

Basically, the mark in the Budget Committee, which is both
bodies, after we have had a chance to go to conference, has in-
creased WIC about twenty percent per year in number. And that
means that the bodﬁ in both houses has agreed to that.

However, when that number has gone out and been cross-walked
to the Apprcpriation Committee or into the Agriculture Committee
out of there, somehow other programs come in and we see WIC sort
of level funded to take care of inflation, but we have not seen that
increase.

Now, in the last three years that I can recall in the Senate
Budget Committee and I think in the entire body of both houses,
we had a twenty percent increase each year. If you look and see
what happened at the end of the process, sort of level funding.
That, I think, is sort of tragic, too.

Mr. BartrETT. If we could determine ways to transfer some of
the funds from some of the other programs into WIC, do you count
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WIC at a higher level than the other programs that I have men-
tioned, or other programs that are oftentimes——

Mr. CHiLes. I do not want to get into programs that you men-
tioned and taking from here. I think if we could see when the body
says we ought to increase these programs—we ought to get to full
funding.

Let’s say it is going to take us four or five years to get there. The
increment that we put in ought to stay. We ought to be able to
build up.

I think all of us know that we cannot go from fifty percent to one
hundred percent in one year. However, we can do it over a few
years, three to five years. We ought to be trying tc see that we do
that.

Mr. BARTLETT. Leaving aside the issue of cuts, your testimony is
that you would advocate putting our emphasis on increases on
WIC, is that the gist of your testimony?

Mr. CHiLEs. I think that increases could go there better, perhaps,
than most other places, yes.

Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you.

Chairman HawkiNs. Thank you. Mr. Poshard?

Mr. PosHARrD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and ladies and gentle-
men of the Committee.

I do not actually have but one question, I guess. I want to ap-
plaud your efforts, Senator Chiles, for the work that you have done
in this area. It is much needed.

I know that the history of this program has shown that there is
nothing more fundamental to the intellectual and academic per-
formance of children in the classroom that a good nutritional base
at home.

My district in the southernmost part of Illinois has the highest
teenage pregnancy rate in the state of Illinois. I have seen the need
for this program, and in fact the effectiveness of the program in
working with our children. I am just hopeful that it will continue
along those lines.

The irony, of course, in my district at least, is that this is one of
the most effective programs. The history of the program has
proven that. And yet it is the program with the longest wa..ing list
for people waiting to get the assistance.

I am just wondering, and forgive my ignorance, Senator Chiles
and members of the Committee, but what would full funding of the
program involve? How much money are we actually talking about
above that which we are already appropriating for the program?

Mr. CHiLes. I think we would be talking about—we are at about
§1119 billion a year now, so we would be talking about another $2

illion.

Mr. PosHARD. I am sorry, sir?

Mr. CuiLes. I think it is about $1.9 billion a year now, so we
would be talking about an additional $2 billion to full fund the pro-
gram.

Mr. PosHArDp. Well, I would certainly hope that we could realign
our priorities in this body and at least begin working toward time-
liness in achieving that figure. Thank you.

Chairman HawxkiINs. Mr. Gunderson?
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Mr. Gunperson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Senator, the real
reason I came over here is that I thought someone else should com-
mend you on your MacNeil-Lehrer appearance last night, and
being that none of my colleagues have done that I want to extend
our appreciation for trying to put some reasonableness on that ir-
rational issue.

That being said, I have to share with everyone in this room that,
believe it or not, there are still some people in this country who
rur: small, rural general stores, my mother being one of them.

Every time the WIC program comes up I am reminded that she
is not afraid to complain about abuse in the food stamp program,
and at the same time she is not at all hesitant to extol the virtues
of the WIC program. Regardless of how all of you feel, I am not
about to take on my mother.

I would, though, Senator, have a question. That is, how do we
better integrate WIC, TEFA, those type of programs—I mean, part
nf the reality, as you well know, is that we are not going to have
the dollars that I think anybody in this room would like to put into
this program.

It seems to me that some kind of better coordination between the
TEFA, the supplemental programs that exist—I would venture to
say that one could pursue a worthy debate about whether or not
some subsidies of higher income children in the school lunch could
be modified, transferring that money to WIC. I know that that will
not meet with the approval of a different group that will be in here
in the near future on the school lunch program.

However, it seems to me, in terms of the overall goal, that there
is no program that has a better goal than WIC. How do we en-
hance its effectiveness within the limited resources? Do you have
any suggestions there for us?

Mr. CuiLes. It is just a very difficult issue. I think that is some-
thing that the Committee will have to look at.

Some people look at the gamut of programs we have and say that
we ought to start over again, that we have created a patchwork of
this and that.

Others say, “Why do you waxut to start over again with a very
effective program like WIC, which we know is effective, and its de-
livery is effective? Let’s find out how we can fix some of the others
and how we can build in.”

That kind of makes a little sense, maybe, that you do not scrap
onedt{lat you know is very effective and that maybe you use it as a
model.

However, obviously, we need to do something, because we do
have this patchwork of programs that are out there.

Mr. Chairman, I want to just say—I did misspeak a minute ago. I
said that WIC was subject to Gramm-Rudman-Hollings, and I think
it is exempt. So I probably misspoke a few other times, but I have
been caught on that one.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Are there any—and perhaps this is something
that someone else will want to submit to the testimony later—are
there any particular commodities that we ought to be increasing in
terms of the WIC program?

Mr. Cuirgs. I think others more qualified than me could speak
better to that.
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Mr. GUNDERSON. All right. Thank you, sir.

Mr. CHiLEs. Mr. Chairman, I am informed that I need to—I am
going to try to visit another committee today to speak on similar
Slfxbjects, and I am told that if I am going to do that I need to kind
o e —

Chairman HawkiNs. May I suggest to the members who have not
been heard from that if you agree to be the first ones to be calied
on in connection with the three ocher witnesses, we can excuse this
witness as a matter of courtesy.

Is there anyone who disagrees? If not, then, Senator, we are so
appreciative of what you have done for this program that we want
to accommodate you.

We would rather share you with someone else rather than to
continue to question you at this time.

Thank you again for appearing before this Committee.

Mr. CHILEs. I thank the Chairman and the Committee for its
kindness, and I again congratulate you on the work that you all
are doing in this area.

Chairman HawkiNs. Thank you. We will be calling on you again
in the future.

Chairinan HawkiNs. The next witnesses will be on a panel that
will consist of Dr. Donald W. Schiff, President of the American
Academy of Pediatrics; Ms. Djamillah Samad; and Mr. Loren Bell,
President of the National Association of WIC Directors.

May I express the appreciation of the Commnittee to the witnesses
who are appearing before you and apologize for such a brief intro-
duction, but we are certainly delighted to have you.

We will hear from them in that order, beginninz with Dr. Schiff.

STATEMENTS OF DR. DONALD W. SCHIFF, PRESIDENT OF THE
AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS; MS. DJAMILLAH SAMAD,
WIC ASSOCIATION OF NEW YORK STATE; AND MR. LOREN
BELL, PRESIDENT OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF WIC DI-
RECTORS

Dr. ScurFr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am delighted to be here.
I want to thank you and the members of the Subcommittee.

My name is Dr. Don Schiff. I am Professor of Pediatrics at the
University of Colorado Medical Center in Denver, and I am the
President of the American Academy of Pediatrics.

The Academy is an organization of 37,000 pediatricians specializ-
ing in the care of infants, children and adolescents.

We are particularly pleased to testify on this very special day in
support of the WIC program, to advocate an increased authoriza-
tion level and to recommend higher appropriations in order to
serve more eligible participants.

The Academy’s support for WIC is based upon three especially
excellent reasons.

First of all, WIC improves pregnancy outcomes, including fewer
low birth weight infants.

Second, the WIC program targets spending for health promotion
and prevention of nutritional deficiencies.

Third, WIC provides an opportunity for infants, children and
pregnant women to access an ongoing medical care system.
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The Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and
Children is a Federally funded nutrition assistance program. It is
designed to provide supplemental foods, nutrition education and
access to health services to eligible low income participants.

The WIC program is a treatment program for infants identified
as nutritionally deficient, but it should also be a preventive pro-
gram for maintaining the liealth and nutritional status of at-risk
participants.

The underlying premise of the WIC program, for which there is
both empirical and anecdotai evidence, is that substantial numbers
of pregnant, nursing and postpartum women, infants and children
from low income families are at risk because of inadequate nutri-
tion, inadequate health care or both.

When prenatal care is not instituted until late in pregnancy, the
rate of low birth weight infants and the rate of infant mortality
increases.

You may remember that the United States ranks nineteenth
among the industrialized nations in infant mortality.

While somr. aspects of the infant and neonatal mortality puzzle
remain unsolved, the wisdom of providing prenatal care and feed-
ing pregnant women and infants is without question.

Data from the Department of Agriculture’s 1986 evaluation of
the impact of WIC demonstrated reductions in late fetal deaths and
premature births, increases in the head size of infants born to WIC
mothers, and improved cognitive development among children par-
ticipating in the program.

Not only is the program effective, but it also saves money. The
average cost of caring for a child weighing less than one and two-
thirds pounds, requiring more than twenty-one days of mechanical
ventilation, as reported in a survey from Children's Hospitals in
1987, was that it cost $160,000.00 per case, and in some of the more
seve(elre cases the cost can go up above that to at least $190 thou-
sand.

We can compare that with the average monthly cost of a WIC
client, which is approximately $42.00 per month.

WIC can also be the gateway to comprehensive prenatal and well
child care for many women, infants and children. The Academy
has strongly emphasized the advantage of a regular source of care
and is an active supporter of Medicaid revisions that have im-
proved eligibility for low income patients.

For many WIC families the process of obtaining a regular source
of care could be facilitated by direct links between the WIC and
Medicaid programs to ease registration and referrals.

As pediatricians we know that early identification of health
needs is both compassionate and cost effective. Undetected and un-
treated health and nutrition problems in young children only
worsen and further compromise optimai growth and development.

However, the WIC prograin is not available to al' those who
qualify to receive services. Because WIC has to operate within Con-
gressional funding levels, only about fifty percent of those eligible
to participate are receiving services.

In the fall of 1987 the Center for Disease Control published re-
sults of a major study which demonstrated a sharp drop in anemia
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among low income children in the WIC program, and this further
validates its effectiveness.

The Academy believes that the WIC program should be expanded
to serve as many eligible individuals as possible. The following
action steps are recommended to accomplish this goal.

First, authorization and appropriation levels should be increased
to insare a steady growth in funding so that more participants can
be enrolled.

Second, funds should be allocated for strategies to aggressively
promote breast feeding among WIC participants. Such strategies
should be designed to reduce the barriers to breast feeding and in-
crease social support for breast feeding.

Third, due to the uncertainty of solid food intake during the
second half of the first year of life, iron-fortified formula should be
provided to WIC infants whose mothers do not breast feed through
the first year of life.

Fourth, the Academy favors the infant formula purchase system
that returns the maximum savings to the program while ma..tain-
ing the high quality of food or formula.

Fifth, the Academy strongly recommends the referral of WIC re-
cipients to a public or private source of medical care that can pro-
vide continuing comprehensive care, including immunizations, as-
sessment of growth and development and treatment. of acute and
chronic illnesses.

Sixth, the Academy recommends expansion of the research com-
ponent of the WIC program to document its effectiveness in the
treatment and prevention of nutritional deficiencies in infants and
children.

By acting now, we can reverse the unacceptable and unnecessary
rate of infant morbidity and mortality and provide future genera-
tions with the healthy start which they deserve.

In these days of budget cuts and cost containment, the expansion
of WIC is a smart move, both for the nation’s economy and for its
needy women and children.

I thank you for allowing us to give this testimony.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Donald W. Schift follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Subc..mittee, good morning. I
am Dr. Don Schiff, professor of pediatrics at University of
Colorado Medical Center and president of the American Academy
of Pediatrics. The Academy, an organization of 27,000
pediatricians specializing in the care infants, children and
adolescents, is pleased to testify in support of the WIC
progzam, to advocate an increased authorization level, and to
recommend higher appropriations in order to serve more
eligible participants.

The Academy's suppo=t for WIC is based on three reasons:

* WI(. .mproves pregnancy outcomes and may be linked to
enhanced cognitive skills in children.

* The WIC program targets spending for health promotion
and prevention of nutritional deficiencies.

* WIC provides an opportunity for infants, children and
pregnant women to access an ongoing medical care system.

The Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and
Children (WIC) is a federally funded nutrition assistance
program. It is designed to provide supplemental foods,
nutrition education, and access to health services to
eligible, low income participants. The WIC program is a
treatment program for infants identified as nutritionally
deficient, but 1t should also be a preventive program for
maintaining the health and nutritional status of at rask
participants.

The underlying premise of the WIC program, for which there 1s
both empirical and anecdotal evidence, is that substant:ial
numbers of pregnant, nursing and postpartum women, infants
and children from low income families are at risk because of
inadequate nutrition, inadequate health care, or both. Over
10 million children have no medical insurance. One out of
four women do not seek care during the first trimester of
pregnancy. In six percent of all births in this country,
there is e¢ither late prenatal care or none at all. When
prenatal care is not instituted until late in pregnancy, the
rate of low birth weight infants and the rate of infant
mortality increases. The U.S. ranks 18th among
industrialized nations in infant mortality.

While some aspects of the infant and neonatal mortality
puzzle remain unsolved, the wisdom of providing prenatal care
and feeding pregnant women and infants 1s without ques on.

Data from the Department of Agriculture’s 1986 evaluation of
the impact of WIC demonstrated reductions in late fetal
deaths and premature births 1increases in the head size of
infants born to WIC mothers, increased use of prenatal care
and improved cognitive development among children
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participating in the program.

Not only is the program effective, but 1t also saves money.
The average cost of caring for a child weighing less than 1
2/3 pounds, requiring more than 21 days of mechanical
ventilation, as reported in a 1987 survey of children’s
hospitals, is $160,000 per case. The average cost of the
most severe of these cases is $190,000. Compare this with
the average monthly cost of $42.00 per WIC client.

WIC can be the gateway to comprehensive prenatal and well
child care for many women, infants and children. The Academy
has strongly emphasized the advantage of a regular source of
care and is an active supporter of Medicaid revisions that
have improved eligibility for low income patients. We are
currently developing a comprehensive proposal aimed at
guaranteeing access for all children to a regular souice of
health care, that is, a medical home. For many WIC families,
the process of obtaining a regular source of care could be
facilitated by direct links between the WIC and Medicaid
programs, such as joint registration and referrals.

As pediatricians, we know that early identification of health
needs is both compassionate and cost effective. Undetected
and untreated health and nutrition problems in young children
only worsen and further compromise optimal growth and
development.

The WIC program is a lifeline for low incume, autritionally
at risk women, infants and children and represents what might
be for some, the only contact they have with the health care
system.

However, the WIC program is not available to all those who
qualify to receive services. Because WIC has to operate
within congressional funding levels, only about 50% of those
eligible to participate are receiving services. 1In the fall
of 1987, the Centers for Disease Control published results of
a major study which demonstrated a sharp drop in anenia among
low income children i1n the WIC program, which further
validates its effectiveness. These results prompted the New
England Journal of Medicine to publish an editorial
concluding that funding for WIC has never been adequate and
that these data should provide momentum to push for increased
funding.

The Academy believes tnat the WIC program should be expanded
to serve as many eligible individuals as possible.

The following action steps are recommended to accomplish this
goal:

1. Authorization and appropriation levels should be
increased to ensure a steady growth :in funding so




that more participants can be enrolled.

Funas should be allocated for strategies to
aggressively promote breast feeding among WIC
recipients. Such strategies should be designed to
reduce barriers and increase social support for
breastfeeding.

Due the uncertainty of solid food intake during the
second half of the first year of life, iron fortified
fortified formula should be provided to WIC infants
whose mothers do not breast feed through the first year
of life.

The Academy favors the infant formula purchase system
that returns maximum savings to the program while
maintaining the qual:ity of the food or formula.

5. The Academy strongly recommends referral of WIC
recipients to a public or private source of medical care
that can provide continuing comprehensive care,
including immunizations, assessment of growth and
development, and treatment of acute and chronic
illnesses.

6. The Academy recommends expansion of the research
component of the WIC program to document 1its
effectiveness in the trearment and preventicu of
nutritional deficiencies in infants and children.

By acting now, we can reverse the unacceptable and
unnecessary rate of infant morbidity and mortality and
provide future generations with the healthy start which they
deserve. In these days of budget cuts and cost containment,
the expansion vf WIC is & smart move, both for the nation's
economy and for its needy women and children.
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Chairman HAwkINs. Thank you, Dr. Schiff. The next witness is
Ms. Samad.

Ms. SaMAD. Mr. Chairman, thank you for allowing me to address
this Committee on behalf of WIC.

I am her2 today representing the WIC consumers across the
country. I currently work for the WIC Association of New York
State as Coordinator for its Nutrition Outreach Project in Harlem
and South Bronx.

The WIC Association is an advocacy organization that provides
information, support and training to the WIC program in New
York State. It is the first state association in this country to hire
staff members.

In the complete testimony that I submitted to the Committee,
with several personal stories of WIC families, I encouraged the
Committee to read them.

Until December 1988, my daughter Moriah, who is three years
old, was a WIC child. Mine is a second marriage. Both my husband
and I have children from previous marriages. We were both work-
ing when I was pregnant in 1985.

I used a private physician in New York City and had no knowl-
edge of WIC during my pregnancy.

Due to sudden circumstances I delivered my baby in a hospital
other than where I had planned. Upon discharge, I was handed a
WIC medical referral form, and through receiving WIC 1 also re-
ceived information of other programs for which my family was
qualified and we were able to compare WIC to food stamps and
Medicaid.

WIC definitely follows a plan that provides assistance to women,
infants and children and also assists in helping the family to pull
its life together and in many areas to keep it healthy, both mental-
ly and physically.

It was my WIC coordinator who asked me to become involved in
WIC’s statewide issues and encouraged me to become certified in
breast feeding management.

While receiving WIC I conducted monthly breast feeding work-
shops in three municipal hospitals and became a very valuable and
sought-after resource for breast feeding promotion to minority
women.

I held in-service training sessions for hospital professionals, col-
lected research for the New York City Task Force on breast feeding
and documented specific barriers to breast feeding among less af-
fluent women in New York City. I was a WIC mom.

The women, infants and children of New York State are as di-
verse as our state. They range from the homeless and battered
women to college educated women like myself. They are also repre-
sentative of those families around the country who gain from WIC
benefits.

The thread that binds us all together is nutritional and financial
eligibility. WIC has helped to keep us healthier pregnant and
breast feeding women. It has helped to provide formula and taught
us why we should * ¢ over dilute it to make it last longer.

It has providea milk, eggs and cheese and has given us sugges-
tions on preparation. It has shown us why some cereals are better
than others.
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WIC moms know that real juice provides vitamins that flavored
drinks and sodas do not. WIC kids whose families are financially
stressed can get peanut butter and thereby have a source of protein
that they might not otherwise have.

I am in a unique position. I have been a recipient of both WIC
and food stamps. I know the differences between the two programs.
I know why WIC is more dear to the families who receive it. I am
able to make that comparison and pass it on to you.

WIC clinics do not and should not be forced to send a woman
home with just checks in her hand. At the WIC site a woman re-
ceives nutrition education along with her check. Because of health
recertification she and her child receive screening for common dis-
eases and potentially damaging illnesses such as lead poisoning.

She receives health-related information on AIDS, drug and alco-
hol abuse. She receives referrals to other local Federally funded
services. She has access to recipes, parenting classes, car seat
loaner programs, school and job referrals.

She also has the opportunity to go to a place where she can take
her child and feel good about seeking help. WIC program staff have
been referred to as family members. They have been approachable.

The nutritionists have provided support to stressed mothers.
They have encouraged women to breast feed and have thereby em-
powered these women with a sense of accomplishment. A breast
feeding mother bonds with her infant faster and has less potential
for abusing her child.

WIC is one of the few public assistance programs that offers spe-
cific benefits and obtains tangible results. The health and wellbe-
ing of the children of the United States is being severely compro-
mised.

The increasing number of children living in poverty, the increas-
ing cost of housing and health care and the effects of drug abuse
and illiteracy are all factors that make daily life difficult for low
income families.

The WIC program is a nutritional aid that has helped to improve
the quality of life and availability of opportunities for the less for-
tunate in this country. It is a program that we and our children
cannot do without.

In a report prepared by the Gordon S. Black Corporation entitled
“Participant Perceptions and Experiences with WIC in New York
State: A Report of Focus Group Research,” WIC participants from
across the state were brought together in their geographic regions
to discuss personal experiences with the program.

This report was prepared for the New York State Department of
Heulth and was released in June 1988. The report showed that
forty-nine percent of those surveyed get their health information
from WIC nutritionists.

The participants of the focus group went on to discuss the posi-
tive aspects of WIC. Specifically, they discussed that it helps them
financially, provides good food and acts as an important source for
nutritional advice.

As one woman stated, “WIC is an answer when you don’t have
one.
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The report of the focus group clearly showed that WIC is an in-
valuable resource for low income women trying to provide quality
meals and nutritional direction for their families.

It also clearly showed some of the barriers to participation that
WIC consumers have had to face. Several of the problems that the
participants mentioned were due to inadequate staffing.

One participant was given an appointment the day she left the
hospital with her baby. The appointment was scheduled for two
months later. She asked the WIC officer to give her an appoint-
ment sooner, since she did not have a job and had no money to feed
her child. She was told that there were no openings.

Another problem was the actual waiting time within the Clinic.
All of the participants agreed that waiiing times could be as long
as three or four hours and sometimes even a full day.

All participants agreed, however, agreed that the treatment they
received from the nutritionists was good except when she was
rushed to get to the next person in line and therefore had little
time to answer questions.

Participants who had been in WIC for more than a year reported
that these problems have become increasingly worse during the
past year.

Clinic hours of operation also act as a barrier to participation.
WIC consumers urge that office hours be expanded to include sat-
urdayS and evenings.

One group of participants had the following suggestions: to hire
WIC staff who have m¢ e formal education and are better informed
about WIC, to expand the WIC staff and thereby enable better
service, to hold clinics in larger space and to devise a better
method for scheduling appointments, to hire more nutritionists to
improve the quality of interaction and to handle the volume of ap-
pointments for a single day.

Among the recommendrtions of the facilitators were the follow-
ing conclusions: better organization at the WIC site, which might
include nutrition classes conducted while participants wait for
checks; better scheduling of appointments for check pick-up; more
staff and more hovrs to handle participation load; and the stand-
ardization of policy implementation throughout each state. For ex-
almple, all sites should cffer free blood work and require nutrition
classes.

A Bronx woman summed it up when she said, “WIC is a fantas-
tic program that is here to help us. It not only provides financial
help, but the nutritional information is extremely useful. It is one
of the best Federal programs.”

Thank you for allowing me to present this testimony before you
today. I hope that what I have presented is useful in understanding
the effects and benefits of the WIC program.

On behalf of WIC consumers, I thank you for your interest in the
program and urge you to investigate ways of expanding WIC serv-
ices to more of the eligible population.

[The prepared statement of Djamillah Samad follows:]
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Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to address this
committee on behalf of WIC. My name is Djamillah Samad. I am here
today representing WIC consumers across the country. I currently work
for the WIC Association of New York State as coordinator for its
Nutrition Outreach Project in Harlem and the South Bronx. The WIC
Association is an advocacy organization that provides information,
support and training to the WIC Program in New York State. It is the
first state association in the country to hire staff members.

I would like to begin today by relating the personal stories of
some of the participants of WIC in New York State.

Laurie Buzzard lives in Friendship, New York, a rural community
near Buffalo. She has received WIC for 3% years. Jim, Laurie's
husband,is a heavy equipment operator for Allegany County. Laurie
works 20 hours per week at a shelter for battered women. Their
combined income is about $16,00 per year. Laurie has begun to work
full-time outside the home and now does not meet the WIC Income
Eligibility Guidelines. While participating in the WIC program, she
and her two children received as much as $80 to $100 per month for
food supplements. Laurie says that WIC helped to supplement her
family's food monies. Living 1in her rural community, budgets are
tight, salaries are low. These factors created a feeling of low self-
esteem because she was unable to adequately provide for her children.
If not for WIC, the nutrition of her family would truly be
compromised.

In Clinton County, close to the Montreal Canadian border, is the
family of Susan Trombley, Susan is a La Leche League Leader. She,
along with a friend who is also a WIC mom, holds breastfeeding support
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groups. Her husband Steven is a corrections officer for New York
State. They have three WIC children that have thrived because of WIC.
Their income has to stretched to support a family of five. Although
her food budget is very limited, she does not have to skimp on the
nutritious foods. Susan can buy the staples her kids need.

Carol Park, another WIC mother, lives in Roscoe which is
centrally located in New York State. Carcl's husband is a teacher. In

addition to her own § children, three who have received WIC since

1978, the Parks have had two foster children who also have received
WIC, and over the years they also have opened their doors to three
foreign exchange students. Carol currently is a full-time university
student. She has very clear ideas on how WIC has benefited her family.
Though the pParks do not have a typicalw;S;ofile in education or
background, $28,000 annually does not go far to feed 7 people, and the
Parks have often found themselves in an economic crunch. According to
Carol, WIC has allowed for an enhancement to her life beyond her food
supplement. She has met women from the full spectrum of her community.
The nutrition education has taught her how to feed her family better
and she has taken that information right back to the broader
community. WIC also has aided Carol in her life-goal directions, she
has chosen & career in nutrition that she says, relates directly to
the knowledge and support she has gained at her WIC clinic. Carol's
youngest son Daniel, is 3. He receives about $39 per month in WIC
benefits. For him that represents 21 quarts of mlk, 1 pound of
cheese, 2% dozen of eggs, 276 ounces of juice, 24 onnces of cereal and
18 ounces of peanut butter. Daniel is a WIC chald.

In New York City, Leo 1s a breast-fed baby. Leo's dad is an
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immigrant Japanese actor. Lec's mom Jeanine, 18 a free-lamce
photographer. Due to the nature of his parent's professions and their
fluctuating income, Leo and his mom qualify for WIC. Receiving WIC
does not jeopardize Leo's father's immigrant status and helps to make
available the foods a breast-feeding mother and her infant require.
Leo's mom says Leo and other WIC babies will be an asset to
society because of better nutrition. They will be more physically and
mentally equipped to handle life because of the start WIC has
provided. Jeanine receives 22 quarts of milk, 2 pounds of cheese, 36
ounces of cereal, 276 ounces of juice, 2% dozens of eggs and 1 pound
of beans per month from WIC. Jeanine is a breast~feeding WIC
Woman.  Leo receives 24 ounces of infant cereal and 15 bottles of
infant juice. Leo is a WIC infant.

Lavern Holley works for the WIC program in the Bronx. She has
worked for WIC for S5 years. She has an 18 year old son and a 1 year
old son, Brian. Lavern is a single working mother. Brian receives 31
cans of infant formula, 24 ounces of infant cereal and fifteen 4.2
ounce bottles of infant juice. Brian is a WIC infant.

Michelle McKinney called WIC just last week. She 1s 14 weeks
pregnant. she has another child who 1s 1in school. Nutritionally,
Michelle's pregnancy qualifies her for WIC. She will receive about the
same food package as Jeanine does. Michelle 1s a WIC prenatal woman.

Until December of 1988 my daughter Moriah, was a WIC
child. Mine is a second marriage. Both my husband and I have children
from previous marriages. We both were working when I was pregnant in
1985. I used a private physician in New York City and had no knowledge
of WIC during my pregnancy. Due to sodden circumstances I delivered my
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baby in a hospital other than where I planned. Upon discharge I was
handed a WIC medical referral form. Through receiving WIC, I also
received information on other programs for which my family was
qualified. We were able to compare WIC to Food Stamps, HEAP and
Medicaid. WIC definitely follows a plan that provides assistance to
women, infants and children and also assists in helping a family to
pull its life together in many areas to keep it healthy, mentally and
physically. It was my WIC coordinator who asked me to become involved
in WIC issues statewide and encouraged me to become certified in
breastfeeding management. While receiving WIC I conducted monthly
breastfeeding support workshops 1in three municipal hospitals and
became a very valuable and sought-after resource for breastfeeding
promotion to minority women. I held in-service training sessions for
hospital professionals; collected research for the New York City
Taskforce on Breastfeeding and documented specific barriers to
breastfeeding among less-affluent women. I was a WIC Mom.

The Women, Infants and Children of New York State are as diverse
as our state. They are also representative of those families around
the country who gain from WIC benefits. The thread that binds us
all together is nutritiocnal and financial eligibility. WIC has helped
to keep us healthier pregnant and breastfeeding women; 1t has helped
to provide formula and taught us why we should not over dilute it to
make 1t last longer; it has provided milk, eggs, and cheese; and given
us suggestions “n preparation; 1t has shown us why some cereals are
better than others. WIC Moms know that real juice provides vitamins
that flavored drinks and sodas do not. WIC kids whose fa 1lies are
Financially stressed can get peanut butter and thereby have a real
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source of protein that they might not otherwise have.

I am in a unique position. I have been a participant of both WIC
and Food Stamps. I know the differences between the two programs. I
know why WIC is more dear to the families that receive it, and I am
able to make that comparison and pass it on to you. WIC clinics do
not, and should not be forced to, send a woman home with just WIC
checks in her hand. At the WIC site, a woman receives nutrition
education with her checks. Because of health recertification, she and
her child receive screening for common diseases and potentially
damaging illnesses such as lead poisoning. She receives health related
infermation on AIDS, drug and alcohol abuse; she receives referrals to
other local and federally funded services. She has access to recipes,
parenting classes, car-seat loaner programs; job and school referrals.
She also has the opportunity to go to a place where she can take her
child and feel good about seeking help. WIC program staffs have been
referred to as "family members”, they have been approachable. The
nutritionists have provided support to stressed mothers. They have
encouraged women to breastfeed and thereby empowered these women with
a sense of accomplishment. Abreastfeeding mother bonds with her infant
faster and has less potential for abusing her child.

WIC is one of the few public assistance programs that offers
specific benefits and obtains tangible results,

Dr. David Rush did an analysis of the WIC program, published in
January 1986, the results of which were very encouraging.

The study clearly shows that:

* WIC mothers had significantly fewer low birth-weight babies

5

o £

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




[E

36

than non-participants.

* Low weight gain in early pregnancy was reversed by enrollment
in the WIC program.

* Among women who had a history of giving birth to low birth-
weight infants, those who received WIC berefits had a lower rate of
pre~term babies than those who did not receive WIC uonefats.

* Participation in the WIC Program was associated with
significantly lower rate of late fetal deaths.

* Birth-w2ight was significantly higher for infants of women
receiving WIC benefits.

* Children enrolle” in the WIC Program were more likely to have
a regular source of medical care and were better immunized.

* Children that began WIC benefits inutero had sigmificantly
better vocabulary scores than non-WIC children.

* Children who were first enrolled after 1 year of age had
better digit memory than non-WIC children.

The health and well-being of the women and children of the
United States is being severely compromised. The increasing number of
children living 1in poverty, the 1increasing costs of housing and
health-care, and the effects of drug abuse and 1lliteracy are all
factors that make daily life difficult for low-income families.

The WIC Program 1s a nutritional aid that has helped to improve
the quality of lafe and availabialaty of opportunities for the less-
fortvnate of this country. It 1s a program that we and our children
cannot do witbout,

in 2 ieport prepared by the Gordon S. Black Corporation entitled

"Participant Perceptions and Experiences with WIC in New York State: A
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Report of Focus croup Research", WIC participants from across the

state were brought together 1in their geographic regions to discuss
personal experiences with the WIC program. This report was prepared
for the New York Department of Health and released on June 1, 1988.

The report showed that 49% of those surveyed get their health
information from WIC nutritionmists. The participants of the focus
group went on to discass the positive aspects of WIC, specifically
that WIC:

* helps them financially,

* provides good food, and

* acts as an important source for nutritional advice.

As one woman stated, "WIC is an answer when you don't have one."

The report of the focus groups clearly showed that WIC is an
invaluable resource for low-income women trying to provide quality
meals and nutritional direction for their families. It also clearly
showed some of the barriers to participation that WIC consumers have
to face.

Several of the problems that participants mentioned were due to
inadequate clinmic staffing. One participant was given an appointment
the day she left the hospital with her baby, the appointment was
scheduled for two months later. She asked a WIC officer to give her an
appointment sooner since she did not have a job and had no money to
feed her child. She was told that there were no openings. Another
problem sited, 1s the actual waiting time within the clinic. All the
participants agreed that waiting times could be as long as 3 or 4

hours, sometimes even a full day.
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All participants, however, agreed that the treatment they
received by the nutritionist was good, except when she 1s rushed to
get to the next person in line and therefore, has little time to
answer questions. Participants that have been in WIC for more than a
year, reported that these problems have become 1increasiagly worse
during the past year.

Clinic hours of operation also acted as a barrier to
participation. WIC Consumers urged that office hours be expanded to
Saturdays and evenings.

One group of participants had the following suggestions:

* hire WIC staff who have more formal education and are better
informed about WIC,

* expand the WIC staff, thereby enabling better service,

* hold clinics in a larger space and devise a better method for
scheduling appointments,

* hire more nutritionists to improve the quality of interaction
and to handle the volume of appointments for a single day.

Among the recommendations of the facilitators, were the
following conclusions:

* better organization at WIC offices which could include:

- nutrition classes conducted while participants wait for
checks,

- better scheduled aprointments for check pick-up

- more staff and more hours to handle participant load, and

* standardization of policy implementation throughout the state.
For example, all sites should offer free blood work, and require

nutrition classes.
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A Bronx woman summed it up when she said:
"WIC is a fantastic program that is here to help us. It not only
provides financial Lelp, but the nutritional information is extremely

useful. It is one of the best federal programs.”

Thank you for allowing me to present this testimony before you
today. I hope that what I have presented is useful in understanding
the effects and benefits of the WIC Progiam. On behalf of WIC
Consumers, I thank you for your interest in the program and urge you

to investigate ways of expanding WIC services to more of the eligible

population.

Resqgctfqlly submatted,
%deu\

Djamillah Samad

Coordinatcr, 'IC Association NYS
Nutrition Qutreach Project

Former WIC Participant
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SUMMARY

The Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and Children, com-
monly known as WIC, has proven to be a positive intervention for im-
proving the health status of its target population. WIC provides
nutrition education and nutritious foods such as mlk, cheese, eggs,
juice, cereal, legumes and iron-fortified infant formula to pregnant,
lactating and pospartum women and young children up to the age of five.
In order to qualify for the program an applicant must be determined
to b of low income and medically or nutritionally at rask.

For a child of 3 years of age the average food package consists

21 quarts milk, 1 pound cheese, 2% dozen eggs, 276 ounces juice,

24 ounces cereal and 18 ounces peanut butter.

This costs approximately $39.00.

In addition to the food supplement package a WIC participant receives

nutrition education

health screening for illnesses

information and support for breastfeeding

classes 1n parenting skills, coupon use & budgeting, drug & alcohol
abuse, AIDS.

additional referrences and services.

Bronx woman summed it up when she said:

15 a program that is here to help us. It not only provides finan-
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cial help, but the nutritional information 1s extremely useful. It
is one of the best federal programs."
On behalf of WIC consumers nationwide and the WIC Association of
New York State, I thank you for your interest ana urge you to investigate

vays of expanding WIC's services to more of che eligible population.

Djamillah Samad

Febuary 8, 1989
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Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. The next witness is Mr. Loren
Bell, Presi "~t of the National Association of WIC Directors.

Mr. Bet  rhank, Chairman Hawkins. I would like to personally
thank the Committee for holding this hearing at a time when so
many of my colleagues from around the country can be here.

I think it is real%y important that we have the opportunity to dis-
cuss with you the issues that the WIC community is facing now
and will face in the future with reauthorization.

I have presented formal testimony to the Committee outlining
the philosophy and the specific points that the National Associa-
tion of WIC Directors would like to see changed in the legislation. I
would like to summarize those now.

There are two major philosophical issues that the WIC communi-
ty would like to see addressed by this Committee. One is what you
have heard already—how can we increase the number of clients
being served by this program?

No one questions the effectiveness of the WIC program, but
many question why it still only reaches half of the population. We
would like to see a predictable growth of the WIC program so that
we can best manage our resources and provide those services to the
clients who are so needy within our communities.

Second, we would also like the WIC program to look at how we
spend those resources and how we could better spend those re-
sources.

You have heard some testimony here today about what happens
in the WIC clinics. You have asked questions regarding that. I hope
that you can understand that what we are looking at in the WIC
community is not simply bringing the clients in, telling them to eat
right and sending them on their way.

What we are doing is trying to help that client. More often than
not, we are the first point of contz ct for the WIC client within both
the public health and social servic2s system.

We need to be able to help that client deal with the system, to
prevent that client from having to have the problems that we have
talked so much about.

The WIC client of today is not like the WIC client of fifteen years
ago. We see very high risk clients in our local agencies.

We see abused children. We see families in crisis. We see the
homeless. We see people with AIDS. We see people addicted to
drugs and alcohol. We see teen pregnancies and we see children
with disabilities.

Yet, more often than not, we cannot continue to serve those cli-
ents, not only within the WIC system but within all the other
social service systems that are out there.

Cutbacks and reduced budgets in these areas have inadequately
funded the whole system, and we would hope that when the Com-
mittee looks at the WIC program it looks at it as part of the
system, part of a system that helps to prevent all of the costly con-
sequences of disabling conditions and other problems that we see.

The WIC program would like to be a more effective program. To
do so, what we are talking about is simplifying it to make it easier
for us to serve the client.

You have a choice. We can either serve clients or serve paper,
and we would prefer to serve clients. We are asking you to look at
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what is happening with the program and say to states, “Hold us
accountable for outcomes of the program, but don't hold us ac-
countable for process. Don’t make us all do the same thing to the
same clients in every way when we deal with such a diverse popu-
lation.”

We hear testimony from New York City and we hear testimony
from rural Washington state. We often hear that the WIC program
is a program that is concerned about its clients, and we are—but
we would like to see us be able to better serve our clients through
the points that we have presented.

Some of the items that the National Association would recom-
mend that you look at are as follows,

One is to guarantee a high quality of services to clients by look-
ing at how the Congress funds the WIC program and splits that
money between food and local program services. We would like to
see a more rational approach taken to that.

Two, we would like to see the Congress look at funding special
state initiatives to be able to allow us to increase the creativity and
productivity of our local and state agencies.

Three, we are asking Congress to look at technical issues related
to cash flow and how the oncoming cost containment systems
within the WIC program are affected by that.

Fourth, we are asking them to simplify the system that we are
currently using for infant formula cost containment. No other issue
that we talk about during this next four years is as burdensome
and as frustrating as this one, and we would ask you to seriously
look at simplifying that system to make it workable, so that we can
expand the resources that we have to serve more clients.

We are asking for better coordination between WIC and Medic-
aid. All of us would like to see that any pregnant woman who
comes in who is eligible for Medicaid would be eligible for WIC,
and there are ways that we can do that.

We would like to see the Department of Agriculture look at the
regulatory requirements that they have us operate under. We
would like to ask them to look at the impact that those increased
regulatory requirements have had, not only on states but on client
services,

Attached to my testimony is a list of regulatory requirements
that have been added to this program since its inception, and you
will note that there has been no increase in money to the states to
implement any of these.

We would like to request special funding to help us promote
breast feeding among our clients. We see this as one of our top pri-
orities, and we would like to be able to take the resources that we
currently devote to breast feeding and better utilize them in pro-
moting more effective breast feeding strategies.

We would like to ask Congress to assist us in updating informa-
tion about the client population, so that we know how many clients
are not being served. Right now we are using 1980 census data
when we talk about fifty percent of the clients being served, but we
all know that conditions have changed dramatically since 1980.

Finally, we are asking the Commiitee to help us improve our
programs by allowing us to have the kinds of data that states need
to be able to go to our state legislators, to go to our county boards
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of supervisors and to come back to this Congress and give you good,
hard data on who we serve and how we serve them.

In short, we are asking for you to look at the WIC program criti-
cally and come back to the WIC community and say, “We care
about what you do—we want to help you with what you do—and
we will work together to make this not only a larger program, but
a better program.”

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Loren Bell follows:]
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First, I would 1ike to thank Chairman Hawkins and the committee for the
opportunity to present at this hearing. Hearings such as these proviéé an
opportunity to discuss concerns over important program {ssues related to
serving pregnant women, infants and children in need of WIC services.

The WIC program experience has been one of growth and excitement over the
Tast fifteen years. The best way to describe the program's success was made
in an {nterview I saw on television recently where a reporter asked Tom
Sefleck why he was so successful. He got a funny Yook on his face and
turned back to the reporter and sald, "Why I think 1t's obvious--it's good
Tooks and hard work.” That's the story of the WIC program. The good 1ooks
have always been there. A program that serves pregnant women, infants and
children and provides them basic food necessities in order to prevent low
birthweight bables and the disastrous consequence of Tow birthweight is
certainly good looks. The program has the charm and the glamour of anything
Hollywood could 1magine, yet at the same time, behind the scenes there has
always been hard work. Extremely hard work by Tocal WIC agencies that have
struggled over the jast f{fteen years to develop their programs and best
serve their clients, particularly in the face of increased risk and problems
of clients. It has been hard work by the state agencies to develop account-
able, comprehensive programs and yet remain creative and innovative in their
approach to solving problems that are faced every day. It has been pard
work, too, by federal staff in terms of trying to work to develop the
program accountability and yet stil1l allow states flexibility to be able to
solve some of their own problems. It is also hard work by Congress, to
uphold {ts commitment to serving those in our society that are most vulner-

able, our children. And 1t 1s in this spirit that we present today, and it
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is 1n this spirit that we hope we can face the new challenges in the next |

few years.

The National Association of WIC Directors is focusing on two primary philo-
sophical {ssues related to the reauthorization of the program. The first
{ssue, of course, is funding and the need to provide enough money to

serve all those many clients that are currently not being served. Certainly
the WIC program has been proven effective. I do not believe that anyone
would rationally question that. What one would rationally question is why
then if it is so effective do we not extend 1t to more of those in need?
That issue must be addressed by this Congress and the WIC community over
the next four years. How can be best provide the resources necessary to
continue the growth of the program so all of those in need can benefit from

{ts results?

The secend {ssue we are concerned about 1s how can we make the program a

better program in terms of getting more service for the dollars we recefve.

Throughout my testimony these two themes will be predominant. How can we

expand the program to serve more ciients and how can we make i1t a better

program that provides the best quality care to the WIC clients.

One of the most interesting aspects of Dr. David Rush's evaluation of the

WIC program that rontinues to amaze me to this day, was the finding where

states perceived ».C programs to be "better programs,” the outcomes for the

clients were better. I think that says something about the type of clients

we are dealing with now days and what kinds of problems states and local

agencies face. The WIC client today is not the WIC client of fifteen

years ago. Many of us have not seen a client with an eligibility factor
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of inadequate diet for many, many years. Most of the clients we see now
days have extremely complicated health and social problems. The WIC
program was designed to be a supplement to an ongoing health care system,
yet what we are finding is with the growth of WIC over the years, the
system WIC supports has sigaificantly decreased. We now see clients

that not only have increased health, but increased social needs. We see
abused children. We see families in crisis. wWe see addicted babfes. We
see people with AIDS. We see children with disabi1¢ties. It 1s now no

Tonger acceptable to talk to the client about proper diet and nutrition and

send then on their way when we may, in fact, be the only resource or the
first resource that this client has seen in the public health and social
service system. The importance of referral to other resources to identify
and coordinate program resources and providing support for these mothers,
Infants and children has become more and more a criticai component of a
state's WIC program. We would hope, in recognition of this, the comni ttee
would consider that not only more time is needed with these clients, but it
1s absolutely essential to the national well-being that the WIC program be a
part of an overall system that deals with these problems. Problems of
1nfant mortality, such as identified in the recent National Infant Mortality
Commission report, problems of hunger, such as those recently identified in
my state (Washington) by our Governor's Hunger Task Force. Problems of
abuse and neglect that have been called to the nation's consciousness by
unfortunate trials and prosecutions. Problems of homelessness which many
have called a national disgrace, It is important that we look at the
services to these clients and say “"Where is our dollar hest spent? Is 1t
best spent helping these clients, or is it best spent fi11ing out a form

that needs to be completed?” That {s what we are asking you to look at.
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What the National Association of WIC Directors is talking about is simphi-
fication. We are asking to be held accountable for our program, but are
asking to be held accountable for outcomes, not for processes and paperwork.
We have found the burdensome regulatory requirements state and local
agencies operate under aside from all cost considerations, have had two

traumatic impacts on the program.

First, 1t takes away from client services. The regulatory atmosphere of the
WIC program is not only burdensome in terms of cost and hours devoted to
paperwork, but it takes away from the ability of state and local agencies to
best serve our clients. Every hour a nutritionist or certifier spends on
paperwork processing, fi11ing out forms, documenting this and that, for the
simple purpose of tracking and documenting, takes one hour from being able
to serve a client, to discuss their needs and to refer them to appropriate
health care or social service care. We are not saying 1t is not important
to document what happens, what we are saying is that you reach a point of
diminishing returns in your documentation and that process becomes the top
priority over outcome. It is important for these local staff have the time

that it takes to adequately serve their clients.

Secondly, at a broader level, the regulatory process we are operating
under has stifled the initiative of state and scal agencies. In the
past, many of the most creative aspects of the WIC programs have come from
ideas at the state and local level. These ideas were developed to solve
particular , ublems that a state recognized and needed to deal with. Some
classic examples of this are WIC grocer compliance and the infant formula
cost containment initfatives. These were not ideas that were passed

on to the WIC comunity from anywhere else. These were {deas that were
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born out of need. I can remember sack in 1980 working in the Ca11fornéa
WIC Program when we first started thinking about how we could ensure

grocers would be complying with the program rules and how to develop a
system that could adequately track what grocers were doing in the program
and catch those that were vivlating our program regulations and thus cheat-
ing the clients. I can remember going around to different "compliance
agencies” such as Food Stamps and Medicaid Fraud, to try to get ideas and

I realized that nothing really suited our needs and we would have to

develop something on our own. It turned out a few years later that not only
was our system successful, but the California Medicaid Program and the
Federal Food Stamp Program were coming to us for {deas and information about

how they could use our system to heip better track their problem vendors.

It's the same with infant formula cost containment. The {deas born in
Mississippl, Ohio, Vermont and Tennessee have been spreading across the
country a-: dne of simple need: How can we serve more v1ients within the
recources we have? It is these initiatives that have helped the WIC program
to become a better nrogram, but by the same token, the vendor system that
was developed in California, or the rebate system that was developed in
Tennessee may net be the best system for every other state. Certainly in
the area of cost containment, states such as Mississippi, Ohio, Yermont and
Maryland developed their own cost containment systems prior to infant
formula rebates. These systems need to be recognized as innovative and
creative and [ do not think any of us would go back and ask them to change
thelr system to be fure it matched what Tennessee has done. Even within the
structure of infant formula rebates, creative approaches by states to the

bid processes have best met those states' needs. The same s true in the
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area of grocer compliance. What California needed and what my current state
of Washington need are two different things. We do not have the same kind
of demographics as California. We do not have the same kind of system.

What 1s needed in New York City may not be needed 1n Cheyene, Wyomf g. What
is needed in Los Argeles certainly is not needed in Olympia, Washington. The
differences and the creativity that states have been allowed to use to solve
these problems has been one of the strengths of the program. This kind of
initiative is now being stifled. States are unwil1ing to take on new
projects because they figure once it is done, 1t will be regulated to death
and 1t will create new burdens. In addition, one hates to develop a system
and then be the bad guy with other states who will later be required to
implement exactly the same thing. The one size fits all category of WIC
programs 1s not true. All of us are different; all of us can be creative;
and all of us can solve our problems. We are not saying to this Congress,
“Leave us alone and let us operate our programs in a vacuum." What we are
saying to this Congress is, “Hold us accountable for what we do. If we have
crooked grocers, make us stop them. If our costs are too high, make us
Tower them." But do not say to us, "You will all follow this process." Ask
us to do 1t our way and I'm sure you will find a more creative and in the

Tong run a better way of doing this.

The Nrtional Association of WIC Directors in recognition of the two con-
cepts put forward earlier, has put forward a platform of legislative pro-
posals that I have attached to this formal testimony. These nine points
will make the WIC program a better program. [ would 1ike to take an oppor-
tunity to summarize the points and the phil. sophical base behind these. In

some cases, what we are presenting to you 1s a concept that we would be
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happy to work with your staff and members of the Department of Agriculture
to put into reality. In other cases we are asking for something very

speci fic which we feel will make the program a better program,

1 would 1ike to briefly summarize our nine points for the legislative

agenda:

1. We would 1ike to see the division of appropriation between WIC food
and WIC program services change to a more rational approach. I
think is is encumbent upon this cormittee to recognize the fact that
since the inception of the program, we have been operating under two
problems with the way the WIC funding has been split. One is that
the inflexible 80/20 division of appropriations has created a problem
over the years in that 1t has not recognized the increase needs of
the clients and the increased regulatory burden put on the programs.
Secondly, it has also not recognized the need for an inflation rate
that would be appropriate to each of those divisions. Inflation for
administration has far outstripped inflation for food. Information
has been provided to the NAWD by independent sources indicating not
only have WIC program services not kept up with the rate of general
inflation, they have not kept up with the rate of food inflation. We
would 1ike to see this problem rectified by basing the appropriation
for program services on participation. If it can be determined how
many clients the program needs to serve, you can then determine how
much 1t will cost to see these clients. This will guarantee adequate
program services can be provided. We also would request when inflation
{s granted to the program, it be indexed based upon an appropriate

{nflation measure to that division.
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Our second proposal 1s special funding for state initfatives. We are
asking that $1 mi11ion of the $3 mil1ion research and special project
funds be available to grants to the state to allow us to continue the
creative methods of developing programs systems to better serve the
clients. This will be similar to the special projects of regional and
national significance that Health and Human Services provides states
to develop models other states can use to solve some of our problems

and be creative.

With the expansion of infant formula cost containment systems, the
problems of solving cash flow at the state ievel has been created. We
are asking that Congress address the issue of cash flow and be flexible
enough to allow USDA to solve cash flow problems for states that

implement infant formula cost containment systems.

The simplication of infant formula cost containment. No other issue
that we present to ycu today 1s as burdensome, as complicated and as
frustrating as this one. The systems that have been developed for the
implementation and tracking of infant formula cost containment have
reached the point of being ridiculous. Most states do not understand
the regulations and even though we all have been trained and all have
spent many hours with our federal representatives, we often have to
throw up our hands and say it just doesn't make any sense. We are
asking that the system be simplified. We are asking this money be
treated as exactly what 1t is: money coming into the state for the
purposes of serving clients. We are asking that the money be treated
Just as our grant {s treated right now. That 1t come to us in the

same proportion as our grant, and if we do not spend {t, 1t be taken
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from us in the same proportion as our grant. It would provide an;
incentive to see clients; 1t would simplify the state's ability to
plan out {ts program expansion, add new local agencies, and guarantee
that in future years we will not be worrying about whether we will have

adequate funds to be able to serve our clients.

We are asking as a first step towards better coordination of WIC and
Medicaid, for the WIC program to be required to count a pregnant woman
as a family of two. A1l other social <ervice programs count the
pregnant woman as a family of two except the WIC program. Therefore,
we have situations where a woman who is eligible for prenatal care
under expanded Medicaid guidelines may not be eligible for WIC. In
the long run, the Association would 1ike to see WIC and Medicafd
coordinated even more so eligibility for Medicaid would automatically

mean income eligibility for the WIC program.

We would be happy to work with committee, staff and others on this
project as we recognize this is a critical element of improving

infant mortality in this country.

Trade-off of new regulatory requirements. Attached to my testimony {s
a 1isting of regulatory requirements that have been added to the WIC
program since its beginning. We are asking for USLA to be held account-
able also. They need to analyze what the cost implications of new
regulatory requirements are and look toward eliminating some of the
more burdensome requirements and more costly requirements that may or
may not be necessary. Cver.one chuckles, but its a sad commentary on

the ways things are when I cite as an example the recent activities
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undertaken in almost every state in this country. We are required;to
report our racial’/sthnic participation to the department every year.
What we must do 1s take our sophisticated computer system reports, get
them broken down on paper, fi11 out and sign, at least in my state,

58 different forms for USDA so that they can take those forms, put

them back into a computer, and give us back the information. It's
silly, it's cumbersome and 1t's burdensome. Yet, everyonc of us has to
do it. Simply allowing states to submit computer tapes with the same
information would save hours and hours of burdensome work by state and
Tocal staff. That is the type of thing we would 1ike USDA to be held

accountable for and relieve us from.

The National Association of WIC Directors is requesting special funds
be set aside for the promotion of breastfeeding among our client
population. We recognize the importance of this {ssue and I will
provide at a Tater date a position paper the Association has prepared
on promotion of breastfeeding. We need additional funds to support
this important activity. Additional funds would allow us to take the
resources that we are already devoted to breastfeeding promotion and
redirect them to the most effective methods to get the WIC population's

breastfeeding rates more i 11ne with the rest of the country's.

We are asking Congress to require the department to update 1ts popula-
tion base when developing estimates of unmet need so our estimates can
more accurately reflect the current conditions of the countrv. Right
now we are stil1 using 1980 census data as a basis for meeting unmet
need. We are asking that the population base be updated by some

method by USDA so that every five years we can have new numbers and
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know 1n reality approximately how many unserved clients are still

[y

out there and where we need to devote our resources.

9, We are asking the committee to allow the appropriation committees
or whoever 1s providing funds for the program, to have the authority
to set up a separate appropriation to fund data processing system
enhancements. The key to success of the WIC program and the key
to accountability is the efficient management of data and information.
Most other social and health programs have special set asides to assist
states in developing system changes. Right now 1f a state wants to
improve its system or even change to a new system, it must try to find
those funds within an existing grant resource which would take more
money away from Tocal agencies. This would allow for one-time appro-
priation in grants to states to improve their systems, and in the long
run provide a cost-savings to the program and better management of data

and information.

Those in a nut shell are the NAWD legislative proposals. I hope the com-
mittee will take these into consideration and continue to work with the
association to develop these i{nto a reality so that the program we both are

so concerned about can become better and more manageable.

Finally, I would 11ke to conclude with one thought for the committee. It
1s not often a person gets a chance to see something that really works
turn out well. The WIC program has provided hundreds of thousands of
examples of a program that has turned out well all across the country. |
had a unique experience recently I would 1ike to share with the committee.

As part of management training, section managers in my department were
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required to attend a training session on management of priorities. During
this seminar a young woman who was our discussion leader was making pre-
sentations related to more effective managment, better utilization of
resources, and she was asking peopie to stand up and tell her what programs
they worked for and what they were doing. I was truly impressed with this
young woman. Her energy level was very high and she seemed to be generating
a lot of enthusiasm in a normally docile group of program managers. Several
people stood up and stated where they were from. When 1t was my turn I
stood up and explained I was the director of the WIC program. She got kind
of a funny Took on her face and continued on. At lunch hour she approach me
and asked 1f she could talk to me for a minute. I said I'd be happy to,
assuming that she wanted to discuss something about my participiiion in the
training. She pulled me off to the side and said that she wanted to tell me
that thirteen years ago she was a lonely young teenager in Chicago who was
pregnant and scared. She had no place to go and no one to take care for
her. A friend told her about a program called WIC. She went to see a
public health nurse in Chicago and they enrolled her in the WIC program.

She not only found the kind of support system she needed to help get her
through the pregnancy, but also found 2 system which could provide her with
the basics that she needed at that time: food and referral to other help.
She safd, "I've always been grateful to that program and I can't really say
that my current success or the success of my brilliant son is totally
attributable to the W1C program, but it was there when I needed 1t and I am
most appreciative of 1t and I've always wanted to just be able to say thank
you." It is that kind of experience with this program which continues my

personal resolve to make it better.

I thank you for your time.
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NAWD LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS

I. Division of Appropriations

To restructure the division between food and program
operations so that the service components including nutrition
assessment, nutrition education, and referral are assured adequate
funding. The national appropriations for program operations should
be determined by multiplying the prior year appropriation per
participant plus inflation by the number of participants to be
served with the appropriated food dollars. Inflation increases
shall be indexed based upon FyY1988 costs as baseline and be
appropriate to the category being indexed.

Ratiopales Studies of the WIC Program have found that better
quality programs result in better prenatal cutcomes. Healthier
bables are the most cost effective WIC ocutcome and yet funding for
the services that result in healthy babies is eroded each year by
increasing administrative requirements with no funding, inadequate
funding for salary inflation and efforts like food package
tailoring which add participants to the program with no funding for
services. Infant formula rebates have caused this existing problen
to reach crisis proportions. It is time to tie the funding of
administration and program services to participation, and guarantee
appropriate inflationary increase to preserve program quotas.

II. PFunds for Special State Initiatives

To use $1 million of the $3 million research and special
project fund as grants to states for special initiatives to improve
quality of service delivery and ability to meet FOM standards,

Rationale: sState WIC Programs have been concerned that high
quality services are delivered to participants. The Focus on
Management (FOM) concept was implemented by USDA and NAWD to
develop standards to measure the efficiency and effectiveness of
the WIC Program in the areas of 1) administrative cost management,

2) caseload management, 3) vendor management, and, most recently,
4) nutrition gervices.

States which are in process of strengthening their ability to meet
the Focus on Management standards need the opportunity to make
improvements in the delivery of services to WIC participants. As
state program nanagers observe areas of WIC operation that need
improvement, funds to pay for special projects are limited. Annual
program grants are spoken for in maintaining ongoing operations.
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States have occasionally been allowed to apply for small grants to
fund special state initiatives. Such gspecial initiatives can be
a stimulus to staff, strengthen service delivery -o participants,
improve coordination within the health care system, and enable the
state to meet FOM standards. This is similar to the special
projects of regional and national significance funded by Health and
Human Services.

III. 8olving the Cash PFlow Problems

a)To allow states operating and rebate system to
"borrow" such funds as are necessary of the following year's grant
to cover year-end expenditures before payments are received under
their rebate contract, and b)to make available within any
continuing resclution such additicnal funds as are necessary to
implement this provision.

States use rebate income to pay for additional food
packages for an increased number of mothers and children. A state
plans to spend the food grant (less its conversion authority) plus
the rebate income for participant food costs. Most vouchers clear
the bank during their valid month; however, the state doces not bill
for rebate charges until the end of the following month when the
record of cans actually purchased is available. A cash flow
problem exists at the end of the federal year beczuse the state is
awaiting rebate payment from the last months of the fcderal year
but meanwhile is paying for vouchers cashed through the WIC bank.
After the rebate income 1s received, the state can adjust
accounting records to reflect expenses by federal year.

IV. Infant Yormula Cost cContainment Ssimplification

Proposali That funds returned to or saved by a state through any
food cost containment initiative:

a)shall be available for the state to expand WIC services to
the potentially eligible population of that state;

b)shall be available for supplemental foods and administration
and program services in the same proportions as appropriated
funds allocated to the state; and

c)if unexpended, shall be returned to USDA for reallocation
on the same proportion as appropriated funds.

d) For purposes of this part, savings shall be defined as the
difference between the actual costs of the state and the costs
if no such food cost containment initiative were in place.

O
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RATIONALE: Infant Formula cost containment systems have been
developed by states to saerve more clients within existing
resources. During the past two years, the requlatory requirement
on how cost containment systems must ba administered have become
so complicated it almost becomes a disincentive to enter into one.

The complexity of rules has created far more problems than it has
solved. It is time to simplify ¢this process to allow states to
implement cost containment without “he disincentive of massive
paperwork and accounting systems. The NAWD proposal would:

1) simplify cost containment systems for states as well as
USDA

2) Tie use of cost containment funds to participation
increases.

3) Racognize states guch as Mississippi, ohioc, Maryland, and
Vermont which pioneered cost containment systens.

4) will allow state to plan expansion of services without
warniry if funds will be available to support those services
in tuture years.

V. MNedicaid and wIC Rligibility

For the purpose of income determination, a pregnant
woman shall be counted as a family of two.

Rationale: Federal legislation now affords states the option of
extending Medicaid sarvices %o pregnant women, infants and children
with family incomes up to and including 185 percent of poverty.
The Medicaid and AFDC Programs count the pregnant women as two
pe:sons for income eligibility purposes which WIC counts the
pregnant woman as one. In those states adopting the new option,
WIC Programs will no longer be able to accept proof of Medicaid
enrollment as income eligibility for wic.

Common income eligibility definitions among health and health care-
related programs which serve the same population greatly facilitate
participant access to services at the local progran level.
Referral and intake processes ars simplified and effective
coordination promoted.
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vi. Punding or Trade-offs for New Regulatory or Other Requirements

USDA would be required to do a cost analysis of new
regulatory requirements for the WIC Program. In order to implement
new regulations they would be required to either give the states
the funding to meet the new program requirements or delete other
requirements to compensate the state.

onale: Each year the USDA adds administrative requirements to
the WIC Program through regulatory change and othe™ requirements.
States are not compensated for these costs and are expected to
absorb these costs. The additional requirements have costs
associated with them that are often substantial. The states may
have no other choice in dealing with the situation but to cut local
grants. Thus, the net result of increased administrative
requirements is often pocrer cquality services in the health ana
nutrition education area.

The WIC Program is a business with costs for services. The federal
authorities cannot continue to deal with each problem by writing
new regulations and not making decisions about priorities. The
best parts of the program are being slowly destroyed by this
approach. To protect these services, WIC must have a fiscally
responsible federal management.

VII. Breestfeeding Promotion

Proposals: a)Earmark $8 million annually specifically for
breastfeeding promotion activities in WIC Programs. Appropriate
funding after split from the poo! of funds designated as food cost.
These funds would be allocated on a rate of $10 for every pregnant
and breastfeeding woman served by the states, based on the most
recent participation data.

State agencies would be required to submit a plan delineating how
these funda would be used to promote breastfeedinyg, as a part of
the annual nutrition education plan submitted in the State Plan of
Operations and Administration. Progress in effecting change in
rates of breastfeeding would be monitored using existing reports
of enrcllment participation, as well as data from the Centers for
Disease control, where available. In order to accomplish this a
national definition of breastfeeding must be established.

bjInclude a lactation specialist on the National Advisory council
for Maternal, Infant and Fetal Nutrition.

O
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o The advantages of breastfeeding toc infant health are
well documented, but while the rates of breastfeeding among middle
and upper income women approach the national goal, the incidence
of breastfeeding among low income and minority women remains low.
Brezstfeeding education programs have been and continue to be a
routine part of the WIC's education component; however, national
data do not indicate that current education programs have had an
appreciable impact.

Breastfeeding promotion activities are labor intensive and require
a long-term commitment of resources, in a program where delivery
of basic services 1is severely limiteqg by scarce resources.
Consequently, WIC administrators are finding it increasingly
difficult to fund these activities.

Nevertheless, SA's recognize both the need and value of a concerted
effort to promote breastfaeding in WIC populations: first, the
very real health and social values affordei the mother-infant dyad,
and secondly, the programmatic saviag that could be realized by
increasing the rates of breastfeeding nationally in wrc. An
estimated $29 million could be saved annual.y in formula costs, if
WIC mothers breastfed for one month. The $8 million allocated for
breastfeeding promotion could be recouped through savings realized
from increasing the rates of breastfeeding.

Studies have indicated that breastfeeding promotion efforts are
effective in increasing both the rate and duration of breastfeeding
among low-income populations. The tangible health benefits to
babies, social benefits to the mother-infant dyad and financial
savings to the program support the allocation of funds for these
activities,

VIII. Updnting Population Data Base

Proposal: When new cersus data is available and every five years
thereafter, the department ci:all update the projection of the
potentially eligible WIC population for state agencies.

Currently USDA is utilizing 1980 census qata which does
not accurately reflect current shifts in population. This can
result in incorrect identification of parity and inadequate
evaluation of meeting national need.

ERIC ‘
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IX, Automated Data Processing Improvemants

Proposals Notwithstanding any other provision of this law, nothing
shall prohibit the establishment of a special appropriation to
improve automated data processing systems in WIC Programs
nationally.

State program managers observe areas of WIC operation
that need improvement, particularly in relation to management
information systems needs. Annual program grants are spoken for
in waintaining ongoing operations. States have occasionally been
allowed to apply for small grants to conduct a project or carry out
a data system improvement. These efforts have resulted in
effective, practical program improvements. States that have
committed to developing an improved management information system
need financial help on a one-time basis to achieve this goal.
Also, the common data set required for Pcov and PC92 will require
expensive changes in current state management: information systems
to collect the data elements. Funding grants to states for these
special initiatives will bring tangible resalts.
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WIC PROGRAM

The WIC Program has received no increase in program operaticns and
administrative funding since FY 75. Yet, the paperwork and
documentation requirements for the Program have grown at a
geometrir level. The result is that the services to women and
children which have made the program so .~cessful and well liked
by clients have eroded to levels which damage the effectiveness of
Wic.

ADDITIONAL REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS WHICR WERE NOT FPUNDED

246.3¢ State plan requirements added

246.3e State staffing standards for administrator, progran
specialists and nutritionist added

246.4 Detailed state plan submission raquirements added

246.5a Responsibility for selection, expansion, reduction and
disqualification of local agencies increased

b Notification regarding incomplete applications
c Requirements to fund according to Affirmative Action plan
and to justify to FNS for not funding the highest
priority area or special population
d Standards for the selection of new local agencies
e Disqualification rules for local agencies
£ Periodic review of local agency qualifications
246.6 Signed written agreements with local agencies mandated
246 7a Integration mandated with other health services

c* Income eligibility determination for each participant

d Expanded requirements for states to establish nutritional
risk criteria and nutritional risk priority system

e* Processing standards that people must be seen within lo
or 20 days with no provision for staff increases

f* Perlodic recertification of participants with no
provision for staff increases

-] Provision for reviewing certification decisions in miaq
certification

h Certification forms are mandated




246.8

246.9

246.20

246.11*

246.12

ex
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Notification of rights and responsibilities to each
participant

Issuance of verification of certification cards
Detect and stop dual participation
Certification must be at nc cost to the applicant

Civil rights requirements including handling of
complaints and providing non English materials

Fair Hearing requirements expanded

State responsibilities for providing foods are made more
complex

Nutrition education must be provided to all participants
(16% of funds must now be spent on it)

Complex state agency nutrition responsibilities added

Local agency rasponsibility to do nutrition education for
all

Must offer two contracts during a certification period
including individual care plans for some and contracts
to meet different cultural and language needs

Food delivery

Authorization of food vendors including an on site visit
to each prior to initial authorization

Agreements with each vendor

Periodic review of food vendors qualifications
Food vendor training must be given

Monitoring of food vendors including

Designing and implementing a system to identity high
risk vendors

Vendor investigations and sanctiong
On site monitoring of vendors and reporting
Documentation of visits

Handling of complai.ts




246.13
246.14

246.15

246.16*

246.17
246.18

246.19

246.20

246.23

O
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Compliance purchasing

Participant and vendor sanctions
Additional controls on food instruments
More prompt payment to vendors
More prompt reconciliation of food instruments

Each participant signs a receipt for retail purchase
systems

Uniform food instruments

More required information on the face of food
instruments

Ensure that purchase price is recorded at time of
purchase

Each voucher can be identified by vendor

Other additional controls
Additional requirements for home delivery systvems
Additional requirements for direct distribution systems

Expands requirements for financial management and
internal control

Limits the eligible costs that can be charged to the
progrum

Defines the use of program income

Defines and limits the distribution of funds
Specifies that USDA will reduce the administrative
grant of a state failing to spend 95% of their food
grant

Expands the prccedures and paperwork for closeout

Expands and defines the appeal process for vendors

Expands and defines the management review process for FNS
and states

Defines and expands audit responsibilities

USDA is authorized to make claims against states
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246.24 Defines and expands requirements for procurement and
property management

246/25 Expands and defines additional record keeping and
reporting requirements

* Indicates a very significant fiscal impact
LEGISLATION NOT YET IN CONSOLIDATED REGULATIONS
A. Provision of drug abuse education

B. Provide benefits to and meet special nutritional needs of
homeless

c. Distribute information on benefits to homeless ovganizations
D. Cost containment feasibility studies mandated

REGULATORY REQUIREMEXNTS DELETED

246.3b Forward local agency applications to FNS

246.6 Local agency application requirements are removed

ERIC T
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Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. The Chair would like to thank
the witnesses for very comprehensive and excellent statements.

The Chair would like to ask only one or two questions.

Dr. Schiff, in your prepared statement, beginning on page two,
you listed a number of recommendations—six, in effect.

Among those recommendations, some of them would improve the
efficiency of the program, some of them would improve the quality
of the program. Some would necessitate additional momneys and
some, I assume, would not.

If, given that there wilol be a limited amount of funds available
to expand the program, I wonder if you could designate which of
those recommendations would require additional money and those
that could improve the efficiency of the program without additional
money, because we probably would get consensus on some of those
increasing the amount of money.

If we did not get, let’s say, as much as we would recommend to
the Congress, we would then have the real problem of sacrificing
quality in order to increase the number served. Do you understand
the nature of the question?

Dr. ScHIFF. I believe I do, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HawkiINs. In other words, we are asking you to give us
those recommendations divided among those that would require ad-
ditional money and those that might be accomplished merely by a
change in the law itself.

Dr. SchiFr. I think I would like to concentrate on two recommen-
dations.

The first would be the increase in the number of participants in
the program. With only fifty percent of the eligibles currently par-
ticipating, I think that the numerical participation is very impor-
tant. .

However, within that numerical participation I would like to em-
phasize the necessity for concentrating in a much greater fashion
than ever before on encouraging breast feeding.

I think breast feeding has so many advantages to it for the
mother and the child, that if we can have a great : 1pact on that
single fact I think that that would be an enhancemunt of the pro-
gram.

Chairman HawkiNns. Can you be more specific as to how we
could change the law in such a way as to encourage that?

Dr. ScHirr. I suppose there could be some specific language in
legislation which would allocate a percentage of funds for the en-
couragement of breast feeding.

There are a whole variety of strategies that can be used, such as
counselors, such as home visitors, such as medical participation—
there are a number of elements that can be utilized to encourage
breast feeding.

I think that sometimes that can be expressed in language in leg-
islation.

Chairman Hawkins. I would appreciate it if you could suggest to
the staff or the Committee—not today necessarily, but at your con-
venience—some change in the language that you think would ac-
complish that particular objective.

Dr. ScHirr. I would be glad to try and help.
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Chairman Hawxkins. Suggestions such as that would make it a
little more specific and allow us to focus in on some of the things
that specifically need to be done, whether or not we get as much
additional funding asw we would like. I am not trying to be pessi-
mistic, I am just simply trying to be both optimistic and a little
more accurate in terms of what it is that we can do. Thank you.

In connection with the previous suggestion of recognizing those
members who were foreclosed, I think— Ms. Unsoeld—I think you
were to be called upon next. We will allow you at this time.

Ms. UnsoeLp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and ladies and gentle-
men of the Committee.

It is particularly a pleasure to have this group before us, includ-
ing Mr. Bell from Washington state, because my education on the
impolrtance and the value of the WIC program comes from your
people.

The question that I would like to ask particularly of you, with
the years of experience that you have enjoyed on this issue, and
with the recognition that this is a cost effective program—yet we
have had difficulty getting it funding.

Now, is there any shift on the horizon? What is taking place now
in the other groups?

Unlike those of us here today who have had some first-hand
knowledge or relationship with this issue, are there other groups
that are beginning to appreciate this issue and asking for increased
or full funding for eligible pregnant women and children—particu-
larly from the business community, from some of the bipartisan
groups?

Mr. BELL. Yes, there have. I can answer that on two points.

One, we have seen a greater increase in interest in the private
sector—the business community. There is a great deal of concern
about what is going to happen to the youth who will be the work-
ers in the future. What will happen to the children now who will
later be the corporate workers and corporate executives?

Several recommendations have come out of a variety of groups
and task forces that say that prevention is the key here—that we
need to prevent the kinds of problems not only that society will
end up paying for later, but that sort of disable the society in terms
of the productivity of society.

I think that you will see more and more of that come along. In
our state, as you know, we have a project called Youth Two Thou-
sand, which is looking at what the youth of our state will have to
deal witn in the year 2000 and what kind of work force we will
have that will be productive, and looking at preventive kinds of
programs.

Second, on a personal note, I have a disabled child. There was an
emergency cesarean section with a low birth weight baby and she
is totally deaf.

Now, T have plenty of health insurance to cover the health needs
of my children. I know the system well and I can deal with it.

Yet it still costs me thousands of dollars each year on her health
care that my insurance will not cover, and the cost of special edu-
cation for that child, the cost for the neonatal intensive care unit
that child was in and the ongoing cost that child will have all
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throughout her life—as bright and as healthy as she is—are going
to create a burden on society.

If we could prevent those kinds of things, we could better put our
resources to many of the other problems that we need to put our
resources into.

Ms. UnsoELD. Are some of those who have recently picked up on
this recognition of the value of preventiveness—the Counsel on
Competitiveness, which is a business-backed organization——

Mr. BELL. Yes.

Ms. UNsoELD. [continuing] and the Committee for Economic De-
velopment, which is also in business and education?

Mr. BELL. Yes.

Ms. UnsoeLp. Isn’t there another organization—what is it, the
American Agenda that the Presidents Ford and Carter had——

Mr. BeLL. That is correct. Presidents Ford and Carter were on
that, and several distinguished panel members have recognized this
program as being very cost effective.

Ms. UnsoELp. Definitely the base has been broadened for support
for the kind of funding we know is needed.

Mr. BELL. That is correct.

Ms. UnsokLp. All right. Thank you.

Chairman HAwKkiNs. Mr. Petri?

Mr. Perri. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I had several questions of
the panel in one area of the program. Perhaps Mr. Bell, or others,
might want to address them.

That is that it is my understanding that infant formula manufac-
turers provide financial rebates to state WIiC programs in many
states.

Do you have any idea how much you anticipate will be the aggre-
gate amount received during the coming fiscal year of rebates at
the state level from the manufacturers?

Mr. BELL. I do not have a total dollar figure, but infant formula
is one-third of the total WIC food package, and depending on the
size of the rebate that the state gets—I can give you an example in
Washington state.

We are estimating—right now our case load is about fifty thou-
sand clients per month and we are expecting we could go to sixty-
six thousand clients per month with full implementation of re-
bates. It is a significant number.

As I say, it is a large part of our food package and a lot of it
would depend on how much is negotiated with the formula compa-
nies, how much they would bid and so on.

It is significant.

Mr. Petr1. Do you have the resources to survey all the states—or
I suppose we could, too, and get some figure from them?

Mr. BeLL. I am sure the Department of Agriculture may have
some information on that.

As you know, there was an amendment to the appropriations bill
by Senator Burdick requiring states to study and implement infant
formula cost containment systems.

Now, some states will be doing infant formula rebates, as you
heard, but there are other cost containment systems involved in
that legislation that states would be looking at. Some of them may
not opt for rebates but would choose one of the other forms—such
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as Mississippi’'s direct delivery system or Ohio’s home delivery
system.

Mr. Perri. For what purposes are the rebates used? When they
get the muney back at the state level from these manufacturers,
what is it spent on?

Mr. BeLL. It is spent on expanding the program. It all goes back
into client services.

Mr. Petr1. Is any money allocated for WIC program administra-
tion, such as staff expansion?

Mr. BeLL. When I said in my testimony that you were talking
about one of the most complicated and frustrating components of
the program—yes, it is allowed for one year.

We are allowed to convert that money into program costs to help
support it.

The problem that we are having is that that system is so burden-
some and complex—and it really is not treated as money coming
into the state.

The way it is treated by the Department of Agriculture is that it
is actually a food cost savings, and so they are assuming that with
the food cost savings you have one year to convert some of that
money to support your clients, but in the second year you no
longer convert that and the funding formula for WIC is supposed to
take over.

What happens in reality is that, if you have any kind of level or
small growth in the funding, what you will find is that you will be
asked to serve thousands more clients, hundreds of thousands more
clients, with essentially the same money.

It really erodes and deteriorates in the long run the amount of
money you can put toward client services.

We are asking the Committee to correct that problem.

Mr. Petr1. I have three or four more quick questions. I hope you
can hold your answer down. I do not want to infringe on the other
members’ time, either, and I know we have a lot to cover.

Could you estimate at all a b "lpark figure as to the percentage
of rebate funds used for staff expansion?

Mr. BeLL. It is based on your current monthly cost per client, so
you probably would say an aggregate twenty percent.

Mr. Petr1. Is any of the money invested in consumer education
currently?

Mr. BeLL. Educating them about WIC or about the system—I am
trying to understand.

Mr. PeTRIL. About breast feeding or other——

Mr. BeLL. It depends on the state. I think that would be a state-
by-state—what you do normally is to incorporate that into your
spending approach that the state already has.

Mr. PeTr1. Okay. Do you believe there is merit in utilizing a part
of the rebate moneys to provide for breast feeding education?

Mr. BeLL. I believe there is merit in increasing breast feeding
proniotion, yes.

Part of the rebate moneys—again, we do not have a specific posi-
tion on that—I think that some states probably are doing that.

Mr. Petri. Finally, would it make sense to offset the WIC appro-
priations that we appropriate by savings derived from the rebate
program?

c




Mr. BELL. No.

Mr. Perri. Why not?

Mr. BELL. One, you are depending on the good will of the infant
formula companies at that point to provide services to clients, and
that is something that is totally unpredictable.

When you are only serving fifty percent of your clients in a pro-
gram that is as successful as this, you need to provide all the sup-
port you can, both appropriated money and cost savings money.

I think that if you reduced the program by what the infant for-
mula companies were contributing it would be a disaster to the
program.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Petri, the Department of Agrict ‘ture
will be testifying before the Committee, and I would suggest that
some of the specific questions that you have raised might be better
answered by the Department.

We will certainly ask them to be specific in this particular field.

Mr. Owens?

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, I have one question and one com-
ment. My question relates to the fact that I think Ms. Samad said
that one of the strengths of the WIC program is that you do not
just give a check and that is it. You do provide an education—try
to provide an education and orientation for parents.

I wondered, is the support there from the government that used
to be in the provision of that education? For example, we had
“Infant Care”, which was a booklet that was distributed to all
mothers—certainly poor mothers who gave birth in hospitals
always went home with a booklet called “Infant Care”.

The Reagan administration, in cutting back on government pub-
lications, was proud of the fact that they cut out the free distribu-
tien of “Infant Care” and those kinds of booklets and pamphlets.

Also, years ago when I was a public librarian, one of the most
successful programs that I was able to operate in the public library
was a series of programs for mothers, mostly young mothers, who
were seeking information.

They, of course, used that information and we were able to get
free films that we could show them and all kinds of free mat. rials
that they could take home with them.

Is that still available in some form? Has the government in its
attempt to save a few pennies in the wrong place cut out an oppor-
tunity for the provision of that education in a very cheap way?

Because I know low income parents—I know from experience
that they will not buy books. They will not buy Dr. Spock—they
cannot afford or do not think they can afford it—so no matter how
badly they need a book they are not going to buy it.

There is a need to have that kind of information distributed free.
Would you comment on that?

Ms. SaMap. Mr. Owens, as one Brooklynite to another, you know
that we are not, as a people, as literate as we might be. Our moth-
ers do not read and cannot read as much as they sheuld read.

WIC works and breast feeding works and a lot of other things
work because we can talk people-to-people und we can get to know
each other people-to-people, and this is why I think administrative
dollars are important, because a nutritionist needs time to sit down
and run through those things with those mothers.
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Mr. Owexs. You do not have the free booklets anymore? You
have not seen them?

Ms. Samabp. I do not know. They may be available, but I am not
so sure that our women are going to read them.

Mr. Owens. Oh, they were read, all right. You know, I saw them
in homes when I was poor. My mother had them——

Ms. Samap. I also see them in the garbage cans outside of the
WIC offices, too.

Mr. Owens. [continuing] and they consulted them when they
needed them.

I am just wondering, in addition—I am not in any way saying
that you do not need the one-on-one and need the direct contact.
That 1s very much needed. But, in addition to that, I think we also
need to be able to provide that very simple, simply prepared infor-
mation that was there, that we took away.

Ms. Samap. If it is prepared, it should be more visual and
more——

Mr. Owens. These were very visual, with drawings and so forth.
As I said, there were free films that the library provided.

My second—it is not a question, it 1s a comment—I think it is as
relevant as anything said here today, because your testimony has
been very good, but you are talking mostly to the converted.

There is a great deal of agreement up here, almost one hundred
percent agreement, until you start to talk about meney, and then
the agreement breaks down.

There are a few questions that have been asked about how you
can save some here and put it there. I think Senator Chiles said
that we need about $2 billion to serve all the people who need to be
served by this progrem.

Two billion dollars is less than the cost of one nuclear aircraft
carrier. I want to you to listen to me. It is just as relevant as any-
thing you have heard %oday, that has been said today.

It is less than the cost of one nuclear aircraft carrier, which costs
about $3.5 billion. Two billion dollars is nothing compared to what
the president has proposed that we use to bail out the corrupt sav-
ings and loan associations. They are talking about $90 billion—3$90
billion—to subsidizz the banking industry and bail out corrupt and
incompetent bankers,

Whenever the power ¢*-ucture really wants to do anything and
we really want to get things done around here, we are able some-
how to find the money. We found $4.5 billion for the drought relief
at a time when there was a deficit and Gramm-Rudman—somehow
the money can be found.

If you can find §90 billion—there are going to be mechanisms de-
veloped.

So I hope that we realize that, when we are talking about a pro-
gram like WIC, which has been proven—everybody agrees that it is
a successful program and it works, it is a great investment, it will
?av::l adg:'eat deal of money in the future—yet we cannot get it fully

uded.

As we approach the fight to get it fully funded, I hope we will all
approach it not apologetically, but with great indignation.

This nation can afford—it can afford—to fully fund the WIC pro-
gram. It can afford it, and we should remember that and be quite
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indignant as we listed to what they are going to be proposing for
the $90 billion bail-out of the banks and a number of other things
that are they are going to find money for.

We should insist that this program that works should get funded.
Thank you.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Grandy?

Mr. GrRanDY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Schiff, I want to go back to your comments about promoting
strategies to reduce barriers to breast feeding and increase social
support.

What in your estimation are the barriers to breast feeding right
now, other than the obvious ones of, in many cases, having to hold
down some kind of a job and not actually being there with the
child?

Please elucidate a little bit about what the social Larriers are
that you see. Is it a class barrier, now? Are we looking at some-
thing that applies to certain income categories?

Dr. Scuirr. I think that the barriers are multiple, I think not the
least of which is a lack of understanding of the advantages of
gr%ast feeding in the minds of many young women who are having

abies.

I think that certainly the question of holding a job is a very im-
portant one. I am glad you mentioned that. However, in addition to
that I think that the percentage of women who actually breast feed
has varied considerably—over the last twenty-five or thirty years—
and this variance has occurred in all sociceconomic strata.

Mr. GraNDY. Excuse me just a moment. Has it varied downward
or upward?

Dr. Schirr. Both. It started off at a lower level, then it rose in
the late 1970s, and then it became variable.

I think that what we have found is that in those individuals who
have had the opportunity to understand and have been educated in
the value of breast feeding, the numbers have gone up.

However, I thinx that that educational experience has been lim-
ited, and I think that there are large numbers of young mothers
today who really are not truly aware of the value—and I am not
just talking about the nutritional value, but I amn talking about the
value that occurs in the bonding process between mother and child.

I do not want to minimize the problems that occur because of
working, and I think that if we could establish better means of
child care—if we could establish these child care units perhaps on
site, where young women are working—that this would do a great
deal to minimize these barriers.

I would like to call your attention to that point.

Mr. GranDy. I do not know if you are familiar with the Extended
Food and Nutrition Education program, which is run out of the De-
partment of Agriculture, which Is usually something that is at-
tached to food stamps in terms of how to properly prepare and buy
preducts—and it is run through the Extension Service.

Would this be a delivery mechanism for educating potential
mothers on the advan‘ages of breast feeding—and, more to the
point, the maintenance problems around breast feeding—in other
words, holding dowr. a job and still breast feeding an infant? Is
that a possible delivery mechanism?
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In one of the reports here—I believe it is from the Chairman of
your legislative committee, Mr. Bell—John Barr talks about ear-
marking $8 million for breast feeding promotion. I am trying to
figure out how you get value for those dollars.

If we are looking at, in many cases, a population that might be
illiterate, that would not avail themselves of visual aids or supple-
ments or pamphlets or things of that nature, is there an existing
delivery system now that we might be able to use?

Dr. ScHirr. The recommendation that we have talked about has
to do, to some degree, with sor~ething we call a Home Visitor pro-
gram.

What we are talking about in terms of a Home Visitor is usually
someone who is a neighbor, who is in the same general category of
people living in a neighborhood, who would be supportive in the |
educational effort and also in the support that is necessary through |
some of the vagaries that occur during the breast feeding procecs. |

Nursing can have its ups and downs also, and there are times 1
when it would be easier for a mother to stop nursing, she would
appear to think—whereas, if there was someone that she could call
upon for suppori, for help—that can keep the nursing process
going.

It is that kind of support that we are talking about, also.

Mr. GraNnpy. It is your estimation, again referring to this report
that Mr. Barr provided—he estimates that if you spend $8 million
on breast feeding promotion you can save $29 million 1n one month
on formula costs.

Would you basically agree with that?

Dr. ScHirF. I would hate to be held to those figures.

Mr. GrRaNnDY. I am not holding you to those figures.

Dr. Scairr. I think that the concept is accurate. Certainly, breast
feeding is much cheaper than formula feeding.

Mr. GranDY. Let me ask one more question. I guess I would
direct this to you, Mr. Bell, about increasing the amnunt of funds
that can be used for administrative and client services.

I think there is a formula that you folks have put forward
which—now, tell me if I am wrong—this is the average national
cost per participant where, I guess, the average national adminis-
trative cost is roughly $8.39 per person?

Mr. BELL. Yes.

Mr. GranDpyY. You would multiply that times inflation and multi-
ply that figure times your anticipated caseload? That would give
ﬁouhaqlittle bit more than your presently allotted twenty percent?

ight?

Mr. BeLL. That is correct, and that is given a history of food in-
flation not being as high as inflation related to actual direct pro-
gram services costs.

Mr. Granpy. Would you like this Committee to consider perhaps
allowing the states the flexibility to increase that twenty percent
allotment to twenty-five percent, or more, depending on need—or
do you want this kind of a formula?

Mr. BrLL. What we want, and what we are essentially putting
forward, is a concept that you base that money on participation,
not on an arbitrary percentage.
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I cannot tell you that twenty-five percent would be any better
than twenty percent. What we need to do is look at it realistically
and say, if you want us to serve this many clients, let’s have a for-
mula that adequately provides money to do that. As much flexibil-
ity as possible would be great.

Mr. GranDpY. So you are asking as a state director to be able to
perhaps jockey with that fermula a little bit, depending on your
caseload?

Mr. BELL. What we are asking, really, of this Committee is that
the national appropriation be jockeyed with, not so much that our
individual states jockey with it, but that when the split is made,
when the appropriation is made and the money is split up, that it
is split in a more rational approach, so that the total dollar amount
available to the states to provide direct client services is adequate
to support the clients who we are going to be seeing.

Mr. GranDY. But are you talking about just increasing the ap-
propriation, or are you talking about changing the 80/20 split?

Mr. BeLL. Changing the 80/20 split, which only deals with the
national appropriation, not what money goes to the states. That is
done under a USDA formula.

Mr. Granpy. But aren’t you limited by twenty percent right
now——

Mr. BeLL. Right now, yes we are.

Mr. GrRaNDY. [continuing] for administrative costs?

Mr. BeLL. Yes, and we have been limited since the inception of
the program.

Mr. GRanDY. And you would like us to change the formula our-
selves, not give you the ability to change it as you see fit?

Mr. BELL. That is correct. What we are asking you to do is to say,
when you split the—when the USDA has to take the appropriation
that the Committee gives and has to split it—that you direct them
to split it in a more rational manner, yes.

Mr. Granpy. Why is that better than allowing Washington a cer-
tain margin of flexibility, Iowa a certain margin of flexibility, New
York a certain margin of flexibility—within some parameters? I
am not saying that——

Mr. BeLL. I guess that what I am trying—I am not making
myself clear.

The issue of flexibility of money to the states, I do not think any
of us would have any quarrel with, certainly. But it is an issue re-
lated to the national appropriation, too.

T guess, if you were going to say, “We will appropriate a national
pot of money and then the states can divvy it up any way they
would like,”—I am not speaking for the association, but I personal-
ly would love it. I am sure the Department of Agriculture would
have some concerns.

T guess the issue is flexibility. Yes, I would like to see more flexi-
bilitf'. Given the constraints and the realities of the system, I
would at least like to see it rational at this p. 1t at the national
l.vel, and if you can direct the Department to be a little more ra-
tional in terms of how it comes to the states I am certain we would
not object to that.

Mr. Granpy. Thank you, Mr. Bell. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Hawxkins. Mr. Perkins?
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Mr. PerkiNns. I will pass.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Payne?

Mr. PayNE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think that, you have in-
dicated on the question of breast feeding it is difficult—I think it is
very obvious—also that in third world countries where I worked on
this issue quite a bit, that the question of breast feeding is consid-
ered not progressive socially: it was not western—it was not what
the sociable person was supposed to do.

We find, probably, that some of those same high-powered adver-
tisements from instant baby formula companies using the baby for-
mula as the panacea, rather than—I mean, in lieu of the fact that
breast feeding really makes a much healthier baby-are some of the
reasons. Which primarily becomes a stigina of, as you mentioned,
lack of education.

I would just like to mention that when the WIC program was
fully funded in Newark, in my district, we saw a decrease in infant
mortality rate.

We had it in accessible places. People knew that it existed. There
was a great deal of outreach.

It seems that there has been cutiing back and it is not as accessi-
ble, and this probably is one of the contributing factors for the in-
crease in infant mortality rate in my city of Newark, New Jersey,
is because of the lack and the reduced visibility and outreach for
the program.

So I certainly support the program tremendously. As a matter of
fact, as you know, we are last in the western world as it relates to
infant mortality. As a matter of fact, in the world we are eight-
eenth or worse in infant mortality. We are eighteenth from the
top, and that is a disgrace.

Even worse than that, if you remove the minority community
from the figures, the USA stands twenty-eighth in the world for
infant mortality in some of the areas. So this program is extremely
important.

I visited recently the neonatal intensive care unit at the Univer-
sitg of Medicine and Dentistry in Newark. The cost per low weight
baby with the equipment that supports that child was in excess of
$300,000.00 per infant, and we had thirty-six infants that day in
this unit.

So it seems to me that, as Reverend Jackson would say, if we
would invest on the early side we will probably have less cost on
the back side of life. That is all I would like to say.

Chairman HAWKINS. Mr. Bartlett?

Mr. BarTLETT. Mr. Chairman, I have a question for Ms. Samad
and Mr. Bell.

You heard discussion earlier with Senator Chiles on the piospect
of moving toward a one-stop eligibility, at least for income verifica-
tion.

I note that that is not, at least directly, in your set uf recommen-
dations. Is it feasible to achieve either a one-stop eligibility for
income verification, or at least fewer stops, and if so, how should
we go about it? Mr. Bell?

Mr. BELL. Yes, it is possible. I know in our state, for example, we
are working very closely with our Medicaid program and our state
is planning to expand Medicaid for pregnant women one hundred




78

and eighty-five percent, to use as much as possible that income de-
termination as income determination for WIC.

The problem is that in all of the separate authorizations, all of
these separate programs, everyone has put in their own litde
system for determining eligibility. The states are then given this
systerr to try to deal with.

We 1ave been able in our state to try to reduce the num®-~r of
pages « Medicaid appiicant would have to fill out from twenty-four
to four, just by going through and frying to simplify the process.

I think that it can be done, but what you Lave to realize is that
vou have to gc vack and look at all of these programs and how
they determine eligibility, and if they are all one hundred and
eighty-five percent of poverty, and they all use the same standard
criteria for what constitutes a household size, and they ali consti-
tute the same criteria for how you deal with the pregnant
woman—yes, it would be very easy for us to do that.

Mr. RarTLETT. Mr. Bell, let me interrupt you and try to get to
where I am—to help the Committee.

We set those standards, this Committee, or at leest in Congress.
Now, perhaps we sometimes to try to deny that we set the stand-
ards, but all of those eligibility standards—do not come out of the
sky. So you have met the enemy and b. is us.

My question is, could we, would it be feasible to set as one of the
circuit breaker standards for WIC, that if you are eligible for food
stamps or AFDC or Medicaid, at least in terms of income calcula-
tions, you are per se eligible for WIC?

Mr. BELL. Yes.

Mr. BarrLETT. Would your organization support this?

Mr. ReLL. Yes, we would. I think you can tell.

Mr BARTLETT. Ms. Samad, I wonder—you had an excellent
repe.t on the Research Focus Group on looking at WIC from the
outtsm up, from the viewpoint of the recipients, and these recipi-
ents noted a number of very real barriers including office hours,
which we talked about earlier.

What can we do in the Federal law to remove these barriers,
these very real barriers, and how should we go about identifying
that barrier rem~val?

You know, we have known about these barriers increasingly for
ten years and yet the barriers seein to be getting more serious
rather than less serious.

Ms. SaMap. The working farily needs to be able to get their
WIC benefits after *vorking hours There need to be WIC sites open
after working hours or on saturaayS.

I do not know row that can be dene, because individually each
site may be deperident on the hospital’s hours or other areas, but
that needs to happen so that they are more available.

Mr. BArTLETT. In the country are there WIC case " ‘orkers who
are located in aon-V/IC offices? Arc there WIC case workers who
are in employment offices or——

Ms. SaMaD. They are few ard far Fetween. They really are. That
can be because of the inedical compunent. We do not want that re-
moved. The blood work and al! that is necessary, but when that is
dependent upon a hospital an< the hospital or the clinic is not open
in the evcnings, then that r.atters.
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That is why I was thirking that an on-site person who is able to
do that might facilitate that.

Mr. BArRTLETT. This Committee could use some help in the next
ninety days, and we may be calling on each of you.

What I would like for you to do is to think abcat a group of four
or five actual workers in WIC who could help walk through with us
on how we could remove those barriers and essentially make WIC
available to those recipients who are not now participating in the
program as a result of many barriers.

If you would think through how, if you were in our shoes, you
would implement the elimination of these barriers.

One other question. Mr. Bell, you commented on regulatory re-
quirements that had not been funded in your words of your testi-
mony—regulatory requirements sent to the state and local govern-
ments by the feds.

Are you urging us to eliminate or streamline those requirements
or to fund them? If you were in our shoes, which would you choose?

Mr. BELL. What we are asking you to do is to elfiminate the legis-
lative, in some cases, requirement that generated those regulations
and to require the department, when they issue regulations, to look
at what the cost of those regulations is to the states and analyze
whether or not other regulations that may be outmoded and out-
dated and cost ineffective could be ehminated in place of that.

We know it is not realistic to say that every regulation that
comes out you have to attach money to. I mean, if we set that
precedent you guys would be doing that forever and everyone
would be begging at the door.

Mr. BARTLETT. The money comes away fiom nutrition food pack-
ages. That is our problem. The money is deleted directly from the
cost of purchasing food packages.

Mr. BeLL. No, the money 1s deleted from the cost of seeing the
clionts. I mean, if we have to fill out more paperwork to meet a
reguiatory requirement, that nutritionist spends her time with the
paper and not with the client, and that is what the problem is.

Mr. BarTLETT. So you would urge us to go through these reguia-
tions and to delete statutory requirements for the regulations
rather than trying to fund them?

Mr. BeLL. That, and require the department to look at them
whenever they do issue new regulations, to say, “What will the
impact be and can we eliminate some things that we have required
that 1’1’1aybe are not useful anymore, are burdensome and cumber-
some.

I have cited some examples in my testimony—the kind of thing
we have to go through that is really just plain silly.

Mr. BARTLETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HAwKINS. Mr. Sawyer?

Mr. Sawy3r. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First of all, Mr. Bell, I
want to thank you for your testimony. You have given us a great
deal to think about. You have given us some useful recommenda-
tions.

I want to touch on a point that arises from your first recommen-
dation, to ask you to comment basically on what we can do in this
legislation as it develops to provide states that are alreacy doing a
good job in cost containment with additional incentives?
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The range of efficiency in delivery of services is very wide across
the states. I think we all recognize the importance of giving incen-
tive ‘o those states that need to do better, to continue to do better.

In Ohio, we meet over 60 percent of our eligible population—as
compared to the national average of about 43 percent.

How can we continue to encourage states like that, that are
doing well. recognizing that each additional increment of improve-
ment becomes progressively more difficult?

Mr. BeLL. I would say there are two ways. One, you have to real-
ize that the innovations in the WIC program, the innovations of
cost containment, were done not because neither Congress nor the
Department was able to provide any incentive to do it.

The incentive was that we could not see enough clients and we
had to turn them away, and we said, “How can we better do that?”’

I think to the extent that you allow states the flexibility to ad-
dress that issue, how can we better serve our clients, that states
will come up with ways of doing that.

Ohio certainly was extremely innovative in their approach to
doing that, and no one gave Tennessee an incentive to start rebat-
ing. They did it because of ccncern. No one gave Oregon an incen-
tive.

What has happened is that, now that it is populai and it has
been regulated to death, there is a disincentive for us to get in-
volved in it. I mean, it is so complex and so cumbersome that now I
have two fulltime staff just trying to figure out how to get the plan
approved by the Department of Agriculture so we can do it. Had I
done it two years ago, I would not have had to do that.

So. the incentive is, give us the flexibility to be creative and, at
the same time, if we are creative don’t come back to us and say,
“Okay, everyone, you all march to the same drummer now and you
all do it this way” ard make it so complicated tliat you cannot do
it.

Chairman HawKkins. Mr. Smith?

Mr. SmitH. Mr. Bell, along the same lines—thank you, Mr.
Chairman—along the same lines, why—if we had to choose be-
tween trying to work through a jungle of regulations, sort of run-
ning from Washington out, and negotiating each one as opposed to
shortcircuiting the whole process and making a straight trade with
states whose governors, let’s say, were willing to sign off on out-
comes for flexibility circuit breaker. .

In other words, we agree that there will be outcomes in the fol-
lowing twelve categories, or whatever it is, that you believe will
pull you toward innovation and community-based delivery of serv-
ices, the things that I think are the hallmarks of WIC—certainly in
Vermont, anyway—and in return for that sign off on the outcomes,
it would basically let you ruin the program the way you want to, in
bluntest terms

Why wouldn’t that just be an option for states to take as opposed
to trying to run through the jungle and identify every—I mean,
that is playing the bureaucratic game on the bureaucratic turf. We
are going to lose it, I think. We usually do.

Mr. BELL. I think you are right. Certainly the « .ncept is extreme-
ly attractive to states. I think that. speaking from a national per-
spective, not just from the state of &ashington, you want to be
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careful with that to make sure that you get the kind of outcomes
that you want and that you would hold the states accountable for
that. Certainly, I think we would be expected to be.

Anything that could decrease the bureaucratic regulatory burden
of a program like this, so that you can spend more time where we
all know the money should be put, would be a great service to the
program. No question.

Mr. SmitH. Thank you.

Chairman HawxkiNs. The Chair v.ouid like to again thank the
witnesses for their excellent contribution and also to express appre-
ciation to all of those who assembled today to celebrate an anniver-
sary.

Mr. Haves. I would like to have these witnesses leave here at
least with some knowledge that, as a representative of one of the
districts where the rate of infant mortality is on the rise, teenage
pregnancy is on the rise, poverty is on the rise, I certainly am sup-
poriive of this kind of program

However, I want to warn you, if you had been here yesterday
and had witnessed some of the bleeding hearts who opposed their
own salary increase—I would have been willing to donate mine to
this kind of a program—but some of those people who—we will
need your help in the next ninety days, as my cclleague Bartlett
has said, because some of those people who were most vociferous
against salary increases for judges and members of the Congress
will be used as an argument to justify that, feeling for the poor.

They are apt to forget it in the next ninety days, when this kind
of program for funding comes up, unless we remind them of what
they said yesterday. Thank you very much.

Chairman Hawkins. The Chair will recognize any member who
wishes to make any statement. Ms. Lowey?

Ms. Lowgy. Actually, I had a question, but first I want to thank
you all for your outstanding testimony.

I am a new member, as you know, and I never thought when I
ran as the experienced candidate for Congress that my experience
breast feeding my three children would come in so handy.

I do agree with you, Dr. Schiff, in your comment and I would like
to pursue it further.

Wthile those of us up here, as you know, strongly support fund-
ing, and I personally full funding, for WIC because I think it is ab-
solutely essential, and I think it is an outrage that in our country
we can find the money for bombers and missiles and not for babies
and children and women—I have a question.

While we are fighting for the money for full funding for WIC, I
wonder whether there is some outreach to the corporste sector, to
the advertising and to television commercials, to literature, as
Major Owens was saying, for breast feeding.

It seems to me the in a country where you have so many people
talking about life and family and childrer, this might be an area
where we can focus the attention of the private sector that does
want to invest in our children so that they can have literate work-
ers for the twenty-first century.

In New York or in other parts of the country has the private
sector been brought into this advertising campaign that we would
like to see?
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Dr. Scuirr. My response would be, not to the degree that 1t
should be. I think there is an awareness there.

Certainly, pediatricians and other colleagues have been promot-
ing this for a number of years, but there is a great deal more that
needs to be done and we would love to go in that direction and
work cooperatively with every kind of segment of our society to ad-
vance the incidence and understanding of breast feeding and the
advantages of breast feeding.

Mrs. Lowey. I just had one other question for Ms. Samad. You
were talking about the need for a rational implementation of some
of these supplementary programs—nutrition education and all the
outreach programs that are invaluable in our WIC centers.

I wonder why this has to be regulated, and aren’t there centers
that can just give nutrition programs while they are distributing
WIC, and isn’t it creativity upon the centers what could make this
possible?

Do we have to get involved in regulating these programs? That
part of the program?

Ms. Samap. Yes. I think that when the staffs are forced to shuf-
fle papers and not shuffle people, then the amount of time that is
available to give nutrition education is very, very limited.

So if it is not mandatory that that be included in the services,
then I think that that wili be something that will be eliminated.

You talked about national breast feeding promotion. I would like
to say that there is only one program that comes on nationally,
and that is “Thirty Something”, that has even mentioned breast
feeding.

We have gotten some very negative breast feeding publicity from
the “New York Times”, and that has been very unfortunate. They
have been doing a run of advertisements for a drug-free America
where they have a woman breast feeding and saying that this is
how her baby gets her fix—that has been-really, it is a terrible ad-
vertisement. We have had a really hard time getting the corporate
world involved in breast feeding.

I think that one of the things that helps the confidence—breast
feeding is a confidence game, I am sure you know that—the
women’s movement has been very successful in getting educated,
affluent women to breast feed.

However, when you are handed everything else in your life—you
are handed food stamps and you are handed WIC and you are
handed everything else—it is really hard to be confident enough to
breast feed unless you get support from somewhere. I think that
WIC is the way to do that with poor women.

Mrs. Lowey. 1 have to agree with you, because even more impor-
tant that literature or commercials is the personal one-to-one sup-
Forg that is absolutely essential in encouraging a mother to breast
eed.

Again, in conclusion, while we are fighting for this money, I hope
that together we can figure out a way to reach out to the “thou-
sand points of light” in this area, and may they sparkle ever more
brightly in the next year. Thank you.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Poshard?

_ Mr. PosHArD. Mr. Chairman, forgive me for rising again, but I
Just would like one other quick question.
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I worked very closely in Illinois during the past several years
with the Department of Children and Family Services, especially in
the area of child abuse.

The people in that agency are now handling on an average,
about forty-five child abuse cases per case worker. Their pay is rel-
atively low and they put in a lot of long hours. The morale has just
gon~ downhill during the last several years.

Are we experiencing the same kind of morale problems in the
WIC program? Are we?

Ms. Samap. Mr. Poshard, if you have got three hundred
women—even a hundred women in a waiting area in ‘he summer
in a hospital, with no windows—the potential for child abuse is
enormous because the mothers are tired, the staff people are tired,
we miss lunch, we miss a whole bunch of other things—and, yes, I
am going to sock my kid if there is nobody else I can sock.

Mr. PosHARD. So it is equally as important that the flow-througi:
moneys go for the actual food and the nutrition, but it is also im-
portant that we have adequate personnel working in these pro-
grams. Thank you.

Chairman Hawgkins. If there are no further questions, the hear-
ing is adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 11:58 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SusBcoMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND
VocaTioNAL EpUCATION,
COMMITTEE ON KDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 am., in
Room 2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Augustus F.
Hawkins [Chairman] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Martinez, Sawyer, Owens,
Payne. Lowey, Poshard, Unsoeld, Goodling, and Gunderson.

taff present: John Jennings, counsel; Diane Stark, legislative
specialist; Beverly Griffin, research assistant; Mary Jane Fiske,
professional staff member; and Lynn Selmser, professional staff
member,

Chairman Hawkins. The Subcommittee on Elementary, and Sec-
ondary, Vocational Education is called to order.

This morning the subcommittee will hear testimony regarding
the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs. These pro-
grams will be reviewed by subcommittees as part of the reauthor-
ization of expiring Child Nutrition Programs.

The school lunch and breaktast programs are essential tc the
health our children. In many children’s lives, the meal provided by
these programs is the only food that he or she receives all day.
Even for children who have adequate food at home, school lunch
and breakfast are important nutritional components.

Also, many studies have proven what we have already suspected,
that hungry children doa't learn. Rich and poor-alike, children
need adequate nutrition so that they can do well in school. Today
we will hear from a panel of experts who will share with us the
importance of these programs and will provide us their suggestions
for improvement.

Any amendments to these programs that the subcommittee de-
termines necessary will be incorporated into H.R. 24 which Mr.
Goodling and I introduced on January 3rd. The Chair would like at
this time to yield to the ranking minority member, Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoobLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just « minute to wel-
come the unsung heroes of the education system. I know firsthand
whai role yon play and how important it is and as I always tell
you, make sure that all those people out there know what it is you
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do and how important you are because you make our job easier if
you make everybody back home. including your senators and your
members of the House of Representatives, know how important
you are and what you do and it is easy for us.

So, welcome and we will be happy to hear the testimony and as
the chairman indicated, do whatever we can to make sure a good
program continues. I am ready for the usual battle that I seem to
have to carry on my side of the aisle and I am sure we will carry
that well. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Hawxkins. Are there any other members who would
like to make a statement at this time? If not, the Cha.r would like
to announce with great pleasure that today the committee is re-
leasing a print entitled, “Child Nutrition Programs, Issues for the
101st Congress.”

This document contains information regarding the important
role the Child Nutrition Programs play in the academic achieve-
ment of children, the necessity of Section 4, funding, and a detailed
program background and legislative history.

I certainly want to thank Shirley Watkins and other volunteers
from the American School Food Service Association for their assist-
ance in compiling the committee print. Without their help, the
print would not have been as complete nor as informative.

At this time, I would like to introduce and ask these witnesses to
be seated as the witness table: Ms. Shirley Watkins, President of
the American School Food Service Association; Dr. Robert S.
McCord, Director of Government Relations, Clark County, Nevada
Public Schools; and Mr. Charles Hughes, President of Local 372.
the New York City Board of Education Employees.

I certainly welcome the witnesses on behalf of the subcommittee
and look forward to your testimony. May I indicate that your pre-
pared statements in their entirety will be printed in the record and
the committee would obviously appreciate you giving us the high-
lights of the testimony so as to leave time for questions and I am
sure there will be plenty of them.

The Chair would also like to announce that our lights today will
be in operation. We will give the members an opportunity to ask
questions and the witnesses to answer and we hope they are not
colorblind. We will look at the lights to make sure that we do not
exceed the time.

I think we will have an opportunity to come back for a second or
third guestion, but we will try to allocate it in accordance with the
number who may be present and there are others who I am sure
will be joining us.

Ms. Shirley Watkins, you are the first witness and we welcome
you as the first witness and you may proceed.
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STATEMENTS OF SHIRLEY WATK!NS, PRESIDENT, AMERICAN
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE ASSOCIATION; DR. ROBERT S. MC
CORD, DIRECTOR OF GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, CLARK
COUNTY, NEVADA PUBLIC SCHOOLS; AND CHARLES HUGHES,
PRESIDENT, LOCAL 372, NEW YORK CITY BOARD OF EDUCA-
TION EMPLOYEES

Ms. Wartkins. Thank you. Mr. Chairman. Mr. Goodling, Mr.
Ford, and members-—I see he hasn’t come in quite yet—but in
members of the committee, I am Shirley Watkins, president of the
American Scheol Food Service Association.

With me this morning is Beverly Lowe and Mary Klatko. Bever-
ly is the president-elect of the Association and Mary is our public
policy and legislative chairman.

We appreciate the opportunity to testify this morning and we are
particularly grateful to you for scheduling this hearing during our
Legislative Action Conference. It has been a pleasure to work with
this committee over the years and we look forward to working with
you during the 101st Congress.

Let me also express my sincere appreciation for the staff, the
very dedicated staff: Jack Jennings, Mary Jane Fiske, Dr. June
Harris and Diane Stark. We are appreciative for all of the help
that they have given us throagh the years and we also like to pay
a special thanks to you for the committee print.

We think that it is an invaluable document that will provide re-
source necessary as we talk about the Child Nutrition Program
through the years. Mr. Chairman, we would like to make a part of
the record our Legislative Issue Paper, our Child Nutrition Princi-
ples for 1989, the Section 4 Fact Sheet, Grant General Assistance
and Grant-in-Aid, and letters that we liave from state directors.

We would like to make all of that a part of the record.

Chairman Hawkins. Without objection, the documents referred
to will be entered in the record following Ms. Watkins’ testimony.

Ms. Wartkins. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chair-
man, I recognize that the time is short, but I would like to briefly
comment on the budget and anything that I say today would be far
infe “or to what you and Mr. Goodling have already commented
about Section 4.

You have made more eloquent presentations down through the
years on the floor of Congress about Section 4 as you championed
the debate on H.R. 7. You have provided detailed information
through the committee print that adequately justify Section 4. Ob-
viously, CBO information is misleading and it is most unfair.

The Section 4 analysis is being taken totally out of context. Sec-
tion 4 represents less than ten percent of the child nutrition budget
and it is that ten percent, Mr. Chairman, that is the glue that
holds the program together. We are talking about $300 million.
CBO’s recommendation to the Budget Committee is very narrow
and it is a very misleading analysis.

If we are to compete, Mr. Chairman, with Japan, we cannot
afford to have hungry children in the classroom. Every child in the
elementary school in Japan is eating a free meal. Those children
are excelling in the math, in the science area. We can ill-afford to
target Section 4 by income category. Three hundred million dollars
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is a meager amount for the children of this nation who would not
be provided a meal if Section 4 is cut.

We cannot compete with hungry children. They do not learn. II-
literate children cannot produce. There is a vast amount of re-
search floating around now that expresses what we have said for
years, “You cannot teach a hungry child. A hungry child will not
last through the fifth period.”

Our children must have adequate food to be productive. We have
also lost, Mr. Chairman, an average of five cents per meal in bonus
commodities this year and that is approximately $200 million. I
think you get the picture of what I am saying.

Let's move on to reauthorization. If we are to make improve-
ments in the program, now is the appropriate time. We support the
reauthorization of the five programs that expire in 1989: N.E.T,
Summer Food Service Program, Commodity Distribution, State Ad-
mi%istrative Expense and a special supplemental food program for
WI

As we talk about reauthorization, Mr. Chairman, it is our hope
that this comraittee will enact several administrative reforms to
the program. First and foremest must be the area of nutritional
quality. ASFSA has long been a supporter of the USDA/ HHS Die-
tary Guidelines.

The Dietary Guidelines are excellent statements of the nutrition-
al direction for a healthy population. However, it is only a guide-
line and the recommendations for specific levels of nutrient intake
for the subgroups of the population, especially children, is omitted.

It is virtually impossible for school administrators around this
country to act as an ad hoc committee to try and express what is
needed for children. We request and plead with you that the Con-
gress require a study by USDA and HHS on how to apply those
dietary guidelines to children.

We are extremely committed to our children. We don’t want to
harm children with health issues. We want to make certain that
we are doing the proper thing for our children. In kzeping with
those dietary guidelines, ASFSA supports an amendment deleting
the requirement that whole milk be offered as a part of the school
lunch program.

As we continue to talk about the quality of programs that are
offered in schools, the nutritional center of the school setting, we
feel that there needs to be some legislation that would re-establish
the authority for the Department of Agriculture to regulate the
sale of competitive foods in schools.

USDA had promulgated such regulations, but the U.S. Court of
Appeal has ruled that that regulation far exceeds the USDA statu-
tory authority. We believe that a technical amendment in this area
could make the Congressional intent clearer and re-establish the
authority of the Department of Agriculture to regulate in this
area.

We are also real concerned about the problems we are having
with the nutrition education in training. ASFSA supports the origi-
nal concept of 50 cents per child, per year for the purposes of nutri-
tion education. Students need the ongoing training for schocl food
service personnel as well. We are finding ourselves in a real dilem-
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If, in fact, the classroom and nutrition education in the cafeteria
is going to be a learning laboratory, it is awfully difficult to do that
without adequate funds. The current level of $5 million per year is
simply inadequate and this year, the administration seeks to elimi-
nate those net funds.

Instead, Mr. Chairman, they would like to have more layers of
Federal reviews. They had requested that $6.4 million be appropri-
ated to determine whether we are accurately accounting for meals
in the cafeteria. We think that is grossly unfair.

It is a duplication of effort. It is an overlay that gives us more
than triple layers of auditing and accounting procedures. It first
started out, Mr. Chairman, as sin-free. We call that sinful. While it
is now called frizz, we hope that it will fizzle out. We hope that
even though this is an appropriation committee function, we feel
that the Department has abused its discretion to administer to the
program.

It affects policy and we hope that you will see fit to speak to that
issue. We have two other issues and that is the School Food Service
Management Institute. ASFSA supports the establishment of a
School Food Service Management Institute and we also support the
reduction of paperwork.

Mr. Chairman, we would also like to enter into the record a
letter that was sent to the Honorable Jamie L. Whitten, Chairman
of the Committee on Ap»ropriations which fully expresses our con-
cern about the $6.4 million for additional regulations to audit us.

We also would like to prov .e you a copy of a letter that was sent
to Mr. George Braley, the Deputy Administrator addressing that
same problem and a letter sent to Mr. Jack Jennings addressing
the paperwork reduction. We would like to place all of these a part
of our testimony today and for the record.

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for allowing us the opportu-
nity to testify this morning and I would be happy to answer any
questions that you may have.

iThe prepared statemen of Shirley Watkins follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF

THE AMERICAN SCHOOL rOOD SERVICE ASSQCIATICN

i

BEFORE TH
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABCR
JNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FEBRUARY 28, 1989

Mr. Cha:rman, Mr. Goodling, Mr. Ford, members of tre
Committee, I am Shirley wWatk:ns, the President of the american
School Food Service Association We appreciate the opportun.ty
to testify this morning, and are particularly grateful to you for
scheduling this hear:ng during our Legislative Action Conference.
It has been a pleasure to work with this Committee over the years
and we look foriard to wcrking together again in the i0lst
Congress. Let me also express our appreciat:.on to the
Committee’'s very dedicated staff: Jack Jennings, Mary Jane

Fiske, Dr. June Harris, and Diane Stark.

The Budget

Mr. Chairman, before turning to HR 24 and some
suggestions that we have on how to improve the National School

Lunch Program, we would like to comment on the budget.

We are, needless to say, very gratified by President
Bush's child nutrition budget. We commend the Presiden. for
submitting a child nutrition budget that 18 consistent with the

priority he has placed upon the needs of children.
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We look forward to working with the members cf zh:.s
committee 1n protecting the child rutr:ition budget as subm.zzed

by the Pres:ident. As you know, the Congressional Budget l:f.:e

has submitted a list of options to the Congress for reducing -2
deficrz These ogt.ons do :include a proposal to el.m.rana
Section ¢ <casn subsidies for ncn-pocr’  chiidren n - . .1

[o%

by Tre

nutrition programs We trust this cpticn ~ill pe rejecte

Congress as 1t 1s a step in the wrong direction.

Section ¢ subsidies are not transfer payments <>
individual students, but rather Section 4 1s a grant that goes ::
the school to support the basic structure of the School Lunch
Program. The CBO analysis [ails to recognize that the School
Lunch Program 1s a nutrition program and an education program
intended to meet the nutritional needs of all children, not just

poor children.

In addition to the CBO deficit reduction “options”, we
are concerned over how the “freeze” called for in the budge*
submitted by President Bush will be implemented. The President
1s seeking to freeze a large number of non-specified, domestic
programs at their 1989 spending level. In describing the freeze,
the President states “[T)he freeze g flexible i1n that 1t allows
some individual programs in the freeze category to be increased
while others are reduced. --- Final decisions about whether to
increase or decrease specific programs within this freeze
category are necessarily to be determined through deliberations

and negotiations involving the “dministration and Congress.”

g
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In short, !r. Chairman, we are very pleased with
President Bush s decision not to seek any specif:c cuts in  ch:i.d
nutrition, but we are not yet out of danger. Given CBO s annual
report to the Congress and the competition among dcmes:t.cC
programs <created by the President s freeze, we beiieve --3-

gonstant wigilance 1S necessary 1n order 1o protect the ~-. 1

nutrition programs. wWe look forward to working with the merrpers
of this committee 1n crder to make sSure that child nutrit.:cn

programs continue to be fully funded.

Hungry children do not learn; 1lliterate children cannct
produce; and Section 4 s the backbone of the National School
Lunch Program. It 1s also the backbone of the School Breakfast
Program in that schools without a lunch program generally do not

participate 1n the School Breakfast Program.

In October of 1988 candidate George Bush published a

paper entitled Invest in Qur Children. It stated that “George

Bush believes that our national character can be measured by how
we care for our children--all of the nation’'s children--how we
invested 1n them, how they have grown, and what we convey to
them. Children embody our respect for ourselves and our future;
they reflect our value as a nation and as a pecple. George Bush
w1ll lead a national commitment to invest in our children.” With

regard to proper nutrition, Invest in Qur Children stated that

"George Bush will request sufficient funding for important
nutrition programs designed to reach young cnildren--such as the

School lunch Progiam, and the Women, Infants, and Children

-3-
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Program.” In our opinion, the Congress should approach ch:id
nutrition in a manner that 1s consistent with Invest :n C.r
Children, and the chiid nutriticn exemption contained .n Jramn-

Rudman-Holl:ings.

Program Reauthor:zations

Five child nutrition programs expire at the end of t=.s
£1scal year: the Nutrit:ion Education Training Program, -2
Summer Food Service Program for Children, the Commed:ty
Distribution Program, State Administrative Expenses, and the w12
Program. ASFSA supports the reauthorization of all five of tnese

programs as contained in H.R. 24.

Nutritional Quality

In reauthorizing these programs through 1995, it 1s our
hope that the Committee can als. enact several acdm.nistrative
reforms of the progr-m. First and foremost must be the area of

nutritional quality.

ASFSA has long supported, and continues to endorse the
USDA/HHS Dietary Guidelines for Americans. The Dietary
Guidelines are an excellent statement of nutritional direction
for a healthy population. They do not, however, contain
recommendations for specific levels of nutrient intake for
subgroups of the population, especially children. It is
virtually impossible for local administrators throughout the
country to implement the Dietary Guidelines on an ad hoc basis

without more specific guidance from the Department in this area.

\‘1
E [C9—666 0-89-¢
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We request that the Congress require a study by USDA and HHS woun

how to apply the Dietary Guidelines to children.

In keep:ng with the Dietary Guidelines, ASFSA sugzorts

an amendment delet_.ng the requiremert that whole milk bte =:zifer

D
I

[

ag part of the Schocl Lunch Program. Milk would continue <2 =

an i1ntegral part of the school lunch meal pattern, but it 1. =QocC

11

necessary that whole milk specifically be mandated by statute

Competitive Foods

ASFSA supports legislation that would reestablish the
authority of the Department of Agriculture to regulate the sale
of competitive toods i1n schools from the beginning of the school
dey to the end of the last lunch period. The USDA had
promulgated such regulations but the U.S. Court of Appeal has
ruled that the regulation exceeded USDA statutory authority.* We
believe that & technical amendment in this area could make the
Congressional intent clearer, and rzestablish the authority of

the Department of Agriculture to regulate in this area.

N.E.T.
ASFSA supports the original concept of 50 cents per
child, per year for the purposes of nutrition education for

students and ongoing training for school food service personnel

* National Soft Drink Association v. John R. Block,
Secretary, 721 F.2d 1348 (D.C. Cir. 1983).

~5-

Q
ERIC
-




95

The current level of $5 million per year 1s not adequate. This

year the Administration is seeking ¢to eliminate N.E.T and

appropriate $6.4 million to document meal count accuracy. we <o

20

not believe this $6.4 million 1s necessary as 1t duplicates

ex1sting

ongoing programs that are being administered a: -ne

state and local level. The $6.4 million should be transferred :-

the Nutrition Education and Training budget for a total N.E T

appropriation of $11.4 million.

School Food Service Management Institute

ASFSA supports the establishment of a USDA School Food

Service Management Institute. The goal of such an Institute

would be to assist schools throughout the country in the

administration of the School Lunch Program. It would help school
food service personnel with menu planning, procurement
procedure¢, financial management, and the implementation of the
Dietary Guidelines. 1In the 1988 appropriation bill, the Congress
appropriated §50,000 for a feasibility study of the Institute and
appropriated another $50,000 in the 1989 bill to further the
Institute. We believe we are now ready for an authorization of

the Institute as part of the 1990 Child Nutrition Reauthorization

Bill.

Conclusion
Mr. Chairman, as you can see, there 1s much that needs
to be done. We would appreciate the Committee making our

Legislative Issue Paper a part of the hearing record.

6=
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Thank you Mr. Chairman. I'd be happy to answer any

questions that you may have.

294820002aTest: 255
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American School Food Service Association

1989 Legislative Issue Paper
Invest in Qur Children

In October of 1988 candidate George Bush pub-
shed a paper entiled Inves: ;n Our Chuldren. It
stated that ‘George Bush believes that our nanonal
character can be measured by how we care for our
children—all of the nation's children—how we
wivestin them. bow thev grow. and what we convey
to them. Chuldren embody our respect for ourselves
andour futuro. thev reflect our value as « nanon and
as a people. George Bush will lead a national com.
mtment to unvest 1 our children.” With

proper nutntion. frvest in Qur Chuldren stated that
* e Bush will request ¢ i t funding tor
mportant nutniton engned 0 reach
voung children—such as the School Lunch Pro-
§ram, and the Women. Infants, and Chudren Pro-
gram.

The Americaa School Pood Service Assodistion Is
rwwmmnmnmw.-m
oﬂowh"odﬂmmmnmhthuphdn.

GENERAL ASSISTANCE SUPPORT

1. ASFSA strongly supponis fedsral genral assis-
tance (Section 4 payments, for all lunches.
We would oppose any reduction u child nutrition
support. and 1 particular any proposal that would
eluminate or rrduce the cash or support
to schools bs ed upan the students
with famuly ncome above 188 percent of the pov.
by Tor approcmey ol lower the fecera
subsidy for appro one- uzc
served nationwide and would thersfors j
memnt:mcdzgce,::‘imdsw
The Navonal Lunch Program was estab-
lshed 1n 1944, after

the major wespons in the fight against hunger
Amenca.SecdouHsthe&

lunch program.

The Lib: &f' Congress has estimated th:;:cn
eluimunanon general asnstance subndy (Sec.
tion 4ofthe Nndoml&hoolLunchAc_t)wwH e

more ts,

43.000 schools, with

8.000.000 chudren would be forced from tic Na-
uonal Schooi Lunch hxnm if Section 4 and com-
modities were elimunat

The federal general asgstance provided to schools
pursuant to Section 4 of the Nauonal School Lunch
ACt 18 not a transfer payment to individuals, but 1s a

grant-n-axd to schools to support the basic inira.
structure of the school lunch program. Without thus
support many school distnets could not afford to
parucpate u the Natwaal School Lunch Program.
thereby depriving all chuldren 1 the communay,
ncluding poor children, of the numtonal value of
the program.

PROGRAM REAUTHORIZATIONS
2. Fivechild putrition ir at the end of
e o e ey B a1
[{ uﬂ'cwx;mm
or ton
S i Expenses and the Sup-
tal Food for Womt:. infants and
(WIC), supports reauthonza-
tion of all five of these programs. ¢
DIETARY GUIDELINES

:.; ;zﬂs?sf:'sumﬂl d::dUSDA/Hl':eSthan
u 145 [Or Amencans Tequests ement
of these as they relsze to chudren. The
Dustary Guidelines are an excellent generalized
statement of nutntional direction for a healthy pop-
ulation. They do not contain recommendations for
:ﬁ:cxﬁc levels of nutrient intake for subgroups of

populanon, especially chuldren. Therefore, ASESA
requests that € requure a study on how 1o
apply the Dretary gud‘hnu to chuldren. including.
1 particular. sodium, fat. and sugar recomenenda-

uons.
B. Inkeepwng with the Dretary Guwdelines ASFSA
suppons an aniendment deleung the requrement

lover)

Q
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that whole mulk be offered as part of the School
* unch Program.

NUTRITION EDUCATION AND TRAINING
PROGRAM (NET)

&. ASFSA suppocts the original concept of 50 cents

per chufcl perd\:’ear fo:‘se purposes of nuu'fmonm

caion for students and ongowng rarung for sc

food service personnel. The recentlevel of $5 nullion

peyarforNET(lOc:nsggrchudperywmnot
[

adequate. [n FY 1990, transfernng
the $5.2 mullion appropraied n I;l9 for redundant

meal count v to the Nutntion Educanon
Tranung

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICR
MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE

ement. and the impiementation of the
Uslg?”l'ms Disrary Guidslines.

ASFSA believes the School Food Service Man-
agement Insutute should be authorized as of
the 1989 Child Nutritoa Reauthorization

98

w the WIC Program. providing vear round meais o
low-ticome children through the Summer Food
Service Program for Chudren and the Chid Care
Food Program and efforts to expand the School
Breakfas: Program.

The School Breakfast Proyram culariy
unporwant to siudenss’ nutriional weil-bang and
educanonal dev: L ing t0 a recent
study, School t Program and School Per.
formance by Dr Alan Meyers of Boston Uriversity s
School of Medsane, ast parucipe:
on by b w-ncome chidren us associated with sigru-

t IMprovement 1a acadermuc performance,

NUTRITION MONITORING

8. ASFSA supports legislanon to establish a com-

prehensive nutntion momlmn{ system. The nutn.

uon activiies of USDA ard the Depant-
and Human Servic

and more nformatiorn. obtained.

In the 100th Congress, the House and Senate passed

S. 1081 but the Prendent did not uign the legulation.

ASFSA supports this legislation bemng enacted in the

SAR. POR COMMODITY DISTRIBUTION
9. ASFSA

feleral support for chud
be iacluded in the SAE

BLOCK GRJ/INT

Food, Nutrttion and Haalth in 1969. “the of
malnourishrent is a nationsl respoambitity.”

PAPERWORK REDUCTION
11. ASFSA supports a comprehensive review of
statusory and provisions to dentfy ways
to reducs the ofm'worhn.tdnun-
\strative burden on state and agencies admuris-
tenng child nutrition programs.

Prepared by .« Public Policy and Legisiarive Commuttee Amencan School Food Service Assocaanon.

Headquartors Office: S600 S Quebec S¢. Swte 300 B Englewood. CO 80111 (800) $25-8575 (303 220-8484
Wﬂbﬂu Counest: Marshall Matz: Holland & Krught 388 17th St N'W  Swite 500, Washingion. DC 20006
ASFSA Hotltue: (800) $25-3806 (recorded chid nutntion legslation nformauon)  FAX (303) 770-$340
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American School Food Service Association

Child Nutrition Principles
1989

1. Chud nutnition programs are a priontv federal 6. Admuustrative requirements for school nutn
nittative, uon programs should be consistent with the school
2. The school lunchprogram s anuntegral part of enviroament.
the educaton day and should be avadable to ail 7. Child nutntion programs should be supporied

chidren General assstance (Section 4. Nauonal with techrucal assstance. research and traung to
School Lunch Act. 1946) 13 a grant-in-aud to schools encourage the efficient operauon of high qualitv,
intended to support the basic mnfrastructure of the nautntious local programs.

schoof tunch program for all chuldren: it 18 not a 8. The Numbon Educauon and T Pro-

transfer pavment to all individual chuldren. gram should be supported at the onginal level of 50
3. The school :re:kfut program should bel en- cents per chuld, per year
couraged wn all schools—parncularly schools in low-
income areas where a lugh percentage of the chul. m’&“m US?A %Ymﬁm m‘;
dren recewve a free or reduced-price school lunch. must m:nthemedn of recipvent agencies as
Du" Chllcd x;nnonl programs sho#ld applyh!he well as (o the agricultural purposes of the program
elarv Guwdeiines fer Amercans. Further, there "
! 10. Chid nutrition should have ade.
shouid be a competitve food polic: consistent with m‘““ )
. quate funding for tranon, wcluding the
the D;‘“’; G":‘""“ . . admunstrauon of the Commodity Dwstnbui.on Pro-
S. The Special Suppiemental Food Program for gL
Women, Infants and Chuldren (WIC), the Summer
Food Service Program for Children and the Chid
CareFood Program should be expanded to reach al}
who are elipble for the programs.

Prepared bv the Public Policv and Leguslatn e Commutiee Amencan School Food Service Assocuanon.
Headouarters Offica: 5600 S Quebec St. Suite 300 B Englewood CO $O1 11 (3001 528 8S7S (303) 2208484

Wunlnﬂon Counsel* Marshall Matz Holland & Knight 238 17th St N W Swste 900 Washungton. D C 20006
ASFSA Hotline: 1300) 5253806 (recorded chid nutrnea leguslanion informanon)  TAX(303) 7709340
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American School Food Service Association

Section 4 Fact Sheet

General Assistance Grant-in-Aid

® Section 4 of the Nauonal School Lunch Act
guarantees to schools throughout the country a
reimbursement of approxumately 14 cents for
each school lunch (paid. reduced-price or free)
served consistent with nutntion standards set
by USDA. Anaddinonal 12 centsis guaranteed in
USDA commodiues. for a total subsidy of
approximately 26 cents per meal

@ [n 1981, the per meal school lunch reimburse-
ment was cut g: 11 ce-ts, programs were then
dropped and some 3.000.000 chidren were
forced from the program Of those 3.000.000
chuldren, approxumately 1.000.000 were poor
chudren who had received a free or reduced-
pnce lunch.

® Anv proposal to ehminate Section 4 and
commedities for “pad” meals would cut school
lunch support by $525 muilion. Thus cut would
come on top of the $200 mullion reduction n
bonus commod:nes we have expenenced since
1987

® A Library of Congress study indicates that
sorac 44,000 schools with more than 21 mullion
students are “at risk” of droppinshou: of the
Nauonal School Lunch Program if the Section 4
reimbursement and commodities were elim-
inated ASFSA believes that from 10,000 to
15.000 schootls and 5,000,000 to 8,000.000 chul-
dren would be forced from the program «f Sec-
tton 4 were eminated.

® The school lunch program is not federally
mandated. Schools are encouraged to paruici-
pate through the Section 4 grant-n-aia and
other federal support.

® Section 4 1s not a transfer pavment to wnds-
vd (as are Food Stamps and AFDC) but
15 a grant-in-aid to schools 10 support the basic
wnfrastructure of the school lunch program and
to encourage schools to participate in the
program.

¢ Approxumately 24 mullion chudren recene a
school lunch each day: half are free or reducec-
pnce lunches.

¢ Of the $4 6 bulion chudd nutntion budget (FY
'39), $4.1 billion was transferred from the agn-
cultural trust fund. Section 32 of PL. 74.320
Section 32 1s funded from dutues collected on
foreign goods and s used to encourage con-
sumpuon of American agncultural cominodi-
ues. Only $500 mullion was appropnated tax
dollars.

o The $4.6 bilion chud nutnuon budget s
hughly targeted to help feed poor chuldren The
Section 4 component of the chid nutntion
budget. while not targeted on student nicome.
supports the program s infrastructure and allows
the school lunch program to reach all chuldren
including poor chidren.

Prepared bv the Public Policv and Legusiative Commuiee Amercan School Food Serce Assocanon

Headquarters Officer 5600 S Queoec St Suite 300 B Englewood CO 80111 1800 525 8578 (303) 2203434
Washiagton Counsel: Marshail Matz Holland & Krught, 389 [Tth St W Swte 900 Wastungton D C 20006

ASFSA Hotline 300) $25 3806 (recorded chid autntion legistation intormation)  PAX 1303) 770-$340
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February 23, 1989

Jack Jenn‘ngs, Counsel

House Education and Labor Committee
B-346 C Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, 0. €. 20515

Dear Mr. Jennings:

On behalf of the Public Policy and Legislative Committee of the American
School Food Service Association, I am writing to share ideas for paperwork
reduction in the school nutrition orogram. Our understanding is that the
House Education and Labor Committee is interested in paperwork reduction
during reauthorization.

Our initia)l recommendations follow:

1. National School Lunch Act, Section 9: Simp1ify the application process
for free and reduced-price meals. Remove the statutory requirement for
social security numbers of all adult households. €larify that an
application, including name and signature of an adult member of the
household, is not required for AFDC or food stamp beneficiaries, and that
the district shall be authorized to dutomatically certify these if they
desire. Direct the Secretary of Agriculture to simp1ify the documentation
required on “income® eligible applications, such as "income by category,"
name)of a1l "adult household members" as required by 7 CFR part 245.2
(a-4).

2. National School Lunch Act Section 12 (b); Child Nutrition Act Section 19
(e): Provide for a provision that limits terms of the federal-state
agreement (and subseruent state-agency school food authority agreements)
to those requirements which have been exposed to public comment; evaluated
for paperwork implications; or specifically authorized by statute.
Currently, the terms of the agreements include adherence to USDA, FNS
instructions and procedures. Public comment is not available gn these.
They often impose mucn administrative burden and procedures (USDA national
or regional policy memorandum and guidance) may vary between regional
offices of the ysDA. For example, varying interpretations used by ySDA
regional offices have generated the following difrerences between states:

* In some regions, documentation for the free and reduced
applications if missing cannot be filled in by a school
official, {.e., total income, number in family, etc.

+ Applications from the previous school year ray be authorized by

regions for use for varying lengths of time into the new school
year unti) new applications are received.

O
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Mr. Jack Jennings
Page Two
February 23, 1989

3. Eliminate the cost criteria for severe needy breakfast reymbursement,
There is no cost criteria for severe needy lunch reimbursement. The
National School Lunch Act Section 12 (h) prohibits separate cost
accounting for lunch and breakfast, yet the Child Nutrition Act, Section 4
(d){1)(B) requires breakfast cost data as a condition to earning severe
need assistance.

4. Reinstate a restrictive hardship provision in the free and reduced-price
mea) e1igibility criteria. We eavision this to cover chronic medical
hardships, only. Although not directly related to paperwork reduction,
the task force members from administrative experience felt strongly about
this.

5. Add to the school lunch program a special milk ana snack (two component)
program for kindergarten, pre-kindergarten, outs ide-school-hours care,
in-sc%001 day care (for children of teachers and students), and extended
day programs (i.e., weekend, summer). Allow clients o institutions other
than school food authorities (non enrollees), otherwise eligible for a
child nutrition program to be eligible for reimbursement under school
lunch.

For example, currently, if a school offers day care for its students’
children as an effort to keep these student parents in school, the school
cannot claim meals nor snavks for these children under the existing school
nutrition program in the school. Schools cannot claim lunches because the
children in day care are not enrolled, however, the children are eligible
recipients under the child care food program. Schools cannot claim
snacks, even though appropriate for some in-school programs, because
snacks are not covered by the school nutrition program even for enrolled
children. Many instructional experiences in kindergarten, primary grades,
and handicapped services use snacks as a resource.

Where preschool head start children are enrolled in schools, many schools
have been forced tuv drop off the child care food program and forfeit spack
reimbursement and only participate in breakfast ard/or lunch due to the
administrative paperwork of participating in two programs.

6. Authorize school districts to develop and pilot alternative accountability
systems that would reduce paperwork associated with counting meals such as
use of census data to determine a school's free and reduced profile
associated with count‘ng meals: blended reimbursement rates; total meal
counts and claiming percentages; etc., in 1ieu of free and reduced
applications and daily counts by each of the three categories of child at
the point of service.

Counting meals by category sounds simple, but it is not. Other functions
associated with counting by category can be quite burdensome in some

schools and costly due to sophisticated equipment and supplies required to
facilitate the count.

ERIC 156
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Alternatives should be examined which would provide choices of accounting
systems for school districts. There are precedents currently in use in
child nutrition programs which parallel some of these initial ideas.

Eliminate or reduce to a four-year cycle the regulatory requirement for
the annual verification of free and reduced-price meal applications. Both
USDA's original study and rurrent practice tells us that the procedure is
not cost effective, constitutes an administrative burden and 15 not
paralleled by such aggressive action in other federal programs.

We are confused in that Congress originally only authorized a study of
meal application verification (P.L. 97-35), and we cannot find where
Congress authorized on a permanent basis the process called for now by
reqgulation (7€FR Part 245.6a).

Expand the Special Assistance and Reimbursement Alternatives Provisions of
Sectior, 11, National Schoo! Lunch Act so more schools can qualify. Orop
the 80% requirement for Provision I on (paperwork reduction) to J%
(consistent with severe needy lunch reimbursement rates), and allow
applications to be valid for three years as in Provision Il (universal
free).

Child Nutrition Act, Section 4, (d){(1)(B): Eliminate from the statute the
excessive requirements for a NET state ptan. The requirements for NET
state plan ($5 million grant) far exceed requirements for the SAE state
plan ($55 million grant). These requirements are left over from the
establishment of NET and are excessive.

. There appears to be inconsistency between the numerous rates of needy used

n both acts to determine program requirements. We only have a
recommendation on one (see #8, above) but want to cal) your attention to
the requirements on state agencies to determine the multiple levels of
e1igibility by schoo) and/or district:

80% - Provision I of Section 11, NSLA. Oetermines which school foid
authorities may participate.

60% - Section 4, NSLA. Determines which school food authorities will
get safety net or extra reimbursement for lunch.

50% - NSLA, Section 13. ODetermines site 2)igibility for universal free
summer program.

40% - CNA, Section 4. Determines which school may qualify for severe
need breakfast rates of reimbursement

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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We will continue to scrutinize the statutes, regqulations, federal
instructions, gquidelines, policy memorandum, and procedu-es for the purpose ¢f
identifying paperwork reduction techniques  Our task force felt a rewrite of
the statutes over the next authorization period may be a wortlhy goal! in view
of the current program complexities.

Your interest in and support of this endeavor is appreciated. 1If 1 or others
can be of assistance to you, please do not hesitate to cal) me at (404)
651-9442.

Thank you,

Sincerely,

‘ﬁ;zaﬁ,,(4;z:fjl 4225;)164L7<:—/

Annette Bomar, Chairperson

State Directors and Supervisors Section
AB:kp

€c:  Mrs. Shirley watkins, President
Ms. Beverly Lowe, President Elect
Mrs. Anne Gennings, President Elect, :ject
Hr. Marshall Matz, counsel
ASFSA Executive Board
ASFSA PP&L Committee
State Directors
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February 23, 1989

Mr. Georgv Braley

Deputy Administrator for
Special Nutrition Progrdms
USDA - FNS

3101 Park Center Orive
Alexandria, virginia 22302

Oear Mr. Braley:

|
|
|
\
|
|
i
|
|
|
State agencies and local districts are currently preparing for three months of |
the Federal Review System (FR3).

States® agencies agree that this initiative is duplicative of federal, state
and local audits and reviews being conducted wrrently under federal
requlations and circulars. Th» Federa) Review System is designed to place
federal staff in schools for the purpose of performing compliance reviews.

School nutrition programs are currently subject to all of the following:

V. audits of major federal programs under the Single Audit Act using
federal program compliance circulars,

2. state reviews every four years of school lunch accountability
standards specified in 7 CFR Part 210 including federal assistance in
the review as needed,

3. annud) state agency paper review of schools' cash collection and meal
accountability procedures, ‘

4. reviews by regional FNS office staff when the state is under a usoa
management evaluation,

S. reviews conducted by state agencies in follow up to complaints,

6. 0lG audit of state agencies cad local districts every three years,

1. federal reqgulations effective July 1, 1989, rcquiring local and state
reviews on meal coun*ing procedures several times annually as needed,
and

B. state agency follow-up reviews of local districts and schools after

016 audits: single audits (organization-wide audits); and regulatory
local and/or state reviews.

fe=s
()
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State agency personne! have grave concerns about how the Federal Review System
is proceeding. These concerns include:

1.

O

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

State agency personnel's role in canducting on-site reviews of
schoolS. States are being asked to provide resources to assist in
conducting the review and to confirm on-site the findings of federal
reviewers. It is our belief that the Federal Review System should
stand alone since USDA, FNS has received all the funds to conduct the
duplicative reviews. Why are state agencies asked o divert
resources from their ongoing responsibilities when FNS has been
funded for the FRS?

State agency personnel's role in helping USDA prepare for reviews by

roviding considerable state data *o reviewers prior to their
sits. wWhat compensation will state agencies receive for these
forts? Does this not suggest cuplication of efforts?

o<

The broad scope of draft review standards which deviate from the
basic_standards of meal accountability as oriqinally proposed by
USDA, FNS. How will findings on other standards be used? Why, if
meal accountability is the primary focus, are standards so much
broader?

The USDA, FNS's intention to expand scope of reviews where errors are

cited. Why is this effort being considered?

The failure of USOA, FNS to publicly announce the disallowance
procedures it wi)l use to reclaim any proqram funds. Where
specifically 1fes FNS's authority to impose fiscal sanctions?

The .dditfona) responsibility assidned state agency personnel to

review draft findings of federa)l review; to recover any funds
re:laimed and to conduct on-site follow up to findings Generated by
the federal reviews. What resources will be provided states to
perform these additional tasks?

USOA will select at random and on_a targeted basis schools to

review. State agencies recognize that the conference repo~t of
Congress, in addressirg the FRS in the Appropriations 8111, calls for
random selection. ySDA is using FRS to collect data for uses other
than that directed by the conference report. Why were ali sites not
randomly selected? How will targeted school data be ysed?

ENS is anticipated to cite some erroneous findings duz to the
complexity of the program and their admitted lack of experience in
this level of review. Will these refuted findings, which are subject

to correction by the district and state agency in the draft, be made
available to Congress as refuted findings?
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9. The Federa) Review System s, according to the conference

report,

only 3 pilot effort to determine the validity of school

unch

claims. Why then is it necessary to impose fiscal sanct
a school reviewed as part of the pilot Study?

ons against

10. Proposed timeframes have been Suggested for issuance of FRS draft
reports: state agency and district review of draft findings and

response; and issuance of final report with fiscal sanctions. Wil

the time frames used be official nationally, and will they allow
state agencies to discuss findings with Congress prior to FY 90

budget approval?

1. The period of review drives numerical findings and size of fiscal

sanctions. What will review period be, and will this be
nationally?

used

12. To date what training have local and state personnel received as a
result of the 2.6 million dollars directed to training in new

accurated meal counting and_claim procedures? Why has the review

focus been accelerated over the training focus?
Your prompt response to our concerns 1S appreciated.

Sincerely,

::;5Z4L4JTZL .e;)7v44<;,

Annette Bomar, Chairperson
State Directors and Supervisors

AB:kp
cc: Chairmen, House and Senate
Budget Committees
Chairmen, House and Senate
Appropriations Committees
Chairman, Senate Agriculture Committee
Chairman, House Education
and Labor Committee
Chief State School Officers
American School Food Service Association
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January 30, 1989

The Honorable Jamie L. whitten
Chairman

Committee on Appropriat:ons
Subcommittee on Rural Development
Agriculture and Related Agencies
2362 Rayburn House Office Buildirg
wWashington, D.C. 20515

Attention: Tim Sanders

Re: Child Nutrition

Dear Mr. Chairman:

I am writing oi behalf of the American School Food
Service Association to call your attention to the provision in
the 1990 child nutrition budget that requests $6.4 million "to
develop a system for independent verification of school food
service claims.” ASFSA does not believe that this program, or
appropriation, is necessary as it duplicates existing ongoing
programs that are administered at the state and local level.

As you know, the 1989 conference report (Report 100-990}
stated that the conferees "expect the Food and Nutrition Service
to provide a report to the appropriate committees of Congress on
its plan for the independent verification system. No additional

funds w1ll be provided until the appropriate committees of
Congress have evaluated the effectiveness of the project.” FNS
has not yet made its report to Congress. We very much
appreriated the report language you included in last year's
conference report, and look forward to working with your
committee on this matter.

Or a related issue, the budget does not request any
funds for The Nutrition Educat:ion and Training Program. ASFSA
subports a continuation of the N.E.T. Program and believes that
tne $6.4 million requested for the independent verification

WaswHingTon D C 20008 sz
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The Honorable Jamie L. Whitten
January 30, 1989
Page 2

should be combined with last vyear’'s N.E.T. appropriation of
$5 million to give the N.L.T. Program a total appropriation >f
$11.4 million for fiscal year 1990.

We would appreciate your considerat:on of our v.ews.
Thank you. wWith best regards, I am

Sincerely,

A pbnt! Py

Marshall L. Matz
Counsel, American
School Food

Service Association

MLM: imr

cc: Shirley Watk'ns
Mary Klatko

95000LtrJLW: 255
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Chairman Hawkins. Without objection, the several letters re-
ferred to will also be entered in the record at this point. Thank
you, Ms. Watkins.

The next witness is Dr. Robert McCord, Director of Government
Relations in Clark County, Nevada Public Schools. Dr. McCord.

Dr. McCorp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and distinguished mem-
bers of the subcommittee. My name is Bob McCord. I am the direc-
tor of Government Relations for the Clark County School District.

I am pleased to have the opportunity today to testify before the
subcommittee on behalf of the nearly 19,000 members of the Amer-
ican Association of School Administrators and the 105,000 children
gho attend school in Southern Nevada in the Clark County School

istrict.

My comments today will be limited to three points. First, dealing
with the relationship as we see it of the Federal nutrition pro-
grams to school success. The second being the impact as we see it
of Section 4 on our capacity to deliver those quality nutrition pro-
grams and lastly, we would like to speak to several qualitative rec-
ommendations that we would like to offer for program improve-
ment.

Let me move first to the nutrition in school success issue. Con-
sensus exists among researchers that undernutrition has a detri-
mental effect on learning and behavior. Undernourished children
are less active. They are less attentive. They are less independent
and curious than their well-nourished counterparts.

As the number of children in poverty increases in this country,
so0 does the number of undernourished children. A study of the Car-
negie Foundation revealed that over two-thirds of 22,000 teachers
su}x;ve{ed indicated that undernourishment was a problem in their
school.

Children who are undernourished are, therefore, denied an equal
opportunity to education. For many of those children, the school
breakfast and school lunch programs represent their only solid
meal during the day. Research evidence is clear and irrefutable,
but the intuitive sense of principals and teachers who deal with
these children every day has a place in this discussion.

I cannot tell you how many times I personally have come upon
as a principal or as a teacher the inattentive or distracted young-
ster who is underachieving in class and only to find upon question-
ing and research on that youngster that we find that hunger is a
basis to many of the problems that youngster is facing.

I can tell you as an educator that Child Nutrition Programs
make a difference in our schools, an important difference. Without
the capacity to deliver these programs, we inhibit our efforts to
stem the tide of the average student and produce a higher achiev-
ing American student body.

As educators, we feel that the discussion should focus on how we
can get more participation in these programs, not less, which leads
me to Section 4. The continuing discussion of Section 4 in the Na-
tional School Lunch Program is of concern to us.

Those of us at the AASA and in Clark County School District
stand squarely in support of the full reauthorization of Section 4.
The Section 4 Grant-in-Aid payment is intended to provide an in-
centive for our schools to participate. Critics of the Federal support
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under Section 4 lose sight of the fact that Section 4 payments are
critical to keeping the prices of school lunches down and the par-
ticipation up.

Without Section 4 support, Clark County would increase its
prices probably in the area of a quarter. This would force a signifi-
cant number of children to stop buying school lunches which
would, in turn, force the lunches up in price still more. In 1981, the
administration reduced support in Section 4 by some 30 percent.

As a result, according to this committee’s own report, the school
lunch prices increased nationwide, including those in Clark
County, in my county, and students’ participation dropped, accord-
ing to the report, by three million from the area of 26 million to
about 23 million students per day. One-third of those youngsters
were poor.

In 1985, the American School Foed Service Association estimated
that if Section 4 were eliminated that some 10-15,000 schools, or
five to eight million children, would be forced from the school
lunch program. Our estimates indicate that nearly eight to ten
thousand of those youngsters would be in Clark County alone.

I will tell you, I come to you with the message as an educator,
this is a clearly unacceptable situation. Finally, our points, Mr.
Chairman, related to a program improvement which we believe
might be beneficial for the improvement of this program are five in
number.

The first is the perennial problem of regulatory and paperwork
burden of the National School Lunch Program. We continually
hear complaints from our fellow superintendents around the coun-
try that paperwork associated with this program is burdensome
and requires attention.

We would like to suggest for your consideration that you consid-
er the negotiated rule making a process that has proven successful
in other recently reauthorized programs as a potentially useful
remedy to this situation. In addition, we encourage Congress to in-
clude language in the reauthorization that clearly directs the ad-
ministration to reduce the regulatory and paperwork burden re-
quired in operating these programs.

The next two points are very closely related. We have seen a
good increase, a substantial increase in latchkey programs and we
would like to see, if possible, some provision provided within the
act that would allow for feeding of those youngsters in latchkey
programs.

I can demonstrate to you that we have presently operational 48
programs in latchkey operation in the Clark County School Dis-
trict, more than half of our schools and the numbers growing every
day. It is a long time between lunch and dinner, if dinner ever
comes.

The third issue relates to that. We would like to have you consid-
er, the opportunity for us as schools who run lunch programs to
release to sponsoring organizations who operate latchkey programs,
in those schools the release of those free lunch application informa-
tion so that we would not have to engage again in reapplication for
parents who find many times the applications to be very problem-
atic and difficult.

et
I
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The fourth item is, as Ms. Watkins indicated, the issue of the Na-
tional Education and Training Program. We certainly encourage
you to support that program because it provides efficiencies in
training opportunities for our staff, while providing a meaningful
vehicle for the enhancing nutrition education in our schools.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, there exists some promise in Congress
that a child care initiative will be enacted. It is our request that
significant attention be given to the linkages which exist between
that bill and this reauthorization. The two are inextricably interde-
pendent.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank you on behalf of AASA and
the Clark County School District for the opportunity to share our
thoughts today and are happy to answer any questions you might
have.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Robert McCord follows:]
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Chairman Hawk1ns and distingulshed members of the Subcommittee: My name 1s

Robert S. McCord and | serve as director of Grants Administration and Government

Relations for the Clark County School District in Las Vegas, Nevada. 1| am

pleased %o have the opportunity to testify before the House Subcommittee on

Elementary, Secondary, and Vocational Education on behalf of the nearly 19,000

members of the American Association of School Administrators and the 105,000

students encolled in the Clark County School District.

My comments will be limited to three main points \1) the relationship of
federal nutrition programs to school success, (2) the impact of Section 4 on the
capacity of scnools to deliver quality nutrition servie€s to students; and (3)

some recommendations for improvement of program quality

Nutrition and School Success

The Food Research Action Council (FRAC) and the National Education Association
(NEA) recently published a report on the relationship between nutrition and
learning. Consensus e<1Sts among researchers that undernJtrition has a
detrimental effect on learning and behavior Undernourished children are less
active, less attentive, and less independent and curious than well-nourished
child~en. In addition, they are more anxious and less responsive socially; they
cannot concentrate, and their reading abiiity, verbal performance, and motor

ski1lls suffer.

As the number c” children living in poverty grows, the number of undernourisned
chilaren grows as well & study by tne Carnegie Foundation revealed that over

two-thirds of 22,000 teachers surveyed 1ndicated that undernourishment was a

ERIC iZs
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problem in thelr schools

equal opportunity to learn.

1156

Chilaren who are undernuur [ zhed ara trhereby denied an

For many of these childrer, scheol breakfast, where

1t 1s available, and school lun~h programs offer the only real meals they have

during the course cf the day.

The research evidence of the Carnegie Report 1- ¢lear and irrefutable, but the
Intuitive sense of principals and teachers who deal with children every day has a
place 1n th1s discussion I .annot tell you how many times | have seen
inattentive, underachleving students whose :nacility to be successful in school
was related to hunger. I can tell you as an aducator that child nutrition

programs play a vital role in our total school program.

Without the capacity to desiver breakfast, lunch, and special milk programs, we
Inhibit efforts to stem the growing tide of at-risk students and producc higher
achleving American students Any teacher or school administrator will attest to
the fact that these programs make a difference As vducdtors, we feel that the

discussion should be focused on how to get more participation in school nutrition

programs, not less.

Sertion 4

That leads me to the continuing discussion of 3ection 4 of the Naticnal School

Lunch Program. AASA and the Clark County Schoul District stand squarely in

support of full reauthor:zation of Section 4 of tne Act

OQur district receives $1 5 million 1nh Section < cash and commodity support. Of

the 5,864,820 regular lunche. we served .u '987-88, ©3.7 percent were purchased

AN
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at full price, 4.8 percent at a reaucec¢ price, and 31.5 percent were provided

free. Statewlde particlpation in Nevada .s similar percentage-wise.

The Section U4 grant-in-did payment 1o 1ntended to provide an incentive for
schools %o participate in the Nationa. School Lunch Program. Although the
program is not mandatory, 90 percert of 4ll scnools do particioate. Critics of
the federal support under Section ~ .oSe signht of the fact that Section 4
payments are critical to kheeping pr.ces of schuol lunches down and Participation
up. This price control ensures pdrticipation by midd.e-income chlldren necessary
to keep programs operating, thereby enabling aill chxldr;n to be sufficiently

nourished so they can be attentive at schooi.

Without Section U support, Clack County would have to increase the price of lunch
by at least 24 to 26 cents. This could force a aignificant number of children to
stop buying school lunctes, which would, 1n turn. force lunch prices up still
more. 1In Nevada, a decrease of 25 tu 30 percent student participatinn would
result. A direct relationship has been shown to exist between the size of the

Section 4 reimbursement dand total stud:nt participdtion In the program.

In 1981, the administration reduced support of Section 4 by 30 percent. As a
resuit, according to the committee's own report, ochool unch prices increased
nationwide, including in Clark County, and student participation dropped from 26

mi)lion children to 23 miliiun chiidren per day. About one-third of those were

poor.
At that time, Clarn Countv drubped o Nl ochoul participation In all
fairness, | must add that there wese ulne “eaouhd 10 (¢ Leuntinuge high school
R
T
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participation, unique to Clark County These include: (1) the number of
students enrolled in work study programs, (2) the rapid growth we are
experiencing in our districty (3) the number of students who go to school very
early or very late I1n the day--we have combined two high school populat.ons intu
single high schools and have been open very early in the morning until late in
the evening so we could conduct asbestos abatement, (4) the rapid emergence of
fast food establishments around any new high sc-31 we open, and (5) the tastes
of high schoo! students. We do, however, offer a self-sustaining full lunch
program for al. students. This 15 possible because of the large enrollment at

all of our high schools

IT Section 4 payments were witidrawn, we would probably have to compromise our
menus. We would probably nut discontinue the program but otheér school districts
who do not share our growing financial base would be forced to do so, especially
those with a high percentage of students who pay the full price and a low
percentage of free and reduced-price lunches. Nevada estimates that a minimum of
88 schools would be eliminated from the lunch prugram and 5C from the breaktast

program. Over 3000 children would lose access to {ree and reduced price meals.

In 1985 the American Food Service Association estimated that 1f Section 4 were
eliminated, 10-15,u00 schools, or 5 %o 8 million childeer, would be forced from
the school lunch program. Our estimates ind.cate that nearly 10,000 of those
children would be in Clark County alune. This figure include both students who
receive full and reduced-priced lunches and those who pay full price who would pe

unable to pay the increased price of meals.
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H

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we bring to you scme suggestions we view as potentially

beneficial to the Act.

1. The regulatory and paperwork bu-den of the National School Lunch Program is
diverting resources from program operations As an example, 1n Clark County,
we employ as many as three staff members to verify applications While
verification 1s necessary, 1t 1s disquiéting thal we must devote so much
resource to moving paper, rather chan serving children. Although our
cooperation with the state agency in Nevada is excellent, we continually hear
complaints from district superintendents that the paperwork associated with

the operation of this program requires attuntion.

Negotiated rulemaking, a process which has proven so successful in recently
authorized education programs, would potentially provide a yseful remedy. In
addition, we encourage Congress to 1nclude language 1n the reauthorization
which clearly directs the administration to reduce the regulatory and

paperwork burden required to operate schoo! nutrition programs.

2. We believe the Special Milk Program should be extended to after-school/
latchkey programs which are experiencing dramatiC growth nationwide.
Children grow rapidly and are hungry after school--a long time before they
have dinner, 1f they have 1t at all. In Clark County alone€, we have 48
latchkey programs now in cperation--more than 50 percent of our elementary
schools now participate, with more planning tu participate 1n the immediate

future .
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3. We askh jou to <llow schuuls to release information on eligibility of children
for free milk to sponsoring organizations which offer latchkey programs in
the same location where school luuches are provided to those children. This
information release would serve to determine eligibliity without having
rarcnts duplicate program applications, which are difficult enoug' to
complete the first time--especially by limited English-speaking parents or

those with limited education

4, We ask you to fully t.~d the Nutrition Education and Training Program
(NET) Doing =0 would allus for a broad range of efficiencies and training
improvements to be aopiifu t~ the program, while serving as a meaningful

vehicle for enhancing nutrition education 1n the schools.

5. Finally, there exists some promise that Congress will enact a significant
child care 1nitiative It 1S our request that significant attention be given
to the linkages which must exist between thatr oill and th ;

reauthorization. The two are 1nextricably interdependent.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman 4and members of the Subcommittee, for conducting this

hearing and allowlng this testimony.
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Chairman Hawkins. Thank you, Dr. McCord. The next witness is
Mr. Charles Hughes, President of Local 372, the New York City
Board of Education Employees. I believe the committee heard from
you before, and we are delighted t},at you have returned.

Mr. HugHES. Thank you. T just want to depart from my prepared
speech and say to you, Mr. Chairman, and certainly to Mr. Good-
ling and all of the other distinguished members on this subcommit-
tee, that I am sure the former chairman of this subcommittee, Mr.
Carl Pr kins, is looking down from heaven and sa ing to you two
gentlemen that you are carrying on some good wori for those chil-
dren that God feels so strongly about and I wanted to say that
before I started on my prepared testimony.

I would like to say good morning to you, Mr. Chairman, distin-
guished members of the subcommittee. It is, indeed, an honor to
appear before you this morning. My name is Charles Hughes and I
am the chairperson of the American Federation of State, County,
and Municipal Employees School Advisory Committee which repre-
sents 150,000 members throughout this great country of ours.

I 7m also the president of Local 372 of the Board of Education
Employees, District Council 87, New York City. Our union mem-
bers staff the nation’s largest school lunch programs in terms of
both student participation and employees. On an average day, our
members serve about 700,000 breakfasts and lunches.

It is always a privilege for me to testify Lefore this subcommittee
and during the several years that I have done so, I have been
moved by your sensitivity and commitment to our nation’s children
and more particularly, by your steadfast support of child nutrition
and the National School Lunch and Breakfast Program.

As_you know, these programs have had maior impacts on en-
hancing our children’s ability to thrive in schoof and consequently,
to improve the quality of their lives. AFSCME has staunchly sup-
ported the School Lunch Program since its inception. We worked
with you as you strove to develop that program and the newer
School Breakfast Program into major bulwarks protecting the
school children of our nation against the ravage of hunger and
malnutrition.

During the past eight years we have offered and given our sup-
port as you were forced to deal with the Reagan Administration’s
draconian proposals which were intended to gut these programs.
Now, Mr. Chairman, I would like to turn our attention to President
Bush’s fiscal year budget .. 1990 proposal for the school feeding
and child nutrition programs.

I fear that we cannot relax, relieved that the threats of the last
eight years are over. The real figures in the Bush proposal have
been exposed. We have laid bare the President’s claim that his
budget would make significant strides toward a kinder, gentler
nation and have revealed its true purpose—to balance the nation’s
budget on the backs of those who can least afford it: the poor, the
homeless, and the hungry.

The Center on Budget and Policy Priorities’ analysis of the Bush
budget found that it requires $21 billion in domestic cuts. It is
within this context that we must consider the President’s proposal
to fully fund, at the “current services" level, both the School
Lunch and Breakfast Programs.
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While I commend the President for rejecting any cuts in these
vital programs, I am deeply concerned that child nutrition pro-
grams, in general, and school feeding programs in particular, will |
be put back on the budget bargaining table in an attempt to meet ‘
the overall domestic spending cuts that the President has proposed.

I need not remind you of the devastating impact that the 1982
cuts had on these programs. After an 11 percent reduction in the
Federal subsidy for school meals, over 2,000 schools and three mil-
lion school children dropged out of the School Lunch Program and
650 schools dropped the School Breakfast Program, denying access
to nutritious breakfast to more than a half million children.

As someone who works in the School Lunch and Breakfast Pro-
grams every day, 7 can assure you that they have been cut toco
much already and that additional funding is needed. There is no
place for hungry children in a “kinder, gentler* America. Together
we must fight to defeat any attempt to further curtail school feed-
ing programs.

The proposal to eliminate the 26 and 1/4 cent cash and commodi-
ty subsidy for meals served to children in the School Lunch, Break-
fast and Child Care Fcod Programs whose family income exceeds
185 percent of the poverty index ($21,553 for a family of four) is not
dead in the water.

First recommended by President Reagan, this proposal recently
reappeared in the Congressional Budget Office (CBO) report to the
House and Senate Budget Committees on options to reduce the def-
icit. Further cuts in these programs are not only unwarranted,
they are dangerous. Without access to free school meals, can we
honestly expect poor children to compete successfully with their
better-fed classmates?

While parents and educators have always known that hungry
children do not learn, the interrelationship between good nutritior
and a child’s ability to achieve in the educational setting has been
well-documented only recently. According to the study released by
the National Educational Association and the Food Research and
Action Center entitled “The Relationship Between Nutrition and
Learning,” a child suffering from undernutrition is less physically
active, less attentive and less able to concentrate. Hence, reading
ability, verbal skills and motor skills suffer.

In another recent report, Dr. Alan Meyers of the Boston City
Hospital and Amy Sampson of the Tufts University School of Nu-
trition studied the effects on classroom performance of serving a
breakfast to over 1,000 low-income students in Lawrence, Massa-
chusetts when none had been provided previously.

Their findings demonstrate that the School Breakfast Program is
associated with significant improvements in academic performance,
absenteeism, and tardiness among high-risk elementary school chil-
dren living at or near poverty. Mr. Chairman, an increase in Feder-
al commitment to the National School Breakfast Program is essen-
tial if we ever hope to eradicate hunger and improve the education-
a] performance of our nation’s children.

To do this, I believe, we should be looking at the expansion of the
School Breakfast Program. Eating breakfast at school translates
into significant improvement in achievement test scores. It trans-
lates into children moving ahead each June from grade to grade
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rather than being left back to repeat a year at added cost to the
school district and to the child’s future.

While 90 percent of our nation’s children offered a school lunch
program, only one-third of these schools also have a school break-
fast program. While ten and a half million children eat a free
lunch in school, only three million children eat a free breakfast in
school before starting class.

Surely one must ask, how many of these low-income children
who receive a free lunch, but not a free breakfast, come to school
having eaten a nutritious breakfast at home? The answer, I fear, is
very few. We cannot sit back and accept those low participation
rates. For too many of our children, the school lunch and breakfast
offer the only daily hope for a hot and nutritious meal.

Department of Agriculture studies show that poor children
depend upon these meals for half of their daily nutrient intake. Be-
tween October and December of 1987, AFSCME and the New York
Board of fducation conducted a major campaign to expand the
school breakfast program. The successful undertaking increased
participation in the program by more than 25,000.

We now serve over 143,000 breakfasts to New York City’s school
children every day, but still our work is far from complete. Qur
school breakfast program serves only one-fourth as many meals as
our school lunch programs. We know that the need is there.

At many of our schoole which participate in the School Breakfast
Programs, children literally form “break lines* each morning as
they hungrily wait for their breakfasts. For many it is the first
meal they have had since the school lunch they ate the day before.

Because of your active support, the Federal reimbursement rate
for the School Breakfast Program will be increased by three cents
a meal on July 1, 1989 as a result of the passage of the Hunger
Prevention Act of 1988. This should encourage more schools to es-
tablish a breakfast program.

However, there is more that can be done to ensure a higher par-
ticipation rate. I would recommend tliat we include Federal funds
for start-up costs. This would enable schools to increase their kitch-
en capacity in order to offer the program. More importantly, we
must actively promote the program and its benefits in school sys-
tems around the country.

Outreach funds should be provided to assist communities in
making the decision to initiate a School Breakfast Program. These
monies would be used to educate parents. teachers and school offi-
cials about the value of the program. To encourage state-level in-
volvement, I recommend that each state's Depaitment of Education
be required to set a yearly numerical target for increasing the
number of schools serving breakfasts in their annual state plans of
operation.

The USDA regional office should also be required to promote the
School Breakfast Program by offering technical assistance to
schools to help states meet their targets. Mr. Chairman, I would
like to take this opportunity to talk to you about a proposal which
is under consideration in New York City, which I believe could
ha.e a major impact on the quality of School Lunch and Breakfast
Programs.
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It is called “Proposal to Revise and Improve School Meals.*
PRISM outlines a program which, if implemented, would ultimate-
ly expand free school meals in the New York City school system to
all schools. Presently, I am proposing that the New York City
Board of Education test it in a few pilot school districts.

I am going to skip the rest of it, Mr. Chairman, and ask that my
testimony that you have received be entered into the record and,
finally, I urge the committec to pass H.R. 24 wnich would reauthor-
ize the five child nutrition programs. These programs are crucially
important to our nation’s childrea and we are ready to assist you
in any way we can to make these programs protected.

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, children are
the key to our future and these Child Nutrition Programs are the
key to their nutritional and educational passage into the future.

I thank you for allowing me to appear before you this morning. I
would be happy to answer any questions and assisting me in that
will be Mr. Thomas Jennings, Assistant Division Director and Ms.
Marge Allen from AFSCME who is our legislative representative.
Thank you so very much and may God bless all of you.

[The prepared statement of Charles Hughes follows:]
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Gocd morning Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the
Subcommittee, It is indeed an honor to appear before you this

morning.

My name 1s Charles Hughes. I am the Chairperson of the
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees

School Advisory Committee, which represents 150,000 members.

I am also President of Local 372, Board of Education
Employees, District Council 37, in New York City. Our union
members staff the nation's largest school lunchk program in terms
of both student participation and employees. On an average day,

our members serve about 700,000 breakfasts and lunches.

It is always a privilege for me to testify before this
Subcommittee. During the several years that I have done so, I
have been moved by your sensitivity and commitment to our
nation's children, and more particularly, by your steadfast
support of child nutrition and the National School Lunch and
Breakfast Programs. As you know, these programs have a major
impact on enhancing our children's ability to thrive in school

and consequently to improve the quality of their lives.

AFSCME has staunchly supported the School Lunch Program

since 1ts inception. HWe worked with you as you strove to develop
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that program and the newer School Breakfast Program into major
bulwarks protecting the school children of our nation against the
ravages of hunger and malnutrition. During the past eight years
we have offered and given our support as you were forced to deal
with the Reagan Administra.ion's draconian proposals wpxch were

1intended to gut these programs.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I would like to turn our attention to
President Bush's Fiscal Year (FY) budget proposal for the school
feeding and child nutrition programs. I fear that we cannot
relax, relieved that the threats of the last eight years are
over. The real tigures in the Bush proposal have been exposed.
We have laid bare the President's claim that his budget would
make significant strides toward a kinder, gentler nation and have
revealed its true purpose -- to balance the nation’'s buuaget on
the backs of those who can least afford it: the poo:r, the
homeless, the hungry. The Center on Budget and Policy
Priorities' analysis of the Bush budget found that 1t requires

$21 billion in domestic spending cuts.

It is within this context that we must consider the
President's proposal to fully fund, at the "current services”
level, both the School Lunch and Breakfast Programs. While I
commend the President for rejecting any cuts 1n these vital
programs, I am deeply concerned that child nutrition programs in

general, and school feeding programs in particular, will be put
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back on the budget bargaining table 1n an attempt to meet the
overall domestic spending cuts that the President has proposed.
I need not remind you of thé devastating impact that the 1982
cuts had on these programs. After an 11% reduction 1in the
federal subsidy for school meals over 2000 schools and 3 million
children dropped out of the School Lunch Program and 650 schools
dropped the School Breakfast Program. denying access to a
nutritious breakfast to more than a half millicon children. As
someone who works i1n the School Luach and Breakfast programs
everyday, I can assure you that they have been cut too much
already and that additional funding 1s needed. There is no place

for hungry children 1n a "kinder, gentler"” America.

Together we must fight to defeat any attempt to further
curtail school feeding programs. The proposal to eliminate the
26 and 1/4 cent cash and commodity subsidy for meals served to
children in the School Lunch, School Breakfast and Child Care
Food Programs whose family incomes exceed 185% of poverty
($21,553 for a family of four) is not dead in the water yet.
First recommended by President Reagan, this proposal recently
reappeared in the Congressional Budget Office (CBO) report to the
House and Senate Budget Committees on options to reduce the
deficit. Further cuts 1n these programs are not only
unwarranted, they are dangerous. Without access to free school
meals, can we honestly expect poor childien to compete

successfully with their better fed classmates?
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While parents and educators have always known that hungry
children do not learn, the interrelationship between good
nutrition and a child's ability to achieve in the educational
setting has been well documented oniy recently. According to a
study released by the National Education Association and the Food
Research and Action Center entitled "The Relationship Between
Nutrition and Learning," a child suffering from undernutrition ig
less physically active, less attentive and less able to
concentrate, Hence reading ability, verbal skills and motor

skills suffer,

In another recent report, Dr, Alan Meyers of Boston City
Hospital and Amy Sampson of the Tufts University School of
Nutrition studied the effects on classroom performance cf serving
a school breakfast to over 1000 low-income students in Lawrence,
Massachusetts when none had been provided previously. Their
findings demonstrate that School Breakfast Participation 18
associated with significant improvements in academic performance,
absenteeism, and tardiness among high-risk elementary school

children living at or near poverty,

Mr. Chairman, an increased federal commitment to the
National School Breakfast Program 1s essential 1f we ever hope to
eradicate hunger and improve the educational rerformance of our

nation's children. To do this, I believe, we should be looking at

the expansion of the School Breakfast Program, Eating breakfast

l(:‘ ].E;E>
RI v




129

at school translates into significant improvement 1n achievement
test scores. It translates into children moving ahead each June
from grade to grade rather than being left back to repeat a year
at an added cost to the school district .nd to the child's

future.

While 90% of our nation's schools offer a school lunch
program, only one third of these schools also have a school
breakfast program. While 10 and a half million children eat a
free lunch in school, only 3 million children eat a free
breakfast in school before starting class. Surely one must ask,
how many of these low-income children, who receive a free lunch,
but, not a free breakfast, come to school having eaten a

nutritious breakfast at home? The answer, I fear, is very few.

We cannot si1t back and accept these low participation rates.
For far too many of our ch:ildren, the school lunch and breakfast
offer the only daily hope for hot, nutritious meals. Department
of Agriculture studies show that poor children depend on these

meals for half of their daily nutrient intake.

Between October and December 1987, AFSCME and the New York
City Board of Education conducted a major campaign to expand the
school breakfast program. This successful undertaking increased
participation in the program by mere than 25,000. We now serve

over 143,000 breakfasts to New York City's school children
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everyday. But still our work 1s far from complete. Our school
breakfast program serves only oane-fourth as many meals as our
School lunch program. We know that the need 1s there. At many
of our schools which participate in the School Breakfast Program,
children literally form "bread lines" each morning as they
hungrily wa:t for their breakfasts. For many it 1s the first
meal they have had since the school lunch they ate the day

before.

Because of your active support, the federal reimbursement
rate for the School Breakfast Program will be increased by 3
cents a meal on July 1, 1989 as a result of the passage of the
Hunger Prevention Act of 1988. This should encourage more
schools to a establish breakfast program. However, there 1s more
that can be done to insure a higher participation rate. I would
recommend that we include federal funds for start up costs. This
would enable schools to increase their kitchen capacity in order

to offer the program.

More importantly, we must actively promote the program and
its benefits in school systems around the country. Outreach
funds should be provided to assist communities 1in making the
decision to initiate a School Breakfast Program. These monies
would be used to educate parents, teachers and school officials
about the value of the program. To encourage state-level

involvement, I recommend that the each state's Department of
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Education be required to set a yearly numerical target for
increasing the number of schools serving school breakfasts 1in
their annual state plans of operation. The USDA regional offices
should also be required to promote the School Breakfast Program
by offering technical assistance to schools to help states meet

their targets.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to take this opportunity to tell
you about a proposal which 1s under consideration in New York
City, wnich I believe could have a major impact on the quality of
our School Lunch and Breakfast Programs. It is called "Propngal
to Revise and Improve School Meals" (PRISM). PRISM outlines a
program which, if implemented, would ultimately expand free
school meals in the New York City school system to all schools.
Presently, we are proposing that the New York City Board of

Education test it 1n a few pilot school districts.

PRISM vould serve free meals to all students 1in
participating scnools. It would eliminate the need to ask
students for identification every day and it would eliminate the
school district's need to collect and document student's 1income
annually. Documentation would be required every three years
instead of yearly. During the entire proceeding three years:, the
school would receive reimbursement based on the percentage of
free, reduced and paid meals that were documented at the ocutset.

The benefits of PRISM are twofold. First, 1t provides school
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meals at no cost to students regardless of their classification
1n the free, reduced or paid categories. By eliminating any
possibility for overt identification of students in the
cafeteria, we will achieve a higher participation by needy
students. Second, by reducing the documentation required to
comply with the National School Breakfast and Lunch programs,
principals, teachers and staff can devote more time and attention

to the instructional needs of our students.

PRISM 1s not an unattainable dream. It 1s a reality 1in
several school distraicts in Georgia and in some parochial schools
1n the Archdiocese of Brooklyn right here in my own city. PRISM
is most appropriate in schools that have a high proportion of
students eligible for free or reduced price meals. This also
serves the students who need a nutritious meal the most. If
implemented in New York City, PRISM can serve as a model for
other school systems which have a high pe:ccentage of poor

students.

Finally, I urge the Committee to pass H.R. 24, which would
reauthorize five child nutrition programs. These programs are
crucially important to our nation's children. He are ready to
assist you in any way we can to make sure these programs are
protected. Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee,
children are the key to our future and these child nutrition

programs are the key to their nutritional and educational passage
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into that future.

Thank you for allowing me to appear before you this morning.

I would be happy to answer any questions you have,.
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Chairman Hawxkins. Thank you, Mr. Hughes. Ms. Watkins, the
Chair would iike to address a question to you about what seems to
be somewhat of a discrepancy, perhaps a misunderstanding. I think
there is somewhat of a conflict of views between your testimony
and that of Mr. Hughes and also the understanding of the chair-
man of this committee.

Both the Bush and the House Budget Committee documents
seem to say that means tested entitlements in the Child Nutrition
Programs are not proposed to be cut, but as you know, the Reagan
budget did propose to cut Section 4 payments above the poverty
level.

I am wondering whether or not in making the statement that
you made on the first page of your testimony in which you are
commending the President for submitting a child nutrition budget
that is consistent with the priority he has placed upon the needs of
children, if you have some assurance that apparently we don’t
have, or at least the Chair doesn’t have, and whether or not we can
rely on such assurance that there is no danger of any cuts being
made.

Mr. Hughes seem to suggest otherwise, but perhaps you have
better information.

Ms. WatkiInS. No, Mr. Chairman, I don’t have better informa-
tion. The only thing that we have is that we are not “in the black
box.“ We are not certain what the budget implications are at this
point. We would hope that the President lives up to his intent and
his commitment to be the education president and his commitment
to invest in our children.

The concern that we had was in the CBO report. That is our real
concern. No, we don’t have any better information than you have.
We don’t think that we are out of the woods. We think that there
will be a lot of negotiating on our programs and where we will fit
in that negotiation is unclear at this point.

Chairman Hawkins. Well, your statement seemed to have been
rather specific that you were commending the President on some-
thing which we are not so clear about.

Ms. WaTkins. We commended the President——

Chairman Hawxkins. I am not trying to in anyway undermine
the President’s ambition, but it just seemed to me that we have
sort of a slim assurance being bantered about and that might have
the tendency to influence some of us to rest easy and to not be
alert. So, your statement is more or less a hope being ex-
pressed——

Ms. Warkins. Yes, Mr. Chairman, we certainly don’t want you to
sit laid back. We want you to move as aggressively as possible and
we would hope this committee would move as aggressively as possi-
ble because we don’t think we are out of the woods at this point. It
is not over until the fat lady sings.

[Laughter]

Chairman Hawxkins. Well, I assure you that we will move aggres-
sively, but we need others to move with us.

Ms. Watkins. We will give you all of the support that you need
in the grass roots effort to make that happen. We appreciate your
support, Mr. Chairman, and the members of this illustrious com-
mittee.
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Chairman Hawxkins. Well, thank you very much. Mr. Goodling?

Mr. GoobLING. If we do our job, of course, than your statement
will be right, because it is only we who can do anything about the
budget and about the authorization and about the appropriation
just as we did in 1981 and '82 and I wasn’t a part of the majority
that was able to pass the legislation and the budget cuts, et cetera,
that were passed at that particular time.

Now, the politics is behind us and I will get on with a cou,.e of
questions that I have. Could you tell me what the national average
cost for preparing a lunch is at the present time and the average
charge to the student throughout the country?

Ms. Warkins. The average charge right now, Mr. Goodling, is in
the neighborhood of a dollar and that fluctuates depending on
where you are in the country and what the problems are in those
areas of the country and the other question that you ask?

Mr. GoobLING. Average cost to prepare a meal throughout the
country.

Mr. Wartkins. Average cost would run around a dollar thirty.

Mr. GoopLING. I would ask Dr. McCord, coulan’t you take the
lead with the school administrators and with ASFSA to solve the
competitive food problem? Is that something we really have to do?
Isn’t that something that an administrator can use here and there.

Can’t you lead the administrators to see the light rather than
say that there is some kind of Federal involvement that should
really step in and do it all?

Dr. McCorp. Mr. Goodling, your question is a fair question. I am
good; I am not that good, unfortunately.

Mr. GoopLING. What do you do in your district?

Dr. McCorp. What do I ¢» in my district?

Mr. GoopLiNG. Yes, about the competitive food issue. How is it
handled in your district?

Dr. McCorp. Well, the Board has a policy concerning that and
the policy is consistent with the Department’s obligations. I think,
though, the——

Mr. GoopLING. That is not what you want, though, as far as the
Department’s obligations are concerned. I want to know how influ-
ential you have been with that school board to——

Dr. McCorp. I would tell you among ASFSA members represent-
ing a good number of the superintendents around this country, you
will find an increasing interest in doing just what you ask.

Mr. GoopLING. You are just meeting the bare requirements now
in your district as far as national——

Dr. McCorp. That is correct. I would not characterize it as other,
but I will tell you that I think that there is a growing conscious-
ness in the part of school administrators, particularly among super-
intendents and certainiy among all of these folks out here who run
those school lunch and breakfast programs, that is an area we need
to address.

I would report to you that from our own Federal policy commit-
tee, there has been increasing interest on the part of the associa-
tion to stand tall on that issue. I see a positive potential at the end
of the tunnel. I will tell you, the issue that you brought out very
clearly is the revenue.
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We do not have all of the money to run our schools that we need.
There are many revenue sources. I guess we need to look very care-
fully at what cur choices are, revenue sources on that. Mr. Good-
ling, I have got to tell you, I have a good deal of sympathy for what
you say.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Mr. Hughes, I don’t have a question, just to say
that I participated in your lunch program. I know how important
your lunch and your breakfast program is. I have contacted Mr.
Darmen before we began our budget work. I serve on the budget
committee talking about the importance of Section 4.

I contacted Mr. Yeutter and told him the same. We will see Mr.
Yeutter again this afternoon as he comes before the budget com-
mittee. When we come back the next round, I have three more
questions I want to ask Ms. Watkins. We can probably take one
more.

I understand that you talked a little bit about the auditors fall-
ing over each other and getting in your road, I was wondering
whether you could work with us and with USDA to try to establish
some single audit system that would perhaps make everyone happy
instead of having them fall all over each other.

I hate to see a lot of additional money—if state and local govern-
ments are doing the job, taking from scarce resources from the
Federal level and put it into more auditors coming in.

Ms. WaTkINS. Mr. Goodling, we could not agree with you more
and we would be delighted to work with you in that effort.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Thank you. I have some others when we get
around the second time, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HawkiNs. Since you are so outnumbered, we will be
very liberal with your time.

[Laughter]

Chairman HawkINs. Quantity-wise, not quality necessarily.

Mr, GoopLING. Thank you. I would have been happier if you
wouldn’t have put the “not nezessarily” on the end.

[Laughter]

Mr. GoopLING, Could you give me ar estimate of what percent-
age of your overall cost is attributable to food, labor, and what I
will call, other cost: equipment, utilities, paper goods, et cetera?

Ms. WaTtkIns. Mr. Goodling, I would love to give you that infor-
mation, but I could only speak in terms of what is having in Mem-
phis City Schools where I am director of Food Services. We do not
have that information available.

That is the kind of information we would have access to if we
had the Management Institute that we have asked for, but we do
not have that information. We would be glad to pull that out once
we have the Management Institute in place.

Mr. GoobLING. You are sure that that Management Institute
won'’t repeat what has been done elsewhere. When my staff used to
go to the Institute in the summer at Penn State, they came down
with all sorts of great ideas of what they are going to get our
youngsters to eat in that area. It didn'. work.

Ms. WaTkINS. I cannot assure you what it is not or what it is
going to be, but ASFSA would certainly like to be the watchdog to
make certain that it does meet the mission, the goals, and the ob-
jectives which we have established. We would like to make certain
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that it does happen and it does meet the intent of providing good
technical assistance and research so that we would have the kind
of information available.

It is unfortunate that all of the monies that are available and
that are being provided for operational of the Child Nutrition Pro-
gram, there is no research available. It is unfortunate that we
don’t have adequate technical assistance.

Just think of McDonald’s with only ten thousand restaurants
around this country and look at the volume of schools that are
around this country and we are sitting here running one of the
largest operations in the nation serving children without adequate
lt)raining and without adequate research to do what we know to do

est.

Mr. GoopLiNGg. I would assume that the state directors have all
these percentages that I am asking about.

Ms. Warkins. The state directors would have those percentages
and we would be glad to provide that information, I guess, from
that source. They would have some of it, but they may not have all
of it, because some of that irformation is not required to be submit-
ted to state Departments of Education.

Mr. GoopLING. In question number three that I would ask we
adjust the rates each July 1st to reflect recent changes in the con-
sumer price index for food away from home, I am wondering if
these rates are truly reflective of the economics of the school feed-
ing program or if they weighted in some other direction.

Ms. WaTtkiNs. We have to say that-we are having difficulty
trying to work within that framework.

Mr. GoopLING. In the last four or five years, where is your great-
est increase as you see it in the cost?

Ms. Warkins. Well, our cost has been the greatest in both food
and labor.

Mr. GoopLinG. Okay, let me just finish then by saying that, you
can preach to the choir up here about Section 4, but don’t forget
what I said before. You all have two senators, and you all have rep-
resentatives; you better tell them because we are littie short num-
l})fred up here in relationship to the forces on the floor of t.e

ouse.

So, do your job while you are here and when you go home.

Chairman Hawxkins. Thank you. Mr. Martinez.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before I ask a ques-
tion, I have to be political like Mr. Goodling was. Mr. Goodling, the
lack of representation on that side isn’t an indication that they are
not in support of the reauthorization?

Mr. GoopLING. Will the gentlemen yield?

Mr. MARTINEZ. Yes.

Mr. GoopLING. They think that they have a dictator when it
comes to school lunches and child nutrition on this side of the aisle
and so they think it is a waste of their time, I guess.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Good. I appreciate that. We talk about our hope
for the present administration, and I do have hope. I think Mr.
Bush is sincere when he talks about a kinder and gentler America.
And I hope that your expectations for this program and the things
that we can do to make it better are not too optimistic, that they
really come about.
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The problem that I have is that in the past we have seen people
make political statements, aimed at winning friends and influenc-
ing people for that vote: But they are really very hollow. I remem-
ber one that was made by the past administration that we have to
provide a job opportunity of work for every individual that wants it
so that each can have pride in himself or herself ar. ' zonfidence in
the future.

He said, Bui he also said let the beggars work for less. I hope
this doesn’t turn out to be an administration that says “we have to
be a kinder and gentler American, we want to be President of Edu-
cation, and we need to be a kinder and gentler American,” bu:
then says “say, let the beggars go without food so that they can
learn.”

Truthfully I have great hope for this administration. I visited
several school lunch programs during the District work period. I
was very impressed—very impressed by the efficiency of the pro-
grams. I talked to the children at the lunches, after the lunches. A
couple of the schools had a board up to list students’ favorite
meals. They had them ranked and, of course, pizza day was
number one.

I don’t know whether pizza is that nutritional, to tell you the
truth. ut the meal that I had with them in each case was very nu-
tritional, and I think it was very beneficial. When I asked the chil-
dren questions, there were some children there that I wouldn’t
term poor. But when we think of, as the present administration is,
of eliminating the non-poor, we don’t stop and think that just be-
cause a person may be classified non-poor because of the income
level of the family, because both man and wife are working, that
that is not the only consideration.

Since in many of these families, the man and wife do work, the
kids do without because of their parents busy schedule. I think it is
more important to think about the needs of the child of that ulti-
mate goal of learning. I would rather see that those children classi-
fied non-poor get good nutrition too. After all, they do pay some—
a_r(11<_i tl(;at does help those who pay very little or are completely sub-
sidized.

So, I think that is important. But how do we get that message
across to so many of those that think only in terms of cost efficien-
¢y, only in terms of how we can reduce the budget deficit at the
expense of these children.

I think what Mr. Goodling was saying in his closing statement
was that we need your help to get that message across to a lot of
these people that are not convinced yet. Can you tell me if you and
your organizations have plans to really go on a wholesale lobbying
effort to make them understand and realize how important this is
to young people?

Ms. Watkins. We do have and we have six hundred people here
today with us who are all over the Hill. We are going to be like
fleas; we are going to be all over them.

[Laughter]

Mr. MarTINEZ. Have you made sure that you have made a hit
lifst og those legislators that need to be hit the hardest and the most
often?

fors
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Ms. WaTkins. We have targeted. We use that word, I guess it is a
pretty common word around the Hill now. We have targeted specif-
ic people that we think needs some special help in understanding
the program. We think that this is the pivotal year and we are
going to pivot and we are going to work to make certain at the
grass roots level, that Focus 435 is in action and we are going to do
our best and it is our commit.nent to you to provide you all the
help and the support you need to do your job when it comes time to
vote.

Mr. MarTiNEZ. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HAwkins. Mr. Poshard.

Mr. Posuarp. Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentle-
men of the committee. I noted that you folks are suggesting that
the $6.4 million currently in the budget for another apparent level
of meal counts is duplicative in nature, that we have encugh local
and state testing at this point in time to ascertain whether or not
the meal counts are accurate and you folks are doing your job.

You are advocating that we move the 6.4 million over into the
N.ET. program to essentially bring up the cost per pupil from
about ten cents now per pupil to twenty some odd cents per pupil
was originally conceived to be fifty cents per pupil for that nutri-
tion education training as I remember.

I am interested in the N.E.T. program and I would like to know
if this can be done, if this amount of money can be transferred over
and I certainly think that it should be. What would you accomplish
with the twenty cents per pupil expenditure that you are not able
to accomplish with the current ten cents per level?

vet me ask you this. How do you carry on the N.E.T. programs
10w? Are they standardized across the country? Do you allow each
state Department of Education to conduct those programs in the
way that they see best fit for their particular school districts?

Is this in-service training for food service personnel? I mean, it is
peculiar to those folks only or do you actually go into the classroom

_and talk to the students? Do you have any amount of parental in-
volvement which I think is an overwhelming need in this area?

A lot of the young teenage pregnant mothers have no idea what-
soever about what constitutes appropriate nutritional education for
their children. How are you utilizing the funds that are there now
and what will you do with the additional 6.4 million should that be
successfully transferred over?

Sorry, I am covering a waterfront, but I am interested.

Ms. WATKINS. Mr. Poshard, you ask wonderful que.tions and it is
all of the above. I say that because state Departments of Education
implement the programs in a variety of ways just as you enumer-
ated. They do provide in-service training not only for food service
employees, but they implement in-service for cafeteria cooks in the
back of the house as well as the mangers, in-service training for
teachers, parent involvement programs, student involvement pru-
grams, parents are the target in a lot of the N.E.T programs.

They also provide curriculum information, but without adequate
funding, many of the states are unable to provide the quality of nu-
trition, education and training information for school districts and
our state, as an example, we have many grants that are offered
and they only have $50,000 for mini grants.

KR!
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Needless to say, that is inadequate in a small state like Tennes-
see. If we apply, being the largest school district in the state, ap-
plied for a mini grant, the maximum I can reach would be ten
schools and that certainly is inadequate in a school district that
has a 150 schools. So, I am not scratching the surface with nutri-
tion, education and training.

Mr. PosHARrD. Pardon me for interrupting then. Each state has—
sorry, Mr. Chairman, for rising a second time here, but each state
has a competitive grant basis for local school districts accessing
these funds?

Ms. WATKINS. They have a variety of ways that they access the
funds. It is the state’s option as to how they develop the nutrition,
education, and training program. Many of them choose the min,
grant route, some of them choose to have training programs for
food service employees at a local college or university.

Some of them have an in-service program that may be in various
sections of the state. Some of them provide a nutrition, education
and training program for children or it may be one just for teach-
ers, so there are a variety of mechanisms in place out there, but
needless to say, they are inadequate, justifiably with the amount of
money that is available.

Mr. PosHarp. Thark you.

Ms. Watkins. Thank you.

Chairman Hawxkins. Mr. Payne.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I do not have
any specific question to the panel. I would simply like to indicate
that I certainly support child nutrition and school lunch programs.

I think that especially in deprived areas whether they are urban
or rural parts of our country, nutrition is extremely important for
the growth and the development of a person as we all know and if
we are going to win the war against—the war on literacy, the
whole question of a total person, we, I think, should, in fact, not
only continue what we have, but expand the program.

So, I simply would also indicate that go see those leus kinder and
gentler people who don’t support your program, but I would also
like to reiterate what the chairman said, that the remarks are a
part of the record and when you do commend the President for his
position and his budget, I think we need to hold off on that com-
mendation until we find out for sure that it is in concert with what
we need. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Owens.

Mr. OweNs. Yes, Mr. Chairman. Unfortunately, I didn’t hear all
of the testimony because I had to go upstairs to a mark-up for a
very important bill, the parental leave bill, but I did read the testi-
mony.

I want to congratulate the witnesses and, of course, I think this
committee is very much in harmony with the testimony. I do want
to note the fact that a person who is well-known to the committee,
Mr. Charles Hughes, of New York City is back again and want to
congratulate him on the tremendous Jjob he does as an advocate for
this program and the leadership that he offers to the members of
his union.

They don’t consider themselves just to be workers of the food
services; they are sensitized to the broader mission of the schools
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on education and that is mostly due to the leaderchip of Charles
Hughes and I want to congratulate him on that and, again, wel-
come him here before the committee.

There is just one item that I wanted to question Mr. Hughes
about. The figures are coming heavy every day and I was shocked
to see that now the Center on Budget and Policy Priorities an-
nounce that the Bush budget requires $21 billion in domestic
spending cuts. Could you elaborate on it? Is that a misprint or
typo? Every day I ani astounded by the figures.

This morning’s paper says now the Savings and Loan Association
swindle is now up to a need for $154 billion. You know, every day
they keep jumping and now I hear that that great budget message
that the President gave us a couple of weeks ago shrouded, hid the
fact that $21 billion of domestic spending cuts are required? Can
you elaborate on that?

Mr. HucHes. First of all, Mr. Owens, I am very pleased to know
that you are with us. I do want to state here that right now the
way our research, both legislatively and from the figuring point of
view, have reviewed and looked at this proposed budget and it is up
in the air and I think by the time it drops down, it is doing to drop
down on distinguished persons like yourselves to protect those pro-
grams that have been so vital to the needs of this country and nu-
trition programs being one of the centerpieces of that.

So, we believe that the figures will fluctuate from day to day
until the final budget has been finalized. That is why we have lob-
bies here today to talk to, not only those that we are leery about
but to re-enforce our friends that when you make the decision to
help us, that we are prepared to help you in terms of whatever dif-
ficulties that you might overcome.

I would like to respond to the training piece and you talk about
the figures being up in the air. There are a lot of technical changes
being asked of the various programs throughout this country and
not enough money has been appropriated for it. For example, this
union asked me, Local 372, District Council 37, to spend some $15-
30 thousand every summer to print leaflets in various languages,
whether that be Spanish, whether they be French, whether that be
OYthelf languages that the student population consists of in New

ork.

Originally, the Agriculture Department allowed for the school
lunch programs to have an outreach program, to tell what the
medium 185 percent of the poverty rates are all about. They don’t
allow that anymore which means that some other entity has ‘o
come in and to offset that, to let the community know, the parents
know what is available because, after all, it is their tax dollars, but
somehow or another, we are being restricted within the House in
terms of money that has been appropriated from the Federal Gov-
ernment for this program to have that kind of outreach.

Our summer program has increased every year. As you now, we
had gotten the state legislature of the state of New York and, of
course, you were a part of that in those days to get a mandated
breakfast programs in the five major cities in the state of New
York because we knew then that excellency and education was tied
directly to the kind of nutrition that goes into a child’s body.
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We did an experimental program in District 20, which is the
middle-class district, and that is why I am so concerned about ev-
eryone knocking off the middle-class and those who just made it to
participate. It creates all kinds of divisions and tensions. Well,
enough tension in this country between the poor, the rich, the have
and the have nots.

Why should be institute in an education system, a division of the
House, because children are very sensitive. They understand who
can and who cannot, so when we eliminate the paid and the re-
duced g)iece and have an impact—what we are saying to America,
we don't care, that we don’t want people together.

So, back to your question about how our figures change from day
to day. Well, I think someone said last night, some senator said
that when his daughter finished praying, he says, gocd bye, God, 1
am coming to Washington. So, he said when he got here and start-
ed to deal in terms of what was coming down from the top, he
doesn’t know whether God is here or not.

I try to re-establish that this morning with the kind of soldiers
such as yourself and others who are on this board that God has
sent his disciples to take care of those who cannot take care of
themselves, and I think eventually when you are finished, there
will be some true figures coming from that budget.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, our time is up. Our new Mr. Hughes
will use it well.

[Laughter]

Chairman Hawkins. Ms. Unsoeld.

Ms. UnsokLD. I have no questions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you.

Ms. UnsokELD. It has been very, very interesting. I appreciate the
remarks of the witnesses.

Chairman HaAwkiNs. Ms. Lowey.

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank the
panel for your outstanding testimony and I feel as if you are speak-
ing to the committed and I just want to tell you all in the audience,
you can just wave at us here and then g speak to those in Con-
gress that you really have to convince ana I believe that the mes-
sage has to be to everyone that these programs are more cost-effec-
tive.

We were talking about the budget deficit and we have to con-
vince people that if we are investing in breakfast programs and
lunch programs and prenatal care and child care and good nutri-
tion outreach programs that we really are going to save money in
the long run and I hope that is the message that you get out today
to our fellow Congress persons.

I do have one question. In the late '70s and the early ’80s, I was
very much involved in establishing demonstration breakfast and
lunch programs. We had an excellent one. Mr. Hughes probably re-
members in Huntington and there were several in Manhattan
whereby we were using the food subsidies, the basic preducts and
training people in the neighborhood, and training people in our
kitchens.

We were talking about pizza before. I want to tell you what pizza
on whole wheat bread with a homemade sauce is outstanding and
those homemade peanut butter cookies were outstanding. I am par-
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ticularly interested in the nutritional aspects and I think that is
another way to sell these programs, focusing on the amounts of
sugar, salts and fats in our program and it is more cost-effective.

We found in an analysis of the programs in Huntington and
some in Manhattan that the price per lunch was less than that the
kitchen was purchasing from vendors, so I think that is very im-
portant. My question to Mr. Hughes and Ms. Wa kins is, where are
those programs today? Are they widespread? Perhaps you can tell
me in the metropolitan New York region which you are most fa-
miliar, Mr. Hughes or Ms. Watkins with the area that you are
most familiar with, have these programs multiplied, are they still
in just a few schools because I think that is a tremendous selling
point and I would like to encourage funding for those kinds of pro-
grams.

Mr. HucHes. If I might, as you noted in my testimony, we are
serving now about a 143,000 breakfasts a day which is a consider-
able increase from before. The difficulties we had was getting the
schools open and we overcame that, but I think what you and your
colleagues have to do is to have some sort of mandate that there be
funds set aside to have outreach for parental involvement because
that has an impact, not just on the nutritional aspect, but we are
talking about excellency in education and these two cannot live
without the other.

There has to be parental involvement. I believe with some assist-
ance from this great Congress that we will be able to have as many
breakfasts within the next five to six years per day as we have
lunches because what people must understand that with the work
force and its changing participants and fundamentally and majori-
ty, they are women who needs to have day care, who needs to
make sure that Johnny or Jane is getting a proper, nutritious well-
balanced meal, will cause this nation and as you may or may not
know, the National PTA along with the Food Research and Action
Center—I believe last year or year before, we had a press confer-
ence tc ask the parents throughout this country to make sure that
they encourage their neighbors, their organizations to participate
in the breakfast programs so that they will know what is available.

I like when I go down to Florida, for example, and I go there
quite often for various union meetings, that they have printed in
the daily newspaper the lunch menu and certain stations carry it. I
see that Major Owens is laughing because of Florida, but gee, you
know, I got a little tan and we go down and take care of little busi-
ness too and when I am there observing a school lunch program
and those are some of the things I think we can do to expand that
program, certainly in New York City and in that metropolitan
area.

Mrs. Lowey. Ms. Watkins, to what extent are the school lunch
programs you are involved with focused on nutritional lunches,
pizzas on whole wheat breads and getting rid of sugars and salts? I
would be interested in your comments.

Ms. Warkins. I appreciate you asking that question becausc not
only in my school district, but schools around this country have
been focusing for many years now on meeting the intent of the die-
tary guidelines. We are all concerned about the issue of fat and
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sodium, sugar and reducing those levels in our school lunch pro-
grams and breakfast programs.

There is a tremendous amount of work going on in that area.
Schools have all types of strategies that are being implemented to
do just what you said, serve pizza on whole wheat bread, offering
salad bars, letting parents know what the nutritional content of
the meal for both breakfast and lunch is and that information is
being provided to parents.

We are very much aware that it is critical that we de everything
possible to provide good quality meals in the reduction of sugar, fat
and salt, but as I said earlier, we are very cautious because we do
not want to do any damage or harm to children and we hope that
the Congress will see fit to request a study on what nutrient levels
should be required for children in meeting the intent of the dietary
guidelines.

While we are out there doing all kinds of things, we do not want
to harm the majority of the children who are in good health. We
heard a pediatrician this week tell us that the level of fat should be
between 30 and 40 percent. We are getting mixed signals all
around and we want to make certain that we are doing what is
right and what is best for the children.

rs. LowEy. Just to pursue that for one more moment because
the budget is so tight. If you were given a choice as to where to
allocate the funds, I just want to make sure I am understanding
you correctly, you are saying that monies still should be focused on
the studies.

You don’t think there are sufficient—there isn’t sufficient evi-
dence out there so that you can go forward in your design of your
program, the lunch program?

Ms. Warkins. We don’t want to be out here doing a variety of
different things across this country and jeopardizing the health of
children. What is good for one child may not be necessary for what
is good for the masses of the children and those are the children
that we have to make certain that we are preparing meals for.

We think that we need the guidance and the direction on how to
implement the dietary guideline as it relates to children. The nu-
tritional analysis of meals comes easy for us to do. It is very easy
for us to ask that you reduce and .hat you come up with some kind
of a law that would prohibit us from having to offer whole milk if
it is not necessary.

We don’t mind having it available, but we don’t want to have to
offer it to every child if we are wanting to reduce fat. We think it
is necessary that we have that information available.

Mrs. LowEey. Thank you.

Ms. WartkiNs. Thank you.

Chairman Hawxkins. Mr. Sawyer?

Mr. SAwyER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don’t have questions.
Like Mr. Owens, I too was involved in the mark-up of another im-
portant bill before another subcommittee of this body. I just want
to take this moment to thank you and the panel that has assem-
bled here this morning for bringing us and the message that
hungry children do not learn as well as they otherwise could.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Hawxkins. Thank you. Mr. Smith? Mr. Goodling?
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Mr. GoopLiNG. I have two quick questions. How much would the
Institute need as far as authorization is concerned and what priori-
ty does it get keeping in mind that all of us serving on the budget
committee think that our committee is the most important in the
L oggress of the United States and our things should take top prior-
ity?

Ms. WatkiNs. Mr. Goodling, we place that pretty high on our pri-
ority list and I guess if I start numbering them, I think we have
got that numbered number two in our priority and we had $50,000
already appropriated this year in 1989 and we understand that
money is being held up and we would just like for thai money to be
released. It is already appropriated for us to do the strategy.

Mr. GoopLiNG. The second question: Wouldn’t it be better per-
haps to concentrate all of our nest money on the elementary level?

Ms. WaTkKINS. I think we would be less likely to say yes to that
because we think nutrition education information is invaluable to
all children. We would not like to target even though we feel that
you start with children at an early age and provide them the nutri-
tion information necessary to make them aware, but we cannot
omit the fact that we have teenage pregnancy running rampant.

We have adolescent boys who need information. Teenagers need
the information just like our elementary children. Athletes need
information on nutrition. We think that nutrition education should
be interwoven into every curriculum aspect.

We don’t think that nutrition should be taught as a separate
course. We think that it should be interwoven throughout that cur-
(xiiculum benefitting all children as our program benefits all chil-

ren.

Mr. HugHEs. Mr. Chairman?

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Hughes.

Mr. HuGgHEs. Mr. Goodling, as I stated before, you have been a
magnificent human being, both you and M.. Hawkins on this issue
of nutrition. As we report to you in 1982, we talked about a uni-
form approach in terms of the necessities and the ravaging that
this program has taken.

Right now we are talking about restoration, bringing it back zad
expanding it a little bit so that our people can get the best possible
services from this program because quality education and excellen-
¢y in education is attached to that. When I talked from the red
clay of Georgia to Lookout Mountain in Tennessee to the Big
Vanila in Ellenville, New York and the Golden Shores of Califor-
nia in my travels as a chairperson of this school, I mentioned your
name as one of those who was strong enough when you had the
majority and stood there in behalf of youngsters throughout this
country.

So, this union has been rather reluctant to talk about priorities
in the sense of the whole child because what part of a child is inore
important to the full potential of that child is a very difficult ques-
tion to answer. Thank you so very much.

Mr. GoopLING. Thank you.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Gunderson?

Mr. GunpersoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I only have one
question and it is not going to come as a surprise to anyone. I have
got to ask Shirley Watkins, are you people serious? You are abcut
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to lose all of your membership in Wisconsin if you are serious that
even offering whole milk as an option is something you recom-
mend. You don’t mandate whole milk.

Ms. WaTkiNs. Mr. Gunderson——

Mr. GUNDERSON. You may want to stand.

[Laughter]

Ms. Warkins. I did have to move upon the edge of my seat. I
hope I dont fall out of this chair as I try to answer that question.
We think that whole milk will still be a part of our child nutrition
program.

Mr. GUNDERSON. It is not so. That is why we mandated it last
reauthorization because most schools don't offer it unless you re-
quire it.

Ms. Watkins. Well, it is there and we are saying that it would
still be an intrical part of the program. We are just saying to man-
date offering whole milk is in direct conflict with the dietary guide-
lines if we are going to reduce the level of fat that children are
consuming.

Mr. GUNDERSON. How abcut exercise?

Ms. Warkins. That is important.

Mr. GUNDERsON. Exercise eliminates any fat that I have ever
consumed as a child.

Ms. Wartkins. I just hope that you will look at that as a viable
option and we do appreciate your support.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I just can not wait until I publicize what you
Jjust said in Wisconsin. You had better plan a few trips there be-
cause I have got to tell you, you have got problems.

Ms. WarTkins. Well, we would hope that our membership and you
would look at that and let’s see if that is something that we can
work on together. W2 certainly would like to work with you in dis-
cussing it. .

Mr. GunpersoN. Well, this is not a threat, but I have got to tell
you, if you are going to attack the whole milk, you have lost my
support. It is that important to us and you decide.

Ms. WaTkiNs. Mr. Gunderson, we appreciate you and we appreci-
ate your support and we are going to work with you to make cer-
tain that we provide whatever is necessary for children. I recognize
what your concern is and that is the children in this country and if
you feel very strongly about it, I am sure you and the American
School Food Service Association and our Wisconsin affiliates can
work together.

Mr. GunbpersoN. All right, we will look forward to that. Thank
you.

Chairman HAwKkINS. If there are no further questions, the Chair
would commend the witnesses. Ms. Watkins, I noticed that there
are several seated at the table who have not been introduced and
identified.

Are there any others that you would like to identify?

Ms. Wa1kiNS. Mr. Chairman, we did introduce the president-
elect, Beverly Lowe, who is from Hampton, Virginia and we intro-
duced Mary Klatko and I guess I was so soft-spoken when I started
in the sheer fright as I sit here, you may not have heard me. I
whisper sometimes.

A
&




147

Mary Klatko is our chairman for our public policy and leg'slative
rommittee.

Chairman Hawkins. The names will be entered in the recor. as
being present and I assume supporting the ;  red statement
that you gave.

Again the Chair would thank the witnesses and that concludes
the hearing of the subcommittee.

Ms. Wartkins. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

[Whereupon, at 11:30 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]

[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]
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STATEMENT BY HONORABLE NICK J. RAMHALL, II
HEARING, FEBRUARY 28, 1989, COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
ON THE NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH AND BREAKFAST PROGRAMS

Mr Chairman, I am pleased to be here this morning, and I welcome the
witnesses who are present to testify on behalf of the National School Lunch
and Break:iast Programs.

Of major concern to all of us this morning is the proposal that Section
4 funding for the so called "paying child” be eliminated from the budget, a
loss of nearly a billion dollars I am aware that preliminary scrutiny of
the Bush budget appears to leave section & intact, although the Reagan
budget would have elimins:ed this crucial funding for the school lunch
program.

While I hope our interpretation of the Bush budget is correct with
respect to Section 4 funding, I am also aware that between now and any final
action on a budget resolution that reduces the deficit, negotiations could
lead to either a reduction in funding for school lunch and other child
nutrition programs, or worse, removal of the protection those programs now
enjoy under Gramm.Rudman

Also of concern to me, Mr Chairman, is the double audit being imposed
by the USDA on the school lunch program, with very little in the way of
documented fraud or abuse to back up the charges that some states are double

counting in order to receive increased per-meal reimbursements for lunches
served,

I am pleased to say that we have in West Virginia one of the best
computerized accountabilty systems in the country yhen it comes to accurate
counting of numbers of children served, and I an confident that in our State
as in many others every conceivable effort is made to report fair and honest
counts of these children I commend the Chairman for his intention to
correct this additional burdensome audit procedure

Later on this wrek we will hear witnesses testify on the need to expand
the WIC program to prcvide nourishment for women who are pregnant, and for
their young children This program is vital to my southern West Virginia
district Currently only about 9,300 participants are being served, which
is approsimately one-third of the estimated need  The ah1lity to serve only
one third of those eligible for WIC benefits 1is unconscionable, Mr
Chairman, and I will work with you and other members of this Committee in
whatever ways open to us to improve on those numbers

Thank you Mr Chairman
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O t_/—:’/./" Sacramento, CA 94244 2720 of Pubhic Instruction

February 22, 1989

Honorable Augustus F. Hawkins
2371 Rayburn House Office Building
washington, D.C. 20515-0529

Dear Gus:

As you begin to consider the rwauthorization of the child
Nutrition Act of 1966 and the National School Lunch Act, I would
like to share my concerns and recommendations with you. As you
Xnow, there 15 a growing consciousness of the importance of good
health and good nutrition in the learning process. The National
School Lunch Program, the School Breakfast Program, the Child Care
Food Program, and the Donated Food Program contribute immeasurably
to this end. Good hutrition is critically important to the health
and well being of our young. These programs offer millions of
children the opportunity to eat nutrit:ious foods and learn healthy,
life-long eating habits.

California, as you know, has the largest child nutrition progran
1n the country. Over 90 percent of the public schools participate
in the National School Lunch Program. Each day, nearly 1.9 million
lunches are served to children who represent 43 percent of the
averace daily attendance in public schools. Nearly two~thirds of
the students who eat school lunch are eligible for free or reduced
price meals. 1In the Child Care Food Program, nearly 600 child care
centers and 15,000 day care homes Served approximately 86 million
rmeals and supplements last year. 1In child care centers, 74 percent
of the meals are served to children from low-income families.
(Comparable data for day care homes 1is not available.)

Federal assistance for all child nutrition programs in Californ:ia
exceeded $463 million last year. In addition, the Californ:ia
legislature appropriates $41 million to supplement the school lunch
and child care programs. Clearly, we could not have sustained a
prcgram of this magnitude without your unequivocal support. Thank
you for your support. I would like to share with you a number of
important recommendations intended to improve the operation and
reduce the burdensome paperworkX in nutrition programs. Following
are my suggestions in priority order for your consideration. A
more detailed summary of each issue 1is attached.
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Honorable Augustus F. Hawkins
February 22, 1989
Page 2

rogrammat. €s

o BECTION 4 PUNDING: Do not reduce Section 4 funding as
proposed by former President Reagan. These funds are the
financial foundation of the National School Lunch Progranm.
If eliminated, children will suffer nutritionally and :n
overall health status s:ince programs will close.

o WHOLE MILK: Repeal the mandate to serve whole milk and return
to the requirement to offer only lowfat forms of milk in the
National School Lunch Program. Requiring whole milk was a
major sethack to national efforts to improve people's health
status through dietary intake.

o DIETARY GUIDELINES AND RESEARCH: Develop quantitative dietary
guidelines for children and require research on the impact of
diet on childrer. Better guidance to food service personnel,
parents, and teachers will ensure more healthful and
nutritionally sound diets for our children.

[ GRILD ADVOCACY: Require agencies other than USDA to
participate in decisions affecting child health and nutrit:ion
1ssues. The Secretary of Agriculture :is mainly concerned with
agricultural matters. A potential conflict of interest could
be avoided by involving the Secretary of Health and Human
Services and others on decisions affecting children.

o COMMODITIES PROCESSING: Require ingredient and nutrient
labeling for all processed commodities. Local food secvice
personnel will be able to evaluate individual food prcducts
as they relate to U.S. diecary guidelines.

o PAYMENTS TO PROGRAM AGENCIES: Ulevelop >a e)ception payment
mechanism so that local agencies are reimbursed within 90 days
for meals served when inadvertent human errors occur in clains
processing. Program sponsors are not reimbursed timely for
valid meals served to children in this case. Financial
hardsh:ips may result.

o NUZRITION EDUCATION AND TRAINING (NET): Fund the Nutr:ition
Educat:ion Program at the statutory rate of $0.50 per child.
Fundamental change in diet and nutrition awareness will not
occur without 1investing money for nutrition related staff
development activities.

o 1t 2
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o BANITATION AND SAFETY TRAINING: Require and fund sanitation
and safety training for food handlers in schools and child
care agencies. The potential for serious illness to children
will be drastically reduced :f people who handle food are

trained.
Paperwork Reduction Issues

o NATIONAL S8CHOOL LUNCH: THE 8NACK: Author:ize a snack :in the
National School Lunch Program :in order to eliminate the need
for duplicative part:ic:ipation in the Cnild Care Food Program
for schools to operating both programs.

o ETFECTIVE DATES OF REGULATIONS: Require regulations developed
by USDA to be effective at the beginning of the school year.

o ELIGIBILITY: Streamline eligibility requirements for free and
reduced price meals by el:iminating social Security numbers and
source of income.

o CIVIL RIGHTS8 DATA: Eliminate the requirement to collect
duplicative rac:ial and ethnic data for the ANational School
Lunch Program.

[ VYERITICATION: Conduct a national study to determ:ine the cost
benefit of verification procedures and eliminate the
requirement if it 1s not cost effective.

o REGULATION8: Convene a group to propose spec:if:iC reductions
in regulations for nutrition programs.

Thank you for cons:idering my viewpoints on these important issues.
As you know, there is a positive relationship between nutrition
and the physical, educational, and soc:ial well-being of our
Nation's children. Well fed children are healthier, have a more
positive outlook, and their l=2arning is improved. We cannot let
the needs of administrators to control and regulate these programs
overshadow the nutritional needs of children.

Burdensome regulat:ions and :inhadequate funding will force many
schools to close, drastically reduce their food service operations,
or to focus on paperwork rather than serving nutritious neals.
Additional commodities, as proposed by the President, will not
compensate for the proposed reduction in cash which is needed to
pay for food service employees® salaries, electricity bills, and
other neces;ary program operating expenses. In the end, a price
will be extracted from our nation’s children.

BN
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When you hold Congressional hearings on the reauthorization of the
Child Nutrition Act of 1966 and the National School Lunch Act, we
are keenly interested in testifying on the issues raised in this
letter or on other issues »f interest to you. When appropriate,
I would be happy to discuss nutrition and other issues with you at
your convenience. Please feel ifree to call me at (916) 445-42338
or Robert Agee, my Deputy Super.ntendent for Field Services, at
(916) 324-5923.

Best regards,
7o
Bill Honig

Attachment
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california State Department of Education ATTACHMENT
child Nutrition and Food Distribution Division

SUMMARY OF MAJOR ISSUES
FOR
REAUTHORIZATION

Programmatic Issues

BECTION 4 PUNDING: Funds provided by Section 4 are the foundation
upon which the financial base of the schoo. lunch program is built.
As you know, this provision has come under attack several times in
recent years. It is critical to the viability of the school lunch
program that these funds remain intact.

Section 4 currently provides a reimbursement of $.14 cents per meal
for each meal served, including free and reduced price meals. In
California, we received $52.8 million from Section 4 in Fiscal Year
1987-88 as a result of <cerving two million meals per day.
wWithdrawal of these funds, as has been proposed, will inevitably
result in higher prices for meals. Higher prices will drive down
participation, i.e., students will not purchase lunches. The
resulting downward spiral in reduced revenues will place an
unbearable strain cn elected school boards to divert scarce local
general funds to maintain a viable lunch program ox, more likely,
cease operating a National School Lunch Progran. In that event,
the children who normally depend on the schooi lunch, including the
needy, will suffer both nutritionally and in overall health status
Given the well-established tie between good nutrition and learning,
the educational and learning process will also be adversely
affected. DO NOT REDUCE SECTION 4 FUNDING.

WHOLE MILK: The current statutory mandate that whole milk be
offered in the National School Lunch Program must be eiiminated.
The previous requirement to offer only lowfat forms of milk
enabled millions of Americans to lower their fat intake and
develop a lifelong preference for lowfat milk. This was a
significant nutritional accomplishment for our country and
parallels the U.S. dietary guideline to reduce fat consumption.
Nutritionally, lowfat milk contains less calories and cholesterol
than whole milX. The current whole milk requirement reprecents a
major setback to national efforts to improve people’'s health status
via dietary intake. REPEAL THE MANDATE TO EERVE WHOLE MILK.

DIETARY GUIDELINES AND RESBPARCH: There 1s a clear and pressing
need to develop dietary guidelines for children in America and to
conduct research on their dietary needs. The premise of setting
specific food reconnendations for adults is becoming well-accepted
since there 1S growing convergence between the nutrition
recommendations of public health and medical professionals.
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However, controversy reigns when it comes to specific nutrition
recompendations for children. Most experts agree that the
definition of health for children goes beyond normal growth and
development to the prevention of chronic diseases, including
obesity, coronary heart disease, cancer, and osteoporosis.
Currently, however, the dietary recommendations for children are
contradictory and difficult to quantify in relation to specific
food choices. For children, there 1s less research to link
specific dietary change with improved health. During craitical
periods of growth and development, there is a greater risk of doing
harm through overzealous dietary restrictions. The issue of hunger
in our society exacerbates this i1ssue. Nevertheless, it is time
to take bold steps toward quantifying prudent dietary guidelines
for children. The reauthorization process provides the requisite
forur for Congress to require the development and dissemination of
quantitative dietary guidelines for children, ages 2 through 18.
Better guidance to food service personnel, parents, and teachers
1s clearly needed to ensure more healthful and nutritionally sound
diets for our children. It is also an appropriate time to require
research into how dietary intake impacts growth and development of
children. It is aimportant that cCongress authorize states to
develop more stringent dietary guidelines if they so choose.
california 1s in the process of developing dietary guidelines for
1ts children. Impleme tation i1s expected to occur before the next
school year begins. It would not only help Califormia‘s children,
but we beljeve that 1t will also help children in other states if
the Federal Government would set mintmum dietary standards for
children. DEVELOP DIETARY GUIDELINES POR CHILDREN AND REQUIRE
RESEARCH ON THE IMPACT OF DIET ON CHILDREN.

¢ We are concerned that as a representztive of the
nation's farm community, the Secretary of Agriculture is not always
an unbiased or even qualified advocate of children's health and
education needs. There 1S a potential conflict of interest on
issues that may impact both agricultura) interests and the needs
of children. The needs of children may suffer if decisions on
children's health issues are not a shared effort., To this end, a
framework for chiid's issues should be created where the interests
of children are adequately represented. On health nutrition and
education issues, such as the establishment of dietary guidelines,
the initiative and momitoring of health research, and nutrient
content of commodities should be conducted as joint efforts
1nvelving the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Secretary
of Education, the Secretary of Agriculture, and perhaps the Surgeon
General of the Public Health Services must be mandated, REQUIRE
SHARED INVOLVEMENT IN CHILD HEALTH AND NUTRITION RELATED IS8UES.
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COMMODITIES PROCESBING: Food labeling offers opportunities to
inform consumers about the nutrient content of foods thereby
improving dietary choices. cCurrently, processors of USDA donated
foods are not regquired to provide ingredient and nutrient
composition information to National School Lunch Program sponsors.
Ingredient and nutrition labeling standards, as established by the
Food and Drug Administration for retail food products, should be
provided for all processed commodities either on a product label
or a supplemental sheet provided before or upon delivery. The
label should list amounts of sodium and dietary fiber per serving
plus provide a per serving calculation of the percent of calories
from protein, carbohydrate, and fat.

This information would facilitate the development of more healthful
renus which incorporate the y.s. Dietary Guidelines as well as
targeting and controlling specific levels of nutrients such as
sodiur and fat intake. Local food service personnel would be able
to evaluate individual food products in consideration of other
foods being offered. This would enable schools to offer students
meals whose overall nutrient composition, over time, reflects the
U.S. Dietary Guidelines. Currently, food service personnel do not
have access to this type of information, making implementation of
the Dietary Guidelines very difficult. REQUIRE INGREDIENT AND
NUTRIENT LABELING OF PROCESSED COMMODITIES.

: There is a clear need for a
mechanism whereby National School Lunch and child Care Food Program
sponsors are not unduly penalized for inadvertent human errors made
by state agencies when processing valid reimbursement clainms.
These errors are known as "state agency oversights." They include
misplaced claims and key punch errors. Over the past thxee years,
there have been approximately 300 "state agency oversights” waith
a reimbursement value of approximately $1,000,000. During this
period, more than 111,000 transactions occurred and more than $1.5

i was paid to snonsors for meals served. Thais equates to an
average error rate of .0009 percept of claims processed. The USDA
finds this error rate unacceptable and penalizes sponsors by
refusing payment until the Department provides an acceptable
corrective action plan that will prevent future errors. The
current system 1s not structured to allow for timely reimbursement
when human errors occur.

Under current procedures, sponsors suffer financial hardship even
though their valid claims were submitted within the USDA 90-day
regulatory time limit established by USDA. If the 90-day lamit for
submitting reimbursement claims 1s exceeded, the sponsor will not
be reimbursed in a timely manner. If the end of the fiscal year
has passed, 1t could be years before USDA provides the funds to
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reimburse the sponsor for meals served. Efforts to secure payment
for sponsors consume an inordinate amount of state agency staff
time spent a tempting to satisfy USDA staff that errors will never
be made again. The administrative burdens on state agency staff
1s secondary to sponsors suffering because they cannot be
reimbursed on a timely basis for reimbursable meals served. 7To
illustrate the magnitude of the program and the extremely low claim
processing error rate consider the following. 1In California, there
are approximately 1,100 agencies in the National Scheool Lunch
Program and nearly 700 sponsors in the Child Care Food Program.
These program participants submit approximately 37,000 original and
adjusted claims each year that total in excess of $500,000,000 per
year in federal and state reimbursements.

To remedy this situation, USDA should be required to provide the
funds for all meals claimed due to state agency oversights withain
90 days of notification. This is a practical, simple soclution to
a costly administrative problem. It is reasonable to limit thas
provision to oversights occurring within the prior three federal
fiscal years. DEVELOP AN EXCEPTION PAYMENT MECHANISM BO THAT LOCAL
AGENCIES ARE NOT PENALIZED.

NUTRITION EDUCATION AND TRAINING (NET): The NET Program,
established in 1978, 1s the educational component of the child
Nutrition Program. The goals of the program are to 1improve
nutrition knowledge of teachers, school distraict and child care
food service personnel and children of all ages and to effect
changes in children’s dietary choices that will result in improved
health and well-being of children. NET was originally funded at the
statutory rate of $ .50 per child but was reduced to the current
rate of less than $ .10 per child ($5 million nationwide) in 1982.
The President's proposed budget eliminates the appropriation for
FY 1990.

NET programs have achieved remarkably impressive acccmplishments
with limited funding such as: nutrition cur.iculum for preschool,
primary and secondary students; nutrition and management training
for school nutrition personnel; nutrition training for teachers:
education materials; libraries and nutrition resources for local
school districts; development of computer coftware and mini-grants
to local school districts and community groups. Results clearly
show a significant improvement 1N knowledge, attitudes and
nutritional practices of children, teachers, ar~ ol nutrition
personnel.
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As an intejral educational component of the school lunch program,
fully funding the NET Program at the statutory level of $.50 per
child will support programs to assist children in forming life-long
healthy eating habits and ultimately rcduce our nation's health
care costs. With increased funding, nutrition training can be
expanded and updated, more people reached and statewide nutrition
policies developed. Without NET funds, there will be little or no
money specifically dedicated to organized education programs which

ermphasize nutrition. Funddmental change in diet and nutraition
awureness will not occur without investing money for nutrition
related staff development activaities. A basic awareness of

dietary guidelines and an understanding of how these are translated
to menu items that children will eat requires intensive, ongoing,
and a broad-based training effort focused on students, food service
personnel, parents, and teachers. In addition, training will be
required to facilitate interpretation of ingredient labels and in
performing nutrient analysis. In California, a modest state-funded

effort is focused on nutrition education. Congress should
recognize efforts made by states to provide education and training
in child nutrition issues. Providing incentive funds or

preferential funding in these cases would ensure continued efforts
1n promoting the nutraitional well being of the nation's children.
FULLY PUND NUTRITION EDUCATION AT THE STATUTORY LEVEL oF¥ $0.50 PER
CHILD.

BANITATION AND SAFETY TRAINING: Currently, there are no
requirements to train or educate school food service personnel in
the proper preparation and handling of foods. There is a claar
need to provide this training because of the need to protect
children from the hazards of food-borne 1llness. Training food
handlers on the basic pranciples of food sanitation and safety
would insure a level of knowledge and awareness that will
drastically reduce the potential for serious 1llness to children.
Modest additional funding to develop and implement this training
w1ll be necessary to ensure dissemination to every school site in
the country. MANDATE AND FUND SANITATION AND SAPETY TRAINING FOR
FOOD HANDLERS.

PA¥C2WORK _REDUCTION 1SSUES

It is my understanding that you are particularly interested :n
ideas to reduce the cumbersome paperwork burden that now exists in
the National School Lunch and child Care Food Programs. To assist
you 1n this area, my staff have developed a series of concepts that
you may find useful in your deliberations. The rest of thais
attachment outlines i1deas that would substantially reduce paperwork
in these programs.
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NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH: THE BNACK: Recently schools have become
increasingly involved in providing after school child care for
their younger students. In California, the "latch key" program is
one example and many head start programs are also located on school
campuses. In order to be reimbursed for snacks provided, either
after hours or between meals to children, our &chools must also
participate in the Child Care Food Program (CCFP}. Snacks are not
currently cuthorized in the National School Lunch Program (NSLi,.
In Californmia, over 100 schools or approximately 15% of our
sponsors, participate in both the NSLP and <c<nhc CCFP.
Adninistratively, this means that schools must submit two totally
different program agreements to the state agency, receive sepaiate
compliance reviews, and operate under totally dafferent USDA
regulations. A substantial amount of paper work would be
elaminated if a snack were authorized in the NSLP. Schools would
no longer need to apply to participate in the CCFP, ther by
eliminating mountains of paperwork to simply provide a snack tu a
child. This change could be accomplished vnder current funding
levels. Funding would shift from the Child Care Food Program to
the National School Lunch Program. AUTHORIZE A SNACK IN THE
NATIONAL SBCHOOL LUNCH PROGRANM.

EFFECTIVE DATES OF REGULATIONS: USDA staff promulgate regqulations
to implement statutorv changes typically within 90-days of the
effective date of the changes. When regulations change during the
school year, local sponsor program operations are often adversely
impacted by the change. For example: the regulation implementing
the requirement to offer whole milk became effective long after
schnol districts finalized contracts with their milk vendors. 1In
order to meet the requirements of that new law, sponsors were
required to renegotiate their milk contracts. This was a
dasruptive process that may have had negative financial
implications. It is also disruptive when regulations are effective
retroactively as 1t was with the addiational three cents for meals
in the Child Care Food Program. Many sponsors found it diafficult
to properly calculate the retroactive amounts due their day care
home providers. This problem was compounded by the r inability to
locate providers who were no longer with the program. Depending
on the number of changes that occur each year, sponsors would be
continually revising their operating procedures. Clearly the fewer
changes made to an efficient program, the smoother that program
operates in the short run. Administrative burdens on sponsors
would be greatly reduced i1f regu'>*1rons to implement statutory

changes became effective no sooner than the first day of the
following school year. REQUIRE REGULATIONS TO BE RFPECTIVE AT
BEGINNING OF THE SCHOOL YEAR.

“om
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] The current eligibility requirements for
participation in school nutrition programs 1mpose significant
paperworx burdens on schools. The following suggestions would
substantially reduce these burdens without compromising Summary of
accountability. current law requires, as a condition of
eligibility for receipt of free or reduced price meals, that the
social security numbers of all adult household members be provided
and that appropriate documentation of household income be reported
to the school. These two Pprovisions account for most of the
atterncion given to eligibility applications by schocl staff. They
are also the soarce of most of the errors noted during typical
Assessment, Improvement, and Monitoring System (AIMS) reviews by
the state agency, yet these Pprovisions do not J)copardize
accountability.

There 4is general consensus among California‘'s school level
personnel that elimination of the social security requirement, and
requiring total income to be reported rather than the five Lroad
"source of income" categories as jis now requii?, would
substantially reduce administrative costs and have no undermining
effect on accountability. Social security numbers are rarely used
for anv purpose. They are meaningless for the paid child (since
the pa d child doesn't apply), not required for families who
qualify under food stamps or AFDC provisions, and typically it is
not critical to the income verificatjon process. Eliminate the
requirement to include social security numbers as a condition of
eligibility in the National School Lunch and Child Care Food
Program. If necessary, the requirement to provide social security
numbers could be restricted to verification activities only.

Family size and incone data are clearly needed to Judge eligibility
for free or reduced price meals. However, it is total income that
forms the basis for eligibility, not the source from which the
income 1s derived. The ability to properly fill out eligibilaty
applications by applicants and to check their completeness by local
school staff 1s complicated by the five broad income categories
currently required by USDA. The eligibility application form is
made unwieldy by requiring this unnecessary level of detail.
co".sequently, an inordinate amount of parent and school staff time
is consumed in this area. A statement of total income is
sufficient to determine elagibilaty. STREAMLINE ELIGIBILITY
REQUIREMENTS: PLIMINATE SOCIAL BECURITY NUMBER AND BOURCE OF
INCONME .

-
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t It is a basic tenet of federally funded child

CIVIL RIGHTS DATM
nutrition programs that no child ray be discriminated against on

the basis of race, color, sex, age, handicap, religion, or national
origin. To ensure that this tenet is observed, applicants for free
and reduced price lunches are encouraged to complete, on a
voluntary basis, racial and ethnic data as part of their
applacation. Many applicants choose not to include this
information for a variety of reasoas. Whiie voluntary for the
applicant, school staff are required to collact and summarize
racial and ethnic data for participants in the school lunch
progran. To do this, school level staff must determine, from other
me~ns available, which racial ethnic group they think would best
c' aracterize the child. This is a time-consuming activaity which
rroduces questionable results. It is unlikely that violations of
civil rights will be uncovered with these methods. All schools
currently collect racial and ethnic data concerning their overall
student population. This information is readily available and
currently reported to state agencies for a variety of purposes.
Separately recording racial/ethnic data for school lunch is a
duplicative, unnecessary task. ELIMINATE THE REQUIREMENT TO
COLLECT RACIAL/ETHNIC DATA BPECIFICALLY FPOR BCHOOL LUNCH
PARTICIPANTS.

VERIFICATION: The intent of the verification process i1t to confirm
or deny the eligibility of a child for a free or red> —ed price
meal. Existing regulations call for verifying up to thcee percent
of the applicants depending upon the method chosen. Essentially,
household adults arz required to substantiate the income reported
on their eligibiality application. This is a burdensome, time-
consuming, administrative effort for school persornel to undertake.
It is typically frustrating and intrusive for both the applicant
and school staff. We are concerned that this process may oe more
of a paperwork exercise than a program that uncovers abuses in the
eligibility cateyories of children. Accountability is important,
but at what cost? Unless substantial corroborative information
exists to suggest that a fraudulent eligibility application was
submitted, it may not be cost effective to verify income. The
administrative costs of this requirement may far outweigh any
benefits that may accrve. Many food service directors have
expressed this concern to my staff. We believe that a definitive
national study focused on a cost benefit analysis in the area of
verification is needed. If the results of that study show that
verification 1s not cost effeccive, then eliminate the requirement
unless there 1s a clear indication of fraud. CO¥DUCT A
REPRESENTATIVE NATIONAL RANDOM SAMPLE TO DETERMINE COBT
EFFECTIVENEBS OF VERIPICATION. BLIMINATE IF NOT COBT EFPECTIVE.
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REGULATIONG: Currently, the National School Lunch and Child Care
Food Pr ,v ms are operated under detailed, highly prescriptive
requlations promulgated by USDA. Tne January 5, 1989, E

Raily quoted you as 1ndicating that 44 percent of all the paperwork
imposed on educational institutions by the Federal Government stems
from !chool nutrition prograns. I beliave that the USDA
regulations are excessive, burdensome, and too prescriptive both
to our schools and to child care providers. Program directors'
attention is diverted away fronm their main priority of feeding
children nutritious meals towards a focus on paperwork. The sheer
volume is overwhelming. Perhaps the best solution to reducing
paperwork is to convene a group of program sSponsors and state
agencies and charge them with el.minating a significant proportion
of the current regulations. Perhaps the Government Accounting
office could be involved 1n this review. 1 would caution that
state agencies and school distr:cts should be consulted before the
scope of the study is finalized. A requirement to report specific
recommendations for reductions to Congress would provide for
oversight prior to implementation. CONVENE GROUP TO REDUCE
UNNEEDED REGULATIONS.
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COMMODITY DISTRIBUTION COALITION

February 28, 1989

STEERING COMMITTEE

The Honorable Augustus F. Hawkins

Chairman, Commuttee on Education and Labor
mﬁw&n fastiut U S. House of Representatives

rcan Meat Institute H -

UN/E412400 Washington, DC 20515
Larry McKennie Dear Mr. Chairman.
Amencan Farm Burcau
Federation The orgamizations listed below support the Food Distribution
202/483-2222 Program as 1t currently exists and recommend its reauthonzation and
Patnicia Lynn Phuilips full funding for the next year The commodity Distribution Coalition
Nanonal Assoctation of State values the dual purpose of the commodity program to remove
Agencies for Food Distribution surplus commodities to stabilize producer prices and to provide food
703/450-2880 support to the school lunch and other feeding programs.

Ron Schul ;
Ca;:,of,:: %am,mg Peach The Coalition worked with the Congress and other interested

Association parties on the Commodity Distribution Improvement Act of 1987,
41572849171 Our member organizations feel 1t 15 1mportant that the program
meet the needs of recipient agencies as well as agrculture and we
are pleased with the progress USDA has made 1n implementing the
legistation

Judy Ziewace
Na ' val Mitk Producers
Federation
703/243-6111

We urge you to remember the broad support for these
programs as you consider reauthonzation and fundng.

Sincerely,

Commodity Distribution Coalition

' US House of Representatives
Commttee on Agniculture

ERIC 196
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Commodiﬁ Distribution Coalition

Alabama Peanut Producers Association
Amernican Beekeeping Federation
American Dairy Producets Institute
American Farm Bureau Federation
Amencan Meat Institute

Canned Pear Pecific Coast Service
Flonda Peanut Producer’s Associztion
Georgia Peanut Commusion
International Apple Institute

Louisiana Sweet Potato Commussion
Nat. Assn. of State Agen. for Food Dist.
National Farmers Organization

National Meat Canners Association
Nationa} Milk Producers Federation
Natwonal Turkey Federation

New York Cherry Growers Association
Peanut Advisory/Ketchum Public Rel.
The National Grange

Western NY Apple Growers Association
United Egg Producers

.




HEARING ON H.R. 24 EXTENSION OF CHILD NU-
TRITION AND NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH
ACTS

THURSDAY, MARCH 2, 1989

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuscoMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND
VocaTioNaL EDUCATION,
CoMMITTEE ON EpUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:31 a.m., in Room
2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Matthew G. Martinez
[acting Chairman] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Hayes, Lowey, Poshard, Un-
soeld, Goodling, Fawell, Smith and Gunderson.

Staff present: John Jennings, counsel; Diane Stark, legislative
specialist; Beverly Griffin, research assistant; Mary Jane Fiske,
professional staff member; and Lynn Selmser, professional staff
member.

Mr. MarTINEz. I would like to call this meeting to orde:. This is
a hearingEof the Subcoemmittee on Elementary, Secondary, and Vo-
cational Education. The hearing is on the extension of the Child
Nutrition and National School Lunch Acts.

Today, the subcommittee will hear testimony on a vaiiety of
child nutrition programs including the Nutrition and Iducation
Training, Summer Food Child Food Care, CASH, CLOC Irograms
and the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants
and Children, which is better known as WIC. All are very in.por-
tant components of a network of child nutrition programs.

Through these programs, children receive food to supplement
their diets, meals in child care settings, food in summer months,
and education about the food they eat. These programs, along with
the school lunch, school breakfast and the special milk programs,
make up what is collective referred to as Child Nutrition Pro-
grams.

Each of the prcgrams plays an important role in eradicating
hunger and malnutrition among our children and youth. Today,
our panel will discuss these programs, giving us their suggestions
on how they may be improved.

Let me add that after yesterday’s hearing or was it the day
before, I got to thinking about the big debate about who should be
servza by these programs. As I visited School Lunch Programs,
throughout my district, I saw children there who might, under
some strict criteria, not qualify as a poor. They are non-poor.
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I would not care one iota if every child in that school participat-
ed in that program, even if each one was above that criteria of
income. After all, the main thrust of the School Lunch Program is
to give the child the nutrition he needs to learn.

If the bottom line is learning and nutrition is the key, then I
think we ought to think about those that are above that income
level who do participate. They pay full price, subsidizing the pro-
gram so that the poor that cannot afford it do get it. Everybody
wins.

I would like to think that, as we proceed with these hearings, we
have finally come to the realization that including people from all
incornes is not a bad idea and might be desirous. Let me tell you
what my reasoning is.

In my district I have looked at the homes where people who are
above that requirement income level live. I have seen that just be-
cause people are well off does not mean that their children are well
taken care of, or that their nutrition is a main concern of the par-
ents.

Many times, those parents are so busy making that income that
the child gets very little or no attention at all. Now, that is not the
case in every situation. A lot of people, no matter how busy they
are, make sure that they live up to the responsibility of taking care
of their children.

There are a lot of parents that because of their busy schedules
and all—not because they intend to, but because of things they get
caught up in—are not taking care of their children. I think we all
have a responsibility to make sure that they understand their re-
sponsibility.

If they meet part of their responsibility by shuffling it off to
someone else because that school lunch provides the nutrition chil-
dren need and the parents are willing to pay full fare for it, then I
think we ought to accept that.

So, today, as we hear the witnesses, I hope you will comment on
the fact that it is not necessarily just the poor that need good nu-
trition. Thank you.

With that, I would (ke to introduce Bill Goodling, the ranking
minority of the full committee and Ex Officio member of every
committee, who will give us his statement.

Mr. GoopLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I like to think rever-
ently of Carl Perkins as the father of School Lunch and Child Nu-
trition and then I like to think of Bill Goodling as the son of Carl
Perkins when it comes to School Lunch and Child Nutrition.

I did have an opportunity to meet with the Secretary of Agricul-
ture when he came before the Budget Committee. I told him above
all, what we do not need, is to spend 6.4 million on new auditors to
fall over the auditors who are presently there. In fact, I told him
probably each school district would have to build a new office in
order to house the state auditors, local auditors and then Federal
auditors.

He promised me he knew nothing about it, but he would certain-
ly look into it since he was in that business ten years ago, 1 guess,
as an Assistant Secretary in the Department of Agriculture.

We look forward to your testimony today and we will fight the
battle again, I suppose, making sure that the subsidy gets to the
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school. I keep telling Mary Jane Fiske and Jack Jennings that they
ought to be able to come up with something that changes the whole
concept so that we are not sending out money to the paying cus-
tomer.

If you could just get that formula written in such a way that we
do not even mention paying customers in any way, shape or form,
then we would not have to do that battle every year we get o the
floor. I think we slowly have educated most of the Members of Con-
gress that we are not talking about a subsidy to paying customers.

Here comes the late Mr. Greenstein. I thought I would call that
to his attention since he is coming in late.

So, I think we have most people educated in the Congress now to
understand that it is a subsidy, as a matter of fact, to keep a very
important program going so that school districts do not drop out. If
they do drop out, then, of course, they, in most states, are not re-
quired to provide free and reduced price meals.

I am sure we will win that battle again. You will notice there is
a difference between the Reagan budget and the Bush budget in re-
lationship to that issue. In the Reagan budget, they indicated that
we would take a shot at the paying customers again.

I spoke to Mr. Darmon ana I spoke to the Secretary of Agricul-
ture and said, “Don’t embarrass me on the first issue with my new
President. 1 don't want to fight my new President. I worked too
hard to get him elected, so let’s make sure that doesn’t appear in
your budget.”

I notice that does not appear there, so I think we probably have
that battle won before the fight begins, so I am looking forward to
your testimony.

Mr. MagrTINEZ. Thank you, very much, Mr. Goodling. You are a
true friend of education.

At this time, I would like to ask if any other members of the
panel have opening statements?

[No response.]

Thank you. At this time, we will proceed with our first panel,
which consists of Rebecca Gardner, Legislative Coordinator, Na-
tional Association of Program Coordinators; Edward Cooney,
Deputy Director, Food Researct. and Action Center, accompanied
by Linda Locke, Advocacy Director, Community Coordinator Child
Care, Kentucky; and also Dorothy Pannell, Director of Food Serv-
ices, Fairfax County Schools, Virginia; and Robert Greenstein, Di-
rector of Center on Budget and Policy Priorities.

We will start with Rebecca Gardner.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Excuse me one moment. Let me announce that
the lights you see in front of you are set for ten minutes. When you
have one minute left, the yellow light will come on. We would ask
you to end vour statement at that point.
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STATEMENTS OF REBECCA GARLNER, LEGISLATIVE COORDINA-
TOR, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF NET PROGRAM COORDINA-
TORS; EDWARD COONEY, DEPUTY DIRECTOR, FOOD RESEARCH
AND ACTION CENTER, ACCOMPANIED BY LINDA LOCKE, ADVO-
CACY DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY COORDINATED CHILD CARE,
KENTUCKY; DOROTHY PANNELL, DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERV-
ICES, FAIRFAX COUNTY SCHOOLS, VIRGINIA: AND ROBERT
GREENSTEIN, DIRECTOR, CENTER ON BUDGET AND POLICY
PRIORITIES

Ms. GARDNER. Mr. Chairman and Membx rs of the Subcommittee,
my name is Rebecca Gardner and I am from the New York State
Education Department where I am Chief of the Bureau of School
Health Education and Services, also the Nutrition Education and
Training Coordinator for the State of New York. Length of title
has nothing to do with importance in the organization.

In addition to my testimony, I would like to submit a NET fact
sheet that has been prepared by all of the NET Coordinators across
the country and an article from the last Journal of Nutrition Edu-
cation, which talks about the history of the NET program, which is
ten years old now.

I am speaking on behalf of both the National Organization of
State Net Coordinators of which I am past-president and for the So-
ciety of Nutrition Education, of which I am a member. These orga-
nizations have made the continuation of the NET program one of
their highest priorities.

Thank you for this opportunity to appear before you and to testi-
fy on behalf of these organizations, and also the many individuals
who have had the opportunity to participate and to benefit in the
NET program over the last ten years.

I want you to know also that we appreciate your leadership in
relation to these nutrition programs over all these years. I want
you to know, and I know that you know, and I want you to know
that I know, that nutrition is closely related to education.

The NEA, the National Education Association, just last week re-
leased a report that was prepared by the Food Research and Action
Center. The report was called The Relationship between Nutrition
and Learning.

In the introduction of that document, the president of NEA said,
and I want to quote here, because I think it is really important:

“Growing numbers of our students are coming to school bur-
dened with disadvantages. More are poor and because of poverty,
more are ill fed. To help these students succeed in school, we must
not only have high academic standards, but we must deal with stu-
dents’ needs. Children cannot learn if they are malnourished or if
they are too poor to have enough to eat.”

This NEA report cites research findings which indicate that
hunger leads to nervousness, to irritability, to disinterest; that
skipping breakfast often causes nausea, dizziness, headache and fa-
tigue in the morning; and, that the hungry child is passive, apa-
thetic and timid.

I know all of this comes as no news to you, but I want you to
know that malnutrition is happening in our economically advan-
taged homes, not just in our poorer homes. In this fast moving soci-
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ety that we live in today, there are kids who are hungry or mal-
nourished because their parents are too busy with their jobs to get
to the grocery store.

I feel like I'm one of those parents. They are too busy to prepare
the kind of nutritious meals that I received as a child. There are
many elementary school aged latchkey kids responsible for meal
preparation for their entire family.

There are children whose breakfast consists of what they grab
from the counter or what they grab out of the refrigerator on the
way out the door. My eight-month-old son has a bottle of milk on
the way to the daycare center, and my three-year-old daughter has
her entire breakfast at the daycare center once she gets there.

I am one of those parents, Mr. Martinez, that you were talking
about a few minutes ago.

For the last ten years, the NET program has addressed just these
matters. The NET program needs your help. We are in danger of
becoming defunct. This vital, cost-effective health promotion and
disease prevention program was targeted for elimination in Presi-
dent Reagan’s budget.

We are not clear as to what President Bush intends to do with
the NET program. Without reauthorization and funding, NET will
cease to exist in most states. I was going to tell you how many dol-
lars that meant in California and New York and Pennsylvania,
and also to tell you that half the states in the country are mini-
inum funded states, which means they get less than $50,000 dol-
ars.

When I looked at the dollars, I thought, “They will think they
shouldn’t even be concerned with this program, because there are
so few dollars involved.” I want you to know that you should be
concerned because those few dollars have done an awful lot of good
in this country.

We are not only asking you that NET be reauthorized, but we
are asking you to seriously consider funding NET or restoring the
funds of NET to what it was ten years ago. Ten years ago, we got
fifty cents per child per year for tne NET program. Today, we are
getting less than ten cents per school child per year.

This possible end of the NET program would come at a time
when scientific studies are telling us that five out of ten of the
leading causes of death are caused by diet. Yesterday, I got in my
hands a report from the National Research Council, we says that,
“The health risks and benefits stemming from diet have concluded
that the U.S. public could substantially reduce its risk of heart dis-
ease, cancer and other chronic diseases through specific changes in
eating habits.”

I want to quote again, because I think this is really important,
“The implementation of the recommendations of this National Re-
search Council means that individuals will need to devote more
time and attention to their daily diets and that professionals will
have to assist the public in diet planning. The food processing in-
dustry, restaurants and school cafeterias will be required to alter
their menus and their recipes, while government agencies will need
to consider changes in food and nutrition programs and policies.”

The NET program has been doing that for the last ten years and
we think we can do more. The goals of the NET program were to
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teach children about the relationship between nutrition and
health; to train school food service people, because if those people
that are preparing the meals in the schools don't understand nutri-
tion, then you know what is going to happen to the meals.

We are also supposed to instruct teachers in nutrition and we
are supposed to develop materials and curriculum. NET has done
that. NET has produced materials and programs for handicapped
individuals, for pregnant teens, of which we have a few in this
country, for student athletes and coaches in addition to doing all of
the lthings for the regular kids and teachers and food service
people.

NET programs throughou’ the country have produced remarka-
ble achievements. I say that because of the few dollars that we
have. I want to just mention three things.

In California, there was developed a curriculum called Choose
Well, Be Well. That curriculum not only has been disseminated
across the country of the United States, but is also being used
across the world today.

In New York State, we had an Emmy Award winning television
series called High Feather, and I am very proud of that television
series,

Finally, just to mention a third thing, in Pennsylvania, there is
now under development a school breakfast campaign that targets
at-risk students. As far as I am concerned, that model is destined to
become a national model for this country, but not if we don’t have
NET monies next year. '

State evaluations from across the country show that we have sig-
nificantly improved knowledge and attitudes and practices with
our NET activities. All of our states can provide you with those
kinds of statistics. Unfortunately, formal eval" -ion has been se-
verely curtailed due to funding.

These successes notwithstanding, there is still much to be dore.
Because of decreased funding in recent years, we have been unable
to reach many segments of our population. I mentioned our three
target audiences—children, school food service people and teachers.

What has happened with the NET programs in many states be-
cause of decreased funding is that we have had to choose one of the
three or two of the three populations to focus on and have not been
able to focus on all three.

I mentioned to you before NET was funded at $26 million ten
years ago at fifty cents per school child. I also mentioned that it
was less than ten cents per school child. T want you to know what
the difference in numbers means.

NET now reaches only—these are numbers as of last year—
85,000 teachers; 67 school food service personnel; and 2.2 million
students. From figures years ago, we reached 211,000 teachers,
103,000 food service workers, and 5.6 million students. That goes to
show you the difference in what we can do with dollars.

The public’s interests and concerns regarding the nutritional
quality of school breakfast and lunch cannot be overlooked. Now,
more than ever, our NET prog:am needs to provide leadership and
guidance to the school lunch program in the form of nutrition edu-
cation and training for school food service people.
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In New York, we have used our NET funds to broker getting
some state dollars to provide trainer to school food service people
in the way of a statewide network of trainers.

Nutrition is a dynamic science. It changes every day. Our materi-
als are outdated. The amount of work that we are able to do is not
the same as it used to be.

I am asking you to support the reauthorization of the NET pro-
gram and that you consider this gradual increase of funds back to
the original funding over a period of five years.

These additional funds would result in cost savings in the way of
health care costs in this country. As our NET coordinator from
North Dakota said to me the other day on the phone, “I use this
quote when I am doing training: Nutrition is to health as reading
is to learning.”

I thank you for your time and for your concern.

[The prepared statement of Rebecca Gardner follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and members of the subconmittee, I anm
speaking on behalf of koth the National Association of State
Nutrition Education and Training (N.E.T.) Program Coordinators
(NASNET), of which I am past-president, and the Society of
Nutr‘tion Education (SNE), of which I am a menber. These
organizations have made the continuation of the Nutrition
Education and Training (NET) Program cne of their highest
priorities.

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before your
conmittee, to testify on behalf of these organizations and th:2
many individuals participating and benefiting from the NET
program. We appreciate the leadership which this coarittee has
given to nutrition programs over the years. We know nutrition is
clearly related to education.

The National Education Association (NEA) Just last week
released a document prepared by <%the Food Research and Action
Center (FRAC) called The Relationship Between Nutyition and
Learning. In the introduction the President of NEA said, and I
quote, "Growing numbers of our students are coning to school
burdened with disadvantages. More are poor and, because Of
poverty, more are ill-fed. To help these students succeed in
schocl, we must not only have high academic standards, but we
must deal with the students' needs. Children cannot learn if
they are malnourished or if they are too poor tc have enough to
eat." I want you to know that malnutrition is happening in our

econcmically advantaged homes not just in our pocrer homes. 1In
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Mr. chairman and members of the subcormittee, I an
speaking on behalf of both the National Association of State

Nutrition Education and Training (N.E.T.) Program Coordinators

(NASNET), of waich I am past-president, and the Society of
Nutrition Ed:cation (SNE), of which I am a member. These
organizations have made the continuation of the Nutrition
Education and Training (NET) Program one of their highest
priorities.

Thank Yyou for the opportunity to appear before Yyour
cummittee, to testify on behalf of these organizations and the
many individuals participating and benefiting from the NET
progran. We appreciate the leadership which this comnittee has
given to nutrition programs over the years. We know nutrition is
clearly related to education.

The National Education Association (NEA) Jjust last week
released a document prepared by the Food Research and Action
Center (FRAC) called Tha Relationship Between Nutration and
Learning. In the introduction the President of NEA said, and I

quote, "Growing numbers of our students are coning to school
burdened with disadvantages. More are poor and, because of
poverty, more are ill~-fed. To help these students succeed in

school, we must not only have high academic standards, but ve
rust deal with the students' needs. Children cannot learn if
they are mulnourished or if they are too poor to have enough to
eat." I want you to know %hat malnutrition is happening in our

economically advantaged homes not just in our poorer homes. 1In
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our "fast-moving® society today there are kids who are hungry or
malnourished because their parents are so busy with their Jjobs
that they do not have time to grocery shop or to prepare the kind
of nutritious meals that they received as a child. There are
elementary school aged "latchkey kids" responsible for meal
preparation for their entire family. There are children whose
breakfast consists of what they can grab from the counter or
refrigerator as they go out the door to school. My eight moath
old son has a bottle on the way to the daycare center. He
receives cereal and fruit from the caregivers later. My three
year old has her entire breakfast at the Center.

This NEA report cites research findings that indicate that
hunger leads to nervousness, irritability and disinterest:; that
skipping breakfast often causes nausea, dizziness, headache and
fatigue in the morning:; and that the hungry child is passive,
apathetic and¢ timid.

For the last 10 years, the NET Program has addressed these
issues. The NET program needs your help. This vital, cost-
effective health promotion and disease prevention program was
targeted for elimination in President Reagan's FY '90 budget. We
are not clear about what the effect of President Bush's freeze on
child nutrition programs will mean for NET. Without Federal
reauthorization and funding, NET will cease to exist in most
states. Fecr California this would mean a loss of $456,000; for
Michigan, $164,000; for Pennsylvania $186,000 and for my own
state of New York, $290,000. Approximately half of the states in

this country are minimum grant states that stand to lose their
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111 funding of $50,000. We are not only asking that NET be
reauthorized, but that you seriously consider a -estoration of
the NET Zunding to $.50/school child/year over a five year
period. NET began at this 1evel ten years ago.

This possible end of the NET Progrm would come at a time
when sclentific studies link five of the ten leading causes of
illness and death in _he United States to diet, and when the
Suxgeon General's Report on Nutwvitiopn and Health of 1988 states,
"Educating the public about the dietary choices most conducive tn
prevention and control of certain chronic diseases is essential.
Educational efforts should begin in primary school and continue
throughout the s~condary grades.,." Just last nmonta,
reccnnendations from the National Cholesterol Education Program
stated that we nust begin with school age children.

The NET prograrm is equippad to do just that: educate our
children, teachers and food service personnel as well as parents
about nutrition. NET is a family nutrition education program.
It fills the gap between WIC and Meals on Wheels. The NET
progran care into existence in 1977 as an amendment to “he child
Nutrition Act of 1966 (D.L. 95-166). The goals of the progran as
established by law include: 1) teaching children about nitrition
and its relationship to health; 2) training school food service
personnel in the principles and practices of food service
ranagement; 3) instructing teachers 1irn sound principles of
nutrition education; ana 4) developing and using classroon
materials an¢ curricula.

NET funds have been used to produce specialized nutrition
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materials and education programs for handicapped individuals,
pregnant teens, student athletes and coaches, In addition, it has
provided training to teachers, children, parents, and food
service personnel in child care programs through tha twelfth
grade. NET programs throughout the country have achieved
remarkably impressive accomplishments despite limited funding
such as the development of:

o the highly-acclaimed California "Chocse Well-Be-Well
Nutrition Education Curriculum Guide now used world-
wide;

[ the Emmy Award winning television series "High Feather"
developed in my own State of New York: and

o the Pennsylvania School Breakfast Campaign especially
targeting ‘"high-risk" youth destined to become a
national model.

And I could go on.

State avaluations from across the country show a significant
improvement in knowledge, attitudes, and nutritional practices of
children, teachers, and school food service personnel as a result
of NET activities., In Ohio, 70 percent of the teachers indicated
that the Ohio Integrated Nutrition Activities process model,
developed with NET funds, helped them to teach students to know

. and eat a varlety of foods, In Texas, 17 of 23 {ormal
evaluations of nutrition knowledge, attitudes, and behavior were
significantly positive, and none were negative. Many states can
provide similar statistics, though formal evaluation has been

severely curtailed due to reductions in funding.
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A 1985 investigation intc the effectiveness of nutrition
education, conducted by the University of Minnesota for the
National Dairy Council and published by the Scciety fur Nutrition
Educaticon, resuvited in three major findings. The first is that
nutrition education results in a marked increase in knowledge in
nutrition. The second is that nutrition education results in
some increase in positiveness of attitudes toward eating
nutriticusly. The third is that nutrition education results in
constructive changes in participants' patterns of food
consunption. Thus, this study confirmed what we in the NET
program have demonstrated time and again, that nutrition
education works!

These successes notwithstanding, there is still much to be
done. Because of decreased funding in recent years, we have been
unable to reach large segments of the school population. The
original NET funding, established at a level of $26 million
nationwide, providad states wlth 36 ceuts per child per year. 1In
FY '80 funding dropped to $20 million; in FY 81 it dropped to $15
million; and in FY '82 it was reduced to its present level of $5
million. As a result, the program now reaches only 85,000
teachers, 67,000 food service personnel, and 2.2 million students
as compared to the 211,000 teachers, 103,00C food service
personnel, and 5.6 million students reached with the original
funding level.

The public's interest and concern regarding the nutritional
quality of school breakfast and lunch meals cannot be overlooked.

Now more than ever, our schools need the NET program to provide
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leadership and gquidance in the form of nutrition education and
training to the school food service personnel. This training
needs to be expanded so that all children can have access to high
quality, nutritious neals. In New York State we have captured
some State dollars to combine with Federal NET dollars to
establish a statewide network of trainers to train schocl food
service personnel,

Many states are finding it difficult to continue to meet the
needs of the students, teachers and school food service personnel
at the current $5 million funding level. Many of the college-
level nutrition courses for school food service personnel and
teachers have been discontinued and training programs cut back,
Mass media nutrition education programs for students have also
been curtailed or eliminated.

Nutrition is a dynamic science, and as such there 1is a

*

continual need to upgrade and re.'se nutrition education
programs, Many of the curricula and training manuals developed
by NET, and many of the resources purchased by NET for its
leading libraries, are now out-of-date, These materials need to
reflect current scientific knowledge regarding the relationship
of diet to heart disease and cancer, New materials rust be
developed tc meet emerging needs.

We ask that you support the reauthorization of the NET
program and that you consider a gradual increase in funds, over
the next five years, restoring NET to its original funding

level, These additional funds would ultimately result in a cost

savings, Health care costs will decrease as healthy food habits
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are established, As our NET Coordinator from North Dakota has
said," Nutrition is to health as reading is to learning."

Thank you for your time and concern,

Q
ERIC i

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




181

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Gardner.

We will hold all questions for the witnesses until after the panel
has completed its testimony.

With that, we will now move to the second witness, Edward
Cooney.

Mr. CooNEy. Thank you, Mr. Martinez and Mr. Gnodling and the
other members of the subcommittee for allowing me to present this
testimony. The Food Research and Action Center is a nonpartisan
center seeking lasting solutions to hunger and poverty in America.

Today, I am accompanied by Linda Locke, who is Director of Ad-
vocacy for CCCC in Louisville, Kentucky. This is a child care food
program sponsor, and she is a member of the CCFP Sponsor
Forum, which represents over four hundred CCFP sponsors around
the country and over one million children. The Forum has a par-
ticular emphasis on the family daycare program.

Ms. Locke is here to respond to any questions that any members
might have on the Child Care Fooc Program.

Today, I would like emphasize taree particular areas. One is the
Reagan-Bush budget plan and its impact on School Lunch and
Child Care; the second is increased funding for the Women, Infants
and Children’s Program; and, thirdly, are improvements needed in
the Summe: Food, School Breakfast, Child Care Food and Nutri-
tion Education and Training areas.

At FRAC, we believe that good nutrition has a physical, emotion-
al and intellectual impact on a child’s ability to learn. The two
most important legislative events that will impact on this relation-
ship with nutrition and learning for our children this session are
the budget resolution and the Child Nutrition Reauthorization Biil.

Both legislative vehicles allow Congress an opportunity to make
important imp. ~vements in child nutrition programs, yet both leg-
islative vehicles also allow Congress to make spending reductions
in child nutrition programs.

We oppose the one billion dollars in child nutrition cuts from the
Reagan budget and recommend certain improvements in the
School Lunch and child nutrition programs which will cost approxi-
mately $200 million in Fiscal Year 1990.

On the Reagan-Bush budget plan, it is clear that Candidate Bush
stated how he would request sufficient funding for important pro-
‘gi"aéns designed to reach young children, such as School Lunch and

I

As president, he has 1ssued a budget, as Mr. Goodlinger pointed
out, and based upon available documents, it does appear that a cur-
rent services budget is recommend for School Lunch, Child Care
and related programs.

However, this particular plan does subject hundreds of primarily
non-defense discretionary programs, of which this com mittee has
jurisdiction over several hundred. These programs are subject to an
outlay freeze, meaning simply that these , -ograms would, if this
were pursued uniformly, get the same amount of money in 1990 as
th2y would in 1989. That would ascume, of course, that a child who
needed immunization was going to cost the same amount rext year
as it does this year.

The Bush budget plan also calls for, overall, $21 billion in cuts in
comestin spending programs. Now, in his confirmation hearing,
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Secretary Yeutter quite clearly indicated that, for him, he was in
favor of cuts in Section 4.

Now, on Tuesday, Mr. Goodling got involved in some either
across-town or across-education in terms of Section 4 and the Secre-
tary did say before the Budget Commitwee that in the Bush budget,
Child Nutrition cuts were out and that the nutrition community
should be happy.

I would note for the record, he said, “Be happy” and he did not
say “Don’t worry.”

Yesterday, The Washington Post reported a study about how the
Reagan budget cutback proposals are now seen as the starting
point for budget negotiations. We also, on the basis of information
and belief, believe that the United States Department of Agricul-
ture staff is currently drafting options for child nutrition budget
cuts.

This is not surprising. Federal agencies do that all the time.
They are not drafting proposals for outreach and training and tech-
nical assistance that the Department can provide to child care
sponsors or to parents wanting information about the School
Breakfast Program, but they are preparing drafts on cuts.

In the way of summary, I would just say the only definitive state-
ment that we can make about whether or not there are school
lunch cuts in the budget are that they are technically not in the
Bush budget, but certainly not off the bargaining table.

Now, Chairman Watkins asked Shirley Watkins and Charlie
Hughes on Tuesday to work hard against these cuts and we want
to assure the Chairman that we will also go to the mats on this—
that is m-a-t-s as well as m-a-t-z—in terms of trying to fight these
cuts.

Our recommendation is that the committee get a definitive
answer on March 23rd when the Secretary testifies before this com-
mittee. The hud%et resolution is a battle of priorities: Do we fund
child nutrition? Do we fund defense? Do we fund space?

We believe that children should be our first priority. Borrowing a
quote from Senator Hawkins, which he uced in a presentation at-
tacking the School Lunch cut, the Senator noted that Margaret
Meade said, “We have to have a place where children can have a
whole group of adults that they can trust.”

The Education and Labor Committee has always been such a
place. We will work hard to make sure the Budget Committee is
such a place as well. We oppose those cuts.

Our second topic is on the WIC program, but I notice that my
colleague, Mr. Greenstein, is here. He is certainly one of the key
figures in keeping WIC lit. I am going to defer any discussion of
that particular topic, except to indicate for the record that we favor
increased funding for WIC. It is one of our top priorities. This view
is wildly shared.

I have attached to my testimony a petition waich seeks increased
funding for WIC over the next four or five years on a continuing
basis, which is signed by 93 national organizations representing
education groups, unions, commodity groups, nutrition and health
groups, children’s groups as well as religious organizations.

I would also like to note that Bread for the World will be submit-
ting testimony today for the record. They are one of the principal
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organizations trying to expand this program. They have a state-
ment that is signed by the heads of the denominations of 38 of the
major religious organizations in this country seeking increased
funding for WIC.

We are also interested in some of the smaller programs. We
would urge the committee to take a look at the Summer Food Pro-

ram, to allow low income children access to that program by al-
owing, in certain circumstances, private nonprofit sponsors to par-
ticipate in that program.

We do ackncwledge that there has been a problem with such
sponsors in 1977, bat we believe that legislation can be crafted lim-
iting the number of sites and the size of the sponsors as well as
certain accountability requirements so that we could overcome any
problems that we have had in the past.

Think about it for a minute. There are 12 million children that
participate in the School Lunch Program for nine months of the
year, vet in Fiscal Year 1986, the most recent data available from
USDA’s recent study of the Suminer Food Program, only 1.5 mil-
lion low-income children participated.

We know for a fact, from USDA studies, that these kids get any-
where from one-third to one-half of their total daily nutrient
intake from that school lunch. We just cannot support a situation
where they only get that kind of nutritional quality nine months of
the year.

What happens to the other ten million kids that do not partici-
pate? Well, food banks. They tell us that the greatest need for food
is not Thanksgiving or Christmas, but summer, when the kids are
out of school.

We urge you to take a look at this provision. We would certainly
work with the committee and the committee’s staff to design some-
thing that is safe, accountable, yet provides meals to these kids
during the summer.

We would also urge the committee to take a look at the School
Breakfast Program, a program where, even though we have evi-
dence now that eating a school breakfast for low-income kids is as-
sociated with significant improvement in achievement test scores
and reduced rates of tardiness and absenteeism, it is only available
in one-third of the schools in this country. There are 95,000 schools
that participate in the School Lunch Program, but only 37,000
schools that participate in the Breakfast Program.

We think that there is a need for outreach funds, as well as
start-up funds in that category. Also, it would be nice if USDA
could provide some training and technical assistance to local
groups on these issues.

On the Child Care Food Program, we think it is very important
that outreach funds anc raining and technical .assistance be made
available by the National USDA Office and its regional offices.

Over three-fourths of family daycare providers currently are not
licensed and, as Ms. Locke points out in her testimony, there are
barriers to participation in the low-income community. Things like
language, literacy, geography and fear have to be overcome.

We need people out there that are sensitive to the issues in the
low-income community that can bring them into this program so
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that hey are licensed and they get the benefits of a nutritional
program.

We also s.ipport the testimony that Ms. Gardner gave from New
York on the Nutrition, Education and Training Program. We think
that it is not necessary to have $6.4 million to go for a third level
audit. We suggest that those funds be transferred this year to the
NET Program.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Edward M. Cooney follows:]
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Testimony of

Edward M. Cooney
Deputy Director

Food Research and Action Center
Before the

Committee on Education and Labor Subcommittee on
Elementary, Secondary and Vocational Education

United States House of Representatives

March 2, 1989

Mr. Chairman, Mr. Goodling, members of the Committee, I am Edward
Cooney, Deputy Director of the Food Research and Action Center,
(FRAC). FRAC is a nonpartisan center seeking lasting solutions
to hunger, malnutrition and poverty in America. As a national
organization based in Washington, DC, FRAC works with
individuals, elected officials, religious greups, civic leaders,
educators and the business community to solve one of America's

most serious domestic problems -- hunger 1in the midst of plenty.

I am accompanied by Linda Locke, Director of Advocacy for *he
Coordinated Community Child Care Program of Louisville. s,
Locke is submitting testimony for the record and 1is present today
to respond to any questions relating to the Child Care Food
Program. Both Ms, Locke and I are merbers of the Steering
Committee of the Child Care Food Program Sponsors Forum. The

Forum is composed of sponsors of amily day care homes which

participate in CCFP. The purpose of tne Forum 1s to:
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w, . .assist in the creation of a community of member organizations
dedicated to the ideals of high guality meal service and

nutrition training in the family day care setting."

Mr. Chairman. Many witnesses who have come before this committee
have highlighted the fact that children are the poorest class of
people in America. As you have heard so many times before, over
20 percent of children under age 18 live 1n poor families -~ one
in five. It comes as no great surprise that among these children
hunger and undernutrition are growing problems. That is the bad
news. The good news 1s that, while we as a country can not solve
all of our social ills at once, we can do something about hunger

among children.

That's why, in large part, we have child nutrition programs.
These programs allow poor children nutritious meals and as a
result access to egual educational opportunity. As my colleague
Lynn Parker pointed out in The Relationship Between Nutrition

anc Learnina: A School Emplovee's Guide to Information and

Action:" If you care about education, you should care abcut
nutrition because nutrition has a strong physical, emotional, and
intellectual impact on a child's ability to learn."” Indeed, as
Merrill S. Read argues in Malnutrition and Behavijor,
",...nutrition is one of the most pervasive factors 1nfluencing

growth, developneant and health. It 1s, in fact, central to child
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development," The thrust of my testimony will deal with the
threat to the nutritional status of all children, but
particularly low-incom- children, by potential cuts 1in subsidies
to schools for meals served to children whose family income
exceeds 185%, I :ill also present FRAC's legislative
recommendations for 1mproving the nutritional status of low-
income children by providing them increased access to child
jutrition programs through amendments to H.R. 24, the FY1990
Child Nutrition Reauthorization Bill. Our principal focus thas
year will be a request for increased funding f-r WIC and changing
the program from a discretionary program to a mandatory spending

program.

Mr. Chairman, before discussing H.R.24 in detail, I would like to

comment on the budget.

The Bush Budget Plan

It appears that the Bush budnet plan, unlike the plan submitted

by President Reagan, provides a current services budget for

School Lunch, Breakfast, child Care Food and other related child

nutrition programs.

What then is the effect of the administration's budget plan on
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School Lunch, Child Care Food and other child nutrition programs?
Can we actually expect no cuts in child nutrition programs? The
answer is very unclear. In a campaign position paper titled
"Invest In Our Children" (1issued October 1988) Candidate Bush
stated that he would: "...request sufficient funding for
important programs designed to reach young children =-- such as
the school lunch program, and the Women, Infants, and Children's
program." However, after reading the President's FY1990 Budget
Plan, "Building A Better America", the only definitive statement
that can be made is that cuts 1in the school lunch and related
programs are technically out of the Bush budget but not off the
bargaining table in any White House/Congressional Budget Summit.
The reason is that the administration is seeking $21 billion in
cuts in domestic programs. (This includes $11 billion in
Medicare, farm price supports and cuts in COLA's for selected
retirement programs and approximately $10 billion from primarily

non-defense discretionary programs in the so-called "Black Box".)

Regrettably, while the new Administration has frequently
indicated a desire to increase funding for the Special
Supplemental Food Program for Woumen, Infants and Children (WIC),
this program is in the "Black Box". Programs in the "Black Box"
are collectively subject to an outlay freeze, 1.e., funding in
FY1990 at the same level as in FY198%. The Senate Budget
Committee staff analysis of the Bush Budget points out that

approximately 150,000 fewer participants could be served if such
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an outlay freeze were implemented in the WIC program. Any
funding increase in FY1990 for WIC would have to come at the
expense of a substanti 1 cutback in another program. I would
submit that funding for school lunch, WIC and related programs
remains at risk during the budget debate. It is entirely
possible that the new administration could advocate all or part
of the Reagan cuts in child nutrition. In fact, in answer to
questions presented by the Senate Agriculture Committee,
Secretary Yeutter expressed support for such cutbacks. As part

of the confirmation hearing process, Senator Harkin asked the

Secretary if he viewed Section 4 subsidies as = transfer payment

to individual children or as a grant-in-aid to schools to support
the basic structure of a school tunch program that allows a local
community to serve all children including pnor and middle class

children. The Secretary responded, "...the proposal to eliminate

Section 4 funding will not in the judgement of FNS, undermine the
infrastructure of the National School Lunch Program because free
and reduced price subsidies, State and local contributions and
student revenues will continue to pay for basic operating

expenses, such as kitchen staff and overhead." We disagree.

Other members of the Agriculture Committee, including Senators
Lugar and Boschwitz, raised similar questions on school lunch.
The Secretary's responses to their questions also indicated that
the threat to school lunch and other child nutrition programs

remains real. For the record, we opposed the Reagan
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Administration's proposals for reductions in child nutrition

spending.

We believe that the elimination of cash and commodity subsidies,
popularly known as "Section 4", has the potential to adversely
affect the nuirition and health status of low-income children
participating in federal child nutrition programs. The FY1982
cuts demonstrated that when the price of a school lunch goes up,
students begin to drop out and when too many students drop out,
the program closes, leaving poor children with the option of
going hungry or paying full price for a lunch contracted for by
the school. With “he increased evidence of the relationship
between nutrition and learning, terminating this subsidy is
foolhardy national policy. Simply stated: Hungry Children Can

Not. Learn As Well As Other Children!

The U.S. Department of Agriculture's 4 year $4 million study, The
National Evaluation of School Nutrition Programs, found a direct
link between the price of school lunch and student participation.
This study concluded: "The pric? that a student pays for the
meal is the most important single variable that affects the
frequency of lunch participation. For school lunches above a
price of 80 cents, it is estimated that a 10% increase in price

will yield a 10% or higher decrease in participation.®

The American School Food Service Association estimates

¢
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conservatively that between 10,000 - 15,000 schools and 5 to 8
million children will drop out of the school nutrition prograns
if this subsidy is eliminated. Citing a Library of Congress
study, ASFSA has stated that as many as 43,000 schools with more
than 21 million students may be "at risk" of dropping out of the
National School Lunch Program. 1In FY1982, 2,000 schools and over
2 million children (including over 750,000 low income children)
dropped out of the School Lunch Program and 650 schools and
nearly 500,000 children dropped out of the Breakfast Program
after an 11 cent cut in the lunch subsidy and a smaller cut in
the breakfast subsidy were implemented. The cuts in
reimbursement rates and other factors clearly had an impact on
certain school boards deciding whether or not to continue
participating in the yational School Lunch Program -- a

voluntary program.

4 separate but related concern 1¢ that since there a*e no schools
in the country that offer a school breakfast but not a school
lunch, the impact of this "school lunch cut” on the potential
expansion of the School Breakfast Proqram can not be

overestimated.

Will the Reagan child nutrition cuts reappear in the White
House/Congressional Budget negotjations? The Washington Ppost
reported yesterday that the Bush budget plan will in fact use

"some" of the Reagan cutback proposals as a starting point. 1Is
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child nutrition one of the proposals? It is still unknown.

The release of a Congressional Budget Office option paper, which
includes a proposal to eliminate "cash subsidies" to schools for
students whose families's incomes exceed 185% of poverty is yet
another indication that child nutrition cutback proposals are
still alive. These programs are subject to cuts in the budget
and reauthorization processes, and the child nutrition community
intends to remain vigilant about all attempts to cut those

programs.

I would urge the Committee to question the Secretary at the
Committee's March 23rd hearing on what the current position of
the Department is on Secticn 4 payments to schools for meals
served to students whose family income exceeds 185% of poverty.
Are these cuts out of the budget but still on the bargaining

table?

The budget battle is a major priority and we believe that school
lunch and child nutr:ition programs need to be fully funded if
these programs are to achieve their stated purpose: ".,.as a
measure of national secur:ity, to safeguard the health and well
being of the Nation's children.." Children are what the school
lunch program is all about. In a recent speech at the American
School Food Service Associration Industry Seminar, Senator Tom

Harkin described America's schools, classrooms and lunchrooms in
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the words of Margaret Mead in the following manner, "We must have
a place where children can have a whole group of adults they can
trust." The Education and Labor Committee is such a place as

well. We urge rejection of these -‘uts!

Mr, cChairman, I would like to turn now to H,R.24

1. Increased Funding for the Special Supplemental Food program

for Women, Infants and Children (WIC)

We support a mandatory funding increase for WIC of $150 million
each Year for the length of the reauthorization bill, A growing
list of national organizations and the private sector also
support increased funding for WIC and I have attached a list of
such organizations that have endorsed a petition for an Assured

WIC Funding Increase,

For the past two Years, the Budget Resolution has contained $150
million in new funding for WIC, but last year the appropriation
only allowed for $55 million in new funding. The Appropriations

Committee has given WIC modest increases over the last sevaral
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years. Each year this commictee has been forced to choose among
competing priorities within each subcommittee. This process is
complicated by the fact that spending allocations to key House
and Senate appropriations subcommittees have varied widely.
Developing a new approach for assured funding would be one way of
conforming budget assumptions for WIC spending to the realities
of the appropriations process and not place the Appropriations
Committee in the impossible position of trying to allocate too

few funds to too many progranms.

As a way to "assure increased funding"”, we recommend that WIC be
changed from a discretionary program to a program which receives
a guaranteed increase. We are not seeking entitlement status for
WIC, evaen though nearly all other child rutrition programs are
entitlements. In a pure entitlement program, all who are
eligible can participate and Congress is required to appropriate
the funds. We are taking a somewhat different approach by asking
that the budget and authorizing committees guarantee the
increases that they have only "assumed" -- and that often have
not ultimately been appropriated -- in the past. 1In practical
terms, we are recommending that $150 million above current
services (new money) be added each year to WIC over the life of
the Child Nutrition Reauthorization Bill. We believe that this
funding level, coupled with program expansion through funds saved
through infant formula rebates and added through state

supplemental funds will, over a four to five year perxiod, bring
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us Close to serving most of the eligible WIC population.

2. Increasing access for low-income chilg in t od
Sexvice Program for children

There are 24 million children who receive a school lunch daily in
the United States, for 9 months of the school year. USDA studies
have shown that low-income children receive anywhere from 1/3 to
1/2 of their total dailvy putrient jintake from this lunch. The
Summer Food Program is designed to provide the same nutritious
meals to children ac the School Lunch Program. 1Indeed, a recent
study of the Summer Food Programs (1988) found that 94% of the
meal sites served lunches that provided at least one third of the
Recommended Dietary Allowances, the same nutrition standard for
the School Lunch Program. Yet, this study showed that in FY1986,
this progyram only served 1.5 million children in the peak month

of July.

What happens to the other 10 millinn low-income children during
the summer? Food banks often tell us that their greatest need

for food is not Thanksgiving or Christmas but "summer, when the

kids are out of school."

A principal reason that low-income children do not have access tc

the Summer Food Program is that Congress, at the urging of the

11
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Reagan administration, eliminated private non-profit sponsors

from the program in 1981,

Now only schools and public entities like city governments and
residential camps can sponsor programs. Some local governments
have not been interested in sponsoring the program and many
school systems close for the summer. As a result, millions of
low~income children have access to nutritious meals for only 9
months of the school year. Limited restoration of private
nonprofit sponsorship to the Summer Food Program will allow
access to this proyram for low-income children. Currently, there
is a 5-state demonstration project in Arkansas, Nevada,
Magsachusetts, North Carolina and Texas, which allows private
non-profit sponsors to participate. Every state should be
allowed to have such sponsors if this program is expected to

reach more needy children.

3. Provide Start-up and Nutreach Funds for “he School Breakfast

Program

New research shows that eating breakfast at school is associated
with significant improvement in achievement test scores, and
reduced rates of tardiness and absenteeism, vYet only one-third

of the schools that have a school lunch program offer a school
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treakfast program. As a financial incentive tor local schools t¢
initiate a program, we need $10 miliion in start-up funds. The
provision of start-up funds would enable schools to enlarge
refrigeration capacity and make necessary administrative
adjustments. Outreach funds are needed so that parents and
school officials can learn about the benefits of school breakfast
and obtain information which could help them in making the

aecision to initiate a School Breakfast Program.

The Food Research and Action Center has initiated a national
campaign to expand the School Breakfast Program. Nearly 50
national organizations have endorsed this campaign to provide
parents and local school boards with information on how to start
a school breakfast program. If the school breakfast program is
going to expand locally, it wi'l be critical that school
administrators, parents, school food service workers and
nutrition program advocates work together. But Congress can also
p'ay an important role 1in this effort. In addition to providing
start-up and outreach funding, we would recommend that state
agencies be required to target which schools with significant
proportions of low-income students will be part of their state
agencies' efforts to expand the schuol breakfast program in their
states. Also, we urge a requirement that USDA and its regional
offices r-ovide training and technical assistance to State
Departments of Education and groups within the nutrition

community on how to start a quality school breakfast program.
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4. Child care Food Program (CCFP)

Low-incoma children need access to CCFP and improved nutritional

services. <Congress could support this goal by:

o changing the definition of eligibility for "for-profit
sponsors" who currently must have 25% of their children
receiving title XX to a new eligibility standard: requiring
that 25% of their children be eligible for free and reduced

priced meals.
© simplifying and minimizing paperwork reqguirements

o providing an additional meal or snack for children in family

day care homes

5. Nutrition and Education Training Program
The MET Program is a health and nutrition promotion as well as a
disease prevention program, autherized in 1977 under public Law

14
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95-166 which amended the Ch'ld Nutrition Act of 1966.

The goals of the program include:

o reaching children with information about the nutritional
value of foods and the relationships among food, nutrition,

and health;

o helping integrate effective nutrition learning activities
into instruction at all grade levels from preschool through

high school;

© assuring that nutritious, appealing, safe meals and snacks

are served in schools and child care facilities.

NET is one of the most successful nutrition programs, but is

severely underfunded. Funds are needed for:

o updating elementary nutrition curricula for schools and

child care centers (currently 8 years out of date)

o developing curricula for teaching the U.S. Dietary

Guidelines to all age groups
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o training new teachers and food service personnel in

nutrition education techniques

There is a need to raise the $5 million authorization level for
NET, which represents the sole federal source of funding for the
nutrition education of children in the federal budget. The child
Nutrition Programs provide children access to food and NET
provides our children with information on the importance of wise

choices in selecting which foodz %o eat.
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PETITION FOR ASSURED WIC FUNDING INCREASE

Whereas, the Special Supplemental Fcod Program for Women, Infants
and children (WIC) provides supplemental food, nutrition
ednication and referral to health care to low income pregnant

women, new mothers and young children at nutritional risk;

Whereas, the WIC program was designed to be a preventive program
to safeguard the health and well-being of these groups of-.

people who are at critical growth periods;

Whereas, research findings have shown that WIC participation has
resulted in a reduction in the late fetal death rate, a
reduction in the chances of having a baby born at low
birthweight, fewer premature births, an increase in the
number of women seeking early prenatal care, an increase in
the head size of :infants born to WIC participants, and

appears to lead to better cognitive performance in children;

Whereas, the WIC program was found to be cost-effective by a
study conducted at the Harvard School of Public Health
showing that each $1 spent on the prenatal component of WIC
saved $3 in hospitalization costs asiociated with low

birthweight and by a study conducted by the Missouri
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Department of Health which found that every $1 invested in
WIC's prenatal component saved 49 cents in Medicaid costs

for nawborns curing the first 45 days of life:

Whereas, in the last year and a halt, the Committee for Economic
Development, the Naticnal Commission to Prevent Infant
Mortality, the American Agenda report from formai Presidents
Gerald Ford and Jimmy Carter to the President-elect, and the
Council on Competitiveness have all made recomnendations for

major WIC expansinn;

Whereas, WIC enjoys strong bi-partisan support in Congress, where
in 1987, a bi-partisan group of more than 200 members of the
Rouse of Representatives signed a iatter calling for funding
increases, while 1n 1988, more than 60 Senators signed

similar letters:;

Whereas, in 1985, over 75,000 Americans signed a Campaign to End
Hunger and Homelessness petition urging WIC funding for all
eligible women, infants and children by the end of this

presidential term;

Whereas, primarily due tc inadequate federal funding, the WIC

progran currently serves only about half of the women,

infants and children who are eligible;
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Whereas, in order to reach women, infants and children who are
currently eligible but unserved, WIC funding needs to be
increased in sur2 and steady increments over several years
and states need to be able to count on and plan for these

increments;

Whereas, the current “discretionary" funding nature of WIC often
makes it impossible for states to know their WIC funding
level for a fiscal year until several months into the year

and can subject program funding to fluctuation;

Whereas, the reauthorization of the WIC program during 1989 can
modify the funding procedures used in the program and
establish funding levels for the program for the next four

to five years;

Therefore, be it resolves, the organizations listed below support
establishing WIC as a "mandatory" spending program with a
specific funding level for each year that is covered by the

reauthorization; and

Further, be it resolved, the listed organizaticne support setting
the funding at levels that wyould provide increments of $150
million plus inflation each fiscal year over the previous

year's funding level.
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CHILD NUTRITION FORUM

NATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS ENDORSING THE
(As of March 2. 1989)

Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union

American Assoclation ot School Administrators

American Dietetic Association

American Federation of Government Employees

American Federation of State, County and
Municipal Employees

American Federation of Teachers

American Home Economics Association

American Medical Student Association

American Nurses Assoclation

American Public Health Association

American School Food Service Association

AssocClation of Community Organizations for
Reforn liow

Association of Junior Leagues

Bread for the World

Center for Community Change

Center for Science 1in the Public Interest

Center on Budget a.d Policy Priorities

Child Welfare League of America

Children's Defense Fund

Children's Foundation

Coalition on Human Needs

Communications Workers of America

Community Nutrition Institute

Congress of National Black Churches

Consurmer Federation of America

Council of Chief State School Officers

Council of Great City Schools

Epilepsy Foundation of America

Family Service America

Food Research and Action Center

Friends Cormmittee on National Legislation

Interfaith Action for Economic Justice

International Federation of Professional and
Technical Engineers

International Ladies Garment Workers Union

Internat:onal Reading Association

Jobs with Peace Campalgn

Lutheran Office for Governmental Affaire

March of Dimes Birth Defects Foundation

Mennonite Central Committee, Washington (ffice

National Ant: Hunger Coalition

National Association for Retardeu Citizens

Nat.cnal Asscciation of Comnmunity Action Agencies

National Association of Commun:ity Health
Care Jonters

Nationil Ascociation of Homes for Children
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National Association of Social Workers

National Association of State Agencles for Food Distribution

National Association of Wheat Producers

National Black Caucus of State Legislatures

National Coalition for the Homeless

National Community Aciion Foundation

National Conference of State Leglslatures

National Congress of American Indians

National Council of Jevish Women

National Council of La Raza

National Council of Senior Citizens

National Education Assocliatinn

National Farmers Union

National Grange

National Milk Producers Federation

National Office of Jesuit Social Ministries

National Organizat:ion for Women

National Perinatal MAssociation

National PTA

Nationat Puerto Rican Coalition

National Rural Health Assoclation

National Rural Housing Coalition

National Student Campaign Against Hunger

National Urban League

National Welfare Rights Union

National Women's Law Center

National Women's Political Caucus

NETWORK: A Catholic Social Justice Lobby

Office of Public Pollicy, Women's Division
United Methodist Church

Project Vote

Public Voice for Food and Health Policy

Results

Religious Action Center

Rural Coalition

Service EmployeeS International Union

Society for Nutrition Education

Unitarian Universalist Assoclation of Congregations 1in North
America, Washington Office

United Auto Workers

United Church of Christ, Office of Church and Soclety

United Food and Commercial Workers

United Mine Workers of America

U.S. Catholic Conference

U.S. Conference of “ayors

Villers Advocacy Assotlates

Washington Office, Church Women United

Washington Office, Eplscopal Church

Washington Office, Presbyterian Church USA

World Hunger Year

YWCA of the USA
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Cooney.

We will now hear from Ms. Dorothy Pannell.

Ms. PANNELL. Mr. Chairman, thank you and members of the
committee. I am Dorothy V. Pannell, Director of Food Services for
Fairfax County Scheols. We are serving over 100,000 customers a
day in a 170 schools.

We serve 17 senior citizen programs Meals-on-Wheels, ninety ex-
tended daycare prograrns, 24 daycare programs, 32 Head Start Pro-
grams, and we are delivering and storing food for distribution to
the needy people in Fairfax County.

I am representing today the Association of Schools for an Alter-
native to Commodities. We appreciate this opportunity to testify
today on their behalf. We feel so strongly about the alternative to
the USDA Commodity Program that over one-third of our members
are here today representing states from as far as Washington State
and California.

We want to thank you for allowing us to continue on the Alter-
native after the study’s completion. We are here today to ask for
some permanency in our situation. The uncertainty of not knowing
when or if we will have to raturn to coinmodities makes it difficult
to do any long-range planning.

Would you please amend H.R. 24 to grandfather the school dis-
tricts that are presently receiving one of the two alternatives? You
would not bo setting a precedent since the State of Kansas was
grandfathered to receive the Alternative CASH in the late 1970s.

Also, several of our school districts have lost funding as a result
of being on the study back in 1981 and ’82. The change in the
method used by USDA to provide us with bonus commodities in
mid-year resulted in us losing money.

In Public Law 100-356, which was enacted last year, you required
payment be made to seven of the school districts. Some received
payment in full and some received partial payment. The remaining
school districts would like to have their money returned, also.

We recommend that the loss be figured on USDA records of the
differences between the amount of bonus commodities that these
school districts received in the school year 1981-1982 and what we
received in 1982-83.

Some of you may be new to the idea of an Alternative to Com-
modities. Briefly, I'd like to explain that 66 school districts partici-
pated in the 1981-84 study. One-half of the school districts received
a voucher called a Commodity-Letter-of-Credit for entitlement com-
modities. One-half received CASH.

The Commodity-Letter-of-Credits are very specific in generic
foods. For example, we will receive CI.OCs for apples, turkeys, beef,
salmon, whatever happens to be the commodity that the USDA is
trying to remove from the market.

When we receive a CLOC, we proceed to buy the foods from the
domestic sources in the form and size pack we (frefer, delivered
when we need it as long as it is within the specified time.

We proved in the study that the voucher system would work for
the smallest school district to the largest school district. Also, the
agricultural economists found no negative effects on agriculture.
The quality control experts from USDA found no negative effects
on the quality of food served children.
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The nutritionists found no negative effert on the nutritional
value received by the children in the schools testing the alterna-
tives.

During this study, we found that there was a better way of ob-
taining foods from USDA that they wished to remove from the
market. As an association, we agree that the advantages of an al-
ternative to the commodity program are as follows.

Food is more economical when the school district purchases it lo-
cally. The USDA can buy some foods for less than we can locally,
but at the point of service, the food is costing us more when we
receive it from USDA than when we purchase it locally due to the
expense of transportation, storage, handling and processing of the
food. Back in the beginning of the study, we found that we could
reduce food costs by as much as ten percent in Fairfax County.

Number two, it is much easier for a school district to plan its
menus when it knows what to expect.

Then, some commodities have caused increased waste and have
lower student participation. Turkey, for example, has many uses;
however, USDA usually gives it to the school districts as whole tur-
keys. Sure, you can have it processed but in the processing con-
tract, the item is being customized for the customer and it does cost
more than having bought the item through a bid process.

We can do more business locally, using one of the Alternatives to
Commodities and we want to do our business locally. For example,
apples we purchase in the State of Virginia, either from Virginia
or Pennsylvania, whereas our counterparts can purchase their
apples in California and Washington State from Washington State
if that be their choice, rather than us receive in Virginia apples
from the State of Washington.

If the school districts are expected to purchase seventy percent of
the food we now use, why not one hundred percent? We also can
utilize more fresh fruits and vegetables when we are purchasing
food locally. It is impractical and undesirable for USDA to try to
deliver fresh produce under the Commodity Program.

We are able to reduce our labor costs and our labor needs as a
result of being able to purchase the food locally. We can purchase
it in the form we can use it. For example, right now, there is a tre-
mendous labor shortage in a number of parts of the country.

In Fairfax right now, we cannot find enough labor to fill our po-
sitions, There is no way we can produce hamburger rolls from raw
ingredients, There is absolutely no way to find the labor, if we
could afford it.

Across the country, labor costs will cause School Lunch programs
to price themselves out of business unless real effort is made to
reduce costs. The Federal reimbursement rates have not quite kept
up with the cost increases that school districts are experiencing.

Most local school districts are presently subsidizing their school
lunch program, but as their budgets become tighter, this will not
be practical for them to continue. We are able to increase the ac-
ceptability and variety in our menus and we can increase participa-
tion using one of the Alternatives to Commodities.

We also find that there is increased fiexibility. We can stabilize
our quality and have increased quality control. We can reduce our
inventory and we can save money there. As a matter of fact, the

no;o,

-

Aot




208

study showed an average of a 33 percent reduction in inventory
during the four years.

We also are a lot fairer to our local farmers, to our distributors
and to our brokers. When we put out a bid, they depend on us to
take the full quantity that we have estimated, if it be potatoes,
pears or whatever.

When we end up getting a commodity that we did not expect, we
cannot sometimes meet our commitment to these bids, and it is dif-
ficult for distributors to do their planning, as well.

We also have reduced storage and delivery costs. Jean McCall,
for example, from Loudon County, Tennessee, serves 3700 a day.
She says it has saved her considerably on transportation and stor-
age.

It also reduces hassle. The arrival of several truckloads of USDA
commodities at one time presents problems. Not receiving your
whole turkeys before Thanksgiving is a real last-minute problem.
Receiving USDA ground beef that has to be recalled—those are
what I mean by hassles.

Also, on the program, we can buy a lot more domestic food. Be-
cause our bid contracts are listing domestic foods, we tend to buy
more of our food from domestic sources as a result.

On the CLOC program, we do have to use our money for pur-
chase of domestic foods and I think it has had some side benefits in
that we, too, influence our distributors. If they are having to buy
tuna from a local or domestic source, they are probably going to
use that same tuna to distribute to their restaurants and other
food services.

The value of the Commodity Program can be greater for more
American farmers than any commodity program where USDA pur-
chases food.

In closing, the Association of Schools for an Alternative to Com-
modities, is asking you to please allow all sites presently in Alter-
native to Commodities Programs to continue on a permanent basis.

Thank you for allowing me to testify.

[The prepared statement of Dorothy V. Pannell follows:]

g
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STATEHENT
SCHOOLS FOR AN ALTERHATIVE TO COMMODITIES
BEFORE THE
COMMITTEE ON EDICATION AND LAROR
SUBCOMMITTEE ON_ELEMENTARY, SECOMDARY, AMD
VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NarcH 2, 1989

HR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMNITTEE, [ aM DoroTHY
V. PanNeLL, DirecTor OF Foob SeErvices, FAIRFAX CounTy (VA)
PuBLiC ScHoOLS, REPRESENTING TODAY THE ASSOCIATION OF
ScHooLs FOR AH ALTERNATIVE To CoMMODITIES. WE APPRECIATE
THIS OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY TODAY ON BEHALF OF THE SIXTY-TWO
SCHOOL DISTRICTS RECEIVING AN ALTERNATIVE 7o THE USDA
CoMMODITY PROGRAM. WE BELIEVE SO MUCH IN THE ALTERNATIVES
FOR ENTITLEMENT COMMODITIES THAT OVER ONE-THIRD OF OUR
SCHOOL DISTRICTS ARE REPRESENTED HERE TODAY FROM AS FAR AWAY
AS CALIFORNIA AND WASHINGTON STATE. WE BELIEVE AN
ALTERNATIVE To THE CoMMODITY PROGRAM 1S THE WAY OF THE

FUTURE AND EVENTUALLY ALL WILL AGREE.

PERMANENT ALTERNATIVES AND COMPENSATION FOR LOSSES

HE WANT TO THANK YOU FOR ALLOWING US TO CONTINUE ON THE
ALTERNATIVES AFTER THE STUDY'S COMPLETION. WE ARE HERE
TODAY TO ASK FOR SOME PERMANENCY IN OUR SITUATION--THE
UNCERTAINTY OF NOT KNOWING WHEN OR IF WE'LL HAVE TO RETURN

TO COMMODITIES MAKES IT DIFFICULT TO DU ANY LONG~RANGE

PLANNING »
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STATEMENT OF ScHooLs FOR ALT. CoMM.
MarcH 2 198%
AGE

WouLD You PLEASE AMEND H.R.24 To GRANDFATHER THE SIXTY-
TWO SCHOOL DISTRICTS, WHEREAS WE WILL CONTINUE TO RECEIVE
ONE OF THE TWO ALTERNATIVES. YOU WOULD NOT BE SETTING A
PRECEDENT SINCE THE STATE OF KANSAS WAS GRANDFATHERED TO
RECEIVE THE ALTERNATIVE CASH IN THE LATE 1970s.

ALSG, SEVERAL OF OUR SCHOOL DISTRICTS LOST FUNDING IN
1982-83 WHEN METHODOLOGICAL CHANGES NERF MADE [N MID-YEAR BY
THE ADMINISTRATION IN HOW THE BONUS COMMODITIES WOULD BE
HANDLED FOR THE SITES PARTICIPATING IN THE STupy OF
ALTERNATIVES TO CoMMODITIES. IN ACCORDANCE WITH PysLIc LAw
100-356, enacTep on June 28, 1988, YOU REQUIRED THAT PAYMENT
BE MADE TO SEVEN OF THE SCHOOL DISTR{CTS, SOME RECEIVED
PAYMENT IN FULL AND OTHERS PARTIAL PAYMENTS. THE REMAINING
SCHOOL DISTRICTS THAT LOST MONEY WOULD LIKE THE SAME
TREATHENT. WE RECOMMEND LOSS BE FIGURED oN USDA’s RECORD OF
THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF BONUS COMMODITIES USED
BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICTS IN SCHOOL YEAR 1981-82 AND WHAT THEY

RECEIVED IH BONUS COMMODITY ASSISTANCE DURING SCHOOL YEAR
1982-83.

OVERVIEY OF THE ALTERNATIVES TO COMMODITIES
SOME OF YOU MAY BE NEw TO THE IDEA OF AN ALTERNATIVE TO
COMMCDITIES. BRIEFLY, 1'D LIKE TO EXPLAIN THAT 66 SCHL L
DISTRICTS PARTICIPATED In THE 1981-84 stupy. ONE-H.LF OF
THE SCHOOL DISTRICTS RECEIVED A VOUCKER—OR CoMMODITY-

LETTER-0F-CREDIT FOR ENTITLEMENT COMMODITIES——AND GNE-HALF

&
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STATMENT OF ScHooLS FOR ALT. CoMM.
MarcH 2, 1989
PaGge 3

RECEIVED CASR.  Tue CoMMODITY-LETTERS-0F-CREDIT (CALLED
CLOCs) ARE FOR SPECIFIC GENERIC FOODS, E.G. APPLES, TURKEY,
BEEF, SALMON, ETC. OncE we receive A CLOC we proceep 1o -
PURCHASE THE FOODS FROM DOMESTIC SOURCES IN THE FORM AND
SIZE PACK WE PREFER, DELIVERED WHEN WE NEED [T AS LONG AS IT
IS WITHIN THE TIME SPECIFIED.
WE PROVED IN THE STUDY THAT THE VOUCHER SYSTEM WOULD
WORK FGR THE SMALLEST TO THE LARGEST SCHOOL DISTRICT. ALSO,
* THE AGRICULTURAL ECONOMISTS FOUND NO NEGATIVE EFFECT
ON AGRICULTURE,
* THE QUALITY CONTROL EXPERTS FROM USDA FouND NO
NEGATIVE EFFECTS ON QUALITY OF FOOD SERVED CH{LDREN-
" THE NUTRITIONISTS FOUND NO HEGATIVE EFFECTS ON THE
NUTRITIONAL VALUES RECEIVED BY THE CHILDREN IN

SCHOOLS TESTING AN ALTERNATIVE.

Since CLOCs po DESIGNATE FOODS, THE VOUCHER CAN HOVE
SURPLUS F00DS, THOSE oN THE CASH ALTERNATIVE HAD NO PROBLEM
HANDLING THEIR ALTERNATIVE; HOWEVER, THERE IS NO TIE To

SPECIFIC FARM PRODUCTS.

ADVAHTAGES TO ALTERNATIVES
DURING THE STUDY, WE FOUND THERE WAS A BETTER WAY OF
OBTAINING THE FooDs USDA wANTED To REMOVE FROM THE MARKET.
As AN ASSOCIATION, WE AGREE THAT THE ADVANTAGES OF AN

ALTERNATIVE TO THE COMMODITY PROGRAM ARE:

O a9 -
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STATEMENT OF SCHOOLS FOR ALT. COMM.
MARCH 2, 1989

Page &

1. Foob MORE ECONOMICAL TO THE SCHOOL DISTRICT WHEN
PURCHASED LOCALLY As NEEDED. USDA caN Ruy SOME
FOODS AT A BETTER PRICE, BUT AT THE POINT OF
SERVICE, THE PRICE OF THOSE FOODS IS SENERALLY
MUCH HIGHER THAN WHEN THE PRODUCT 1S PURCHASED
LOCALLY. THIS IS DUE TO EXPENSES INVOLVED [N
TRANSPORTING, $TORING, HANDLING, AND;PROCESSING
FOODS INTO UZABLE PRODUCTS. BACK IN THE BEGINNING

OF THE STUDY WE REDUCED OUR FOOD cOST BY 10
PERCENT.

2. MucH EASIER FOR A SCHOOL DISTRICT YO PLAN MENUS
WHEN WE MAKE THE PURCHASE BECAUSE WE ARE IN

CONTROL OF WHEN FOOD WILL ARRIVE.

5. SOME COMMODITIES CAUSE INCREASED WASTE AND LOWER
STUDENT ACCEPTANCE. TURKEY, FOR EXAMPLE, HAS s0
MANY USES, SUCH AS TURKEY HAM, BOLOGNA, SALAMI,
AND HOT D0GS. THE CoMMODITY DISTRIBUTION ProOGRANM
GIVES LITTLE VARIETY, GENERALLY WHOLE TURKEYS.
YES, WE CAN HAVE THEM PROCESSED. THE PROCESSING
PRICE PER POUND FOR CUSTOMIZED ITEMS, SUCH AS
TURKEY HAM AND TURKEY SALAMI, HOWEVER, IS MORE

THAN WHAT WE PAY FOR A GOOD QUALITY TURKEY HAM AND

SALAMI ON BID-

ERIC .
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STATEMENT OF SCHOOT 5 FOR ALT. COMM.
MARCH 2, 1989
Page 5

HE CAN DO MORE BUSINESS LOCALLY USING ONE OF THE
ALTERNATIVES TO COMMODITIES., MWE ALL WANT YO DO
BUSINESS LOCALLY, WHICH MAKES SENSE. For EXAMPLE,
APPLES WE PUKCHASE COME FROM PENNSYLVANIA AND
VIRGINIA, NOT WASHINGTON STATE. OUR FRIENDS IN
CALIFORNIA AND WASHINGTON STATE IN TURN CAN
PURCHASE THEIR APPLES LOCALLY. IF scHooL
DISTRICTS ARE EXPECTED TO PURCHASE 70 PERCENT OF
THE FOODS USED IN THE SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM, WHY
not 100 pERCENT?

UTILIZE MORE FRESH FRUITS AND VEGETABLES, WHEREAS
IT IS IMPRACTICAL AND UNDESIRABLE ForR USDA to TRY
To DELIVER FRESH PRODUCE UNDER THE CoMMODITY

PROGRAM.

ReDuUCED LABOR HOURS NEEDED AND LABOR cosT- [Host
oF THE USDA CoMMODITIES ARE RAW INGREDIENTS, WHICH
REQUIRE NUMEROUS HOURS OF PREPARATION TIME. THIs
WiLL BE MORE ANG MCRE OF A PROBLEM OVER THE NEXT
FIVE YEARS AS OUR LABOR SHORTAGE FOR SERVICE
EMPLOYEES INCREASE. WE CAN NO LONGER AFFORD THE
LABOR OR FIND THE LABOR IN FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA, TO
MAKE HAMBURGER ROLLS FROM RAW INGREDIENTS. THE
AUTOMATED BAKERIES CAN MAKE A BETTER ROLL FOR LESS

THAN WE CAN-

>,
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STATEMENT OF ScHooLs FOR ALT. Comm.
MarcH 2, 1989
AGE b

Bevtvy Benber, DIrRecTor oF Foob Services, Davton
(OH) ScHoor DisTrRICT, SAYS, “] CANNOT AFFORD TO
ACCEPT FREE BUTTER THAT 1 HAVE TO PAY EMPLOYEES AN
AVERAGE oF $14.00-$16.00 pER HOUR TO cuT.”

INSTEAD, SHE PURCHASES PRE-CUT MARGARIMNE.

ACROSS THE COUNTRY, LABOR COSTS WILL CAUSE SCHOOL
LUNCH PROGRAMS TO PRICE THEMSELVES OUT OF
BUSINESS, IF EFFORTS ARE NOT MADE TO REDUCE THE
cosTs. FEDER/L REIMBURSEMENT RATES HKAVE NOT QUITE
KEPT UP WITH THE CcOST INCREASES scHooL DISTRICTS
HAVE EXPERIENCED. MOST LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICTS ARE
PRESENTLY SUBSIDIZING THEIR LUNCH PROGRAM, BUT AS
THEIR BUDGETS GET TIGHTER, THEY ARE HAVING TO PASS
ON MORE AND MORE NF THE CHSTS TO SCHOOL FOOD

SERVICE PROGRAMS.

INCREASES ACCEPTABILITY AND VARIETY IN MEMUS,
WHICH MEANS INCREASED PARTICIPATION. GanvLe M.
MHoraN, Supervisor ofF Foob Services, Troy (1)
ScHooL DIsTRICT, SERVING 3,500 A DAY, savs, “I
TRULY FEEL THAT AN ALTERNATIVE To THE CoMMODITY
PROGRAM MUST BE CONSIDERED As A MEANS OF UPDATING
OURSELVES WITH WHAT THE STUDENTS' DESIRES ARE. WE

HAVE STRONG COMPETITION WITH FAST FOOD PLACES AND
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STATEMENT OF ScHooLs FOR ALT. Comm.
Harcu 2, 1989
Page 7

CANNOT FOQORCE STUDENTS TO EAY WHAT WE RECEIVE AS
SURPLUS. NUTRITION IS GOOD ONLY IF IT IS

CONSUMED.

8. INCREASES FLEXIBILITY.

9. INCREASES QUALITY CONTROL.

10. INCREASED INVENTORY CONTROL AND REDUCED
INVENTORY. THE STUDY SHOWS AN AVERAGE REDUCTION
OF 33 PERCENT IN INVENTORY. ONE SCHOOL
SUPERINTENDENT IN [LLINOIS SAID. "NHEN WE FIRST
STARTED oN CLOC, | wAs VERY APPREHENSIVE. WE WERE
SO USED TO HAVING OUR SHELVES FULL OF GOVERNMENT
comMODITIES. NOW GUR SHELVES ARE STILL FULL, BUT
WITH PRODULTS WE FEEL OUR STUDENTS ARE MORE EAGER
TO ACCEPT. | FEEL THE LUNCH PROGRAM HAS BENEFITED

GREATLY.”

11. INCREASES FAIRNESS TO LOCAL FARMERS. DISTRIBUTORS,
AND BROKERS. DISTRIBUTORS AND BROKERS PLAN THEIR
PURCHASES BASED ON QUAHTITY ESTIMATES OF SCHOOL
DISTRICTS. WHEN USDA SUDDENLY PURCHASES PEARS OR
POTATOES, THE DISTRIBUTORS MAY NOT BE GIVEN ANY
WARNING. FOR EXAMPLE, OME OF OUR LOCAL

DISTRIBUTORS PURCHASED SEVERAL CARLOADS OF PEARS

" ERIC
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STATEMENT OF SCHOOLS FOR ALT. CoMM.
HarcH 2, 1989
Pace R

TWO YEARS AGO TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
SCHOOL DISTRICTS BECAUSE HE HEARD THERE WAS A
SHORTAGE. USDA PURCHASED PEARS AT THAT TIME. IT

LEFT HIM WITH A WAREHOUSE FULL OF PEARS.

12. ReDuces STORAGE/DELIVERY cOSTS. Jean ficCace,
ScHooL Foob Supervisor, Loupon County (TH) ScooL
DrstricT, serving 3,700 A pav, savs, "[CLOC) saves
ON TRANSPORTATION AND STORAGE. THIS PROGRAM WORKS
WELL IN BOTH LARGE AND SMALL SYSTEMS. WE KNOW [N
ADVANCE WHAT FOODS ARE AVAILABLE. SINCE WE BUY
FOODS ONLY IN ACCEPTABLE FORMS, THZRE 1S LESS
PLATE WASTE. NE CAN OPERATE MORE EFFICIENTLY. IT

ALSO GIVES US AN OPPORTUNITY TO BUY LocatLy.”

13. Repuces HASSLE. THE ARRIVAL CF SEVERAL TRUCKLOADS
OF USDA COMMODITIES AT THE SAME TIME PRESENTS
PROBLEMS; NOT RECEIVING WHOLE TURKEYS UNTIL
THANKSGIVING IS OVER MEANS A LAST MINUTE PROBLEM;
AND A RECALL OF USDA GROUND BEEF, WHEN THAT IS§ THE

ONLY BEEF YOU HAYE, ARE WHAT | MEAN BY A HASSLE.

THE LEADER OF OUR ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS FOR AN
ALTERNATIVE TO CoMnoniTiES, Connpe HeviLy, Foob SERVICE
SUPERVISOR, SHORELINE ScHooL (WA) PusLic ScHooLS, SERVING

3,200 A pav, sarp, "[CLOC] NoT onLY sAves IN THE AREAS OF

ERIC e_J
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STATEMENT oF ScHoots FoR ALT. CoMM.

HarcH 2, 1989
Pagce 9

FOOD COSTS, TRANSPORTATION, AND STORAGE AND LABOR COSTS, BUT
WILL ALSO SUPPORT THE FARM PRICES...IT ENABLES US TO RUY
FOOD IN THE FORM KIDS LIKE; WE ARE PAYING LESs THAN USDA 1IN
MANY CASES; IT CUTS DOWN ON WASTE; WE CAN BUY |TEMS EARLIER
THAN THEY WOULD BE RECEIVED VIA THE PRESENT 3YSTEM.” FoRr
EXAMPLE, SHORELINE SCHOOLS SERVES FRESH SALMON WHEN SALMON
1s A CLOC.

EHCOURAGE DOMESTICALLY GROWN FOOD

NOT ONLY DO WE NEED TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO DRIVE CARS
MADE IN THE UNITED STATES, WE NEED TO ENCOURAGE THEM TO EAT
FOOD GROWH AND PROCESSED IN THE UNITED STATES- YOUR EARLIER
LEGISLATION DOES ENCCURAGE rHAT. HOWEVER, TODAY, OuR
MARKETS ARE FLOODED WITH IMPORTED FooDS. UNDER THE CLOC
PROGRAM, WE HAVE TO USE THE MONEY TO PURCHASE FOODS GROWN
DOMEST[CALLY.

A SIDE BENEFIT OF REQUIRING US TO SPECIFY AND PURCHASE
DOMESTIC FOODS HAS BEEN THAT WE NOT ONLY BUY DOMESTIC WITH
CLOC MONIES, BUT WE BUY MANY OTHER DOMESTIC FOODS- TODAY,
YoU HAVE To specIFYy DOMESTIC oR ITEMS LIKE FRUITS WILL COME
FRON SPAIN OR AFRICA. OQUR DISTRIBU.uRS ARE BUYING MANY
PRODUCTS ABROAD. RECENTLY, WHEN A TuNA CLOC wAS RECEIVED,
WE FOUNL [T DIFFICULT TO FIND TUNA PACKED DOMESTICALLY. A
DISTRIBUTOR WHO BUYS DOMESTICALLY PACKED FRUITS. TOMATO
PRODUCTS, TUNA, ETC- FOR A SCHOOL DISTRICT, IS PROBABLY
GOING TO USE THE SAME PRODUCTS FOR THE OTHER CUSTOMERS--GOOD
INVENTORY PRACTICE.

LIy
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STATEMENT oF ScHooLS FOR ALT. CoMM.
MarcH 2, 1989
bace 10

THE vaLUE oF A CLOC PROGRAM CAN BE GREATER FOR MORE
AMERICAN FARMERS THAN ANY COMMODITY PROGRAM WHERE USDA
PURCHASES THE FOOD-

OUR CONCERNS, YOURS AND MINE, HAVE GOT TO BE FOR THE
GOOD _OF THE PROGRAM. THE STUDY HAS PROVEN, WITHOUT A DOUBT,
THAT THE PRESENT COMMODITY SYSTEM IS NOT THE ONLY
ALTERNATIVE, REGARDLESS OF THE SIZE OPERATION AND WHERE IT
IS LOCATED.

IN CLOSING, THE ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS FOR AN
ALTERNATIVE FOR COMMODITIES IS ASKING YOU TO PLEASE ALLOW
ALL SITES PRESENTLY RECEIVING AN ALTERNATIVE To THE

CommopITY PROGRAM TO CONTINUE ON A PERMANENT BASIS-.
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Mr. MarTiNEz. Thank you, Ms. Pannell.

With that, we turn to Robert Greenstein.

Mr. GreensTEIN. Thank you. I am Robert Greenstein, Director of
the Center, which is a nonprofit research and analysis organization
here in Washington.

My testimony today will focus exclusively on the WIC Program,
but before starting, I do want to note our gratitude that the cuts in
the Child Nutrition Program are entirely out of the Bush budget.

We notice that no part, no line, in the Child Nutrition account is
under that freeze. All of it is out. We want to commend the com-
mittee for its leadership on this on a bipartisan basis and particu-
larly Mr. Goodling for his work over the last couple of months in
ensuring that this occurred.

As you know, there is an extensive body of medical research that
demonstrates that WIC is one of the nation’s most effective social
programs. Research finds that WIC has reduced the incidence of
late fetal deaths, low birth weight and premature births. It reduces
anemia.

It increases the head size of infants born to mothers receiving
WIC during pregnancy, which generally means improved brain
size. It leads to increased use of prenatal care and improved diets.
Evidence also suggests its length to improvement of cognitive skills
in children. Research has also found that it helps avert medical
costs.

Despite these striking achievements, only about half of the low-
incom~ women, infants, and chiidren eligible for WIC are now
reached by the program. The other half are left out.

Current state initiatives to reduce infant formula costs and serve
more participants are very important, but they can add only about
three to four hundred thousand additional people, which is only
about one of ten of those who are currently eligible, but unserved.

Mr. Chairman, I think it is striking that over the last year and a
haif, four very distinguished blue ribbon panels of corporate lead-
ers, health experts and former Presidents of the United States
from both parties have singled out WIC as one of the nation’s top
priorities and called for major expansion of the program.

The Committee for Economic Development, a group of more than
two hundred leading corporate executives and university presi-
dents, has rated expansion of WIC as one of our top priorities.

The National Commission to Prevent Infant Mortality, chaired
by former Senator Chiles, has noted that the United States has a
higher infant mortality rate than any other western industrialized
country and called for increased funding of WIC, stating, “WIC has
been enormously successful and has been shown to increase the
likelihood of = licaithy hirth”; that “there is strong bipartisan sup-
port for WIC but the prcgram has never been funded adequately.”

In November, former Presidents Ford and Carter presented their
American Agends rcport. They assembled leading panels of ex-
perts. They called for very austere deficit reduction measures to
strengther. the economy.

At the same time, they said there were a small number of pro-
grams that we have to invest more in to strengthen the economy,
just as we have to reduce the deficit to strengthen the economy;

0~
Q fd'v.‘g




220

that these programs represent one of the very best investments
this country can make.

They included WIC along with a few other programs under this
committee such as Head Start and Chapter One in that list of pro-
grams, and said that we should set a national goal of reaching all
of the eligible children in these programs and expanding funding
for them each year until that goal is reached.

In an accompanying section of the :eport, Carla Hills and Ed
Muskie called for expanding WIC and several of these other key
preventive programs and said that that expansion should be the
United States’ top domestic priority.

Finally, also in November, the Council on Competitiveness also
singled out WIC as one of three effective children’s programs that
ought to be expanded.

The WIC Program has enjoyed bipartisan support in Congress
and appropriations for it have increased, but in recent years, the
rate of increase has slowed. I note that in each of the past three
fiscal years, the budget resolution assumed a funding level for WIC
of a hundred to a hundred and fifty million over current services.
That would have been modest.

It would have added two to three hundred thovsand people a
year, which would have been five to seven percent of those eligible,
but unserved. Yet, while funding for WIC did increase, it increased
by much less than the amounts assumed in the budget resolution.

Last year, the budget assumed a $150 million increase over cur-
rent services, but the final appropriations level was 55 million over
current services. In the last four fiscal years combined, WIC fund-
ing levels fell a cumulative total of $250 million below the levels in
the final Congressional budget resolution.

Federal funding practices for WIC have also had an adverse
impact on state operations. Due to the annual appropriations fights
and continuing resolutions, funding levels for WIC have generally
not been known until December. States do not receive their alloca-
tions until January.

What that has often led to is that many states have to freeze
their programs and sometimes reduce their caseloads, taking
women and children off the program, for the first thi~2 to four
months of the fiscal year. Then they get their funding level and re-
verse gears and add people to the program.

Then they get to October 1st and there is a CR and they have to
reverse gears again and freeze or reduce the program. It is common
for states to make changes several times a year concerning the cat-
egories of pregnant women, infants and children who can be al-
lowed to enter and remain on the program and which must be put
on waiting lists instead.

States currently have no ability to plan for and institute long-
range growth plans to reach more of those who are unserved. I
note that WIC is rather unique in that regard. Nearly all programs
as large as WIC that provide means-tested benefits to low-income
programs on a monthly basis are entitlements.

Nearly all programs of equivalent size that are funded on a dis-
cretionary basis provide grants or services, not monthly benefits to
low income children.
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Looking at all of this, we would like to sug%est a proposed
remedy that reflects the goals outlined by Senator Chiles in his tes-
timony last month, when he called for expanding WIC on a timeta-
ble and making changes in WIC funding procedures, to assure that
that occurs.

The remedy we would like to suggest for consideration is the
same funding approach used in last year’s Hunger Prevention Act
to purchase commodity foods for poor families and also in the Wel-
fare Reform Law to support work and training programs for wel-
fare recipients.

It entails specifying a Federal funding amount for WIC for each
year covered by the reauthorization and then—and this is the sig-
nificant change—classifying these amounts as mandatory, rather
than discretionary, spending.

For example, the Welfare Reform Law provides $800 million in
1990 for state employment and training programs, an amount
which rises in increments until it hits $1.3 billion in 1995. Those
amounts are mandatory spending and they cannot be shifted to
other programs.

The same approach could be followed for WIC. The budget reso-
lution could simply assume the same level of modest annual fund-
ing increases as in the past three budgets, but reclassify WIC funds
as mandatory spending.

That, in turn, would enable the Education and Labor Committee
to revise the authorizing statutes so that the funding levels were
made mandatory and that, in turn, would ensure steady planned
growth on a timetable in WIC towards the goals espoused by the
Committee on Economic Development, the Infant Mortality Com-
mission, American Agenda, the Council on Competitiveness and
Senator Chile’s last month.

The alternative is to continue the current system under which
WIC expansion could be halted or even reversed in the next few
years as a result of intensifying pressures to reduce overall discre-
tionary appropriations.

I want to emphasize at this point that the remedy I am suggest-
ing would not—I want to underscore not—convert WIC into a
standard entitlement program. That is not what I am suggesting.
Under a standard entitlement, all families or individuals who meet
the eligibility criteria are legally entitled to benefits and program
costs are open ended.

Unde. the approach recommended here, those who meet the eli-
gibility criteria are no more automatically entitled to benefits than
they are today. Funding would not be open-ended. States wouid re-
ceive a fixed amount of funds, as they do now. They would serve
only as many eligible people as the funds allow.

The difference between the proposed funding mechanism and the
current funding structure is that under the proposed approach,
states would be assured a fixed amount of funds each year and
each state would receive its share under the USDA allocation for-
mulas of the mandatory amount established by Congress for a
given year.

We envision here the Budget Committees, if they could provide
the same level of funding increases as they have done in recent
years, classify that as mandatory spending, the Education and
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Labor Committee could act accordingly, and we could plan for a
multi-year gradual expansion to reach all of the eligibles.

I would finally add that there is a precedent for treating WIC dif-
ferently than other discretionary programs, and it is the Gramm-
Rudman-Hollings law. Under the Gramm-Rudman-Hollings law, a
small group of programs are exempt from the across-the-board
spending cuts.

All of those are entitlement programs except one. There is only
one discretionary prcgram in the entire Federal program that is in
the exempt list and that is the WIC Program. Congress has already
shown in that fashion that it regards WIC as being somewhat dif-
ferent than other discretionaries.

WIC at present is the only program that is exempt from across-
the-board cuts under Gramm-Rudman, but subject to across-the-
board cuts when they are made by Congress in regular appropria-
tions bills.

I hope the committee will seriously consider this idea. It is being
examined by a number of individuals and organizations closely con-
nected to the program. It is endorsed, I believe, in the petition
signed by 93 groups that Mr. Cooney mentioned and in the past
week, it has also been endorsed by the National Association of WIC
Directors, whom you heard from last month.

Mr. Chairman, I have some other comments on WIC in my pre-
pared testimony, which I will submit for the record.

[The prepared statement of Robert Greenstein follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF ROBERT GREENSTEIN
DIRECTOR, CENTER ON BUDGET AND POLICY PRIORITIES
before ihe
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY. SECONDARY,
AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
of the
HOUSE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND L.ABOR

March 2, 1989

I appreciate the mvitation to appear before the Subcommuttee today. [ am
Robert Greenstein, dircetor of the Center on Budget and Policy Prionities The Center i
|
is a non-profit rescarch and analysis orgamization located in Washington, DC. A major
part of its work is devoted to studying public policies affecting low income Amecricans.
The Center engages m a substantial among of work on domestic food asyistance
prograins with particular cmphasis on the Special Supptemental ood Program for
Women, Infants, and Cluldren. WIC has tong been a particular nterest of ours. Stefan
Harvey, the dircctor of the Center’s WIC Project, has devoted most of her carcer for the
past 15 years to issues relating to WIC, | had the pavilege of serving in 1979 and 1980
as Admimistrator of USDA’s Food and Nutnition Service, wlhich administers WIC and
the cluld nutrition programs.
My testimony here today 1s focused exclusively on WIC  Before 1 begin, however.
I would like to note our concern about the inclusion in the January 9 budget of the
proposal to chmmnate all federal support for paid school meals. If enacted. this would
posc a significant nsk that many schools would drop out of the school tood programs

We are grateful that President Bush has withdrawn this proposal

WIC's Track Record
As mombers of this Subcommuttee know. an extensive body ot medical rescarch
has demonstrated that the Speaiat Supplemental Food Program for Women, tnfants. and

Chitdren (WiC) 15 onc of the naton’s most effective soctal programs - WIC has been
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found to reduce the merdence of late fetal death, to reduce the madence of low
buthweight and premature hirths, to reduce anenmi, 10 marease the head Groumiference
ot mfants born to mothers who recened WIC benctits dunng pregnana. 0 mae ise use
of prenatal care, and to improve dicts  The rescarch evidence alo suggests that WIC
may be hinked to improvement of cogmtve shifls m chuldren

WIC also helps avert medical costs A study conducted at the Harvard Schoot of
Public Health found that cach dollar spent in the prenatal component of WIC averted
three dollars in hospital costs for nevborns (Thesc inchided both costs borne by
government and costs borne by private insurance or absorbed by hospitals.) A
subscquent study by the Missourt Department of Public Heelth found that cach dollar
spent in the prenatal component of WIC saved 49 cents in Medicaid costs Just in the
first 45 days after the child’s birth  (More mformation on the medical research on WIC
15 found in an attachment at the end of this testimony.)

Despite these striking achicvements, however, partictpation i the WIC program
remams limited. Only about half of the low income pregnant women, infants, and
chidren who are at nutrit:onal risk and arc cligible for WIC are now reached by the
progrant. The other half are left out.

Current state mitiatives to reduce infant formula costs and stretch WIC dollars to
Serve more participants arc extremely important and should be strongly encouraged.
But these cfforts can add only about 300,000 - 400,000 morc people to the program -- or

about onc of every ten who are currently chgible but unserved

The Recommendations of Business Leaders and Blue-Ribbon Panels
In the last year and a half, four distinguished pancls of business and cducation

leaders. former presidents of the Umited States. and health experts have made

to
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recommendations concermng the WIC program  In every wase, the reconumendations
have been for major expansion.

1. The Commuttee for Fcononmic Development

In wts noted report Chuldren tn Need  Investment Strategies fur the Educationatly
Disadvantaged, the Comnuttee for Economic Development - a group of more than 200
corporate cxceutives and umversity presidents - called for increased investment i a
limited number of cost-cffective programs. One of the key program the CED
recommended enlargmg was WIC  The CED noted that WIC produces a “reduction in
infant mortality and burths of low burthweight infants,” and that low birth weight leads to
health problems and lcarning disabiliies  The report observed that WIC reaches only a
fraction of thosc cligible for 1t
2. Nation mmission to Prevent Infant Mortality.

In August 1988, the National Commussion to Prevent Infant Mortality, a bluc-
ribbon panel chartered by Congress and chaired by former Senator Lawton Cluics,
issucd a report that calls for a number of changes i government policy to reduce the
high U.S. infant mortality rate. (The U.S now has a higher infant mortality rate than
any other western industrialized country.) Onc of the Comnussion's principal
recommendations is for increased funding for WIC. The Commussion stated. "WIC i
widely regarded as onc of the nation's most successful and cost-ctfective nutritional
intervention programs  Any effort to reduce infant mortality and low birthweight will
nced to nclude a strong nutritional component, such as WIC." The report also declared

that "WIChas been enormously successful and has been shown to merease the
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likehhood of a hcalthy birth* and that "there is strong bipariisan support for WIC but
the program has ncver been funded adequately '
3 American_ Agenda
In November 1988, former Presidents Gerald R Ford and hmmy Carter
presented therr Amencan Agenda report to the President-clect and the nation, In
prepaning thus report, Presidents Ford and Carter assembled pancls of lcading experts i
a number of ficlds
While calling for rather austere deficit reduction measures, the two Presidents
also called for increased investment m a seleet group of hughly effective programs for
poor children. They wrote:
“There 1s no casy answer to the problem of ngramed poverty. But carly
micrvention s the best opportumty to break the eycle of poverty. There 1 solid
cvidence that Federal programs such as [iead Start, prenatal care, immunization,
the Women’s Infant and Cluldren feedmg program and compensatory education
do work, and offer one of the best investments the country can mak¢ m its own
people.”
The two Presidents stated that despite the budget deficit, these programs must be
cxpanded to scrve all children cligible for them:
“"Spending public funds for these young Amcricans 15 not wasteful. it 1 wasteful
n0! to invest an the medical attention, the cducation, and the job trainmg that will
provide poor children a sharc 1n the American opportunity,
"We understand the budget constraimts on any capansion of Federat spending
programs; but we belicve that it would be imprudent to dclay any longer on

taking Federat action to begin the long process of assisting these chaldren of
poverty.

1 In debate on the Scnate floor mn July 1988, Comnussion charrman Lawton Chles
observed  "Every day that we atlow pregnant women or young children to go without
adequate nutrition, this country pays a tragrcally high price, not only in added health
costs, but lost hives It has been demonstrated to me over and over agam that the WIC
program 15 onc of the most cffeetive of all Federal programs reducing mfant low birth
weight, premature births and anemra - Unfortunately, Mr Preadent, this program i not
reachung cveryone that s ehigible in the population ™ we ought to be talhing about -
fundg 100 pereent of this program " (Congrossional Record, Tuly 29, 1988, S10376-7 )
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. We recommend that you set a goal of full Federal funding for Head Start,
WIC, Compensatory cducation, prenatal care, immumization and preventive
he 1lthy care programs for all chgible, disadvantaged children within cight
years, and

. Move toward that %;onl by rccommending i your Fiseal 1990 budget
annual increases of $2 bithion until the goal 15 reached ™

Simitarly, in the scction of the Amencan Agenda report on domestic pohicy, Carla
Hills and Edmund Muskic (the authors of this scction of the report) called for
cxpanding "programs of proven cffectiveness™ ncluding WIC and several other
preventive programs for low income cluldren. Hills and Muskic declared that
"Expanding them [these programs] is our top domestic priority.”

4, Council on Competitiveness.

In late November 1988, the Council on Competitivencss, a group of corporate
executives and cducation and labor leaders, presented its recommendations in
Reclaiming the American Dream. Fiscal Policies for @ Compentive Naton. Like the
Amencan Agenda report, this document recommended an array of stff deficit reduction
mcasurcs, but also called for cxpanston for a small number of programs including WIC,
Head Start, and compensatory cducation. The Council wrotc:

"The carly years of a child’s lifc play a large role in determining subscquent

cducauonal achicvement. Children who lack proper nutrittion, health care and

parcntal involvement gcncmlly perform more poorly than other children
clementary and sccondary school ...

"Early childhood interveation s cssential to help promote child development.

Onc cffective federal intervention is the Women, Infants, and Children program,

Evaluation of the WIC program reveals that 1t reduces fetal deaths by onc-third,

reduces prematurc births among high-risk mothers by 15 to 25 percent; and shows

increased brain growth and cvidence of cogmitive development among pre-
schoolers who are WIC participants. WIC currently serves. fess than half the

chgible population ... The program should be expanded to serve miore chigible
chitdren.”

[ ¥
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The Legislative Track Record of the Past Few Years

WIC enjoys trong bipartisan support i Congress  In 1987, tor example, @
bipartisan group of more than 200 members of the House of Representativ s sigaed o
tetter calling for funding increases, while in 1988, more than 60 Scnators signed similar
letters  And appropriat.ons for the WIC program have been increasing. Yt atter more
sizable mcreases duning the recession, the increases have slowed in the past few years

In cach of the past turce fiscal years, the Congressional Budget Resolution
assumed a funding level for WIC of about $100 nullion to $150 nullion over the current
services level. These funding increases would have been modest - they would have
allowed the program to reach 200,000 to 300.000 additional partiupants cach year, or
about five to scven percent of the unserved cligibles.

Yet while funding for WIC did increase cach year, it mcreased by fess than the
amounts assumcd n the Congressional budget resolution  Final tunding levels fell below
the budget assumptions.

For examiple, in FY 1989, the budget resolution assumed a $150 nullion increase
over the current services tevel for WIC. The final appropriation was $55 nullion over
current scrvices  In the last four years (FY 1986 - I'Y 1989), WIC funding jevels fell a

cumulative total of about $50 nullion below the budget resolution assumptions

Federal Funding Practiccs Adversely Affect State WIC Operations

Federal fundmg practices for WIC have also adverscly affected state WIC
operations.  Becausc of annual appropriations fights between Congreas and the White
Ttouse. the WIC appropriauons level for a given fiscal year v often not known untl
December of that ycar  States typically arc not notificd ot thar allocations for the fiscal

year untit January. the fourth month of the fiscal year
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Ths causes problems for WIC opcerations and hmders the programs ability to
achieve planncd, orderly growth to reach more of thosc who are cigible. For the st
third of the fiscal ycar, many states have to frecze then cascloads Then once the
allocations are tssued, states can begin to expand their programs.  However, the states
arc caught mn a difemma If they do not achueve 12 months worth of cxpansion in the
cight months remaining in the fiscal year, they may return funds unspent to the federal
goverament. If they do achicve 12 months worth of expansion in cight months and
spend therr full allocation, they run the nisk of achieving a year-end participation fevel
that cxcecds what the funding tevel for the following fiscal ycar may support. At a
mmimum, they can expect to "jam the brakes hard” on October 1 of the followng year,
mposing another cascload frecze while waiting for the next year’s funding tevel to be
determined.

It thus 1s common for states to make changes scveral times a year concerning
which categorics of cligible women, infants, and chuldren can be allowed to enter and
remarn on the program, and which must be placed on waiting hists  States have hittle or
no ability to plan for and institute long-range growth plans to reach more of those who
arc unscrved, because they gencrally have no hnowledge of thar funding levels for more
than about cight months in advance.

It should be noted that WIC s rather unique tn this regard  Nearly all programs
as large as WIC that provide mecans-tested benefits to fow income children on a monthly
basis arc cntitlemen. programs. (Subsidized housing 15 the sole exeeption.) Nearly all
other low income programs of cquivalent size that are funded on a discretionary bosis
provide grants or scrvices, rather than monthiy benefits to those meeting certain

chgibility criteria.

o
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In sum, there appear to the few, if any, other fow mcome childien's programs that |
are as directly affected by the uncertamnties of the appropuations cycle as i Wi
A Proposed Remedy

We would bke to suggest a proposed remedy that could irgely address v ene
problems. The remedy refledis the goals outined by Senator Clules m hus testimony
before the Subcomnuttee Tast month where he called for cpanding WiC "ona set
tizactable™ and for making changes that may be needed m WIC funding proceduies to
assurc that this occurs.

The remedy 1s to usc the same funding approach as was contained 1 the Hunger
Prevention Act of 1988 for the purchasc of commodity foods for poor familics and also
n the new welfare refore law to support work and trauming programs for welfare
reip ents. ‘This entails speaifymg a federal funding amount for WIC for cach of the
years covered by the reauthonzation and then classifying these amounts as mandatory
rather than discretionary spending.

For example, the welfare reform law provides $800 mullion wn FY 1990 for state
welfare emiploynrent and traming programs, a level which rises i increments untif 1t
reaches $1.3 billion in FY 1995, These amounts are mandatory spending. They cannot
be reduced to shift funds to other programs  The funds arc not affected f there 1s an
across-the-board reduction i the Labor-HIS appropriations bili.

The same approach could be foltowed with WIC. The Congressional budgcet
resolution could assume the same Ievel of modest annual funding ncreases as i the
past three Congressicnal budgets ($100 to $150 mullion a yedr over current serviees
fevels) but could reclassify WIC funds as mandatory spending. Since the WIC program
15 up for reauthonization thus year, this would enable the Education and Labor

Comnnttee 1o revise the authonzing statute so that the WIC funding tevels were made
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mandatory. Aad this, 1in turn, would casure steady, planned growth m WIC towards the
goals espoused by the Commttee for Loononue Development, the National Commisaion
o Prevent Enfant Mortahty, Amencan Agenda, and the Counal on Competitiveness

The alternative is to continuc the system currently 1 use, under which progress
toward the goal of reaching all the ehgibles under WIC s Dhely to be considerably
slower.

Moreover, 1t s possible that under the current system, WIC expansion could be
haited or reversed in the next few ycars as a result of intense pressure to reduce overall
discretionary appropriations levels I would note that the WIC program s included
under the Admunistration’s new budget in the category of programs that would be
subjeet to an overall outlay freeze, and from which §9 6 billion in FY 19¢9 outlay
savings (below the OMB current scrvices bascline) would have to be eatracted. This

indicates the uncertain terrain the program now occupics.

The_Proposed Remedy Docs Not Establish an Open-Ended Eptiticment

f would ke to cmphasize that using this approach would not convert WIC into a
standard cnutlement program. Under a standard enttlement, all famulies or individuals
mecting specified chgibility critena are entitled o benefits. As a result, program costs
arc cssenually open-ended. Under the approach recommended here, those women,
infants, and children who meet the chgibihity criteria would not be automatically entitled
to benefits, and funding would not be open cnded  Instead, states would recewve a fixed
amount of WIC funds cach ycar (just as they do now) and would serve only as many
cligible pcople as their funds will allow  The difference between the proposed funding
mechanism and the current WIC funding structure 1s that under the proposed approach,

states would be assurcd a fined amount of funds cach year  The fixed amount would be
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cach state’s share, under the USDA allocation formulas, of the mandatory tunding levd
cstablished by Congress for a given fiscal year A noted, this i the approach retlected
i the welfare reform law and the commodity purchase provisions of the Hunger

Prevention Act of 1988,

The Defieit Should Not Be Affected

This approach should not inereasc the deficit. It envisions the Budget
Commutices providing the same level of WIC funding increases as they have done
recent years, but classifying these funding amounts as mandatory rather than
diserctionary spending.

1t 15 recommended that the mandatory funding levels provided include a $100 to
$150 mullion 1ncrease over current serviees levels for I'Y 1990, and addional merements
of $150 millon plus inflation 1n cach of the subscquent years covered by the }

rcauthonzation. Thus, 1n cach year, the increase would be in the same range as the

increases assumed for.WIC i the past several Congressional budget resolutions

A Precedent: The Gramm-Rudman-l{oflings Law

A precedent for treating WIC differently than most other dwierctionary programs
is found 1n the Gramm-Rudman-Hollings law  Under the GRH faw, a small group of
benefit programs 1s cxempt from the across-the-board spending reductions that are
tnggered when defieit targets are nussed  All of these exempted programs are
cntitiement programs, cxcept for WIC.

In framing the GRH law, Congress recognized that by virtue of s provision of
benefits to poor children on a monthly basis, WIC was acttally more Iike other means-
tested entitlements than like other low income dis.retionary programs  This recognition

now needs to be extended by making WIC a mandatory spending program.
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At present, WIEC s the only program m the federal government that s exempt
trom across-the-board cuts under the Gramm-Rudman-Holings law but subject to cuts
when across-the-board reductions are made by Congress in appropristions bifls

I hope the Subcommuttee will seriously consider this proposal It is now being
exanuncd by a number of mdividuals and organizations closcly connected to the WIC
program and 1s mccting with an enthusiastic response. It has been endorsed, for
cxample, by the National Association of WIC Dircetors, which appeared betore you last

month.

OTIIER WIC ISSUES

There arc several other WIC issues 1 should also like to cover. [ will be bried m
my comments on cach of these arcas
1. Improving the Coordination of WIC with Other Programs

At the Subcommittee™ “caring on WIC last month, one of the members of the
Subcomnuttce asked whether women. infants, and chuldren recening Medicaid, ATDC,
or food stamps should be considered to mceet the WIC program’s income hmus — As you
may recall, the response in the hearing room was a burst of applause.

Thus 15 an excelient 1des and 1 strongly urge the Subcomnutice to pur.ue it It
can help reduce paperwork and red tape and mmprove WIC scrvices,

WIC has two chgibility criteria -- an mcome test and a nutritional risk test. To
be cligible, an applicant must satisfy both

Yet those on Medicard, AFDC, or food stamps have already been through an
cXtensive, ume-consunung, and often costly income examination and vernfication process
Since the income hinuts w these programs arc more restrictive than those in WIC, those

recewing benefits in these programs will generally mect the WIC mcome Lumits, anyway
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It docs not make sound administrative sense to require pregnant women or
mothers of young children to go through this income chgibility process all over aga at
WIC offices. Nor does 1t make sensc for local WIC clinies to use scarce admimnistrative
dollars repeating this process. Wniting a provision into the faw stating that carollment

Medicaid, food stamps, or AFDC satssfics the WIC mcome test would mat.e an

important administrative improvement 1n the program
1 would note that this would not make Medicaid, food stamp, and AFDC
recipients automatically cligible for WIC. They would still have to pass the WIC
nutritional risk test. In addition, their ability to be enrolled 1n WIC would depend on
the availability of WIC funds.?

Other Measures to Improve Coordination

Other improvements can also be made to improv: coordmation. We are
especially concerned that cocrdmation be improved between WIC and Mcdicaid, both of
which arc important health programs  Census data show that only onc of cvery three
children below the age of four who is enrolled 1n Medicaid also recetves WIC.

Similarly, many of those who partieipate in WIC are not enrolled in Medicard, although
they may be chigible  Conflicting program rules can hinder cfforts to tmprove

coordination.

in uts testimony last month, the Natonal Asociation of WIC Directors (NAWD)

recommended, as a step toward better coordination, that WIC adopt the Medicard rule

2 1would also note that Medicaid legistation recently introduced by Repy Michey
Letand, Henry Waxman, and Henry Hyde (H.R. 800) would dircct Medicaid offices to
inform pregnant women, mfants, and clildren applymg for Medieard about the WIC
program and to refer them to WIC where appropriate. In 1987, the Education and
Labor Commuttee adopted legislation requirmg WIC offices to coordinate with Medicard
- but no similar provision exists in Medicard leguslation requinng Mcdicaid oftices to
coordnate with WIC  The icland-Waxman-Hyde proposal would fill this gap. The -
proposal would place no new requirements on'the WIC program
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of counting a pregnant wormian as a farmily of two. As NAWD president Loren Bell
explained, WIC dircctors have situations where a pregnant woman who s chigibie for
prenatal care through Medicaid iy not be chigible for WIC We cndorse the NAWD
recommendation and would urge the Subcommnuttee to ect favorably on 1t

2. WIC Administrative Funding

There 15 a broad consensus that the statutory provisions dealing with WI1C
admimistrauve funding nced to be reformed  The NAWD has testified to ths cffect 1
expect USDA also to call for changes in this arca

The current statutory provisions arc cumbcersome and complex. In addition, the
provision: cnacted in 1987 1o encourage states to institute mfant formula cost
containment provisions are (and were always intended to be) short term provisions only.
If modifications arc not made 1 the law this ycar, then state administrative grants will
decline sharpiy in coming ycars, when measurcd on a per partiapant basis - This could
jeopardize cffective program opcrations.

In the ncar future, a USDA study on this ssuc will be presented to the
Comrattee (by law, 1t 15 duc March 1, 1989) It should provide important information
on this matter.

While more work remains 10 be donc to fashion the precise changes needed, |
would like to note that the basic approach suggested by the National Association of
WIC Dircctors appears to represent a sound coursc.  1he Assoclation has recommended
determining the average WIC adnumstrative grant per person 1 a base year, adjusting
this amount by mflation cach year, and then muluplying 1t by the total number of
participants that the fiscal year’s funding level will support The result would represent
the total amount of WIC funds for the fiscal jcar that USDA would use for grants to

states for administration and nutrition serviees (such as nutrnitzon cducation)
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Adopting a rccommendation along these lines wonld not affect overall WIC
program costs it would sumply alter the mcthod for deternuning how much of a fiscal
year's WIC funds go for food costs and how much go for adnumistrative and nutntion
scrvices.

3. Breastfceding

The Subcomnutice heard strong testimony last month urging that a greater
cmphasis be placed on breastfceding education in WIC and that a modest amount of
WIC funds be carmarked for this purposc A greater cmphass on breastfecding in WIC
1s overduc. We urge favorable consideration of measurcs to increasc breastfceding
among WIC parucipants.

4. Cost Containment Measures

Onc of the major developments in WIC over the past two ycars has been the
sprcad of wfant formula cost containment systems. Mot states now have such systems
n placc or arc planning to implement them i the near future Nearly all states witl
have them by the end of the fiscal year.

The savings being achicved through cost contamment contracts vary conuderably,
from a savings of 67 .cnts per can 1 a number of states to $1 45 per can i California,
$135 per can an Indiana and Tennessce, and $1.30 per can an Alabama. We believe
that USDA shoulc cncourage .tatcs to achicve the Jargest savings they can, so that a,
many women, nfants, and children as possible can be served within av arlable funding

levels,

‘That concludes our testimony | would Agam like to thank the Chairman and the
members of the Subcomnuttee for the opportumty to testfy today and for therr

bipartisan Icadership on these issucs over the years

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



2317

THE RESUARCH FINDINGS ON WIC

A senies of medial ev durtions have found stuking, tesults that WIC smproves the health of participating women, itants,
and children  Most sipmficant is an extenuve, multl yeat medicdl evaluation suppotted by the US Departiment of
Agniculture and ssued i 1980 Direcred by De Dasid Rush, one of the nation s leading tesearclers in the fiddd, the
evaluation found that

. WIC contributed to a reduction of 207 to 33 33 percent 1a the late fetal death rate

. WIC significantly inueased the head size of infants whose mothers recened WIC foods duning pregnand  Haad
suze normally reflects hirain growth

. Women who partrapated in WIC had loreer pregnancies leading to fewer premature births  These was a 23
percent decrease 1n prematurity among whie women with less than a high schoof education and a 15 pereent
decrease among black women with less tha: a hugh school educauon  Premature births are one of the leading
causes of death among infants.

. WIC partipation resulted 1n 2 sigmficant increase 1n the number of women seehing prenatal care carly 1n
pregnancy and a sigmificant drop 1n the proportion of women with 00 few prenatal visits to a health facility  Early
and adequate prenatal care is one of the major factors affecting the health of newborn infants.

. WIC partiapation also appears (o lead (o better cognitive performance  Four and five year old. whose mothers
participated 1n WIC during pregnancy had better vocabulaty test scoces. Chuldren who participated in WIC after
their first birthdays had better digit memory test scores.

. Women enrolled in WIC consumed more of such key nutrients as 1ron, proten, calcium, and vitanun C.

L] WIC also 1m,.roved the dicts of infants by increasing the average intake of 11on and vitamin C and significantly
di hing the freq of s of 1ron and A and C. WIC improved the diets of older
preschool children by 1ncreasing average consumption of 1ron. vitamin C, thiamine. and macin and by sigaificantly
decreasing the frequency of low intake of A and B and nboll

. The greatest dictaty benefits were amo., those people at highest sk minornity women. women with less education
and children who are very poor, short, black. or tn female-headed fammlies.

. Cluldren participating 1n WIC were better immunized and more ltkely to have a regular source of medical cate

Other studies have also demonstrated that WIC makes a significant contnibution to the health of pregnant women
and young children.

. The General Accounting Office (GAO) d all medical h on WIC p hed up to 1985 and found that
the incidence of low birthweight infants born to low income women who have been participating in WIC appears to
be reduced by 36 to 20 percent.

. WIC has a major impact on reducing anemia among chuldren  The Joumal o/ the Amencan Medical Association
(September 25, 1987) reported Gndings from the Center for Disease Control’s Pediatric Nutrition Surveillance data
that showed a wo-thirds reduction in chitdhood anemia over a ten-year peniod  The study indicated that WIC
contributed markedly to the dechine. The study found that low yncome children not ensolied 1n WIC have a
sigruficantly hugher prevalence of anema than those who are enrolled

. According to a Unversity of Califormia School of Public Health study, women who participated in WIC for an
extended ime dunng the postpartum pertod had higher mean hemoglobin levels and a lower nish of maternal
obesity at the onset of the next pregnancy  Their infants had higher mean bisthweights and were at a lower nisk of
having a low birthweight than were the infants of women who did not participate in the WIC program for an
extended ume dunng the postpartum penoed

. A Harvard School of Public Health study found that WIC reduced the incidence of low buthweight and that each $1
spent on the prenatal component of WIC averted $3 in hospiralization costs 1n the geographical areas undes study

. A Miscoun Department of Heanh study found that WIC partiipation was assou sted with 1eductions tn fow
birthweight rates and that for every $1 spent on the prenatal component of WIL, shout 49 cents i Medkaid costs
were saved dunng the first 45 davs after birth
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Greenstein.

I would like to start off the questioning by asking a question of
Mrs. Pannel. When you were testifying, it reminded me of some-
thing that happened when I was a young child. I attended Euclid
Street School in East L.A., and it was during the Depression.

We had nine children in our family. Most of those nine children
were in elementary school at the same time. There was a program
that was initiated, in order for us, because we were a very poor
family, to receive lunch, I do not know who did it at the time or
under what auspices, but my mother and other parents in the
neighborhood actually worked in the cafeteria so that we were able
to receive a free lunch there.

Incidentally, some of the lunches I did not like; macaroni I
couldn’t stand. I have since come to like macaroni, but we had to
eat everything that we had. I figured that was an asset {0 us in the
longer term and invaluable for us at the time.

That was a system where my mother was tantamount to a volun-
teer. She was not a hired employee. She was not actually trained
except by the personnel there for that job, and her natural in-
stincts as a mother and a housewife and a good cook.

You mentioned the commodities where you are required to buy
commodities or receive commodities along with the ability to get
vouchers to buy locally. Many of those commodities are in bulk
that are hard for you to use, I think you indicated, or hard for you
to convert to use.

While you were testifying, I was thinking about the different or-
ganizations that I belong to, such as Rotary Club which, when we
wanted to build 2 community youth hut, and I was director of the
project at that time, I went out and found lumber companies to
donate a certain amount of lumber at reduced prices, so that we
could have those materials that we needed to build that youth hut.

For work that had to be done by a licensed contractor, we found
people who were willing to donate their services at a very reduced
rate or almost for nothing or for nothing. We made up for the lack
of an ability to pay people by getting as much volunteer work as
we could.

I imagine somewhere, in some of these programs, there is some
volunteer work already. I wonder if there couldn’t be some kind of
a network in each community of places where the people who are
providing the service could go and get those support services pro-
vided, such as grinding the raw meat into hamburger patties.

I am sure there are meat processing places close to most of these
schools in the districts or somebody with a big meat grinder who
v&}rlou!)d volunteer his time to do it. Is there any attempt to do any of
that?

Ms. PaNNELL. It seems today that most people are needing to
work for money. So many of our parents—mothers that we used to
be able to depend on to do what you are talking about—are now
needing an eight-hour job five days a week, because their salary is
very much depended on to telp pay that mortgage payment or
whatever.

There is a network of volunteers in our school district, for exam-
ple; however, they are utilizing them in all the services of the
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school. I will say that washing nots and pans is not one of the more
popular of the volunteer jobs, so we do have to entice parents.

For example, in our county, we provide five dollars an hour for
volunteer service and it goes to the school to buy them a computer.
It is to entice that person, who would rather work in the library, to
work in the cafeteria.

It saves us money because our starting salary is a great deal
more than that and we do not have to pay that individual any
fringe benefits, because the person is not getting the money; it is
actually going to the school, so that’s been one way.

We also use student groups in our high schools, because it is a
major problem to find enough labor in our school district, and I un-
derstand that is true in a number of school districts.

Mr. MarTINEZ. I had another thought while you were responding
to my question. I wonder, years back, our former President Reagan
said that the public should not be concerned with the cuts that the
Federal Government made, because voluntecrs would make up the
difference.

You said that volunteers do not necessarily make up the differ-
ence, so that we still need the assistance.

Let me ask a question of Linda Locke. At this time, I notice that
you have given us testimony; I would note that your testimony will
be entered into the record in its entirety, without any objection.

[The prepared statement of Linda Locke follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Committee members, I am Linda Locke from
Community Coordinated Child Care (4-C) of Louisville and
Jefferson Couaty, Kentucky. I also am speaking for the National
Child Care Food Sponsors Forum, which represents over 400 Child Care
Food Program sponsoring organizations across the United States
serving nearly one (1) million children each day in this vital child
~nutrition program.

On behalf of the child care community, I express our deep
appreciation to each of you and to all of the Committee members
and staff as your work together to provide for the needs of our

‘nation's children. I am pleased and honored to have this
opportunity today to share with you how the Child Care Food
Program (CCFP) affects the children we serve, particularly in
family day care homes.

The organization for which I work, Community Coordinated
Child Care (4-C) is a private, non-profit United Way agency
which develops anJ coordinates services for young children and
their familjes in our community. We also gather and disseminate
information on Barly Childhood and serve as an advocate for
children an? families. Besides our Nutrition Project, 4-C also
developed and currently operates: child care subsidy progranms
for our local JTPA/PIC, the City of Louisville and Jefferson
County government; local and state-wide child carc raining
programs; Special Education Early Inter'enilon Services; the Car
Safety Seat Rental Program; Child Care Resource and Referral
Services in our community; and the 4-C Advocacy Program.

Our Nutrition Project 1s an Umbrella Sponsor in the Child

ERIC
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Care Food Program (CCFP), and currently serves 55 centers and 60
family day -are homes. The homes are located throughout the
western, central, and northern parts of Kentucky. 4-C provides
CCFP monitoring and training to programs serving over 7500
children every month.

There are several points that I would like to make about the
Child Care Food Program and its relationship to family day care.

1. The Child Care Food Program is the only federal program
which establishes nutrition standards for meals served to pre-
school children in family day care.

Major studies substantiate the fact that children,
regardless of where they live or the family income, enrolled in
day care programs participating in the CCFP significantly benefit
nutritionally. The 1983 Abt Study indicated quite clearly that
the CCFP was providing nutritious meals to children in day care
and was improving the quality of their diets (p. 3; 1983 Abt;

Evaluation of the Child Care Food Prog&ram).

According to this study, a comparison between participating
and non-participating programs revealed that participating
programs: (1) served more meals and snacks; (2) provided snacks
which were significantly better balanced (3) served
significantly more of the naturally high quality nutrient-source
foods; (4) served milk more often at meals and snacks: and (5)
served concentrated sweets 33% less often than nonparticipating
programs (pgs. 11-~12).

Our program recently enrolled a family day care provider in

the CCFP who was caring for seven children. Before enrolling,
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all the families she served were expected to send lunches and
snacks everyday when they dropped off their child. According to
the provider, she was charging low fees because that was all her
parents could afford to pay, and she would have lost money if she
furnished the meals. Now, she is enrolled in the CCFP and is
serving breakfast, lunch, and one snack which meet USDA nutrition
standards to the children in her home. She has learned to read
labels, determine how much uncooked meat will equal a cooked
serving, and to identify and serve foods from each food group.
All of the families and children she served h.ve significantly
benefited from the CCFP,

2. Family day care homes, including those participating iu
the CCFP, are a major component of our pation's day care delivery
systen.

The August 1988 Abt Study of the Child Care Food Program
describes family day care and documents how it differs from
center-based care:

"Family day care is an arrangement in which an individual
cares for a small number of children in her hors. Family
day care providers offer flexible hours of care and are
often available on weekends and evenings. Family day care
homes (FDCHs) provide a great deal of part-time care.

Some homes provide overnight care for children of parents

working night nursing or factory shifts. Most providers

adjust their fees for parents with low-incomes or large
families. Only 10V of family day care providers receive
child care payments from sour.»s other than pare.. fees."

"Family day care provides child care to meet the + rk
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sched.les of the families they serve. The FDCHs in the i
CCFP are open an average of 11.5 hours each day. Almos

20% are open more than 12 hours, and 4% are open 24 hours.

While 82% operate & days a week, 17% are open 6 days, and

108 are open 7 days. This contrasts sharply with the schedule

in child care centers, which rarely provide care on nights or

weekends"” (pgs. 88-90).

Family day care homes are a major provider of child care in the
United States, caring for more than 50% of children that are in
out-of-home care. Family day care homes also care for a large
number of our nation’'s infants and toddlers, as well as school
age children.

According to the 1988 Abt Study "...unlike most centers, a
substantial number of providers (participating in the CCFP)
accept infants and toddlers. Three-quarters of FDCHs serve
toddlers...More than one-thi ! {39 percent) serve infants and
over half (57 percent) serve school-age children” (p. 92).

"Family day care provides 'work-related’ day care so that
famiiles using FDCHs can become or remain employed. Ninety-
percent of mothers of children in participating FDCHs are
employed, while 69 percent of mothers of children in Head Start
and 27 percent of the mothers of children in ron-Head Start
centers are unemployed” (p. 67).

3. The Child Care Food Program is the only federal program

which provides direct support and protection to children and
families served by family day care providers.

A major national issue that has recently emerged is the

ERIC 20
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protection of children when they are in child care programs while
parents are working. The 1988 Abt Study points out that the
majority of family day care is still "underground” and not
meeting any standards of care. However, all children enrolled in
CCFP homes benefit from the increased protection of the sponsor’'s
in-home monitoring and the standards homes must meet to
participate.

While the CCFP mandates at least 3 monitoring visits per
year, the 1988 Abt Study points out "on average, sponsors visit
homes approximately eight times per year, with an average visit
lasting 48 minutes. Typica ly, these visits combine the
monitoring function with t .ining and technical assistance to
provider" (pg. 49). Only 12 states have standards which require
more than once a year visits to family day care homes. The
quality of care children receive is directly related to the
training received that providers receive training on a regular,
on-going basis. 1In 1986, 30 states had no training requirements
for family day care providers. The 1988 Abt Study documerts this
about CCFP training:

"Although nearly 90 percent of sponsors offer inservice

training at separate training sessions, sponsors typically

combine the monitoring function with training and technical
assistance to thear providers. Seventh-nine percent of FDCH
sponsors provide 1nservice during regular home visits.

Many sponsors indicated that while separate training

sessions are offered, providers are often unabie to attend

these sessions and as a result, most of the training and

technical assistance received by many p-oviders is obtained

KJ'»A ./

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




246

during home visits* (pg. 162).

The Child Care Food Program is the one program that reaches
out and assists family day care providers in meeting
regulations, and in providing continuous training, intervention,
and monitoring throughout the time that the providers are
enrolled. The CCFP, particularly in FDCHs, 1s a critical

element in our efforts to protect and assure the continued

health and safety of our nation's children.

4. PFamily day care providers who participate in the Child
Care Food Program are themselves from lower-income houscholds.

The Abt Study gives an income profile of the typical family
provider who participates in the CCFP.

"Nearly half (47.9%) of participating providers have (gross)
household incomes of less than $20,000." (This is before their
expenses of operating a family day care home are deducted.)
"More than one-quarter Jlive in households with gross incomes
between $9,000 and $20.000. Child care is the sole source of
household income for approximately 40 percent of providers whose
8ross household income does not exceed $15,000" (pgs. 97,99).

"Ninety percent of family day care providers are paid
directly by parents for their services. Most providers adjust
their fees for parents with low incomes or large families.

Only one percent of providers charge parents more than $2.00

per hour” (pgs. 89,92).

Exhibit 3.5 shows that 47.9% of providers receive hourly
fees of $1.00 or less for a full-time preschool child, and 42.3%

receive from $1.01 to $1.50 per hour. A family day care

ERIC 2.9
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provider provides care for an average of 5.7 full-time children
and operates 61.94 hours cach week (pgs. 92,281).

One of the family day care providers under our sponsorship
illustrates this point.

Emma T. is a widow whose only income is from sewing, parent
fees, and the Child Care Food Program. Her gross income for 1988
was $13,472 - $8,435 in parents fees, $3,365 from the Child Care
Food Program, and $1,672 from sewing.

She provides care for six children, three of whom are from
single parent families. One mother in particular has a hard
time paying for her child care, and last year, Emma only
collected $1,000 from this parent. She continues to serve
this parent, because, as she says, "I don't know what would
happen to her or her child if I didn’'t help her.”

Emma's operating expenses for her day care in 1988 are
1isted below. She says she is lucky she had no major purchases
or repairs this year.

Food $3636,67
Insurance 500.00
Substitute Help 70.00
Day Care Supplies 210.00
License 25.00
Training/Equipment 45.00

Utilities (water gas, 775.90
electric, phone)

Total $5,262.27
Income (CCFP, Sewing, Parent $13,472.00
Fees)
Less Business Expenses < 5,262.27>
Net Income - 1988 8,209.73

Emma is considering whether to continue her day care
operation. She states "I keep asking myself why I don’'t just give
this up, because I would earn more an an aide in a nursing honme,
and wotldn't have to work as long each day as I do now, and I'd
probably get a few benefits. But I really love my kids, and
their parents need me. I help them out when they have to work
late, and they really appreciate what I do for them. I don't
think some of them could make it if I wasn't here for their
kids."”

250
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S. The Child Care Food Program has been the single most
important reason that family day care homes have become regulated.

According to the 1988 Abt Study "To participate in the CCFP,
family day care homes meet state licensing requirements where
these are imposed, or be approved by a state or local agency. In
addition, they must be sponsored by an organization that will
assume responsibility for ensuring compliance with Federal and
State regulations and that will act as a conduit for meal service
reimbursements to family day care providers... This administrative
structure reflects an understanding of the great differences
between centers and homes in terms of organization and structure,
and in particular, of the personal and informal nature of family
day care” (p. 1).

Regulated homes operate as legitinmate small businesses,
meeting local and state standards, and paying taxes at the local,
state and federal levels.

It is our estimate the CCFP has been a facilitator in creating
several hundred thousand newly regulated family day care slots
for our nation's children. Again, by our estimates these new
slots have been by approximately 73,000 family day care
providers, providers that were either not operating or not
regulated prior to their participation in the CCFP. Each of
these providers {s now operating a legitimate business and
paying her share of taxes while providing critically needed
child care services. The children in these FDCHs are in the
care of providers who are now receiving training, monitoring
and in-hoase visitation, and who are meeting the nutrition

standards set forth i1n the pregram.

[l
. a =
Fo L

O

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

249

The Child Care Food Program has also been responsibie for
the networks of multi-service sponsoring organizations that have
grown as a result of this program. Families now have access to
family day care resource and referral systems, and providers have
access to a multitude of services. The 198% Abt Study documents
some of the services provided by sponsoring organizations to
FDCHs and the children and families they serve. The major ones
are: referrals for social or health services (58.8%), training
(93.9%), placement or referral of children to home (46.3%), and
parent activities or educational programs (40.5%) (pg. 399).

The 1988 Abt Study documents that the CCFP does not cover
the cost of administering the program. "Sponsors' average
administrative cost per home is $75.00...Current administrative
cost allow cost reimbursement from $29-$55 per home, depending on
the number of homes sponsored” (pg iv).

6. The Child Care Food Program, should be reaching more
low-income children.

In the 1970's the CCFP for family day care was established
with a means test in an effort to target it to low-income children.
However, participation was low and criticism was directed at the
program because it was not reaching children in family day cecre.

In 1980, a flat rate of reimbursement was established, with the
intent to expand participation among FDCHs (1988 Abt Study, pg.
17).

In 1981, the CCFP was serving 79,920 low-income children,
and in 1986, 115,130. While this was a significant increase in
the actual numbers of low-income children served, it was not when

viewed as the percent of total children served.
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Cne question to be asked is "where are low-income children
in out.-of-town care?

The 1975 National Child Care Consumer Survey (conducted by
UNCO for ACYF) found that, of low-income children in out-of-home
care, 3 of 4 were found in family day care, largely unregulatad.

ABT data (page 90, 1988 Study of the Child Care Food
Program), show that between 81%-84% of family day care homes are
unregulated. If we assume that each home would average 6.6
children (the average number of childrep per home in the ABT
1988 study, p. 93), then there exists nearly 3.1 million
children in unregulated family day care homes.

The next question is "How do we reach these children?®

It has been proven by past experience that "means testing"
will not increase the number of low-income children served by
this program in family day care. Previous participation data
substantiate this.

Instead, the prograr needs additional adjustments so that a

greater number of low-income children will receive CCFP benefits.

What can Comgress do to¢ increase the number of low-income

children served by the Child Care Food Programs?

1. Maintain the CCFP for family day care as it currently
exists with these changes:
A. Funding for outreach should be provided, for
sponsors. Sponsors helping low-income providers to
become regulated face many time-consuming barriers that
nust be overcome: 'anguage, illiteracy, geography, and

fear. These are not reimbursable program costs, and

10
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sponsors must solicit other funds to assist those
providers.

B. USDA should launch extensive public outreach
efforts, particularly in low-income areas. The
availability of the CCFP and its benefits to children
should be part of that effort.

C. USDA should insist that states establish, where
necessary, simplistic alternate approval systems when
data show that few homes or children in small groups
are participating. Kentucky only has 12 homes licensed
for 6 or less children in the entire state. Alternate
approval for children in groups of 3 or less (these
group sizes are exempt from l.censing) should be
established in Kentucky.

D. Higher administrative rates should be established,
particularly for the first month of service, and to new
providers in low-income areas.

E. The paper work requirements should be reduced, both

for sponsors and providers.

In day care centers, the number of low-income children
served has been relatively stable since 1981. The number of low-
income children served could be increased by 1mplementing the
following changes.

A. For-profit centers may participate only 1f 25% of their

enrolled children are Title XX funded. This eligibility rule

needs to be changed to allow them to participate :1f 25% of the:r

enrolled children are eligible for free or reduced lunches. This
11
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change is particularly important with advent of the child care
guarantee in welfare reform implementation.

B. Reduce the paper work requirements. These requirements
are so extensive that, in Kentucky, even a few non-profat

centers have decided not to participate.
Other changes that need to be made:

1. There is no Error Tolerance Level for the CCFP. Both
the School Program and Food Stamp Program have error
tolerance levels. This program requires significant

amounts of docume.tation on a daily and monthly

basis, and any small error can result in

payback situation. For example, our

organization was recently reviewed and a $8,000

payback was required. This was however, only

3% of the total CCFP funds received during the

3-month review, and only .9% of the total

yearly funds receaved.

2. In legislation passed this year, child care centers may
receive reimbursements for up to 4 meals per day (snacks are
considered a meal service). This needs to be extended to family

day care homes.

In summary, we are concerned about the future availability of
these programs for children. As one who administers these
programs at the local levels, we know how programs really do
affect the lives of our children and their families. On behalf

of the thousands of children served in the child Care Food
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Program, we commend this Committee for their constant support of

valued child nutrition programs. Thank you for allowing me this

time today.

13
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Mr. Marringz. I would ask you a question on reporting and pa-
perwork. A lot of this paperwork that is required seems to be an
exorbitant amount and unnecessarily duplicative.

I am wonaering, isn’t there a simple system of finding a way to
report the needed information so that it does not create this tre-
mendous amount of paperwork and labor and everything else that
takes away from the program?

Ms. Locke. I appreciate the opportunity to accompany Mr.
Cooney today, and I will be happy to answer your question.

As a representative of the National Child Care Food Program
Sponsor’s Forum, we, too, have been very concerned about the pa-
perwork, both in the family daycare homes and the centers that
participate in the Child Care Food Program.

One of the concerns that we have is the lack of uniformity in the
aperwork requirements on a state-to-state and region-to-region
gasis. Many of the providers that we are dealing with are low
income and, in many cases, low educational attainment. It is very
hard for us to get them to a level, in many cases, to understand
and maintain many of the records that the program requires.

We would be happy, as a group, to assist USDA in developing
some uniform standards and examining the requirements of the
program to see what can be done to still validate that requirements

are being met, but reduce the amount of paperwork that is current-
ly required.

To give you one example, in child care centers in Kentucky, one
of the pieces of information that is required is that if the center
purchases from a grocery store, a very small center cannot partici-
pate in quantity bids, they must also submit advertisements from
three different Frocery stores to validate that they are, in fact, pur-
chasing at the lowest cost. That is a very costly type of paperwork
requirement that we have.

Again, it is our state’s efforts to interpret regulations and to find
a way to validate that requirements are being met. I am not saying
that that is the same requirement in all 49 states, but each state
does have different requirements. We vrould like to see efforts

made to reduce the requirements, but still have the validation that
requirements are being met.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.

I notice that my red light is on, so I will not abuse the privilege
of presiding as chairman. I will forego the further questions I have.
There is one question I would like to ask of Mr. Cooney; if time
permits, later on, I will ask that.

Right now, at this time, I will go to Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoobLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

At that meeting that Mr. Cooney referred to in the Budget Com-
mittee, we did pursue the Section 4 issue. We pursued a couple of
other issues, t0o0.

Ms. Locke would be interested to know that I asked Mr. Cooney
whether he would pull together leaders in the field and see wheth-
er we can do something about the reporting and the burdensome
paperwork, first having the Department say exactly wha. it is they
want and they need and then not duplicating these things with
state and local efforts. He assured us that he would do that at that
particular time, so that is a good sign.
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I would say to Dorothy Pannell that I also said to Mr. Cooney
that we want some assurances ir relationship to CLOC. As I said to
Jack, we also probably need a state experiment, perhaps in Penn-
sylvania, I would say to the committee, where we would be a CLOC
state.

Since we have a CASH state and will have forever, I suppose, we
should probably have a CLOC state to see how everything goes.
Well, the interesting response was that he is very much interested
in those kinds of ideas, because he tried to push those ideas ten
years ago when he was assistant secretary and he couldn’t get
anyone to buy.

I was just over talking with the Agriculture Committee, because
I am not so sure that that isn’t where the buy problem comes
about. But, when you look at CLOC, it seems to me it is the best of
all worlds.

I have tried to impress that on the Agriculture Committee, be-
cause they still determine what it is you buy wherever they think
there are surpluses, but second, you do cut out all of those magnifi-
cent jobs called distribution superintendents, et cetera, et cetera.

Can you imagine how much money we must spend in trying to
distribute, when you take all of these things locally, right off the
market, at the direction of the Department of Agriculture, so that
you are not messing up the commodity program?

He did give us that. I was surprised. I didn’t know what his feel-
ing would be on that. I know in the Department, that is not the
feeling. 'm sure they must have died a thousand deaths when they
heard him make that statement, so there is some hope, I think.

Mr. Cooney, I have to remind you that cuts are made only in the
House and the Senate and so, the eraphasis that all of you lobbying
out there—when I say lobbying, I mean everyone—for public edu-
cation has to be with the House and the Senate and particularly,
not necessarily with the authorizing committee.

We always authorize ten times more than that is guing to be ap-
propriated. If there are cuts it is the Budget Committee on which I
serve and above all, the Appropriations Committee, where they
would come. It is also that group of the leadership that will be ne-
gotiating, if they are going to negotiate, in relationship to the
budget for this particular year.

With respect to the Summer Food program, Mr. Cooney, I made
that argument, if you will remember, in a conference with the
Senate quite a few years ago, that I could not understand how we
thought it was important for nine months, but then we say for
three months, forget it.

We also made the argument at that time and we were forced to
make it because of the testimony we were getting from you and
from some of our colleagues, about how the private sector was han-
dling that Summer Food Program. In some areas—New York was
one in particular—it was just devastating.

Do you believe we may have taken a step back? I noticed you
seemed to be pleased with allowing, again, a group back in on a

ilot program—private, “nonprofit”’—are we perhaps taking a step
ackward?

I think in a pilot program, they will be very, very careful to
make sure their act is just perfect, but when does that happen? Do
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we get back into that same waste ~f money on youngsters not get-
ting enough proper food?

Mr. CooNEY. I think there is always a risk in any Federally spon-
sored food program and I do think we have to be careful.

But the proposal that we would recommend is not an open-ended
one for private nonprofits. We think there is a need for protection
in terms of small sites and small programs. We think that commu-
nity action agencies and nonprofits, like churches and Boy Scouts
and Girl Scouts, should be allowed access in a very limited way.

The abuses that you are referring to—and there certainly were
abuses—were in 1977, and they had to do a lot with large sponsors
rfwt Siontrolling their sites and some peopie deliberately committing

raud.

We think that there ought to be protections built in. This is the
year 1 reauthorize the Summer Food Program, and we think there
1s a fair amount of support to get the private sector back into this
program. We can learn from them. We think that such groups, iike
CAPS, should be allowed back in, but in a limited fashion.

In response to your earlier question on Section 4, I would agree
with you that we have a lot of work to do with you in the House
and in the Senate, but I would point out that we are anticipating
amendments of H.R. 24 in this committee and on the floor, elimi-
nating part or all of Section 4.

We do not perceive that the votes are there, but we believe that
the amendments will be offered and we disagree with them; and,
that (iis why we wanted to take this opportunity to put it on the
record.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Well, I think we bloodied some of those people
pretty badly the last time. I was hoping that they wouldn’t have
nerve enough to offer them again, but that may happen.

Mr. CoonEy. We uppreciate your leadership on that.

Mr. GoobLING. Is my five minutes gone already?

. Mr. MARTINEZ. Actually, it was ten, wasn’t it? No, it was only
ive.

Mr. GoobLING. Okay. I have one or two other questions. I will get
them on the next round.

Mr. MartiNEz. Thank you, Mr. Goodling.

Let me introduce Mrs. Lowey from New York, who is one of the
newer members of the committee. Mrs. Lowey?

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you, very much, Mr. Chairman, and I want
to thank the panel for your outstanding testimony. I just recently
came from a meeting on the hospital crisis and the health care
crisis in not only New York, but throughout the country.

I do hope that together, we can convince not only the Congress,
but the public at large, who really establish policy because they are
the ones that lobby us as to how we should react to these pro-
grams; that by investing in these programs, we will save money
later on.

I do want to thank you. Again, you are talking to the committed,
and it is together that we have to convince everyone else.

Ms. Gardner, I have a question for you. You eloquently stated
the enormously important role of the NET Program. You also men-
tion in vour testimony that NET is a follow-on to the WIC Pro-
gram.
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I wonder if you could explain the connection. Perhaps we then
can convince everyone else of the importance of keeping the NET
Program in our plan. Thank you.

Ms. GArDNER. We feel like the NET Program is sort of a link in
a chain, that WIC exists for many reasons but one of the many rea-
sons is to educate mothers who then, hopefully, will provide their
children with nutritious foods to eat; that the next link in the
chain deals with elementary and secondary school children.

Really, I was out there teaching so that I know nutrition educa-
tion wasn’t happening at the elementary level. It was happening a
little bit in the secondary level in that health education teachers
were teaching it and home economics teachers were teaching it, |
but at the elementary level, teachers weren’t teaching it because
they weren’t prepared; they didn’t have materials; and they just
didn’t know what to do.

The elementary classroom teacher has a tremendous job today.
We have dumped all kinds of things on them. On top of reading,
writing and arithmetic, we have said, “You have to teach about
child sexual abuse. You have to teach about drugs and alcohol. You
have to teach about nutrition education” and on and on and on.

We feel that the NET Coordinators have been able to work with
elementary classroom teachers, as well as secondary, give them in-
teresting materials to use, give them AV materials to use, train
them how to teach and teach them how to integrate it into what it
is that they are already teaching.

There is no reason why you can’t teach nutrition while you are
teaching reading. There is no reason why you can’t teach nutrition
while you are teaching math. We feel that nutrition is that middle
link between what happens at the WIC level and then, as I said in
my testimony, Meals-on-Wheels at the other end. Hopefully, there
are some other things out there happening, and I know that there
are.

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you. Another point in your testimony that
particularly interested me—and it may be another way to sell the
program—is that the NET funds have been able to trigger and le-
verage other funds on the state level.

Could you explain this further? Is this happening throughout the
country?

Ms. GARDNER. I can tell you exactly what is happening in New
York, and I krow it is happening in other states. I am not sure
that I can be so specific today, but I certainly can get more infor-
mation for you on it.

In New York, nutrition education is a part of a much bigger
whole. It is under the umbrella of health education. *Ne, in my
office, have monies from the Federal Government for drug educa-
tion. We have monies from the Federal Government for AIDS edu-
cation. We have monies from the state government for family life
education. We have our Federal monies for nutrition education.

We try to coordinate all of these monies together so that we are
teaching teachers and studerts and, in the case of NET, food serv-
ice people, how to do nutrition education within the context of that
much bigger whole.

I specifically mentioned in my testimony how we used NET dol-
lars to broker state dollars for training school food service people. .
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We have a statewide network of—I want to say volunteer, because
we only pay them a tiny bit of money—food service people that we
train who then go train others. It is a train the trainer concept. We
use our monies to broker other monies.

Mrs. Lowgy. Thank you, very much.

I have some other questions, but perhaps we should save it for
the next round. Thank :'~u.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mrs. Lowey.

Mr. Smith is one of the newer members. He took the last rank-
ing member, Jim Jeiford’s, place from Vermont. We are glad to
have you here, Mr. Smith.

Mr. SmitH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I have a question, I believe, for Mr. Greensteir, having to do
really with the first set of testimony that we heard a couple of
weeks ago, which was all based and oriented towards WIC.

As [ remember it, a shared, beyond perception, reality that was
being given to this committee about a real sense that they were
being kept at the state and local level from being able to do the job
to make the best use of the resources that we are giving them by
the Federal regulatory—the attitude of the Federal agencies.

I heard stories of innovations in one state that could not be
adopted in another state because of the way business was done. My
concern is that we have a dedicated group of professionals and
community »eople trying to do a job that is a national priority and
that, somehuw, beyond the money—and I think you will find that
this committee—and I am in very good company when it comes to
this program and this fills me with some joy, as a newcomer here,
to find that out.

But, as we get more money into the program, my questicn is: Do
you see changes that could be made that would eliminate obstacles
that state directors currently face and local directors face that
hinder their ability to do the job that they see in front of them
every day?

Do you see those kinds of obstacles? If so, what are they? What
conld we do to clear them away so that the people who are out
there on the firing line have the greatest flexibility—and account-
ability, also, but flexibility—to serve the people that we are trying
to serve with this program?

Mr. GREENSTEIN. I think one of the most important things you
can do was actually something that—I don’t recall whether it was
you or one of the other members from your side of the aisle—a
point that was raised in the hearing several weeks ago.

One of the members asked the panelists: Would it be useful to
remove scme of these administrative barriers to enable someone—a
woman, a child on Medicaid or on AFDC or food stamps—to be
deemed to meet the WIC income test? I remember that the audi-
ence burst into applause. I think that would be an excellent idea.

In the WIC Program, there are two eligibility criteria: You have
to meet the income criteria and you also have to be found by a
medical professional to be at nutritional risk.

As it turns out in nearly everyplace, in most laces, the income
crite..a are more restrictive for Medicaid, AFDC and food stamps
than for WIC, and second, I would say in thowe programs, there is a
pretty intensive and fairly costly verification doct....entation proce-
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dure of income that goes well beyond that in any of the child nutri-
tion programs.

So, what we now have is we have this extensive procedure where
they meet the income. Then they come into WIC which, because it
is not under the welfare department like the other programs, but it
is under the health department, it is a different part of the bu-
reaucracy, they have to do a new income test all over again, even
though it has al.eady been done and been done more thoroughly
than the health department has the ability to do it.

To say that participation, having been determined to be eligible
to meet the income tests in those other programs, would satisfy
that in WIC, and that you would still have to meet the nutritional
risk test anyway, I think that could be quite significant.

I think a second issue is that you heard some very good sugges-
tions at that earlier hearing to modify the way in which the admin-
istrative funding component of the WIC Program is deterrained.

One of the problems for states right now is that current proce-
dures are sufficiently complex that nobody can figure out how
much they are supposed to get. You have these very complicated
procedures to determine that.

I am hopeful—it is early, but I am hopeful—that in that very
complicated area and thorny area, that we may actually end up
seeing the Federal administrators and the state administrators
make very similar recommendations to this comittee to stream-
line it, which would be helpful.

Finally, it certainly weuld be useful to have a procedure to look
at the impacts, the cost impacts, on states of new regulatory re-
quirements, not that they should not be imposed.

There will be needs, for example, to require states to do more in
monitoring vendors. I think everyone agrees that further require-
ments are needed there, but there ought to be an overall procedure
to make sure that the total burden being placed in terms of admin-
istrative costs isn't too great.

Mr. SMmitH. Thank you. I appreciate that. Could you tell me, are
you based here in the Washington area?

Mr. GREENSTEIN. Yes.

Mr. SmitH. It would be very helpful to ine if we could continue
this at another time not on the clock.

Mr. GREENSTEIN. I would be pleased to.

Mr. SmrtH. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Smith.

hWgth this, we turn to another new member, from Illinois, Mr. Po-
shard.

Mr. Posuarp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and ladies and gentle-
men of the committee.

I appreciate the testimony of the panel today. I had the good for-
tune some years ago of being one of the directors of a nutrition
education training program, so I have some first hand experience
out in the field in this area.

We had a little more money than you folks have to operate with
and we were able to, effectively network a lot of our efiorts with
the Section 4 programs and WIC Programs and the others.
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One of the things I think about now is that with the lack of
money, ten cents per pupil basically, as opposed to the fifty cents
we started out with, it might be a good thing for the folks in the
programs to focus in on one area.

I think one of the justifications for the cutbacks in this program,
even seven or eight years ago we received it, was that health edu-
cation is taught in school and, within that framework and in that
curriculum, we teach nutrition education. Well, that’s not true.

Very few health educators even teach nutrition education, but
even if they do, the area that is most needed now in my judgment
are parental training programs for nutrition education because we
have so many young people having children who have no idea how
to feed their babies, especially in the low-income areas. That wor-
ries me a little bit.

I remember that one of you asked us a rhetorical question about
establishing priorities with the money that we have. I guess that’s
what we are about in this business in terms of our job 1s establish-
ing priorities.

Hubert Humphrey once put forth the idea that we establish a
Marshall Plan for America, to take care of some of the needs of

eople in this society. At that time, I think he was talking about
50 billion or so, and folks were snickering and laughing and
saying, “Oh, my goodness, how could we ever afford such a thing?”

I thought how ironic that this past week, we were given a $150
billion figure to bail out the 3&Ls. That’s priority setting.

We have all kinds of Food for Peace programs that we support in
this Congress for cther nations of the world. We have been very
good and generous in helping these folks. It seems to me that the
WIC programs, the Section 4 the NET Programs and so on are
really food for thought programs and we ought to be promoting
that in this society.

It is not true that kids don't learn if they don’t have good nutri-
tion. They do learn. They learn the wrong things. They learn, affec-
tive(liy, that we don’t really care about their needs, their adequate
needs.

Cognitively is where they suffer, because without that nutrition,
they do not learn math and they do not learn science, languages,
and the kinds of things that they need to be learning. We probably
ought to listen to you a little closer whe: you talk about setting
the right kinds of priorities.

Thank you.

Mr. MarTiNezZ. Thank you, Mr. Poshard.

I have just a followup on the question that Mr. Goodling asked
and that is in regard to—oh, I lost my train of thought. What was
the first question you asked?

Mr. GoopLING. I'm not sure.

: Mr. MArTINEZ. 'll think of it in a minute. I will come back to it
ater.

What I would like to ask you is, then, in your written testimony,
you talk about the decrease in participation in the program direct-
ly related to the increase of the cost. That has been a part of the
big debate on the overall cost and what that charge should be.

I am concerned that it will get too nigh because I know, certain-
ly, the theory that you present is very true in my district. An in-
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crease in price to that kind of constituency would definitely cause
an even greater reduction than that ten percent.

1 would like you to elaborate a little bit on the study that was
done and ask you: Has that study been made available for refer-
ence in the hearings that we are holding?

Mr. Coonky. Yes, the specific reference comes from the National
Evaluation of School Nutrition Meals, which was a four-year, four
million dollar study done by the Department of Agriculture. The
Food Research and Action Center had a staff person serve on that
advisory council. 1

We are als. concerned about the p:tential effect on school brezk- |
fasts in these cuts. We are unaware of any school in the nsution
that has a school breakfast program but does not have a school |
lunch program. |

Once you start chopping off on Section 4, I mean, you've got a
school breakfast program that is ninety percent low-income kids,
and they took a big hit in 1981, as well, but that particular statistic
does come from the national evaluation, which is a good study.

It has a lot of different things in it. It shows that low-income kids
really benefit from the School Lunch Program because they get
certain nutrients in that lunch, which is superior to any other
lunch served in any other setting.

The School Lunch Program is the best lunch those kids get, but
the reason is that it has nutrients in there that are known to be
missing in the low-income community people, particularly teenage
boys. Certain key nutrients are missing in their diet that they get
in the School Lunch program. It is a pretty important program.

Mr. MARTINEZ. It is not surprising that so many of these things
were known to a certain segment of our population a long time
ago. Let me illustrate. When I was very young, and I think the
year was 1939, I saw a movie that was called “Tortilla Flats.” |

In that movie, the doctor referred to the lack of nutrition in the
food that that community was eating and observed that the direct
result of that lack of nutrition was a reduction of their ability to
aﬁhieve in school. It took Congress many years to become aware of
that.

There are still people in Congress or in the Federal Government
who would see some of these programs completely eliminated or
cut back to a point where they are not even effective anymore be-
cause they do not reach out to enough people, so that is why I
wanted you to elaborate on that.

The other question I had for you has come to me on the question
that Mr. Goodling asked on nonprofit organizations. You know, it
seems to me that ir. the heginning, if you set standards and have
these people qualify under those standards to be certified, that the
certification of nonprofit organizations providing that service would
adequately do the job without the abuse that existed.

I'd like you to respond to that.

Mr. Coonry 1 think that is a very important concern. Mr. Good-
ling is one of the jongest term supporters we have in the Summer
Food Program. He came forth in 1981 when the entire program
was under threat. He does raise some very valid concerns about
private nonprofits.
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I do think that a certification process can be developed and the
controls can be done. What I am concerned about is we lost 500,000
poor kids in 1981 as a result of these private nonprofit sponsors
going out.

You just cannot have a system that is limited just to schools and
just to public entities. Many schools in this country are not open in
the summer. They are not there. If the city government decides
that they have other priorities and are not going to open up their
parks and recreation programs to allow for food as well, those chil-
dren have nowhere else to turn.

This does not mean that we want an open-ended program that is
subject to abuse. We do not, and we are going to work with Mr.
Goodling and other members in the Congress, in the House and
Senace, to make sure that that does not happen. I think your sug-
gestion on the certification process is a very intriguing one and I
think it would work.

Mr. MarTiNEz. Thank you, Mr. Cooney.

Mr. Goodling?

Mr. GoopLiNG. In 1981, my hope was that, as a matter of fact, we
could use a carrot and a stick approach to get the schools to contin-
ue the feeding program through the entire year. Mary Jane Fiske
can remember when we were down in Philadelphia in a summer
feeding program and this poor lady, bless her heart, was trying to
do her best from off of her front porch.

First, she was trying to make sure that they all got their lunch
and, second, she was trying to make sure that they didn’t get in
line several times. I don’t know, after a hundred or so went by her,
how she knew which ones came or which didn’t.

Then, it started raining, to complicate matters, and I said, “Geez,
isn’t there a school close by?” She said, “Oh, yes, just a half-block
down the street.” Of course, there I could see was the school, but
she said, “We’re not allowed to use it.” That’s kind of tragic. That
was the city’s decision that they couldn’t use it, but our hope was
to try to carrot them and if not ¢r ‘rot them, carrot-and-stick them
into doing that.

I can remember Congresswoman Holtsman, when she testified
before us with all those horror stories. We knew we had to do
something and tried to go in that direction.

Ms. Gardner, I am sure it wasn’t coincidental. I noticed you high-
lighted California, Michigan and Pennsylvania in your statement.
That is better than one of your panel members did when he was
young and green when he appeared before the committee. He had
the nerve to tell the Congressman from Michigan that he was
wrong. I told him that I knew he was new, but he’d better not do
that anymore and it wouldn’t get us very far, I'm sure.

Mr. GReEENSTEIN. | haven’t done that today.

Mr. GoODLING. 'n spite of emphasizing the education part for the
teens that are going to be mothers and fathers, with the amount
we have, would we not perhaps get more bang for the buck if we
really concentrated that on the early childhood, elementary and
middle school, realizing we don’t have enough to go everywhere, on
those particular areas?
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Ms. GARDNER. My answer personally to you is I absolutely think
so. I deal not only with nutrition education, but drug and alcohol
education and AII%S education and so forth.

I say probably many times a day to my staff, “If we don’t make a
difference at the elementary level, there is no way we are going to
make a difference later on.” You know that teenagers have made
up their mind that they know all the answers.

Mr. GoopLING. And they are invincible.

Ms. GARDNER. Yes, so I absolutely agree with you.

Mr. GoopLING. Mr. Greenstein, this may not be the best year for
what you are attempting to promote. If it isn’t, would forward
funding be a help in that it wouldn’t guarantee you how much
money, but at least it would guarantee it in a timely fashion? That,
too, could be difficult this particular year because, as Jack points
out, we are talking about a double dose in one year.

Mr. GREENSTEIN. A couple of thoughts. One is that in terms of
the approach that I recommended, it entails, obviously, authorizing
legislation to make that change, so in a year other than this year,
it would entail the committee reopening the authorization in a
year that isn’t in a normal authorization cycle.

That is the reason that chis is the particul-r year we are talking
about that. I recognize it is difficult, given the larger budget pic-
ture; on the other hand, what we are suggesting is no more of an
increase in the budget resolution than has been in each of the last
three years.

This is very different than some of what you might have heard a
number of months ago, that we ought to have an open-ended enti-
tlement in WIC.

In terms of the forward funding, I think Jack’s point is an excel-
lent one. I am not sure that it might not even be more difficult for
the reason that the budget authority would have to be a two-year
budget authority. If the caps you are operating under are BA caps
as well as outlay caps, that could be very difficult, as well.

The forward funding would allow more knowledge in sdvance of
the funding level; on the other hand, it would not provide any as-
surance as to whether it was going up or down or being frozen. I
am not sure it would help that much more in terms of planning a
consistent long-range process.

I guess the concept behind what we are talking about here is
that if—and this would entail, obviously, more than this commit-
tee. I think if it were left only to this committee, it would be far
easier.

If the Congress as a whole makes a determination as some of the
corporate groups and the American Agenda and Senator Chiles are
recommending that WIC—along with Head Start and a few other
programs—should be singled out as one of our top national prior-
ities and that we should have a national game plan to expand them
in steady planned increments over a number of years, then this
makes sense and makes sense to do now.

It entails really saying that this is one of our top priorities, in
that fashion. The other thing I guess that strikes us is if the
Budget Committees--and maybe they won’t, but I hope they will.

If the Budget Corumittees are going to pursue the similar path as
in previous years of having a certain amount over current services

O
fv

T~
vJOU




264

for WIC anyway, then it does not increase the budget authority or
outlay numbers to rescore that as a mandatory rather than a dis-
cretionary.

I think part of the concern is—from perhaps the Budget Commit-
tee’s standpoint—if you conclude, and I think I probably do, given
the past history, if you conclude that eventually, whether it is in
five years or fifteen years, that eventually, the Congress is going to
take WIC to the point where it is serving all of the eligibles, then
what we have been doing in the past few years is we have the
Budget Committee earmarking a certain amount of money to get
there each year.

A significant part of it does not get there, and then the Budget
Committee has to keep putting in more each year. It is inefficient,
in a sense. A significant amount of the money you and the Budget
Committee put in does not get there. The number of times you
have to put that increment in——

Mr. GoopLING. Because the Appropriations Committee does not
come through with the appropriation.

Mr. GREEWSTEIN. The Appropriations Committee argues that
some of the other cuts the Budget Committee assumes are not real-
istic, for all their 302(b) issues, as you well know, in terms of the
allocations, but when all is said and done at the end, the money
does not get there to a certain degree.

I think there is actually somewhat of a fiscal argument that if
you want to single out several key things as priorities, I think
Head Start this year, since President Bush has that amount in his
budget, I do not think the Appropriations Committees are not
going to put it in and be below the president.

But, in general, if one wants to set these goals, the Budget Com-
mittees over time have o end up putting in more than they other-
wise would over a five or ten or whatever year period to get there,
if a lot of the money ends up dribbling off to other. places that you
had not really thought of as priority programs. So, that is kind of
the thinking here.

Mr. GoopLING. One last question, and this could go both to Ms.
Gardner and Ms. Pannell. I would tell all of you if you are not
CLOC people, if you want to see a good program in operation, I'm
sure she would be happy to have you out there to see that.

We have some in Pennsylvania and they are represented back
here. I'm sure Mr. Miller would like to have you come and see his
operation.

My question is: When the ASFSA people testified, they talkad
about a management institute. The reason I'm zeroing in on both
of you is: Could this not be duplicative of NET? It seems to me that
there would be some overlapping. It seems to me the one could be
doing that job at the present time.

Is there a necessity for another separate entity which would
have to be funded?

Ms. GARDNER. When you are talking, I am thinking about an ex-
perience that I had in the very beginning of the NET Program
back in 1978 and 1979, where our brand new set of regional coordi-
nators were out there and they were doing their first training ses-
sions for school food service people.
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They treaded on regulations and they should not have been
treading on regulations; that was something that was left to the
other set of people in our State Education Department who were
really the child nutrition school food service authority types. We
got into all kinds of trouble.

I guess what I am trying to say to you is I think that we under-
stand that there are some pretty clear lines out there about the
kinds of training that NET people are supposed to be doing with
school food service people and the kinds of other training needs
that school food service people have that we are not supposed to be
dabbling with, so to speak.

Mr. GoopriNg. Couldn’t we have a marriage?

Ms. GARDNER. In New York? We do have a marriage in New
York, but we are still very careful about there being certain things
that we should not be training in. Our focus is really nutrition edu-
cation, menu planning and what kinds of ways can you attract kids
to be interested in School Breakfast and School Lunch.

Mr. GoopLING. That is what I think they want with a manage-
ment institute.

Ms. PannEgLL. Well, I would hope that they would also concen-
trate on some of the problems of managing a school food service
operation such as financial, the accountability.

We are learning more and more the importance of that account-
ability with the groups of auditors that are headed our way. Han-
dling a free and reduced price program, the application part of it,
we all definitely need training in that. I think these are technical
areas that maybe the NET money may not be getting into.

I also hope that an institute of that type might standardize some
of the technical training for food service programs. One of the re-
grettable things, I think, is how different states invent the wheel
over and over again.

If you visit the stacks out at the Agricuitural Library in Belts-
ville, you will ~ee that each of these states have developed some
great material. Much of it is duplication and, regrettably, no other
state gets to use it.

I would love to have a copy of all of that, but instead, I hope that
an institute such as this would standardize some of that and not
make it necessary for everybody to write a book on accountability,
for example.

Mr. GoopLinG. Thank you.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Goodling.

Mrs. Lowey?

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I just have one other question for Ms. Locke. I am particularly
interested in hearing more about the child care food program in
light of the fact that we are all pushing to pass a major child care
bill this year.

I would appreciate your comment on the participation, in par-
ticular, of low-income children. Could you elaborate on that?

Ms. Locke. Yes, I could. Thank you very much.

I think, in the child care food program, we need to understand
that it serves three distinct groups of children: one, the children in
Head Start Programs, which is a means tested program; two, chil-

dren in child care centers which receive significant subsidy; and,
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three, children in family daycare homes where the parent fees are
used to pay for the child care.

We have been very concerned, in this particular program, that
we need to reach out and include more low-income children, par-
ticularly in family daycare and particularly in center-based care.

I would like to address them from both standards, if I may. Oue,
in child care centers, for profit programs may participate in the
Child Care Food Program if 25 percent of their enrolied children
are funded through Title XX.

As we are all well aware, Title XX has not expanded for child
care in several years, so it is a very stable population at this point;
however, there is additional funding for c..ildren in child care, par-
ticularly with the advent of welfare reform and the guarantee of
child care in that legislation.

We would ask that the committee consider looking at a change
in this that would allow these programs to participate if 25 percent
of their children were eligible for free and reduced price luncles.

The second issue is childrea in family daycare. We have shown
by the actual participation figures that we are increasing the
number of low-income children that are being reached by this pro-
gram if we look at actual participation figures.

One of the problems that we see, as I have detailed in the infor-
mation for the record, is that we have no outreach funds to reach
out to unserved and to low-income areas. There are many, many
problems.

For example, one sponsor in the ios .Angeles area speaks about
the fact that they must have bilingual people on the staff: that
they have to make sure that the forms are maintained bilingually,
This is a major problem for them. They have to bring up education-
al attainment, as we do, particularly in many parts of Kentu~' y, to
a point where people can participate.

If there are no funds in this program, the only funds sponsors get
are those after a program meets standards and begins to partici-
pate. As recent studies have shown, we are not getting full cost of
administering the program to begin with, so we reach out.

Those people who are included in the program many times are
those that are the easiest to serve unless we are fortunate to access
additional fundings from other foundations and local sources to de-
velop and create family daycare.

We think that the outreach funding in the family daycare por-
tion of the program is a major need and, certainly, that outreach
needs to come from both sponsors and from USDA aggressively
reaching out to low-income and under served areas along with
SpOnsors.

We would ask one other thing, as I have detailed in my testimo-
ny. We would like for USDA to be involved and be concerned about
reaching cut to low-income children. For example, in Kentucky, we
have only twelve family daycare homes licensed for six or less chil-
dren in the entire state. Only twelve homes for six or less children
in Kentucky can participate in this program. There is a major
problem that exists.

We would like for USDA and our State Agency to be concerned
about what they can do to reach out and make sure that more chil-
dren are included in this program. As advocates, we are working
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on that, but when problems like that exist over a period of time,
we would like to see them initiate some concern and say what can
we do to bring more children into the programs.

Thank you.

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you very much. Just one other quick ques-
tion. I know that there was a cutback in the program and the
second snack was eliminated.

Would you comment on this? What action would you recom-
mend?

Ms. Locke. Certainly, you are right in that this was removed
from the Child Care Food Program. It was reinstated for centers
last year under the Hunger Prevention Act and was reinstated in a
pilot way in Minnesota with that particular Act.

We think that with the release of the recent study by USDA on
family daycare, it has pointed out that children in family daycare
are in there for a longer period of time, more hours per day, more
evenings, more weekends. You have the substantiation with this
particular study to say we definitely need that second meal service
in family daycare in the Child Care Food Program.

We certainly would urge this committee to implement that.

Mrs. Lowgy. Do you have an idea of what that would cost?

Ms. Lockk. I am not a budget person. I am certain that there are
figures available that the committee could access.

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you.

You looked like your finger was up. Did you want to comment on
that?

Mr. GrReeNSTEIN. That was looked at last year and I don’t re-
member precisely, but I think the cost was somewhere in the area
of thirty or thirty-five million dollars for the second snack in the
homes. I think the reason it was done in the centers and not in the
homes last year was, in part, the cost. It was ten million in the cen-
ters and I think about 35 million is the figure 1 remember in the
homes.

Second, because the income profiles were so different, about sev-
enty percent of the children in the homes were above 185 percent
of the poverty line and the reverse is true in the centers. Congress
last year took the less expensive, more targeted piece.

Mrs. Lowey. Thank you very much.

Mr. MarRTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Lowey.

On behalf of the Chairman, Gus Hawkins, who I am sitting in for
today, and on behalf of the ranking Minority Leader, Mr. Bill
Goodling, I wish to thank all of you for appearing before us today
and providing us with the insightful informative testimony you
have given us. It is invaluable. We thank you again.

We are now adjourned.

|Whereupon, at 11:12 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

S,

“

S

S
AR

Bread for the World

A Christian Citizens' Movement in the USA

STATEMEI'T OF BREAD FOR THE WORLD ~

ON WIC AND CHILD NUTRITION, REAUTHORIZATION
FOR THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY,
SECONDARY AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATINN

MARCH 2, 1989

8read for the World, the national Christian
citizen’s lobby on hunger, is spearheading a
campaign in 1989 to seek full funding for the
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
Infants and Children (WIC) so that all eligible
women, infants and children will be able to
receive WIC benefits.

This campaign to expand WIC has sparkod
widespread support ameng church members and
leaders, leaders of the business community and a
broad~based coalition of nutrition, health,
labor and education organizations. Attached to
our testimony is a list of religious leaders who
support planned expansion of the WIC proaram.

We recommend that Congress mandate annual
WIC increases of $150 million above current
services in each of the next five years. This
would provide services to an additional 300,060
worsn, infants and children each year. In order
to assure increased funding, WIC shouid ke
changed from a discretionary funding program to
a4 program category requiring specified
increases.

With assured funding, WIC administrators
could plan for steady increases in caseload.
Together with cost containment measures that can
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free up additional money to serve more of the eligible
population, this modest annual increase

could enable us to near the goal of being able to serve all
women, infants and children who gqualify for WIC.

Investing in Our Future

The WIC program has had exceptional success in reducing
maloutrition and its harmful effects. It has given millions
of babies and children a chance to live normal, productive
lives. However, “ecause of funding limitations, millions more
eligible pregnant women, infants and children have not been
able to participate in wIC. As a result, many childran have
suffere the severe, long-lasting and costly consequences of
being hungry and malnourished at this vulnerable stage of
development.

We know that the serious budget deficit makes this a
difficult year to increase funding for government programs.
But children cannot wait, and our nation cannot afford to
neglect them. Each child is precious in the sight of God.
Each child is also a precious resource for our nation that we
must not waste. Recent reports from the Commit¥ee on
Economic Deévelopment, the Council on Competitiveness, and the
Mational Governor‘s Association, laud early childhood
intervention programs including WIC that actudlly $ave the
government and society money in the long run. Assuring a
nutritionally healthy start in life is essential. R fully
funded WIC program can assure this healthy start for children
in poor families.

We Jdo not, however, support cuts in other programs which
provide assistance to low-income people in order to increase
the WIC program. These programs currently have little enough
funds to carry out their needed functions. We suggest that
the U.S. government budget can accomplish both priorities by
reducing proposed military expenditures and closing tax
loopholes if necessary.

Other Issues in WIC Reauthorization

Bread for the Worlld recognizes that the percentage of WIC
funds set aside for nutrition services and administration has
not been adequate in recent years to maintain a satisfactory
level of services. Most women go to WIC clinics because they
need the supplemental foods. However, the other services WIC
offers through nutrition counseling and referral to health
care programs are just as valuable because they provide
long~term health benefits.

In most WIC ciinics, staff members have too large a
caseload ior them to give participants much individual
attention. For example, the WIC program provides an excellent
opportunity to encourage and support breast feeding among
low-income vomen. However, this counseling is a
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time-consuming task, and sometimes WIC staff cannot give it
adequate attention. Support for breastfeeding and nutrition
education must be maintained as a major focus of the WIC

program.

Bread for the World recognizes that an expanded WIC
program will put more stress on currently inadequate prenatal
care and other maternal and child health services. WIC
administrators often detect health problems in the women and
children who come to WIC clinics. They refer them to health
providers for follow up care. We encourage Congress to
increase the accessibility of prenatal care and support
funding increasas for maternal and child health services.

Othexr Child Nutrition Recommendations

Bread for the World strongly supports all the child
nutrition programs because they help provide a nutritionally
adequate diet to millions of children. We urge the committee to
consider ways to encourage more schools to offer school
breakfast, especially in areas with large numbers of low-income
children.

We also support expansion of the Summer Food Program to
allow well-run private nonprofit groups which offer summer
programs t» children to participate in the program.

Nutrition education is critical in encouraging healthful
eating habits among children and teenagers. We urge you to
increase funding for the Nutrition Education and Training
Program.

Finally, Bread for the World encourages you to support
nutrition monitoring legislation, H.R. 677. Although this bill
will £~: be considered by this committee, it does address
important nutrition issues. It is vitally important to monitor
the nutritional haalth of our population, especially vulnerable
groups such as children, so that we can have current and
accurate data on nutritional status. With this informationm,
government ctz» better plan for changes needed to improve health.

Thank you for considering our views. This committee has &
long history of careful attention to children’s nutritional
needs. We believe that the time is right to assure that the WIC
program has guaranteed annual increases in funding that will
enable it to plan an orderly expansion of its valuable services.

EMC i o
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RELIGIOUS LEADERS' STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF PLANNED EXPANSION OF THE WIC
PROGRAM

The Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and
Children (WIC) has been exceptionally successful in reducing
malnutrition and its harmful effects during pregnancy and in the initial
years of a child’s life. It has given millions of mothers and babies a
chance to live healthy and productive lives.

R five-year national WIC evaluation study shows that participation
in WIC reduces fetal death and low birth weight, prevents anemia and
improves children’'s cognitive development. WIC participation also
increases prenatal care, improves children’s nodical care and leads
families to buy more nutritious foods.

WIC's effectiveness in preventing medical problems saves money in
the long run. For example, a Harvard study showed that three dollars
are saved in hospital costs for newborns for every one dollar WIC spends
on prenatal nutrition services. Intensive care for a baby with low
birth weight averages about $13,500. The lifetime cost of low birth
weight can reach $400,000. These costs compare with Spending less than
$400 to have a pregnant woman on the WIC program.

WIC enjoys strong bipartisan support in Congress. President George
Bush has also praised the program.

Despite this widespread support, WIC funding is currently limited so
that the program can serve only half of those women, infants and
children who are eligible.

We in the religious community urge Members of Congress to make the
program available to all who qualify. We support a proposal that would
mandate annual incremental funding increases for WIC of at least §150
million above current services for the next five or six years. This
would allow for a planned expansion of the WIC program toward the goal
of full funding.
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Religious Leaders in Support of WIC Expansion
As 8 Mandatory Spending Program

Rev. Ane Brouwer

President

Nauonal Counct of the Churches ot Chrst
[nte USA,

Rev, Willlam Byroa. 5J
President
The Catholic LUruversity ot Amenca

Bishop Herbert W. Cailstrom
Evangetical Lurheran Church in Amerca

Sally Erast
President. Lruted Methodist Women s O v 0
General Board of Global Munustnies

Rev. Roland Faley, TOR
Executive Drector
Conference of Major Supenors o1 Men

Dr. Sylvis Faulk
President, Wemen's Massionary Coupwy
Chnsuan Methodist Epscopal Churon

Alice Gallin, OSU
Execuuve Durector
Associauon of Catholic Colleges and Lriversii ey

Rev. Roger Greeaway
Executive Director, Board of World Minusin
Chnstian Reformed Church

Dr. Vernoa Grounds
President Ementrus
Evangelical’ for Socal Action

Blshop 1homae Gembieton
Auxiary Bishop of Detront
Dr. _ee Haines

C .ncral Secretary, Educanon and rhe M.+
The Wesleyair Church

O
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Rev Eugene Herdeman
Sretany tor rograms
Rete~ * Chuch in Amenca

Mrs Goldie Hollje
President ot Women's Depariment
Progressive National Baptist Convennion. Inc

e, John O. Humbert
Generas Manister and President
Chesuan Church (Disciples of Chnists

Man Lou Kownacki. O3B
Natonal Coordinator
Pax Chnisti

Mry. Mary Ana Kramer
President
National © - unad ot Catholic Women
Rabbi Lynee Landsberg

Arsociate O rector

Rsligious A.v.on Lenter Retorm Judaism

Rev Joseph Lang, MM
Exeutive Director
L3 Catnone Massion, association

Joha A. Lapp
Evxecutive sevrzran
Menanonite Canrnal wommettse

Donald £ Muiler

Jeneral Seceerany eneral Board
Chursn ot nz Brenren

Rev Dr. Edwin G Mulder
Ceneral Secretan

Retormed Chursh in Amerna

Bishop P Francis Murphy
Auwasary Bisnop o Balumote




Randolph “ugent

eneral Secretany
General Board ot Global Minitrics
Lnited Methodist Church

Dr. Asveny Post
President
Lnited Church ot Chnit

Clgir Randal}
President
Church Women Lmted

Rev. Graham H. Rights
President. Southern Province
Moravian Church in \merica

Janet Roesener. CSJ
Executive Drector
Leadership Conterence of Women Reugons

Res, William Schulz
President
Lrranan-L o ersaiint Assoviation

Richard 8. Scobwe
Executive Durector
Umtanan-Universalist Service Commutiee

Arthur Simon

President
Bread tor the World

ac2
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Presdent

Reorganzed Churan o Jesus Chinst
Ot Lader Dav Sants

tdward F savder
Fravatise Secretany

frenas Commuitee on Saronal Leanlaton

Dr Gordon Sommen
President Nornern Provinee
Moravian Church in \merna

Beveris St John
Maoderator ot the General Asembly
Cuameertand Presbvienian Churdh

Buhop Joseph M Nulbivan
Charman, Commitiee on Domestic Policy
LS Cathohe Conterence

Nancy Mlvester, THM
Noonal Coo mator
NETWORK

Dr. Damel Was
Ceneral Sevre 4y
Aaovertean Bapiosd Churdhesin the U S A

Deiores Renneds MWilhams
Prosigent Waomen « Missonany Sodety
Areaan Mernedst Epscopal Churen
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Bread for the World
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NET FACY SHEET

NUTRITION  EDUCATION & TRAINING

o The Surgeon General's Report on Nutrition and
Health released in July of 1988 cmphasized the lipk
botween diet and 1S relationship to the leading
causes of death and disability among Americans.

¢ The report states that educdting the pudlic
adbout  dietary  choice 1S essentidl  and  that
educational efforts should begin in prirary scheol
8nd continue 1hroughout the seconday grades.

« Fortunately, the mechanism to accovplish this goal
1S alveady in place with the Nutrition Education and
Training (NET) Progrom.  The KET progrom, esta-
bhished 1n 1978, 15 the educational componznt of the
Child Kutrition Program and 15 dedicated to improving
autrition knowledge of teachers, school focd Service
personnel and children of all ages. NET provides
childron with the reasons 10 mike wise food choices
while Qiving them the oOpportunity 10 practice that
knowledge 1n the school cafeteria. What better way
to lower future health care costs?

o NET was originally funded 3t 50¢ per child for 2
total of $26 million natiomnde, was cut to §I5
miltion in 1981, and was further cut to §5 million in
1982, The NET program has ltost 4/5ths of the
original funding specifically targeted fo  teach
autrition; therefore, states are now recesving tess
than 10¢ per child.

o When NET  was originally funded, the progron
annualty reached 210,793  teachers, 103,313 food
service personnel and 5.6 miliion siudents Now, ten
years lawer, with (w3 thor haIf the or.gindi sisif,
the progran reaches 85,054 teachers, 67,393 {ood
service personnel and 22 miltlion students with
nutrifion information,

o« KET  funds are not tied up 1IN admnisirative
cosis Instead they are used for training programs
for teachers and food service personrel and in many
states they flow through to local school disiricts
and colleges Os educational grants  Funds have becn
utitized to provide 1irdining for the teachers,
children, and school autrition personnel from child
care progroms through twelfth grade In ac¢dition
fhey have becn used 10 produce aufrilion CurriCulum,
training videos, PublaC Service announCements, and
speciadized nuirition mater1als and progrom  for
sporis  enthusiasts,  pregnart  lcens,  handicapped
individusls, agolescents at rick aad child care
progroms.,

e NET programs have achieved remurkably impressive
accamplishments  with  aimited  funding  such  as.
nutrition curriculum for pre-school, prirury and
secondary studenis, nutrition and mirdgement fraining
for school nutrition personnel, nutrition 1rdining
for teachers, education myterials, libraries and
nutrition  resources for local school districts;
developrent of camputer software and mini-grants to
local school districts and camunily groups.

o In 3 recent nationai survey, the percent of states
1dentified specific nutrition educalion needs as.

* 933 - increase nutrition knowledge

¢ 551 « wmprove attitudes

¢ 701 - improve eating hadits

¢ 633 - wmprove  managemen!  skills  of  school
nutrition personnel

¢ 953 - others, such as development of materials,
quality school meals, nutrition education
i child care progroms, information about
dietary quidelines and coordindtion of
nutrifion  information  among  goverment
agencies and the community.

o Although  formal evaluation has  been  severely
curtaried due 1o decreased funding, results are
available that show a significant improvement In
knowledge, attitudes and auiritional practices of
children, teachers and school nutrition personnel.

o Hithout reauthorization of NET, thero will be no
CPGaN. RS COuCaiiunal pIoQram 20 TMENIZIZE Ruififiud
~ o funds dedicated specifically to nutrition
education 1n most states. [he nation will lose ihe
teadership and advocacy for better nutrition provided
by MET staff already in place.

With NET, fhere con continue lo be effective
nutrition education for our nation’s children

With increased funding, nutrition training con be
expanded and  updated, more people reached and
slalewide nutrition policy developed

e One of the values of sChool nulrilich Programs s
ihe  consistent,  equitable  opportunity  for  all
children 10 hove nuiritious mals  hET nccds lo
receive 1he same emphasis s the oducational arm of
this valuable progrom

Prepared by Nutr 1l on Educaraon 3nd Training State Courdinotors
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The National Assoclation of State Boards of Education (NASBE) 1s a
private nonprofit organization representing over 600 state board members
from 45 states, three territories and the District of Columbia Our
principal objectives are to strengthen state leadership in education
policymaking, promote excellence in the education of all students, advocate
equality of access to educatlonal opportunity, and to assure responsible lay

governance of public education

While NASBE's primary purpose is to determine educational policy, we
fully recognize the direct correlation between bealth, a child’s quality of
life and his or her educational success It 1s because of this belief that
we welcome an opportunity to comment on issues relating to the

reauthorization of child nutrition programs in HR 24

NASBE wishes to commend Chairman Hawkins for his tireless commitment to
ensuring that all our nation’s children are provided with a quality
education  Equally important, we applaud his recognition of the

relationship between nutrition and learning

Although the principal purpose of these proceeaings 1s to address
issues relating to the reauthorization of child nutrition programs in H R
24, NASBE would like to take this opportunity to address briefly the fiscal
year 1990 federal budget To ensure that the programs in H R 24 have
sufficient resources to meet current needs, NASBE calls on members of
Congress to pass a fiscal year 1990 child nutiition budget that reflects the
importance of child nutrition programs to quality education  Further. NASBE

urges Congress to oppose attempts by the Administration to eliminate the NET

Q o
EMC YAPRY)

R R IS




21

program and te reject such "deficit-reducing" options as the elimination of

|
cash subsidies for children who are currently ineligible for these programs

NASBE strongly endorses the reauthorization of child nutrition programs

under the National School Lunch and Child Nutrition Act In particular,
NASBE erdorses the continuation of the National School Lunch and Breakfast
programs because they ate essential components of the American education
system  Thousands of children across this nation receive tlieir only hot,
nutritional meals through these vital programs We know that -- regardless
of how outstanding the programs or how good the teacher - wungry children
do not learn

NASBE supports increased auchorization levels for all child nutriction
programs in H R 24 This would allow curreat perticipation levels in these
programs to be r stcred at a time when research indicates poverty and
general malnutrition among children is increasing to the higher levels of
participation existing before 1980 For example, the fiscal year 1989
National School Lunch program part. ‘nation level of 24 million children
could be restored to the fiscal year 1979 level of 27 million In addition,
NuSBE supports full authorization of Section 4 of the National School Lunch
program. Section 4 payments to school are essential to keeping the prices

of school lunches down and participation rates up

The Nutrition Education and Training (NET) program 1s also an important
component in providing nutrition education to tedchliers, parents and

children The goal of 1ZT 1s to usure that parents and children understand

Q 2\.=\
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the relationship between good nutrition, health and learning It 1s
incumbent upon us as a nation to advocate health lifestyles to our children
from the earliest possible age and NET provides a critical mechanism to
deliver the appropriate training NASBE calls for a substantial increase 1in
the NET budget The current authorization level of $5 million is inadequate

if we are to expand nutrition education within communities and schools,

NASBE rccognizes as central, :ssues relating to nrogram quality and
Section 4 payments which the subcommittee must address during this
reauthorization We believe the importance of these issues has been
addressed adequately by others who appeared before the subcomnittee,
however, and thus we wish to focus on the health and nutrition needs of
adolescents  There is a misperception among some that federal child
nutrition programs should primarily target the needs of elementary and
secondary school children Very little attention 1s given to the health

needs of early adolescents and teenagers

Numerous studies show teens to be among the most poorly nourished in
our country  Teenagers underg- dramatic physica) and emotional changes in a
relatively short period of time Their rapid increases in physical growth
and development actually result in an increased need for nutrients
Numerous psychological and social factors, however, frequently dominate the
eating habits of teens, often to their detriment Therefore, in

reauthorizing child nutrition programs, Congress is urged to consider the

following
Q7
2
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I. THE PARTICIPATION RATFS OF TEENS IN SCHOOL-BASED MEAL PROGRAMS MUST

BE_INCPFASED

Teenagers tend to have the lowest participation rates in sihool meal
programs, eliminating an important source of good nutrition The reasons

for luw participation rates of teenagers are diverse

o 1In spite of supposed snonymity, students feel singled out as being
poor in a very public way when they receive free or reduced-priced
meals Simply eating 11 the school cafeteria 15 seen by some

students as a statement of poverty

o School policies allowing students to leave campus during lunch hours
or permitting foods of no or limited nutritional quality to be
available to students through vending machines and student canteens

diminish the importance ot “eating healthy
o 1eens fiom poor lawalles ofien come to scheool wioh little or ne
breakfast. One study indicates that many poor families make food
available to the family's younger children fiist, while the older
ones are expected to find other ways to zet food. since they can be

more 1ndependent

With its relatively high percentage of needy children, our country
cannot afford to allow children to lose the nutritional benefits providcd by
school meal programs Therefore, NASBE proposes the following

recommendations to increase the participation of adolescents in these
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programs*

o Improve menu selections and permit student participation in menu

development

o Provide incentives for schools to decrease the number of vending

machines and student canteens that supply "junk food ™

© Use incentives to encourage schools to improve the physical

environment of school cafeterias

11, THE LEGISIATION SHOULD ADDRESS THE PREFONDERANCE QF FATING

DISORDFRS AMONG TEENS

Obesity is one of our nation's most prevalent forms of malnutrition
It affects approximately 10 to 20 percent of all teenap~ - It often
undermines the self-concept of adolescents who are d.rectly affected by it

2.t

Many =adnl-~5cent- ¢ obsissed with welght gain and loss which leads to a

number of cating diso-ders, such as

o Bulim‘a
o Anorexia Nervosa

o Dietary Abuse

NET school counselors and public service activities should educate
young seople about the dangers of these disorders and encourage them to

seek help if they are suffe.ing from these problems
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ATHLETIC PROGRAMS SHOULD FOCUS ON POSTITIVE AND HEALTHY EATINC HABITS

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

o

Many coaches and athletes harbor misconceptions about food intake
during training At a time when adequate energy and nutrient-intake
is essential, they frequently over-emrphasize the need for
carbohydrates and fatty foods NET can be used to educate coaches

and students about healthful practices

The use of performance-enhancing drugs can disrupt adolescents’
normal growth aud development Incorporating comprehensive
education i1nto a NET program can reinforce a positive message to

coaches and athletes

ESS THE NEEDS OF PRECNANT TEENS IN SCHOOL

The unfortunate and dramatic increase of pregnant teens in schools
must be acknowledg;d In 1984, the number of infants born to
teenage mothers was close to a half million Pregnant teenagers are
at greatest risk for havirg low birth-weight i1nfants, spontaneous
abortions, premature deliveries and complications durirg pregnancy
The social and medical cost of thrse problems is tremendous To
counter the low birth-rate among pregnant teenagers and to decrease
the number of children of teenage mothers who enter special
education programs, it 1s essential that pregnant teens have access

to good nutrition They must also be made aware ol the close

relationship between healthy mothers and healchy babies
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V. UTILIZE NET TO ADVOCATE HEALTHY LIFESTYLES

The goal of KE1 is to 1) teach children the value of a nutritionally-
balanced diet through positive daily lunchroom experiences and appropriate
classroom r« inforcement, 2) develop curricula and materials, and, 3) train
teachers and school fooq service personnel to implement nutrition education
programs  Moreover, NET seeks to ensure that parents and children
understand the relationship between good nutrition and learning It is
incumbent upon us as a nation to advocate healthy lifestyles from the
earliest possible age and NET provides a mechanism to deliver appropriate

training

Teens’ lifestyles often involve meal skipping, snacking, and meals away
from home  Busy schedules and newly acquired feelings of independence among
adolescents result in more independent decisionmaking about food choices.
Adol-zcents often make food choices based on peer pressure, st:tus and
enjoyment, rather than on the basis of nutrition A comprel.ensive nealth
and nutritior oducation progran should emphasize the need for healthy
balanced diets. Students should also be made aware of the jact that drug
and alcohol abuse can affect nutrient intake, as well as disrupt the normal

growth and development of teenagers,

The effects of poor dietary practices on an adolescent's future health
is often not part of his or her thinking owever, with ncreasing evidence
that lifelong nutritional habits affect the onsec of major chronic diseases
and that major causes of death in this country are linked to diet-related

factors, adolescents must ie mrade aware through education of the adverse




fmpact a poor diet can have on their future
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NASBE urges Congress to look carefully a* the benefits of the NET

program, especially as it relates to nutritional education for students, and

to provide it with sufficient resources to enable 1t to provide these

benefits

1
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Further, w. .ge consideration of the folluwing recommendations:

Congress must encourage schools to connect classroom learning about
nutrition with what goes on at meal times and interact with other

school health components

Nutrition education programs should be age appropriate, sequential and
comprehensive to address the nutritional and education needs of all
children It must also be integrated into reading, science, language

arts, history and mathematical concepts

The program must address adolescents’ interests and needs, and link
nutrition to personal appearance, athletic abirlity, food preference and

social likes

Student and parent involvement in school lunch program planning.
administering and evaluating should be encouraged, students should have
a choice of foods with each meal and should have a pleasant environment

in which to eat

[ XalR
/si VA ()




284

5 Collection methods that don’t distinguish poor children from others and
make the progiam attractive to children at all income levels should be

instituted to increase program parti:ipation

6 NASBE urges Congress to look carefully 4t the benefits of the NET
program, especially as it relates to nutritional education for
students, ard to provide it with sufficient resources to enable i1t to

provide these benefits

7 Congress must provide the resources for quality training of food
cervice personnel in applying dietary guidelines in meal planning,
preparation and service, as well as encourage increased coordination
between such national organizations as the National Cancer Institute
and the American Cancer Soclety with state health education agencies

and American School Food Service Association (ASFSA) affiliates

8 Finally, NASBE supports and urges Congress to encourage efforts to
promote and expand nation-wide creative program. such as the School
Nutrition Action Project (SNAP), as evidence suggests the program yworks
to enhance communication between schools and parencs and to bring
positive, healthful changes to school lunch menus and nutrition

education efforts

We appreciate the opportunity to present our views to the subcommittee

O
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STATEMENT

FOR THE RECORD

BY
THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED PERSONS
BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
OF THE
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
REGARDING THE

REAUTHORIZATION OF THE NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH ACT
(H.R. 24)

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

MARCH 2, 1989

For more information contact:

Larry White

Legislative Representative

Federal Affairs Dept.

American Association of Retired Persons
1909 K Street N.W., Suite 600
washington, D.C. 20049

(202) 728~4729
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established by the Food and Nutrition Board of the National

Academy of Sciences~National Research Council.

This standard would be reasonable for any lunch or dinner
served in an adult day care center. Amounts served for

breakfasts or supplements could be less.

Although older persons require fewer calories than younger
persons, they need comparable amounts of nutrients to maintain
good health and nutrition. As a result, the foods in their diet
must have a high yield of nutrients per calorie. while more
research is needed to determine the optimum diet for the elderly,
there is information that may be drawn upon in developing

appropriate meal standards.

For example, Marion Franz, in the "Journal of Nutrition and

the Elderly," includes as nutritional recommendations for the
elderly:

[¢] a ninimum of 50 to 60 grams of protein per day:

[¢] increased levels of vitamins C and B. often these

vitamins are not as r:adily absorbed by older persons
or their absorption may be interfered with &s a result
of prescription medications:

o a daily intake of 1 gram of calciur because of the
prevalence of osteoporosis:;

[¢] 10 to 12 milligrams of 1iron a day to prevent iron

Q
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research is needed to determine the optimum diet for the elderly,
there 1is information that may be drawn upon 1in developing

appropriate meal standards.

For example, Marion Franz, in the "Journal of Nutraition and
the Elderly," includes as nutritional iecommendations for the
elderly:

[¢] a minimum of 50 to 60 grams of protein per day;

o] increased levels of vitamins C and B. often these
vitamins are not as readily absorbed by older persons
or their absorption may be interfered with as a result
of prescription medications;

o] a daily intake of 1 gram of calcium because of the
prevalence of osteoporosis;

o 10 to 12 milligrams of iron a day to prevent airon
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established by the Food and Nvtrition Board of the National
Academy of Sciences-National Research Council.

This standard would be reasonable for any lunch or dinner
served in an adult day care center. Amounts served for
breakfasts or supplements could be less.

Although older persons require fewer calories than younger
persons, they need comparable amounts of nutrients to maintain
good health and nutrition. As a result, the foods 1in their diet
must have a high yield of nutrients per calorae. While more
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established by the Food and Nutrition Board of the National

Academy of Sciences-National Research Council.
This standard would be reasonable for any lunch or dinner
served in an adult day care center, Amounts served for

breakfasts or supplements could be less,

Although older persons require fewer caloriec than younger

persons, they need comparable amounts c¢f nutrients to maintain
good health and nutrition. As a result, the foods in their diet
must have a high yield of nutrients pe1r calorie. while more
research is needed to determine the optimum diet for the elderly,
there is information that may be drawn upon in developing

appropriate meal standards.

For example, Marion Franz, 1in the "Journal of Nutrition and
the Elderly," includes as nutritional recommendations for the
elderly:

[¢] a minimum of 50 to 60 grams of protein per day:

[¢] increased levels of vitamins C and B, Oorten these
vitamins are not as readily absorbed by older persons
or their apsorption may be interfered with as a result
of prescription medications:

o a daily intake of 1 gram of calcium because of the
prevalence of osteoporosis:;

[¢] 10 tc 12 milligrams of iron a day to prevent iron




The NET Program: A Ten-Year Perspective

BARBARA B. KaLINA,' CAROL A. Pruniees,?
AxD HELEN V. BInNs 3

| Cumculum Services Secton. Division of Instructional Efectiveness, \Minnesota Department of Education. 641

Capatol Square Bldg , 550 Cedar St , St Paul, Minnesota 35101,

2 Bureay for Food and Nutntion Services,

Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction, P O Box 7841, 125 South Webster St

Madison, Wisconsin 53707, and ? Child Nutntion Programs,

Tenness=¢ Department of Education,

208 Cordell Hull 'sldg . Nashuille. Tennesee 37219

In 1958 the Nutnton Educatton and Training (NET)
Program marhed its tenth year of implementation As
the NET Pregram begins 1ts second decade, 1t 1s ime
to reflect on these hey questions

® Why should nutntion education be undertaken in
school and child care settings®

® What 1s the mission of tie NET Program?
@ How effective has the NET Program been?

® W hat fiscal, political and organizational factors affect
the NET Program®

@ \Vhat have we learned 1n ten Years of the NET
Program®
® \What should the future hold®

The NET Program has evolved in the mudst of an
unprecedented interest in nutntion education and die-
tary gudance According to Johnson and Johnson (1)
almost $0% of the nutntion education stud es conducted
from 1900 to 1954 have been done since 1970

1n 1950 the U S Departments of Agnculture (USDA)
and Health and Human Services (HHS) jointh published
the first edition of Dietary Guidelines for Amenicans (3)
Revisedin 1985, this report lists sex en recommendations
that address the relationships among diet, health. and
the reduction of nsk factors related to chronic disease
In the recent Surgeon General's Report on Mutnition and
Health § yand R dat which reviews
the scientific enidence of dietary excesses and imbalances
and their relationship to chrome disease, U $ Surgeon
Ceneral Dr C Everett Koop states, "1 am consinced
that with a concerted effort on the part of policy makers
throughout the Nation, and eventually by the public, our
dailv diets can bnng a substantal measure of better health
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toall Americans” 4) The professional health commumnty
1s calling for ndinduals to take responsibilin for their
own rutntional well-being, howe er. 1n order to accom-
phish this, nutrition education 1s Recessary People need
help 1n deaiding what and how much to eat, how ..
discnminate among food products, and how to interpret
the often conflictisg nutntion messages related by ad-
sertising, interest groups and educators
To help bnng this disease prevention and health pro-
motion effort into school and child care settings, where
voung learners are acquinng hnowledze and habits for
lifelong application. Congress enacted the Mutntion Ed-
ucation and Training Program, Public Law 93168, 2 1977
amendment to the Child Nutntion Act of 1966 The leg-
islatn e purpose of the NET Program was "to encourage
efective dissemination of scientifically < ahd information
to children participating or elizible to partiaipate in the
school lunch and related child nutntion programs " The
NET Program 1s administered nationally by the UsDa
through 'a system of grants to State educational agencies
for the development of comprehensive nutrition infor-
mation and education programs ~ The law requires that
the NET Program fulls utilize the school lunch and other
child nutntion programs as learning laboratones 3+
The major NET Program goals. which the legislation
requires the states to address, include:

® the wnstruction of students pre-school through grade
12, i the nutntional value of foods wad the rela-
tonships between food and health,

® he traming of school food service personnel n nu-
tntion, food serice mznagement, and the use of
the school cafetena as an environment for learming
about food and nutntion.

® the inser ice education of teachers and other school
staff 1n nutntion edncation and in the use of the
cafeteria as a learning laboratorn  and
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@ the {dentification, des elopment and dyssemination
of nutntion education resources and curncula

This program 15 sigmificantly dufferent from the Na-
uonal School Lunch, School Breakfast and Child Care
Food Programs, because the NET Program provides di-
rect educational benefits to children, rather than foods
or funds to purchase, prepare and sere foods Unlike
the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women.
Infants and Children (WIC) and Food Stamp Programs,
1ts purpose is to serve all chuldien, n st just children who
are at economic and. therefore. nutational nsk
In order te recerve NET Progran grant funds, state
e I must d te a coordinator and
submit an annual program plan that addresses their state
nutntion education needs. From their inception  state
NET Programs have conducted assessments of the nu-
tntion education and traning needs of children, teach-
ers, and food service personnel. The plans submtted by
the state agencies descnbe the projects and serices they
have designed to meet their dentified nutntion educa-
tion and training needs They also include plans for eval-
uating the effectiveness of the projects and services Data
from these evaluations are then used to make adjust-
ments 1n ongoing .t ities and to plan future projects

Because it 1s the states who determne thar own needs
and who design the methods to address those needs,
there 1s no ingle NET Program model The resulting
diversitv allows each state to fulfill 1+ wn massion, un.
fortunatelv, it does not fac:hitate the evaluation of the
NET Program’s effectiveness on a national basis Counts
of the number of children educators and food service
personnel receving nutntion education and training are
the onlv s, ustics currenth bemng submatted to the LSDA
bv all state and temtonal NET Programs Thus in Fiscal
Year 1978, when the program recerved $20 millon 1n
federal funding, 5,680.023 children, 211,798 »ducators
and 103.373 food serice personnel recened NET Pro.
gram serices. whereas in Fiscal Year 1950, when the
states were granted $5 million these totals were 2,295,365
children. 85 034 educators and 67,393 food servce staff
(6) However these numbers alone do not tell the \ET
Program ston The natonal statistics currenth being
collected do not address the qualts of the nutntion ed.
ucation provided. nor do thes reveal whether caildren,
teachers, or food serice personnel, respectively, have
apphed ans of the information or strategies to unproving
their cwn drets, their classroom wnstruction or their food
service programs  Furthermore. different states are ofter
wn verv different stages of program implementation. mak-
ng it dufficult to compare data between states Any at-
tempts to measare NET Program effectis eness must looh
to the results of individual state s evaluation mitrativmg
Although these data mav not be nationalls comparable
they do give a picture of the scope and com effectiveness
of the NET Program for spectfic projecss and activities

d
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The onls nationa) studv of NET Program effectiveness
was conducted by Abt Associates, Inc (7) between 1979
and 1950, under contract from. the USDA This occurred
before the NET Program was fully implemented 1n all
the sta‘es Nevertheless, the studv did determine that
the NET Progzam had improved the nutntion knowledge
of students dunng its first two years of implementation.
The Abt study focused pnmanly on Geotgia and Ne-
braska, but included data from internal studies con-
ducted 1n California (8) and West Virginia (9) The effects
on attitudes, food preference. plate waste. and other
behaviors were not consistent across all the studses. but
positiv€ results were reported at some grade levels and
for some food ttem combmnations A more recent study
m Tennessee {10) reports some significant positive be-
havior change m pnmarv grade children in schools re-
cewing mini-grants when these schools used the state-

ded instr ! fra k for nutntion ed-
ueation These results for young children are consistent
with previous findings

Despite these reports of NET Program effectiveness,
fiseal and political forces have affected 1ts development,
and 1ts full potental remains *~ be reahized Ongnally
fundad at $26 million (S0 30 per child) in 1978, the NET
Program was cut to $20 million 1n 1980, to $15 million
m 1951, and to $5 millon 1n 1952 The funding has
remained at $5 million annually since then This 50%
funding cut from 1978 to 1958 has forced states to selor
speerfic projects and services for simplementation, snstead
of being able to put a comprehensive program into effect
For ns*ance, the Texas \ET Program concentrates pn-
manls on serices to pre-school children In Viinnesota.
most resources are used for services to elementary schools
and for traming school food service imstructors Some
states have been able to offer limited services to all of
the target groups (students teachers, and food service
personnel) through partaerships with public and pnvate
agencies

Overall, the reduction of federal funding has adversely
affected not only the implementatien of state programs,
but also their usibility wathin the states. the develop-
ment of new materals, and even the pursuit of evaluation
stuiies The negative effects of funding reduction both
on the level of services 2nd on program evajuation design
have been reported by different states (11, 32) In manv
states. evaluation actinities have had to be sac-ficed al-
together in order to maintan a mimmum level of serv-
wes Thus the ver data on program effectiveness that
could be used to justifv restoration of fun hing to onginal
levels or its increase to higher levels are, 1n mans wases,
either incomplete or missing

Despate repeated federal administratve attempts to
terminate the NET Program, Congress has annually ap-
proprated at least 83 million 0 federal funding The
Sucwets for Nutntion Education (SNE), the Amencon
School Food Senice Assoctation (ASFSA), the Amencan
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Home Economics Assocratior ‘AHEA), and the Amen-
can Dietetic Association (AD A" have lobbied for contin-
uvation of the NET Program Their efforts, along wath
support from sta*e departments of education and the
growing public recogmition of the importance of dict to
health, have helped sustan the NET Program for ten
years

NET Program coordmnators have had to learn how to
work effectinely at both the local and state levels Since
there 1s no single advocate for nutrition education in the
schools, the NET Program has had the challenge of buld-
ing a suppert svstem which includes educatore from a
wide vanet of backgrounds and expertence An obvious
but cntical factor in comprehensive program implemen-
tation 1s the inclusion of nutntjon education 1n the total
school curmculum This has been particularlv difficult
because nutntion education competes for tinye and em-
phasis with basic eduration critical thinkmz shills de-
velopment, and other heulth-relited programs <uch as
drug. tebacco and AIDS-pres ention education Olson et
al (13) and Gillespie (14) have reported that teachers
percene competition for class time and having more
pressing subjects to teach as barners to the inclusion of
nutnton education in their curnculum However, these
barr ers have rended to full when nutntion education W as
wntegrated nto other disciphnes Nonetheless, sustamed
interest at reduced funding levels has been possible onh
because state programs have put forth a strong rationale
that nutntion education teaches hfe shills that all children
need to know and practice

The difficulties faced " educators in schoo! and child
care settings in attemptling to change nutntion behaors
first learned and practiced 1n other env ronments is well
recogmized This has led some practitioners, researchers
and evaluators, such as Shannon et al (I13)and St Pierre
{16), to question whether Lehavior change 1s a tealistic
measure of success for school-based nutntion education
programs In general, the goais of most nutrition edu-
cation programs have .ncluded hnowledge gain. and pos-
itne changes in atttude and behavior While the liter-
ature has reported posiine results in hnowledze gain in
school-based NET projects. findings :n the areas of at-
titude development and behavior change ar= less cn-
sistent

Johuson and Johnson. after anah zing numierous nu-
tntion education <tudies, concluded that ‘nutntion ed-
ucaton 1s quahtativeh more complex thun are any other
subject areas taught 1n schools Besides the short term
masteny of facts and information, nutntionprograms have
to be concemed wath the achievement of 4 wide wanety
of short-term and long-term goals” (1) Even the goals
of short-term mastery of facts and the acquisition of in-
formation which can be validated by nutntion suence
are rapidh being modified or changed. thus reinforcing
the notion of the comples nature of the field Further-
more. nutnaon messages are often a 1biguous or vague

O
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(1 e, "make wise food choices.’ ‘eat a vaniety of foods,”
himit total fat intake ) In addition. beyond the mere
acquisition of knowledge. . preferences and cating
putterns are culturallv estabhshed and socilh rein-
forced

The difficults of successfully attaning short and long
term godls notwithstanding, 1t has been found that nu.
tntion education can increase hnowledge and can posi-
trely affect some attitudes and behaviors, in a  anety
of settings and using a vanetv of methods Botl cen-
tralized Jnd decentralized delivery svstems have been
shown to be effectne (7} In addition, NET Program
coordinators are continually 1dentifiing a wide range of
practices that demonstrate nutntion education theory
being applied in the school and child care settings For
example. practitioners in several states have designed
programs that operate on the premise that nutntion ed
ucation 15 a people-to-people business, requiring face-
to-face interaction The research buse for this behef has
been summurized and supported by Johnson and John-
son, who cite the need for nutntion information to be
wnad and personal A (I} Manv nutrition education
worhshops for prof 3510 1ls have been effectn» because
the begin by helping participants ussess their own diet
and food behaviors Once interested in their own eating
patterns and the related health implications. particspants
are led to realize the impurtance of nutntion education
for children as well This in turn can lead them to malke
a commitment to teaching nutrition and to create the
necessary room fer nutrition education in their instruc-
tional dav

The above reflections indicate that after ten vears.
during which funding levels dropped from adequate to
subsistence. the NET Program hus experienced educa-
tional success Clear needs have also emerged that give
focus to future directions In order to increase NET Pros
gram effecuveness and more accurateh measure its im-
pact. neaition educators imvohed wath this program
should cunsider addressing the following areas

I Adoption of a working definttion of nutrition edu-
cation applicable within the NET Program Considera-
tion should be miven to the proposals of Johnson and
Johnson (I} St Pierre (7), Contento (1), Sims (1), and
the ADA (19) Such a consensus definition would not
et state program fleubilits, but it would facilitate 2
national program design to guide evaluation efforts to
which all state programs could contribute data

2 Development or adaptation of a national frameworh
for the NET Program that would include goals, objec-
tnes, and learner outcomes By identifving these essen-
tial components of nutntion education, impast could be
more reathih measured

3 Identification and utihization of reliable and vahd
mstruments 5 measure hnowledge, attitude, and be-
havior changes This could lead to a computenzed na-
tional test item bank for use by states or local schoals to
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assess student progress or to measure program effec-
tiveness Whenassessmentitems are closeh aligned with
Program content and outcomes benefits accrue to teach-
ers and students aike Results can be used to prosule
appropnate feedback. reinforcement, and remediation
for students, ard to improve prugram content and tn-
struction

4 Clanfication of phrases such as “wase food chotces™
and “optimal diet ™ based on research in areas such as
the levels of fat cholesterol, and salt recommended for
children as well as on *he nsks of over-consumption of
these and other dietarv components

5 Cooperation between researchers and practiticners
to refine models for the delis erv of nutntion education
Such a dialogue could tead to the testing of these models
in more classroom settings and he eventual deselop-
ment of successful classroom practices This cooperation
wo.ld undoubtedhs result inwider reporting of the find-
ngs and the general adv ancement of the feld of nutntion
education

6 Commumication wath members of Congress and the
USDA regarding program impact and the reed for re-
search adequate and stable program funding, and ud-
ministrative support

7 Stabihitv of funding at 5 levcl that will allow not
onlv full implementation of a comorehensue program.
bu* also longitudinal evaluation of NET Program effec-
tneness wath particular regard to behavior change and
attitude formation

8 Utlhization of staff development research firdinas
n order to nstitutionalize nutntior education instruction
in schools and child care settings These findings indicate
that two cntical factors in successfully adopting curncuiar
changes are sufficient teacher .n-service time and teacher
nyvohvement in staff dey elopment planning .20,

9 Enhancement of the school cafetena as a leaming
laberatons, and deselopment of strate ves for educational
leaders to be avic to use the school food prograis as an
wmstructional tool \lodeling 15 a stroniz form of teaching,
and the messages of the cafetena need to be ahizned with
those of the classrcom

16 Deselopment of strong professional relat:onships
with kev groups that share wath the NET Prowrain an
wmrerest.n the nutntion and health euacation uf children
Puarents, school nurses. food service staff and teachers
of pre school. elementan educaticn home econumics
science, health ang physical education are s;ome of thuse
with whom the NET Program should continue coopet-
atug

11 E<amination of less traditional settings for pro-
gram implementation where mstructiondl space may be
more readily available than in the ot sioom These may
wnclude programs for latchhes chuldicn parent education
pruzrams, and other out of-classroom settines

The basic mission of the NET Program reinams un-
changed to prosule opportunities Sor students to ucquire
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the hiowledge, atitudes and behaviors necessary to make
informed and healthful food choices Despite reduced
funding. NET Program coordinators continue to work
toward the goals set forth in the enabling legislation
NET projects and actnities have increased children’s
acceptance of nutritious foods, improved teachers’
knowleage of the pnnaiples and practices of nutntion
educat.on, developed and disseminated curncula and
other nutntion education matenuls, de.elopcd school
food seni e courses n both nutnticn and school food
service munagement., increased the use of the school
cafeterta as a leaming laboratorv, and increased chil-
dren's hnowledge of the relationships among foed, nu-
tntion and health

As n all other areas of nutntion educatior 1esearch
will continue to enhance the practice of nutntion edu-
cation 1 school and child care settings Limited funding
will continue tu resirict evaluation efforts but cooper-
ation between researchers and practitioners can senve to
maximize the effectiveness of atrition education. We
offer the eleven areas of concern as a possible agenda for
researchers and NET Program coo,d.nators to use in
their efforts to work together for the benefit of the chil-
dren whom the \ET Program 1s directed to sere
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ANNOUNCEMENTS .
NATIONAL CONFERENCE ON ORGANIC/SUSTAINABLE ACRICUL™URE

The Conference will focus on federal and state pohicies that would encourage organic and lows
input farming Speahers will desenbe successful efforts by farmers. state aud federal govern-
ment, and others to promote altrmatve agnculture, as well as obstacles in the marketplace
and 1n govermment programs that hinder more rapid prog-ess Sponsored by the Center for
Science in the Public Interest (CSPI). the Texas Department of Agnculture (TDA). the Min-
nesota Department of Agnculture. and the Institute for Alternative Agnculture, the Confer-
ence will be held March 16-17. 1959 at V' _hington, D C For further information, contact
Dan Howell at (202} 332.9110. o1 wnte to CSPL/Organic Conference. 1301 Stxteenth St MW,
Washingten, DC 20036

NCFAL INVITES APPLICATIONS FOR RESIDENT FELLOWSHIPS

The National Center for Food and Agncultural Policv (NCFAP) 15 inviting appheations for
resigent fellowships yn food and agncultural pohes dunng tle 1989.90 academic year Up to
three ‘ellowships will be awarded. each for a period of six to twelve months, to voung profese
stonals who wash to pursue scholarly work on current or emerging national 1;sues related to
food and agricultural poliey

The award 15 open to individuals in 2nv discipiine who wall have compicted thew doctoral

q ts by the beg g of the 1989-90 academic vear Indiduals Som universities,
government. and the pnvate sector are elgible Professionals who will be on .abbatical leave
dunng the fellowship period are e~couraged to applv

The Jeadhine for receiving apphestions is Apal 3, 1989 Awards will be announced in Mav
1999, an earher decision mav be made 1n the case of an applicant interested in beginn ng the
fellowship dunng the summer

For further information and app'ication forms, contact Tamara A Kloeck!, National Center
for Food and Agncuitural Policv, Resources for the Future. 1615 P Street. N W', Washington,
D C 20036, Telephone (202) 328-311%

Q ‘ ?}J’ %
FRIC v Y

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




HEARING ON H.R. 24, A BILL TO EXTEND THE
CHILD NUTRITION AND SCHOOL LUNCH ACTS

THURSDAY, MARCH 23, 1989

Houske OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND
VocarioNaL EpUCATION,
CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LAEBOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., in Room
2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Augustus F. Hawkins
[Chairman) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Hawkins, Payne, Lowey, Po-
shard, Unsoeld, and Goodling.

Staff present: John Jennings, counsel; Diane Stark, legislative
specialist; Beverly Griffin, research assistant; and Mary Jane
Fiske, professional staff member.

Chairman BEawkins. The Subcommittee on Elementary, Second-
ary and Vocational Education is called to order. The hearing today
is the last hearing on the child nutrition issue. We do have some
problems with conflicts with other committees.

Is Mr. John Bode present? Are you able to testify at this time or
do you need to leave?

Mr. Bopk. Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HawkIns. You may proceed, then.

Mr. John Bode is Assistant Secretary for Food and Cousumer
Services at the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Mr. Bode, we e
delighted to have you before the Committee.

Would you identify the other witnesses and then you may pro-
ceed with your statement? The statement, in its entirety, will be
printed in the record, and we would appreciate you giving us hign-
lights and allowing time for questions, if we can do it that way.

You may proceed, then. Thank you.

STATEMENT OF JOHN BODE, ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR FOOD
AND CONSUwER SERVICES, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUL-
TVRE, ACCOMPANIED BY SCOTT DUNN, ACTING ADMINISTRA-
TOR, NS, USDA, AND GEORGE BRALEY, DEPUTY ADMINISTRA-
TOR FOR SPECIAL NUTRITION PROGRAMS, FNS, USDA

Mr. Bope, Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to introduce, on my left, Scott Dunn, the Acting Ad-
ministrator of the Food Nutrition Service. Mr. Dunn has been serv-
ing as Deputlg Administrator of the Food Nutrition Service for the
Food Stamp Program. On my right is George Braley who is Deputy

(255)
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Administrator for Specia! Nutrition Programs of the Food Nutri-
tion Service.,

I appreciate the commiitee’s understanding of the many time
constraints on all of us. In summarizing, I would like to point out
that the Bush Administration’s proposal for the National School
Lunch Program, School Breakfast Program, Child Care Food Pro-
gram and Summer Food Service Program, is to support these pro-
grams at levels substantially higher than their 1989 funding levels.

The Bush budget would not reduce funding levels for the Chilid
Nutrition Programs in general; furthermore, the Administration
supports the continuation of all the child nutrition meal subsidy
programs and including the reauthorizing of the Nutrition Educa-
tion and Training Program, NET.

Switching from the level of support for a moment, I'd like to say
a few words about the nutritional aspects of the School Lunch Pro-
gram, recognizing that that i- a special concern of this commiitee
and it most certainly is of the Department, as well.

There has been considerable attention paid to these dietary con-
cerns, particularly levels of fat, sodium and sugar, in meals served
through Federal assistance. I would like to assure the committee of
our continuing and abiding concern about the quality of diet
achieved through the Food Assistance Programs.

In addition, I would like to mention a matter that has been of
great concern in recent weeks. I realize the committee has heard a
great deal about the Federal review system. It is our effort to inde-
pendently verify school and school food authority claiming prac-
tices.

If I may just mention that we have seen evidence that gives us
serious concern about accuracy of meal counting and claims proce-
dures; therefore, we feel this modest effort to better get a handle
on those meal counting claims activities is a necessary step to
assuxc'ie that the integrity of the School Food Assistance Programs is
sound.

Of course, the Administration has a very firm commitment to
the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and
Children. President Bush has recognized that as a program that
warrants protection and expansion. The Administration is very
concerned about that program and supportive of WIC.

With that, I will conclude the summary of mmy remarks, Mr.
Chairman, and we would be delighted to answer any questions the
committee would have.

[The prepared statement of John Bode follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN W. BODE
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR FOOD AND CONSUMER SERVICES
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
BEFORE THE
HOUSE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
MARCH 23, 1989

Thank you for your invitation to testify before the Committee
today, Mr. Chairman. We are here to discuss the reauthorization

of the Child Nutrition Programs.

Over the past several weeks, the Committ.e has heard testimony
from a number of groups and individuals who care about the Cchild
Nutrition Programs and want them to succeed. We agree with thenm
that the Child Nutrition Programs have been a success and

deserve continued support. While we may differ on specific
issues, we all agree that our Nation's children and the taxpayers
as well, deserve the most nourishing and most cost-effective
programs we can devise. I would like to briefiy outline and

discuss our recommendations for the Child Nutrition Programs.

The Bush Administration's proposal [or the National School Lunch
Program, School Breakfast Program, the Child Care Food Program
and Summer Food Service Program 3s to support these programs at
levels substantially higher than their 2989 funding levels. The
Bush Budget would not reduce funding levels for the Child

Nutrition Programs. Furthermore, the Administration supports

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




—

[E

298

the continuation of ~11 of the Child Nutrition meal subsidy
programs, including the reauthorization of the Nutyition

Education and Training Program (NET).

To be specific, the Child Nutrition Programs, including the
National School Lunch Program, the Child Care and Summer Feeding
Programs and associated administrative erxpense funds would be
funded at $4.9 billion as compared tc $4.6 biliion in Fiscal
Year 1989. This level of support would enable these programs to

continue to fulfill their criticai role.

Switching from the level of support for a moment, I would like to
say a few words about the nutritional aspects of the National
School Lunch Program. There has been considerable attention paid
to the fat, sodium and sugar content of the pPrograms over the
past several months. I wouid like to assure the Committee of our
continuing and abiding concern in this area. The Department has
reviewed and modified the guidelines, recipes, commodity
specifications and other materials to see that the compliance
with the Dietary Guidelines is as complete as possible. 1In
recent years, USDA has also provided assistance to State and
local cooperating agencies to comply with the Dietary Guidelines
as they relate to the intake of sugar, fat and sodium. For
example, the Department this past year issued revised recipe

cards for school lunch managers in 90,000 schools that
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incorporste reductions, where practical, in the levels of sugar,

fat and salt.

We believe the Department has a good record of promoting
practices in the school lunch program that are consistent with
the Dietary Guidelines. As you know, the Dietary Guidelines call
for moderation rather than set quantitative limits since there is
currently insufficient evidence and consensus within the
scientific and medical communities to support strict quantitative
limits, particularly for children. Certainly, this is an area
where scientific knowledge is evolving, and the Department must
be prepared to respond to changes in information on this issue.
We will continue to look for additional opportunities to help
State and local school lunch managers moderate intakes of sugar,
fat and sodium in lunches served. We are looking at areas to
make further improvem=znts such as examining the specifications
for processed proiucts, not only those purchased by the
Cepartment, but also specifications used by State and local
cooperators in an effort to minimize sodium and fat. Often, more
fat and sodium are added during processing than necessary or

desirable.

Not only has USDA provided State and local agencies with improved
guidelines on meal preparation, the Department has made a

concerted eifort to moderate the salt, fat and sugar in USDA
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donated commodities over the past several years. For example, we

have changed specifications on a number of canned products to
reduce the sodium level to the minimum amount possible while
assuring the palatability of the foods. We have set the
specifications for ground beef to be an average of 22 percent fat
content, which is much lower than standard ground beef. We have
changed the specification for canned fruit products, and we buy
them packed only in natural juice or light syrup. There are
other examples where we have changed the specifications, but the
point is we have improved them in line with the Djetary

Guidelines and to make the foods appealing to recipients.

Also, we would like to idencify additional opportunities to
promote the need for moderation and to show State and local
managers how to moderate the use of these 1tems in their food
preparation. The bo tom line is: we think USDA should play and
does play a leadership role in promot ing healthier eating

practices,

We intend to not only continue these efforts, but to make the
food that uUSDA provides and the meal pattern guidelines we
promote the best we can. We will be vworking with other officials

in Government, such as the Surgeon General, and listening to

outside experts' opinions to make i1mprovements wherever possible,
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Next, I would like to discuss a subject that has been of concern
to this Committee and has received considerable attention by
witnesses earlier this month, namely Federal Review ~-- our effort
to independently verify school and School Food Authority claiming
practices. Let me try to explain what it is and what it is not,
to dispel, if possible, some of the "myths" surrounding the

system.

Federal review is a temporary project to assess and improve the
accuracy of school lunch claims. We have carefully designed the
Federal Review Systim to complement, not duplicate, the ongoing
State review systems under National School Lunch Program

regulations.

AIMS (which stands for Assessment, Improvement and Monitoring
System) was created in 1980 to improve the overall management of
the National School Lunch Program. AIMS regulations require
that State agencies review all Srhool Food Authorities over a 4-
year period. There are performan.: standards that schools must
meet in approving applications for free and reduced-price meals,
establishing free and reduced-price meal claims, counting meals
and in meeting the school lunch meal patterns. Even with AIMS
requirements in place, the Department continues to he aware
through Office of Inspector General reports and on-site reviews

by FNS personnel of substantial discrepancies in claims for meals

Q 353
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and the actual meals served. These reports were not
statisticully representativa of all school districts nor do we
wish by impliéétion t0 impugn the efforts of schools as a whole.
However, the maynitude of the problams found, and the large
discrepuncy betweer the claims for meals and the actual numbers
of stuuents enrolled, led us to believe that accountability needs
to be improved. We expect to determine more precisely the nature
of the problem and to identify solutions through our Federal

review effort.

There is also some misunderstanding about "AccuClaim.” This is
not a separate new accountability system but rather a term used
for the package of revisions tc the NSL™ regulations and ATMS
performance standards. AccuClaim regulations will require States
to focus their AIMS' review efforts on schools most likely to
have problems, tighten the standards for claiming meals for
reimbursement from the Federal Government, and require that
claims' action be taken if invalid reimbursement requests are
uncovered. These rules will be effective for the upcoming School

Year starting July 1, 1989.

Federal review is an effort to verify school lunch claims
independent of AIMS. The underlying premise of Federal review
is not to duplicate State efforts but to complement them, given

that the Cepartmert has overall responsibility to ensure the
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integrity of the National School Lunch Program. We are very
sensitive to State concerns that the reviews do not duplicate
State work. Therefore, schools Subject to review under AIMS are

not subject to Federal review in that Yyear.

This year, Federal reviews will be conducted during March, April,
and May from a sample of about 200 school food authorities
selected randomly for review. We will be sharing the results of
the reviews as soon as we can reach some valid conclusions from
the data collected. These preliminary results may show us that
the overclaim problem is smaller than we now think, or it may
foreshadow recommendations to further refine AIMS, to expand
Federal reviews, or to take some other appropriate action to

ensure that funds are lawfully, efficiently spent.

In addition to the reviews, there will be training provided to
States and local food service managers. We are coordinating and
developing our plans for the training effort in close
consultation with representatives of the school food service
industry. It is vital that we take advantage of their insight
into the best methods for providing training and technical

assistance concerning accountability.

The relatively small amcunt of money devoted to Federal review

has a potentially great payback in reducing overclaims for school

E
o
O
<y




Junches and in maintaining confidence that dollars spent by the

taxpayer on school lunches are well-spent. 1In short, a quality

program means both a nutritionally sound program that appeals to

to the taxpayers.

our children and a program that is accountable so that it appeals

|
Before leaving the discussion of the National School Lunch ;
Program, I would like to comment on commodity support for the i
program and in particular correct the record about the level of ;
bonus commodity donations. As you know, we plan to provide the |
full amount of entitlement commodities provided for in the law,
including increases for inflation. At this point, it is not
possible to forecast the exact level of bonus commodity donations
that schools will get next school year over and above the
entitlement levels. Over the past several years, there have been
substantial amounts of bonus foods donated to schools, especially
dairy items, with millions of pounds being provided. During the
current school year, the level of donation of bonus commodities
has declined because previous record donations have depleted
what was once a very large inventory level. This year schools
have received somewhat less bonus foods than we originally
estimated to be available, but the drop in quantity is far less
than some critics have charged. Bonus commodity distributions
decrrased $52 million (or 12%) in school year 1988, about one-~

quarter of what has been alleged. Most of the change was due to
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lower bonus distributions of beef acquired during the whole-

herd buyout required by the Food Security Act of 1985. As you
know, the Department was required to make a one time $400 million
purchase of beef, pork, and lamb, and half was distributed
through domestic channels. Schools received $65 million in beef
in 1987 and $20 million in 1988, Accounting for the differance,
bonus distributions decreased by about $7 million in school year

1988.

It should be noted, however, that distributions in Fiscal

Year 1988 were not much below the average of $360 million since

1981, the firat year when bonus commodity levels to schools i
increased dramatically., MNext year, there will continue to be
donated foods and schools will still be able to use these
commodities to help prepare economical meals, but we cannot give

exact items or amounts until lJater this year.

|
|
|
|
|
|
1
The next major programs I would like to discuss are the i
Supplemental Feeding Programs for Women, Infants and Children ‘
{WIC) and the Commodity Supplemental Food Program ({CSFP). i
Taking the Reagan Budget as a gtarting point, the WIC |
requirement more than supports continuation of these programs
and increases in funding to offset inflation. Additional funds

should be available as well from the funds generated through cost

containment programs initiated by States in the WIC Program.
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puring Fiscal Year 1990 States will save more than $300 million
by reducing the price of different formula sold tc WIC infants.
These funds should support increases in WIC participation of

approximately 700,000,

Another proposal which the Reagan Budget offered is to allow
States to request the transfer of part of their allocated funds
from WIC to CSFP or from the CSFP to WIC., States would be
required Lo request such a transfer through State plans or plan
amendments for both programs prior to the beginning of the fiscal
year. The Department would make the transfer only if it is
determined that the result would be an increase in the combined
total participation in the state of those for whom the program
was originally intended: infants and children. This change is
intended to give States greater flexibility in allocating
caseload between the two programs and to choose appropriate
benefits and services to be provided to their target populations.
The high risk women, infants and children populations would
remain the program's top priority, and current levels of
participation by the elderly and women, infants and children in

existing and approved CSFP sites would be maintained.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my testimony. I would be happy to

answer any questions you may have.
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Chairman Hawkins. Thank you, Mr. Bode.

I know that there are several questions that the Members would
like to ask. Let me yield first to Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoopLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Of course, when the Secretary was before the Budget Committee
and I was putting words in his mouth, and he said what I wanted
to hear.

First of all, let me say that I am pleased to see the Bush budget
being quite different from the Reagan budget. I am pleased to see
that the new Secretary understands the importance of Section IV if
you are going to keep a School Lunch Program going.

I was extremely pleased to hear the Secretary’s response when I
said, as I have said here several times, thainow that we have a
CASH state out there, we probably should have Pennsylvania as a
CLOC state to really get a better view of what CLOC is.

I was pleased when the Secretary responded, “Well, I want these
innovative ideas. I tried ten years ago to get the people to be inter-
ested in doing something different as far as commodities are con-
cerned and distribution, et cetera.” So, I was very pleased to hear
him say that.

I also said to him that I had some real concerns about taking $6
million to test with ‘“the integrity of this program”. It seems to me,
that if we have both local auditors and we have state auditors, we
are going to have to build a new facility for these School Lunch
people so we can get the state, local, and Federal auditors. We
won’t have enough room for thein. They will be falling all over
each other.

My hope would be that that $6 million would go toward better
programs to put nutritious food on plates. I just have to believe
that there is some way that we can make the local and the state
auditors accountable without us spending a great deal of money to
do that kind of thing.

All he promised me was he would certainly take a look at that .
It would be my hope, that you could find some way that we don’t
have to spend that kind of money on people running around doing
book work that we could use in our food programs and then, some-
how or another, make sure that the local audits and the state
audits do what needs to be done.

Probably, part of their problem is that they are not quite sure
what it is they are supposed to do. At least, we get some testimony
to that effect. If you just were specific to exactly what shall be
done, I'm sure they would do it.

Then you would have an accounting and you could just do an oc-
casional spot check. They wouldn’t know where you were going to
sf;:ot check, so they would make sure they would do a better job
than the auditors did in the savings and loan areas of Texas.

Again, I would hope you can find some way to not spend that $6
million for that purpose. I do not have the answers as to exactly
how you would do that, but unless there is a great deal of fraud
and abuse out there—and I have not heard that there is—then I
would hope that we would use that mon -y to put nutritious food on
the plate.

Mr. Bopk. Sir, I think the Secretary is interested in taking a
fresh look at this and virtually all of the policies with respect to
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the food assistance programs that have been pursued in the past. I
think that is a very wise approach.

I have talked with him about this matter and he is interested in
taking a fresh look. We do feel that there is cause for concern. I
think it is important that we not overstate the problem; that we be
cautious not to jump to conclusions.

However, there is very real evidence to give us cause for that
concern. Much has been said about the Inspector General’s audits.
Those audits were an effort to identify school districts that were
likely to have problems. Unfortunately, in looking at thirteen
schggl districts, $2 million worth of inappropriate claims were iden-
tified.

Of greater concern, frankly, is that in looking at nationally rep-
resentative data, this older data, we found that some 22 percent of
the claims, in 22 percent of the cases, I guess, there were over
claims. That seems to indicate that we do have some significant
problems that need to be addressed.

The Federal review system proposal is the Department’s sugges-
tion for how we can get a handle on meal counts and claims. I am
sure—well, I know—that there is a good deal of confusion, which
shouldn’t be a surprise when much rhetoric is going around about
bearing accounting requirements and standards.

When it gets right down to it, we have one auditing activity that
we rely upon to systematically assure the accuracy of meal counts
and claims. That is the AIMS system. That system, because of the
evidence I have referenced, we are concerned may not be doing the
job. That’s why we felt Federal review was an appropriate addition-
al effort to find out just what the gravity of the problem is and go
after that.

I do not know that any other party in this matter has really
come forward with the proposal for how we go about addressing
that problem. If the 22 percent number is accurate today—and it
may not be—then we would be looking at a $200 million over claim
situation.

I do not think it is a very small problem and one that can lightly
be dismissed. We need to be sure that we have got a handle on it.
This was our suggestion for how to go about doing that.

If there are alternative methods uf accomplishing that objective,
we would be delighted to work with you, most certainly, to go
about getting the problem taken care of.

Mr. GoopLING. I think my hope would be that somehow or an-
other, you could very specifically tell that school district or tell the
state, “This is what we want in relationship to your auditing proce-
dure. These are the things you are supposed to do.”

Then, I think we should be able to trust them. I am afraid what
you are going to do is you are going to drive the other side very
quickly to getting back to that old argument, “How about a free
lunch for everyone?” We fought that fourteen years ago.

I think, you know, that I do not think there are people out there
that are deliberately trying to abuse the system. I think part of it
is in confusion. Part of it is the people you are dealing with when
ly;ou are trying to determine whether they are eligible or not eligi-

le, and whether they are eligible this month or whether they were

not eligible two months ago.
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I know that there is real fear out there amongst those who are
providing the lunch programs that you may find a mistake that
they made. What do you do? What penalty? Again, the penalty
eventually will be reduced services to the children, particularly if
it is a monetary penalty. It is a little like Chapter L.

Great, we then get the school district to pay back something that
they weren’'t sure was correct or incorrect when they did it. In
order to pay it back, of course, they must take the money from the
present students in order to do that kind of thing.

So, if there is some way that you can just be very specific in rela-
tionship to the state and local audits, then we will trust them. We
will spot check here this year and then we will spot check some
other place next year, just so they know that somebody may be
around sometime. I do not think we need a $6 million effort.

Mr. Bobk. Sir, I asked Mr. Braley to assist me in fully responding
to the point you made about clarity of expectations for schools and
states in these procedures. I would like to emphasize that we do
not feel a penalty would be appropriate here.

I do not think a sanction or a penalty should be used. However,
we do not feel that inappropriately granted funds from the Federal
Government, over-claims, should be allowed to stay in the hands
they were appropriately received by.

Mr. GoopLING. Are you saying you are not trying to reclaim
any——

Mr. Bopk. I believe that any monies that were inappropriately
provided to a school should not be left with the school. If they were
llegally——

Mr. GoobpLING. But they've already spent them. Then what do
you do?

Mr. Bobk. I guess, in my view, if they wer~ inappropriately re-
ceived, if the school got money they should not have received, then
they need to pay that back. )

The fact that they went ahead and spent those particular funds
is not really relevant to the basic question that they got monies
through inappropriate claims in those inappropriately received, il-
legally received, if you will—I do not mean to use inflammatory
language there—funds should not be staying in their hands when,
under the law, they weren’t supposed to be there in the first place.

Mr. GoopLING. The only point I am making there is that in most
instances, although I am sure they did not do it intentionally.
What I am saying is that now they must take it from the existing
students in order to pay that back.

Again, the only pitch I am making is that there has to be some
way that we do not have to spend $6 million. Somehow or another,
we can get the state and local auditors to do what needs to be done
with maybe a spot check now and then.

I have asked the Chairman whether Mary Jane, when you are
finished, could ask any questions that I have. I have to go over and
fight the battle on the floor.

I wanted to exchange notebooks with the Chairman. He showed
me his notebook to refute everything I'm going to say and I'm
showing him my notebooks to refute everything he is going to say
on the floor on minimum wage. But I have to go over there.
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Mr. PosHARrD. Let me apologize, Mr. Bode, for beirg late. The
Chairman, as you know, had to leave to go manage the minimum
wage bill on the floor, so if I should ask some questions here that
have already been discussed, forgive me. You can just indicate as
such,

Could you share with us—I know you have, in rather broad
terms—President Bush’s budget request for the Child Nutrition
Programs? Could you provide the subcommittee with a chart, per-
haps not today, but at some point in time, which specifically out-
lines the Busk budget request? Would you do that?

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir. Yes, sir, we would be pleased to.

Mr. PosHARD. Okay. We would like that, if you could.

Could you also tell us the position of the Administration on Sec-
tion IV funding? Do you support Section IV funding for all chil-
dren?

Mr. Bope. Yes, sir. President Bush proposed that Section IV
funding be provided in the School Lunch Program and, in that
way, it really differed from President Reagan’s request.

As you know, as a general matter, in the budget negotiations and
discussions with Members of Congress, President Bush generally
used President Reagan’s budget proposal as a starting point.

He is eager to work with Congress to sort out the budgetary pri-
orities that the country needs; however, that was one point, the
Section IV funding in School Lunch and also funding for the Child
Care Food Program, where he chose to differ with President Rea-
gan'’s budget proposal.

Now, like everything else, he feels that he is willing to talk with
the Congress, but that is the starting point he is using in those
budget discussions.

Mr. PosHaRrp. I think all of us are appreciative of the fact that
there have been some reversals in the budget from President Rea-
g}?n’s to President Bush’s budget proposal and we are thankful for
that.

. In your written statement, this is a question that the Chairman
wanted to ask, iz your written statement, you discuss the Federal
review initiative. As I understand it, the purpose of the review is to
verify the School Lunch claims for free or reduced price lunches.

Under the current law, schools are required to verify three per-
cent or three thousand free or reduced price meal claims, whichev-
er is fewer; is that correct?

Mr. Bopk. Sir, those are applications for free and reduced-price.
That is really a different step in the procedure. If you would like, I
can elaborate.

Mr. PosHARD. Yes. Would you?

Mr. Bopk. That really concerns the applications provided so that
at the beginning of the school year, generally, students take home
applications which are then filled out and low income households
will fill theirs out to assure that their child gets a free school meal.

What we are talking about here on the three thousand or three
percent is the number of those applications that need to be verified
to take some efforts to assure that the information provided on
those applications is accurate.
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That is different from the count and claims procedure where one
determines how many children eligible for free meals actually are
eating lunch on a given day.

Mr. PosHARD. Let me finish this question here, then, and you can
respond to the last half of it.

Mr. Bope. Okay. Fine.

Mr. PosHARD. Under this Federal review, will the USDA be
checking only the verified meal claims or will they be looking at
every form that a school received that qualified a child for a free or
reduced price meal?

Mr. Brarey. We would, under the Federal review go in and
review the applications to make sure the school made the proper
decision in approving those applications, and that would apply to
all of them.

We would also look to make sure that the verification, the three
percent or three thousand that required some substantiation from
the household to really sort of back up or bolster the information
on the form, to make sure that that was done, as well.

What we would not do, though, is any further checking back
with the families to do additional verification while we are in there
doing a review.

Mr. PosHARD. That is done for every school that is on the School
Lunch Program, right, or do you sample schools?

Mr. BrALEY. This year, the legislation that we are operating the
Federal review system under required that we go out to a random
samnple of school districts around the country.

Mr. PosHARD. I see.

Mr. BraLey. We had originally intended to target those that
looked to have potential problems, but the appropriations commit-
tee asked that we go out and look at a representative sample of
aschool districts so we could get a national picture of the extent of
this problem.

As a result, this current school year, we are going into two hun-
dred districts around the country and an average of about four
schools in each of those districts.

Mr. PosHARD. I assume you will be sharing the results of that
survey with the committee, then?

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir. We look forward to doing that. What we an-
ticipate doing is providing an interim report early this summer.
The appropriations committees are especially interested in this
matter. We are going to provide them an interim report before
they mark up and then one later in the summer when all the infor-
mation is together.

I wanted to be sure that we accurately understood your question.
The verification procedures on applications, that’s done in all the
schools but the Federal review most certainly is not, as Mr. Braley
indicated.

Mr. PosHARD. That’s a sampling?

Mr. Bope. Yes.

Mr. PosHARD. The Department and the committee staff have
begun to meet to find ways to reduce the paperwork in the School
Lunch and the other Child Nutrition Programs and we are con-
cerned that these programs cause about 44 percent of all the paper-
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work imposed on the education institutions or at least, that is what
we are told.

We want you to thank the Department and the people in the De-
partment that are working with the staff for cooperating with the
committee in this area. I think there is considerable progress being
made.

Mr. Bobk. Sir, we intend to cooperate fully. We look forward to
that effort. As you know, President Bush is very enthusiastic about
reducing regulatory burden. He has had a longstanding interest in
that area.

I think that we need to also be sure that the information collec-
tion budget this procedure that we use to measure regulatory
burden is well understood. What we do is we measure anything
that is done that must be done by Federal requirements.

What is included in that, many times, are activities that would
be done whether they were required by the Federal Government or
not, such as basically keeping of the books on an operation like a
school lunch program.

Now, that is a sizeable portion of that 44 percent and so, to chalk
that up completely to regulatory burden could be misunderstood. I
don’t think that when one takes apart the various parts of that 44
percent, there is a great deal of controversy about the bulk of it.

Mr. PosHARD. I think reduction in paperwork is something that
needs to be done across the board in all of our programs and, cer-
tainly, assigning a percentage to one as opposed to another isn’t
what we are really after, but still, we appreciate the efforts of the
Department in working with the committee on arriving at some so-
lutions to that problem.

Mrs. Lowey?

Low ! 13 much: Tiate your testimony.
I am sorry I was delayed at another hearing and I missed the be-
ginning of this one.

I would like to ask you a question concerning the WIC funds. I
noticed in your testimony, on Page 9, you said that additional
funds should be available as well from the funds generated through
cost containment programs initiated by states in the WIC program.

I was a little concerned by that. As you know, only half of those
eligible for WIC are currently getting it. This is the United States
of America. We are talking ahout feeding women and children. We
are bailing out S&Ls ani we are finding money for so many other
projects in the United States.

What is the outlook fir the Administration to increase funds? Is
there any chance that v'e can look forward to this in the future so
%;a(t)? more people who are eligible to participate can participate in

1C?

Mr. Bope. Ma’am, I think we look at it in terms of two stey s.
First of all, we are very pleased that states are moving aggressiveiy
to make the best possible use of the funds that are available.

Through cost reduction efforts, most noteworthy are the Infant
Formula Rebate activities that have been done, but also other ef-
forts to contain food package costs, states are able to serve more
people with the amount of monies that are provided by the Federal
Government, so we see that as one very important step.




313

Secoad, President Bush has identified the WIC program as a pro-
gram that he would like to protect and expand. There is simply a
matter of sorting out the many demands for funding that are
present in the Federal budget. That is why his approach has been
to work with the Congress.

He is interested in having the budget discussions sort out those
priorities. I think by starting that process with WIC named as a
protect-and-expand program, it reflects some significant support.

I think for me to go beyond that, I really just do not have the
specifics to back up anything further.

Mrs. Lowey. Now, it is unfortunate, frankly, because I guess it is
a matter of priorities, isn’t it? I would think that feeding of women
and children is a priority in a kinder, gentler nation.

I would hope that the Administration would take a harder look
at military budgets and other areas where I think there is a whole
lot more waste than in the WIC program and redirect some of
those funds towards the WIC programn:

I wonder if you could also comment on Mr. Greenstein’s state-
ment on Page 8, where he is talking abecut reclassifying WIC funds
as mandatory spending.

Mr. Bope. I'm sorry?

Mrs. Lowey. Let me read it. He is saying, ‘“The Congressional
budget resolution could assume the same level of modest annual
funding increases as in the past three Congressional Hudgets, {100
to $150 million a year over current service levels, but could reclas-
sity WIC funds as mandatory spending.”

Are you familiar with that at all?

Mr. Bopk. If I may respond more fully in written form, I would
appreciate the opportunity to do that, ma’am.

Mrs. Lowey. Okay.

Mr. Bopk. I was remiss in not pointing out before that, of course,
the WIC program has grown significantly in the past. We now have
sume thirty percent of the infants born in the U.S. receiving WIC
benefits and the level of service or participation rate below the pov-
erty line is getting to be much better.

We do have a priority system in the WIC program which is one
of its greatest strengths, so the monies are going where they are
needed most and where the greatest benefits of WIC are provided.

Mrs. Lowgy. Well, I would just hup: that we would continuously
look at our priorities. I do feel that the feeding of women and chil-
dren in need is a priority. We must deal with this seriously, and
not be watisfied that just thirty percent are being taken care of. We
must try to reach a higher goal.

Mr. Bope. Ma’am, I am not sure that we really are as aware as
we might be of Congressional views of the amount of flexibility af-
forded to states in determining eligibility for the W1C program.

Right now, there is a very broad flexibility for states in deter-
minirg WIC eligibility. In essence, states cen broaden the eligible
population significantly. How that matter would be addressed with
a program that has no state matching requirements is a very inter-
esting one.

When some people are discussing WIC eventually being treated
as an entitlement program, it alrend” receives a very, very high
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level of Federal {unding without state matches and giving such tre-
mendous state flexibility is unique in that context.

I think the Department would be interested in knowing how
members of Congress see that somewhat inconsistent argument
being reconciled.

Mrs. Lowey. Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Bope. Yes, ma'am.

Mr. PosHARD. Mr. Payne?

Mr. PayNe. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I do not have any questions other than to, first of all, just say
that I am pleased that the recommendation from the Bush Admin-
istration for the Child Nutrition Programs, which, according to
gour remarks, funded at $4.9 billion in fiscal year 1989 up from 4.6

illion.

I commend the Administration for recommending an increase
over the Reagan budget. I certainly feel, though, that neither the
Bush budget nor, indeed, the Reagan budget, nearly goes far
eni)ugh in addressing the needs of people in this category that need
help.

I do not have any answers. We are all a panel of freshmen here
8o we are learning, but I do know that there is, indeed, a great deal
of need. Needs are not being met, and I believe that we could all
work towsrds upgrading the programs throughout the country to
see that more persons are included in the program, eligible per-
sons, and that we could work with school districts and states on
outreach so that boards of education will certainly volunteer to
bring these programs on beard.

That’s all, just sort of a statement, not necessarily looking for
any answers, because I have (o go vote, too.

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir.

Mr. Payne. We will take just a brief recess. Mr. Poshard, the
acting Chair, will be back in four or five minutes, so we would just
like to take a recess for a few minutes until he returns.

Mr. Bope. Thank you, sir. I explained to Chairman Hawkins
before the hearing that I have another hearing at which I must tes-
tify. In the event I need to leave in the interim, Mr. Dunn and Mr.
Braley will remain to answer any questions from the committee.

Mr. Payne. Thank you. very much.

[Recess.]
fMlll‘;’ PosHARD. Mr. Bode, do you want ., make a statement, first
of all?

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir. I would appreciate it if you would accept my
apology. I used the number $200 million earlier and that is not cor-
rect. I would prefer that if you would permit me to ask the commit-
tee to disregard that statement.

The 22 percent that I referred to there is that 22 percent of the
schools did, in that 1980 data, have inappropriate claims, but that
does not translate to $200 million.

Frankly, because of the age of the data and the potential for mis-
understanding in there, I think that it would be most appropriate
that we just not try tc out price tags on those sorts of things, but
recognize that there are some indications that we should be con-
cerned about count and claim activities.
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Mr. Posaarp. We will make sure the committee disregards that
figure, then. I know you folks work with so many statistics and so
many figures that it is quite normal for somebody to make that
kind of statement.

We will go to Ms. Fiske for some questions.

Ms. Fiske. dohn, do you want to leave now or do you have a few
minutes? What is your preference?

Mr. Bope. I appreciate the committee understanding that I do
have another hearing at which I need to testify, but I can stay for
a few more minutes.

Ms. Fiske. I just have a few quick questions, if it is agreeable.

The first question I wanted to know is whether or not the Bush
Administration will be sending vp a package of legislative recom-
mendations in the child nutrition area, leaving aside the money.
Dg) you have substantive changes that you will be asking us to look
at?

Mr. Bopk. There is a package of legislative changes, recommen-
dations, that we have been working on. I guess I feel a little awk-
ward assuring that it will be transmitted, because it has not really
received a full review in the White House. The Secretary has not
really had an opportunity to focus on it in detail in this transition
time.

I want to be sure that the prerogatives of all Bush Administra-
tion officials are protected, but that is our intention, to send some
recommendations up. I realize the committee has work to do and
cannot delay for a long time, waiting for us to make those kind of
recommendations.

Of course, in an informal fashion——

Ms. Fiske. We could ask for some technical assistance, could we?

Mr. Bopk. The Department’s concerns—we have never made any
secret about the various concerns we have, and I dor’t think, from
my knowledge of that package, there is anything terribly contro-
versial or novel there.

Ms. Fiske. The second question I wanted to ask was a followup
on funding for the three programs that I gather are subject to ne-
gotiation as a part of this flexible freeze concept, Special Milk- WIC
a?d the nut:;tion program for the elderly, the commodity portion
of it.

Can you give us any idea what your negotiating posture is for
openers? Will you be starting it as current services?

Mr. Bopk. I guess I should say, first of all, that in the budget dis-
cussions with Congress, the Administration is ready to talk about
anythin%and talk about everything. That is the President’s ap-
proach. He wants to work with Congress. He does not mean to take
a lot of things off the table at the outset.

But, he has stated his preferences in beginning that negotiation
where he thinks a starting point should be and in that starting
point, he has pointed to the Reagan budget proposals with a few
exceptions. Section IV funding and funding for the Child Care Food
Program are most notable exceptions in this committee’s jurisdic-
tion, at least, and programs that we administer at USDA.

Beyond that, I am really not able to respond because the nature
of those discussions is that for these programs, especially, they are
being handled by OMB Director Darmont and working directly
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with the budget committees and appropriately, that’s being han-
dled at that level, I think, and not with my involvement. So, it
would be inappropriate for me to comment on that.

Ms. Fiske. We do have a study due March 1st that deals with the
appropriate amount of WIC funds that should be committed to ad-
ministrative costs and nutrition services, and I am just wondering
where that is.

Mr. Bope. I apologize for not meeting the March 1 mandated due
date for that study. It is being printed. We can provide the commit-
tee, this morning, a copy of a Xerox of the Executive Summary, if
you would like.

Ms. Fiske. That would be good, yes, if you would, because that is
an issue that we are wrestling with.

Mr. Bopk. Sure.

Ms. Fiskz. The final thing I wanted to ask is whether or not the
Department would entertain combining the Retail Grocer Compli-
ance activities that I understand you do at the Federal level in the
Food Stamp Program currently with similar activities that the
states are now having to deal with in the WIC program.

Would there be some possibility of looking at a way of merging
those two things? It seems to me you are after about the same in-
formation.

Mr. Bope. Well, I think the functions are somewhat different in
the monitoring of retailers. Those differences are significant. We
have had some very significant concerns about cur effectiveness at
the Feceral level in monitoring retailer compliance.

Of course, there is the major difference in how retailers are al-
lowed to participate in the two programs, with the Food Stamp
Program being very broad and inclusive. That is why we have
about 240,000 retail stores redeeming food stamps while the
number in the WIC program is much, much smaller, appropriately.

So, the WIC program’s, more difficult administration in the
retail grocery store can be executed with confidence and also cost
can be better contained, food package costs, through the selection
of stores. I guess I would be real worried about that.

I am pleased to report to the committee that, over recent years,
we have done a better job of getting consistency in—I should not
say consistency in treatment, but a better interface, so if we have a
problem store in one program, we are doing a better job of recog-
nizing that problem store in the other program and taking appro-
priate action.

Ms. Fiske. All right. That’s all. Thank you.

Mr. PosHARD. Thank you, Ms. Fiske.

Mr. Bode, just a couple of things. I want to remind you that the
mark-up on this bill will probaply be around May 1st, so if there
are any legislative recommendations you wish to get to the commit-
tee, they need to be soon.

If you would provide us the chart for outlining the president’s
budget requast, we would appreciate that very much.

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir.

Mr. PosHARD. I think Mr. Payne and Ms. Lowey got their ques-
tions in. Ms. Unsoeld, if she has any questions, we will ask that she
submit those in writing to you and you can respond accordingly.
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If there are no other questions, I thank you for your testimony
here and we will look forward to working with you.

Mr. Bope. Thank you, sir.

Mr. PosHARD. The meeting is adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 10:30 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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